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(1) UBS AG
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
29,385 33,474 35,828 34,915 33,675
(46,187) (52,614) (56,314) (54,879) (52,930)
24,138 25,081 27,012 25,927 29,011
(37,940) (39,422) (42,457) (40,752) (45,599)
5,169 7,699 8,964 8,960 4,521
(8,125) (12,101) (14,090) (14,083) (7,106)
3,965 6,196 7,032 7,084 3,290
(6,232) (9,739) (11,053) (11,135) (5,171)
971,927 1,125,327 1,116,145 1,105,436 1,156,016
(1,527,675)| (1,768,789)| (1,754,357)| (1,737,524)| (1,817,026)
53,722 57,754 58,102 56,598 55,234
(84,440) (90,778) (91,325) (88,961) (86,817)
23,419 25,251 27,912 31,746 28,235
(36,810) (39,690) (43,872) (49,898) (44,380)
338 338 338 338 386
(531) (531) (531) (531) (607)
7.4 10.9 12.3 12.6 6.0
257,831 286,743 299,005 317,823 333,979
(405,259) (450,703) (469,976) (499,554) (524,948)
Tier 1
13.7 13.3 13.9 13.5 13.2
18.3 18.3 18.5 17.2 17.0
33.9 34.2 33.3 32.0 33.3
911,228 1,036,771 1,067,679 1,029,561 1,104,408
(1,432,268)| (1,629,597)| (1,678,178)| (1,618,264)| (1,735,908)
Tier 1
3.9 3.7 3.9 4.2 4.0
189.7
119.6
18,805 36,581 30,563 10,630 -28,202
(29,558) (57,498) (48,039) (16,708) (-44,328)
-1,374 -6,506 -1,860 -12,283 -4,924
(-2,160) (-10,226) (-2,924) (-19,306) (-7,740)
-24,738 12,498 10,927 -5,257 19,690
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(-38,883) (19,644) (17,175) (-8,263) (30,949)
119,804 173,430 207,755 195,200 190,469
(188,308)|  (272,597)|  (326,549)|  (306,815)|  (299,379)
47,005 47,546 47,067 47,628 47,590
UBS AG 2022
2020 SRB
FINMA 2016/1 UBS AG
2023
(2) UBS AG
( C )
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
3,890 4,265 6,013 6,817 1,364
(6,785) (7,439) (10,487) (11,890) (2,379)
11,962 12,116 14,923 15,015 12,422
(20,863) (21,132) (26,027) (26,188) (21,665)
463,681 450,756 464,814 466,550 470,106
(808,706) (786,164) (810,682) (813,710) (819,912)
50,055 46,397 49,599 53,018 44,506
(87,301) (80,921) (86,506) (92,469) (77,623)
( 303 303 303 303 386
(D)) (618) (618) (618) (618) (607)
UBS AG GAAP  FINMA FINVA 2020/1
1862
1872 1998 29
2014
UBS AG 2015
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
2016  UBS LLC
UBS SE 2019
UBS UBS
2023 12 AG
UBS AG (Absorptionsfusion)

14/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

oOoOooodn
2024 31 AG UBS AG
AG
UBS AG AG AG
UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS
2023 12 31
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG

UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG

UBS AG
CI0 UBS AG

2023 EMEA

2023

15/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

UBS (1 10)
CI0
1.5

SMA

CI0

UBS

UBS 90

UBS

UBS AG

SMA
1,580

16/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooood
JP
UBS BNP HSBC
UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
- UBS AG AG
UBS 2023
Our strategy, business model and environment Personal
& Corporate Banking
2023 UBS 2012
2023
UBS key4
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2026 5,100
RWA 2026 RWA
RWA
RWA 150
2026 2023 10
2025 1,000 2028 2,000
2026 70
2026 50
2026 70
15
RWA 25
2026 10
10
RWA
ESG UBS AG
How we create value for our stakeholders Our focus on sustainability and climate
UBS AG
2023
2023 2022
2022 3.4 2023 3.2
GDP
2022 1.9 2023 2.5 2023
ECB
2022 3.4 2023 0.5 2022 2.7
2023 0.7 GDP 2022 4.3
2023 0.1
2022 2022
2023 5.2
2022 7.2 2023
2023 COVID-19
2022
2023 6.4 2023 12 3.4
2023 8.5 2023 12 2.9
ECB 2023
2023 MSCI 22.2

S&P500 26.3
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1, 2
314,747 254,646 1,331 69,505 3,621 93,730 737,579
213,377 174,425 0 13,657 168 4,941 406,568
12,323 28,385 0 15,744 1,728 19,049 77,229
2,3

8,789 952 0 34,712 44,454
6,668 938 0 8,124 15,730
0 0 0 16,792 16,792
2,122 14 0 9,796 11,932

4 13,438 27,574 0 4,714 0 1,694 47,421

! 925 1,698 0 331 12 1 2,966

224 783 0 225 6 6 1,244

74 171 0 57 0 6 308

52 165 0 56 0 0 272

97 448 0 112 6 0 664

2022 12 31
1, 2

334,715 236,613 1,453 76,593 804 39,786 689,963

219,385 154,748 @ 12,754 0 3,924 390,810

13,147 28,610 0 12,920 0 7,486 62,163

2,3

8,328 320 0 34,370 43,018

6,416 304 0 11,218 17,938

0 0 0 17,055 17,055

1,912 15 0 6,097 8,024

4 12,084 23,092 0 6,105 0 2,397 43,677
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4
200
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2023 10
2021
2023
2023
17
2022
2,370 2,550
2,050 1,730
65 2022
48 25  LGD
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1,430 1,740 1,470
2023 12 31 90
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50
UBS AG 2022 50 50
40 30
2023 2022
2022 0.2 0.1
UBS AG
1,930 1,620
1,740 1,460
1,740 1,460 1,250 1,050
LTV 2022 12 31 51 50
LTV 2022 63 64
490 410
LTV 2022 12 31
51 50
LTV 2022 54 50
99.9 20
99 30
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 770
700
2022 320
370 UBS AG
49
LGD 50
2023 21
26 2023 12 31 5,000

2023
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FINMA
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88 2022 12 31 87
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8,900
UBS AG
25
UBS AG

UBS AG 2023 12 31 UBS
AG 220 6,600 2022 12

31 9,800

UBS AG 2023 12 31

UBS AG UBS UBS AG

UBS AG
UBS
UBS AG UBS 2023
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Risk management and control Sustainability and climate

risk
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FINMA 2023 RWA 100
UBS AG 49
UBS AG AMA
UBS AMA
18 AMA UoM UoM UBS AG
UoM
99.9
UBS AG AMA
AVA
AMA
UBS AG
FINMA
AMA
AMA
UBS
2023 12 31
UBS AG
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
33,675 34,915 35,828
« ) 143 29 (148)
29,011 25,927 27,012
C ) 4,521 8,960 8,964
« ) 3,290 7,084 7,032
®.
( ) 6.0 12.6 12.3
( ) 6.7 14.2 13.9
Tier ( ) 7.6 16.8 17.6
( ) 3.2 3.4 3.4
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( 86.2 74.3 75.4
( (53.6) 0.7 13.5
()
1,156,016 1,105,436 1,116,145
55,234 56,598 58,102
Tier ® 44,130 42,929 41,594
® 333,979 317,823 299,005
Tier ( @ 13.2 13.5 13.9
( Y@ 17.0 17.2 18.5
( )(3) 33.3 32.0 33.3
1,104,408 1,029,561 1,067,679
Tier ( y® 4.0 4.2 3.9
) (©) 189.7
( 119.6
( NRROHC) 4,505 3,981 4,614
( ) 47,590 47,628 47,067
@ uss Ac
@ UBS AG 2023 Alternative performance measures
® 2020 UBS AG 2023
Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet ®
2023 63 UBS AG
2023 Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet ®
31 ® 2023
APM
UBS
APM APM
UBS AG 2023 Alternative performance measures
SEC GAAP
UBS AG
2022
2023 37 9,400 54 32 9,000
12 600
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30 8,400
13 9,200
9,300
4,300 12
UBS AG
13 1,600
1,300
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5,000 66 700
49 9,700
11 2,700
8,500
4,200
186 1,000
600
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M&A
13 1,600 6,600 UBS AG SIX
5,500 SIX
BME
UBS AG 2022 UBS AG
4,800

2022 UBS

AG 3,300 UBS
AG 8,600 UBS AG
4,100
2022 2,900 4,300
2,300
2,000
7,500 156 5,500
2,600 7,000
500
21 1,700 111 1,800
9,100
UBS AG 3,900
2023 6,500
6,800
5,600
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
9,300 22 3,800
1,400

7,400

4,300
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20.6 12 600 26.7
4,900 5,600
UBS AG
3,900
CAMT
1,800
UBS AG
DTA
6,200
DTA
DTA
DTA
2024 24
2023 32 9,000
13 800 45 9,800
0oCl 14
oClI 4,900
10
9,000
0ClI 3,600
oClI 5,600
100 1,300
13 3,200
0ClI 4,700
3,100 oClI
0Cl DBO 9,600
6,500
2023 12 31 UBS AG 100
12

UBS AG
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1,000
1,800
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ocClI UBS AG
DBO 19
IFRS
UBS AG
12
100
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Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet

UBS AG
UBS AG
74.3
Tier 1
Tier 1 CET1
CET
CET1 2023 12 31
14
DTA
RWA 162
127
46
CET1
UBS AG CET1 13.5
CET1
LRD 748
375
CET1
UBS AG CET1
CET1
2023 12 31 UBS AG
2023 12 31
47,590
6,335

2022 2023

86.2
16.8
37 9,400 CET1
12 441
3,340
80
13.2 RWA 162
1,044
373
4.0
2022 12 31 1,013
2022 12 31
2022 12 31
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11 8,900 24 37 500
3,200 186 3,100
6,200 54 3,600
3,900 101 4,300
5,800 30 7,900
7,000 2,800
2023 SIX 6,400
UBS AG
3,300 UBS AG 8,600
UBS AG 4,100
2022
2,500
3,100 149
2023
6,000
2022 4.0 243
74.2 80.0
3,720 13 1,870
2,790 750 310
67 2,183 126
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21 1,600

47 5,100

28 400

3,900
11 7,900
6,100

8,300

3,600
4,600

25 8,900

6,400 2022
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9,200 30 20 6,900 2022
4,800
7,300 19 7,600

600 7,000

4,100 17 600

52.9 82.4
1,340 12 2,220
970 320 310 UBS
260
80
2022 2023
17 3,500 94 400
5,800 11
77 5,900
1,800 16 500
Logs
16
2,900 18 400
MEA 2,500 19
25
4,700 17 10 100

8,600
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UBS
2023 12 29
7,500 14 61 5,400
8,200 15 6,100
10 5,300 29 26 1,200
5,900 19 8,100
1,100 10 44 5,900
6,600 22
16 9,400
1,200
6,700
9,800 10 75 8,800
79.0 97.8
2022 2023
3,100 5,200
7,800 75 5,900
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1,200

6,200

600

2,400

2022 2023

10 9,100

7,100 200
2022

2023

1,700

UBS AG

UBS AG

CET1
CET1
SRB

2023 12 31

UBS AG

SRB

UBS AG
SRB
UBS AG
Pillar 3 disclosures

SRB

ubs.com/investors Annual

2022
10 1,000
6,500
10 4,800
4,100
7,300
Tier 1 CET1
UBS AG
TLAC
13.2 CET1
BCBS
2023 12 31
UBS

reporting

108/633

AG
UBS

2

700

4.0

UBS AG

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

3,600

,500

8,900

TLAC

UBS AG

ubs.com/investors

2023



2013
CAO SRB
SRB
TLAC CET1
CET1
AT1
Tier 2
TLAC
SRB
TLAC
25
SRB
12.86 4.
LRD
LRD
RWA 1.44 LRD
32
45
14.75 LRD
4.3
UBS AG
CET1
UBS AG
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CAO
too-big-to-fail
UBS AG TLAC
Tier 1 AT1 Tier 2
CET1 AT1
AT1
Tier 2 Tier 2
75
SRB RWA
5
UBS AG
RWA 0.72 LRD 0.25
0.50
2.5
2023 12 31 CET1
BCBS
2023 12 31 13
2023 12 31 CET1
RWA
5.00 RWA 14.75
10.45 CET1
AT1
AT1
5.00 3.5
1.5 AT1
UBS AG AT1
SRB
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2022 11 2023
UBS SIB
75
FINMA 2024
SIB
25
2023 UBS AG
UBS AG
CET1 AT1 Tier 2
2023 12 31 UBS
2022
RWA LRD 10.0 3.75
RWA
RWA
2023 12 31 93 1,111
CET1
2023 12 31 CET1 12 441
45 14
30
UBS AG AT1 AT1 35
125 UBS AG
25 AT1
UBS AG 11 AT1
AG
2023 AT1
2024 UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 12 31 75 545
UBS AG 539 TLAC
75 134 TLAC
40
TLAC TLAC
TLAC
UBS 2023 22 2023 3 17 TLAC
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28
24 Tier 2
UBS AG CET1 13.5 13.2 RWA 162
CET1 12
UBS AG CET1 4.2 4.0 LRD 748
CET1
UBS AG 14.8 16.3
75 RWA
UBS AG
4.6 4.9 LRD

UBS AG

UBS AG

UBS AG
ubs.com/investors Annual reporting UBS

2023 Financial and regulatory key figures for our significant regulated
subsidiaries and sub-groups
UBS AG UBS AG

2015

UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
FINMA FINMA
2023 12 31
UBS AG 28 33 2022 12 31 12
10 UBS AG

2023 RWA

2023 RWA 162 3,340

127 80

46
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2023 12 31

2024

UBS AG 2023
UBS AG

2023 LRD 748
375
LRD

268

14

UBS AG
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RWA 198 2,201
117 76
RWA 117
RWA
RWA 12 147
13
VaR
FINMA VaR VaR
12
RWA 2023 12 31 49 765
UBS AG 2023
1,044
373
28
66
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UBS AG UBS AG LCR NSFR
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG LCR NSFR
UBS AG
UBS AG ALCO ALCO BoD
GEB
UBS AG
BoD
UBS AG BoD UBS AG UBS AG ALCO
UBS AG HQLA

UBS AG ALCO BoD

UBS AG UBS AG

UBS AG
UBS AG

UBS UBS

UBS
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UBS AG
UBS AG

UBS AG

UBS AG ALCO

UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
0TC
2023 12 31 UBS AG UBS SE

UBS AG
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FINMA

2023
AG IDR
UBS AG
S&P 2023
2024
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
LCR
HQLA
UBS AG HQLA
UBS AG HQLA
UBS AG
UBS AG HQLA
335 UBS AG
BCBS
UBS AG
2023 UBS AG
too-big-to-fail
2023 FINMA
2024
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UBS AG
UBS
AA-
UBS 2023
IDR AA- A+
S&P
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
HQLA
HQLA
LCR
HQLA  UBS AG
2023
HQLA
UBS AG
100 LCR
HQLA LCR
HQLA
LCR
LCR 189.7
too-big-to-fail TBTF

UBS AG
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RSF

BCBS NSFR
2023 12 31 UBS AG
2023 12 31
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2023
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ASF RSF
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100
NSFR  119.6
UBS AG
UBS AG
2022 12 31 506 1,560
291
63
211
2022
UBS AG

UBS AG
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UBS AG
0.7 0.2 170.8 171.8
a5 256 0.1 28.2
74.1 74.1
4.7 27.6 32.3
28.1 0.0 377.5 405.6
7.0 3.3 36.7 7.3 54.3
35.9 10.8 610.6 109.1 766.4
76.6" 0.2 58.4 135.1
131.7 131.7
20.9 20.9
3.1t 17.8 37.3 5.5 63.8
79.7 18.0 95.6 158.2 351.5
1.8 0.4 2.2
0.0 16.5 19.5 35.9
2023 12 31 115.5 30.7 723.0 286.7 1,156.0
2022 12 31 77.6 26.9 698.9 302.0 1,105.4
2023 12 31
357.0 5.3 127.1 489.5
2022 12 31
331.8 5.6 9.6 434.0
2023 12 31
472.6 36.0 850.2 286.7 1,645.5
261.7
2022 12 31
409.4 32.6 795.5 302.0 1,539.5
239.8

22
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 519 1,004

285 213

72
2023 12 31
137 2022 12 31 135
171
145
27
Tier 2 24
2023 UBS AG
TLAC 112
127
157
2023 12 31 13 6,400 552 3,400
UBS AG 60 2022
32 9,000 0Cl 13 800
45 9,800 ocl 0Cl14
ocl 4,900

ocl 9,000 ocl 3,600

2023 2023 UBS AG
0.10 0.10
UBS AG IFRS
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
10

17 19 20h 22 28

UBS AG
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37
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2023 12 31 UBS AG
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UBS AG
2022 12 31 206
315 109
2023 2022
2023
40
66
UBS AG
2022 300
1,300
100 2023 12 31
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
80
FINMA UBS AG 12
UBS AG
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UBS AG
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 UBS AG
23b
930
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 12 31
2022 12 31 47 1,905
2023
2023 2022 106
281
150
160
61
65
2023 2022 123
38
2023 2022 53
190 72

60
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IFRS
UBS AG
UBS AG AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
Tier 1 CET1 CET1
UBS AG
UBS AG IFRS
UBS AG
UBS AG
1ASB IFRS
UBS AG
19
20
17
26
12

28

UBS AG
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2023 12 UBS AG UBS AG AG UBS AG
AG UBS AG AG
UBS AG AG
()
2023 12 UBS AG AG
AG AG
AG
FINMA
UBS
2023 19
2023 12 UBS AG
UBS AG 2024 UBS AG AG
()
UBS AG AG
UBS AG AG

29
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33

UBS AG
UBS

UBS

UBS AG

50

UBS AG

644
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0.10
) 2023 12 31
) ) ) )
4,238,408,466 3,858,408, 466 380,000,000
C ) 0.10
( ) 2024 23 UBS AG
0.10
700,000,000 70,000,000
2023 12 31
0.10 3,858,408, 466 385,840,846.60 (60,646)
)
3,858,408, 466
( 0.10 )
)
@
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( )
) )
2014 12 31 - | 3,844,560,913 - 384,456,001
(67,053)
2015 12 31 13,847,553 |  3,858,408,466 1,384,755 385,840,847 |2015
(242) (67,295) UBS AG
2022 12 31 0| 3,858,408,466 0 385,840,847
(67,295)
2023 12 31 0| 3,858,408,466 |28,860,895.32568 385,840,847 |2023
(60,646)
(5,034)
2023
0.10
0.10
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UBS AG 2023 12 31 UBS AG 100.00 2023 12 31
UBS AG UBS AG
®)
2023 12 31
UBS AG 45 CH-8001 3,858,408, 466 100.00%
UBS AG
€Y
UBS AG 620
Aktiengesel Ischaft UBS AG
CH-8001 45 Bahnhofstrasse
45, CH-8001 Ziurich, Switzerland +41-44-234 11 11 CH-
4051 Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland +41-
61-288 50 50 UBS AG CHE-101.329.561
1862 1872
UBS AG 1998 29 UBS AG
UBS UBS AG UBS AG
2023
UBS AG NYSE
UBS AG
716b UBS AG AoA 25 27
UBS AG BaoD UBS AG UBS AG
2023 12 31 UBS AG
2023 AGM UBS AG
0.10 AGM
28,860,895.32568 UBS AG
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2023 UBS AG
385,840,846.60

3,858,408,466

2023 BoD
380,000,000 38,000,000
2010 14 UBS AG AGM
EGM BoD
2023 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG
0.10
UBS AG
2024 AGM BoD 2023 30
2023 12 31 UBS AG 3,858,408,466
385,840,846.60
UBS AG UBS AG 100 UBS AG
AoA BoD BoD
AGM 12 31

23
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EGM BoD
10 AGM
EGM

BoD AoA 12

BoD EB UBS AG
BoD UBS AG

BoD UBS
BoD
BoD BoD
BoD UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
2023 BoD

UBS AG UBS AG BoD

AGM BoD
BoD BoD BoD

AoA BoD

BaoD
BoD

2023
BoD

2002
NYSE

10A-3

BoD 2023
BoD
UBS
AG

2023 14 100
UBS AG uBsS
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2023
UBS AG

2023

AGM

2023
UBS AG

BoD

IT

UBS

GEB

BoD

96
UBS

10 100
UBS

UBS AG

BoD

BoD

1980
IT
2014

BoD
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2023 UBS

40 UBS UBS
too-big-to-fail
Coo
€00

UBS AG
UBS AG BoD

UBS AG BoD
FINMA 2017/1 NYSE
2023 UBS AG BoD

UBS AG BoD

BaD

UBS AG BoD EB

BoD EB UBS AG

EB EB
EB
EB
EB UBS AG BoD BoD
EB
EB BoD BoD EB AoA
BoD EB
UBS AG EU
UBS

BoD

UBS AG EB EB UBS AG
EB GEB UBS AG
AG CEO
EB
UBS AG EB ALCO FRC
ALCO UBS AG UBS AG
2023 ALCO 10
FRC UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
FRC UBS AG
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BoD
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UBS
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2023

AoA
EB
EB
UBS AG
UBS UBS AG
UBS
UBS
UBS
D&0 UBS D&O UBS
D&0
2023 12 31
17 34.6

131/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
ooooodn

(Colm Kelleher)

1957

2022
UBS
2019

2007

2009 CFO

30

UBS
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Lukas Gahwiler

2022

2023

2023

1965

UBS
UBS
AG
2010 2016
UBS
UBS
20
MBA
AG
UBS

UBS

UBS
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Jeremy Anderson

2018

2018

2019

1958

30
2017 KPMG
IT 1980
IT
IT
2014 KPMG
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(Claudia
Bockstiegel)

2021

2022

1964

2001

LLM

2020

DC
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(William C. Dudley)

2019

2019

2019

1953

CEO
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(Patrick Firmenich)

2021

2021

2021

1962

2016

2023

DSM

2023
DSM

MBA
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Fred Hu

2018

2020
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2010

CEO

IMF
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(Mark Hughes)

2020

2020

2020

1958

RBC

35

RBC

UBS

LL.B.
MBA
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(Gail Kelly)

2024

2024

1956

35
2002 2007
2008
2015
CEO
CEO
2008 2009
2008
2016 2023
UBS

140/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
ooooodn

(Nathalie Rachou)

2020

2020

2022

1957

N.V.

N.V.

CEO
1999
2020
12
HEC
MBA
SA
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(Julie G.
Richardson)

2017

2019

2017

1963

25

JP
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2019 1960
(Jeanette Wong) 30
2019
2019 DBS
2020
M&A
DBS CFO
JP
16
MBA
PSA
()
P. 1960 2011 2020 2023
(Sergio P. Ermotti)
1969 2024
(George Athanasopoulos)
1964 2023
(Michelle Bereaux)
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1977 2021
(Mike Dargan)
2023
1976 2024
(Aleksandar lvanovic)
UBS 1967 2018
(Robert Karofsky)
2021 2024
2024 UBS
1976 2019
(lIgbal Khan)
2022
UBS 1960 2019 UBS
(Edmund Koh)
1971 2021
(Barbara Levi)
1973 2023
(Beatriz Martin Jimenez) UBS UBS
1965 2018
(Markus Ronner)
1974 2023
(Stefan Seiler)
1965 2023
(Todd Tuckner)
1972 2024
(Marco Valla)
1972 2024

(Damian Vogel)
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30
®
)
@
UBS AG 1998
Ernst & Young Ltd
2006
BDO
BDO AG
1A BoD
2023 AGM EY UBS AG 2023
EY AoA
UBS EY
2020
2021
FINMA
2019 FINMA
2023 14
UBS AG
EU UBS AG UBS SE 2024
UBS AG UBS SE
UBS UBS AG
UBS AG

2022

EY
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
52 48
5 7
57 56
10 11
5 6
5 5
0 0
1 2
0 1
11 14
2021 AGM BDO AG
UBS
EY
UBS AG
EY 2023 2,700
2022 3,500
UBS AG
2023 FINMA EY
EY UBS AG
IT
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UBS

1A UBS AG

BaoD
UBS AG 1A
UBS AG
UBS AG
EB EB
1A UBS AG
1A
1A UBS AG 1A
1A 1A
1A
1A UBS AG 1A
1A
1A BoD EB

1A

)
56 14 57 11
UBS AG
(8,802) (2,201) (8,959) (1,729)
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2023
2,700 42 4,400 2022 3,500 55 100

Q)
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2023 12 31

GAAP
2023 12 31

328

(b)

©

©)

UBS AG

174.41

2023
FINMA
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UBS AG 2023

IFRS

FINMA  2020/1
38 59
IFRS
23 103
23 25 193
=157.18 2024
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UBS AG
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
3 22,444 11,803 8,534
3 (19,643) (6,696) (3,366)
3 1,765 1,410 1,437
3 4,566 6,517 6,605
3 9,934 7,493 5,844
4 20,399 20,846 24,422
4 (1,790) (1,823) (1,985)
4 18,610 19,023 22,438
5 566 1,882 941
33,675 34,915 35,828
« ) 19 143 29 (148)
6 15,655 15,080 15,661
7 11,118 9,001 9,476
11, 12 2,238 1,845 1,875
29,011 25,927 27,012
C ) 4,521 8,960 8,964
( ) 8 1,206 1,844 1,903
« ) 3,315 7,116 7,061
C ) 25 32 29
« ) 3,290 7,084 7,032
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31

3 35,277 18,552 13,414
3 (30,875) (10,525) (5,291)
3 2,774 2,216 2,259
3 7,177 10,243 10,382
3 15,614 11,777 9,186
4 32,063 32,766 38,386
4 (2,814) (2,865) (3,120)
4 29,251 29,900 35,268
5 890 2,958 1,479
52,930 54,879 56,314
19 225 46 (233)
6 24,607 23,703 24,616
7 17,475 14,148 14,894
11, 12 3,518 2,900 2,947
45,599 40,752 42,457
7,106 14,083 14,090
8 1,896 2,898 2,991
5,211 11,185 11,008
39 50 46
5,171 11,135 11,053
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3,290 7,084 7,032
1,747 (869) (1,046)
(912) 319 492
58 32 w
(28) () 10
an 4 35
849V (519) (510)
4 (440) (203)
1 1 ©)
@ 449
0 3) 55
5 6 @157)
25
(36) (5,758) (992)
1,745 (159) (1,073)
(309) 1,124 390
1,400 (4,793) (1,675)
25
(19) 45 (32)
0 0 6
19 45 (26)
2,235 (5,260) (2,368)
26
(103) 40 133
(33) 41 3D
(136) 81 102
20
(861) 867 46
71 1) 0
(790)(4) 796 46
(927) 877 148
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( 25 32 29
2 (14) (16)
27 18 13
( 3,315 7,116 7,061
1,311 (4,39) (2,235)
2,235 (5,260) (2,368)
924) 864 132
4,625 2,719 4,826
@ @
2022
13a ® ocl ®
UBS AG
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
5,171 11,135 11,053
2,746 (1,366) (1,644)
(1,433) 501 773
91 50 @
(44) (6) 16
) @7 6 55
1,334® (816) (802)
6 (692) (319)
2 2 (14)
@ 706
0 ) 86
8 9 247)
25
(57) (9,050) (1,559)
2,743 (250) (1,687)
(486) 1,767 613
2,201 (7,534) (2,633)
25
(30) 71 (50)
0 0 9
(30) 71 (41)
3,513 (8,268) (3,722)
26
(162) 63 209
(52) 64 (49)
(214) 127 160
20
(
(1,353) 1,363 72
112 (112) 0
@,242)® 1,251 72
(1,457) 1,378 233
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
( 39 50 46
3 22) (25)
42 28 20
( 5,211 11,185 11,098
2,061 (6,910) (3.513)
3,513 (8,268) (3,722)
(1,452) 1,358 207
7,270 4,274 7,586
@ @
2022
13a ® ocl ®
UBS AG
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2023 12 31
GDP ( )

4.0 0.1 (1.6) (4.8) 9.1 4.4 0.6 4.4
3.0 0.5 .7 (5.6) 6.2 2.9 0.1) .7
3.0 1.4 1.2) (4.8) 6.6 4.4 0.3 4.9)

( )
2.5 2.3 0.1) 10.0 8.1 7.1 2.3 15.8
2.3 2.0 0.2) 9.6 7.4 6.1 1.8 14.8
2.1 1.5 0.4) 5.8 6.2 4.3 0.8 10.7

( )
3.0 4.4 6.3 9.2 3.0 4.4 7.7 11.8
6.0 6.9 8.2 10.6 6.0 6.8 9.0 11.8
1.6 2.3 2.9 4.1 1.5 2.3 3.8 5.0

10 (
)
13 (82) (215) 270 37 78) (155) 245
20 (90) (185) 225 58 (78) (140) 195
25 (41) (73) 195 63 34 (28) 180
( )
S&P 500 20.0 15.3 (26.6)  (51.5) 51.7 28.1 (12.2)  (45.6)
EuroStoxx 50 20.0 12.0 (26.4)  (51.6) 46.6 22.9 (16.6)  (47.2)
SPI 15.0 4.6 (24.5)  (51.6) 39.2 15.9 11.2)  (47.2)
( )
6.6 (1.5) (4.4)  (18.5) 14.0 0.8 (3.0)  (28.6)
( )

(SeP ) 8.1 0.6 (8.6)  (20.0) 19.7 5.8 (G.2)  (30.2)
( ) 7.0 0.6 (5.9) (8.4) 15.4 6.4 (G.2)  (12.9)
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2022 12 31
GDP ( )
4.0 (0.3) (4.8) (6.4) 9.1 3.2 4.4) (1.8)
3.0 0.6 (5.6) (8.5) 6.2 2.5 G.7) (8.3)
3.0 0.7 (4.8) (6.7) 6.6 3.5 (4.9) 3.7)
( )
2.5 2.6 10.0 (0.5) 8.1 6.5 15.8 1.2
2.3 5.0 9.6 0.7) 7.4 9.6 14.8 ©.7)
2.1 1.6 5.8 (1.8) 6.2 3.9 10.7 (1.6)
( )
3.0 3.9 9.2 10.0 3.0 5.3 11.8 9.4
6.0 7.0 10.9 11.9 6.0 7.1 12.2 13.0
1.7 2.3 4.3 4.4 1.5 2.6 5.1 4.9
10 (
)
25 ) 235 (326) 70 13) 205 (291)
20 48 250 71) 58 45 220 (247)
25 46 220 (210) 63 57 205 (160)
( )
S&P 500 20.0 7.4 (51.5)  (50.0) 51.7 22.8 (45.6)  (27.9)
EuroStoxx 50 17.0 17.2 (51.6)  (50.0) 42.9 29.2 (47.2)  (39.3)
SPI 14.0 5.6 (51.6)  (46.0) 37.9 19.3 (47.2)  (32.9)
( )
6.6 1.1 (16.7)  (19.9) 14.0 2.3 (32.9)  (23.9)
( )
(s&p ) 7.8 4.5)  (12.8)  (19.3) 19.1 0.6)  (35.8)  (32.7)
( ) 7.0 Q.7 (8.4) (8.9) 15.4 2.0 14.7)  (17.5)
¢ ECL
ECL

ECL PD

12 ECL ECL

PD 100
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@) “) 3 0
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@ @ 0 0
o) o) 0 0
0 0 0 0
1)
(140) 8 m w2
3 1 3 @
@ 2 ©) 0
(76) 3 @A) (76)
(56) 1 @ (55)
10 1 0 an
0 0 1 0
1 0 0 0
@ 35 7 14 14
5 ®) 14 (€)]
5 2 3 @
15 13 10 ®
4 @ 1 44
(34 @ 4 (18
(15) 0 15) 0
(7) 1 0 ®)
@ @) s) ® 0
® (143) (30) 7 (120
( ® (10) @8) @3) 21
2023 12 31 (L, 244) (308) @2 (664)
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®) ) 0 0
(6] ®) 2 0
8 @ 11 @
@ @ 0 0
©) ©) 3 0
0 @ 2 0
0 0 0 0

®

(65) 20 39) “6)
(10) 3 12) 0
7 @ 8 0
33 16 @8 e
(23) 2 @) 22)
®) 1 @ (€)]
0 0 0 0
1 2 @ 0
@ 13 ® @n 8
12 5 18 1
13 3 10 0
32 Fer)) 2 41
©) (10) © 14
(15) 5 12 @
@ 0 ®) 0
(6] 3 @ (6)
@ 30 29 1 0
® (29) 20 (49) 0
( )(6) 104 3 1 99
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30
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PD 30
@72) (197) @3) 53)
89) 69) 0 1)
(26) @1) 0 )
(66) “48) 15 @
(38) (23) ®) (&)
O] O] 0 0
@ 0 0 @
(13) (€5))
(33) (31) &) @
d
UBS AG ECL
UBS AG 2023 Risk management and
control
IFRS
2023 12 31
o.@ (€V]
(©)
171.8 171.8
@
28.2 0.2 4.8 0.1 23.1
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74.1 0.0 70.7 2.8 0.7
(5).(6)

32.3 22.8 9.5
405.6 31.4 105.2 222.7 24.9 2.8 18.7
54.3 0.1 0.8 0.0 1.5 51.9
766.4 31.5 176.8 222.7 33.9 22.8 0.0 2.9 275.7
2.2 2.2

ECL
768.6 31.5 176.8 222.7 33.9 22.8 0.0 2.9 277.9

Q]

33.2 1.6 19.8 0.2 1.8 2.0 7.8
43.9 0.2 2.0 1.8 8.9 0.0 1.0 30.0
10.4 10.4 0.0
47.4 0.5 9.1 7.1 5.1 0.6 25.1

ECL
134.8 2.3 41.3 9.0 15.7 0.0 0.0 3.5 62.9
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®
169.4 169.4
@
14.7 0.0 0.1 14.6
67.8 0.0 64.5 2.4 0.9
.6

35.0 22.9 12.1

390.0 3.1  115.9  197.8 19.6 3.0 17.6

53.4 0.1 0.5 0.0 1.3 51.4

730.4  36.2  181.0  197.9 23.4 22.9 0.0 3.0 266.1

2.2 2.2
EcL

732.6  36.2  181.0  197.9 23.4 22.9 0.0 3.0 268.3

™

21 1.2 9.3 0.1 2.0 1.8 7.7

39.9 0.2 3.1 1.3 6.5 0.1 1.0 27.8

3.8 3.8 0.0

836 0.2 8.2 6.0 6.2 0.5 2.5
ECL

109.4 1.6 2.4 7.5 14.7 0.0 0.1 3.3 58.0
@ 2023 12 31 1,637 2022 12 31 1,372

2023 12 31 105 2022 12 31 113
@
UBS AG
©)
O]
®)
)
21 ©)
UBS FIcC
UBS
FIcC FICC
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IFRS UBS AG
- UBS AG UBS AG 2023 Risk management
and control
2023 12 31
(
)1 ¢
ECL
() (¢
0-1 2-3 4-5 6-8 9-13 Y C ) )
171,573 215 0 0 43 0 171,832 (26) 171,806
171,573 215 0 0 0 0 171,788 0 171,788
0 0 0 0 43 0 43 (26) 18
811 25,005 1,359 463 485 0 28,213 @ 28,206
811 25,095 1,354 462 476 0 28,198 ®) 28,191
0 0 5 1 9 0 15 @ 14
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
36,689 15,958 6,073 14,319 1,001 0 74,130 (@) 74,128
36,689 15,958 6,073 14,319 1,091 0 74,130 ©) 74,128
8,009 13,575 6,423 4,095 198 0 32,300 0 32,300
8,009 13,575 6,423 4,095 198 0 32,300 0 32,300
5,993 196,897 82,867 89,738 28,486 2,586 406,568 (935) 405,633
5,993 195,590 80,534 82,633 20,916 0 385,666 (173) 385,493
0 1,307 2,333 7,106 7,570 0 18,316 (185) 18,131
0 0 0 0 0 2,586 2,586 (577) 2,009
25,727 20,541 678 6,770 499 206 54,421 (1)) 54,334
25,727 20,539 659 6,619 353 0 53,897 (16) 53,882
0 2 19 151 146 0 317 ®) 312
0 0 0 0 0 206 206 (66) 141
248,802 272,281 97,400 115,386 30,802 2,792 767,462  (1,057) 766,407
Fvocl
1,222 850 0 161 0 0 2,233 0 2,233
250,024 273,131 97,400 115,547 30,802 2,792 769,696  (1,057) 768,640
@ UBS AG 2023 Risk management and control

Internal UBS rating scale and mapping of external ratings
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( ECL
)
0-1 2-3 4-5 6-8 9-13 ) )

17,771 7,306 4,268 2,800 048 118 33,211 “0)
17,771 7,267 4,219 2,301 774 0 32,332 149
0 39 49 499 174 0 761 )
0 0 0 0 0 118 118 19
1,720 13,920 9,834 11,142 7,345 56 44,018 (%)
1,720 13,920 9,781 10,845 5,818 0 42,085 (55)
0 0 53 298 1,527 0 1,878 (38
0 0 0 0 0 56 56 1)

10,152 2 84 135 0 0 10,373 0
29,643 21,228 14,186 14,077 8,293 174 87,601 (134)
2,604 17,303 10,893 11,950 4,616 56 47,421 “9)
2,604 16,903 10,553 11,452 3,941 0 45,452 (39
0 400 341 497 675 0 1,913 10

0 0 0 0 0 56 56 0

4 1,803 1,045 826 501 4 4,183 0
4 1,803 1,045 824 493 0 4,169 )

0 0 0 2 9 0 11 0

0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0
2,609 19,105 11,939 12,776 5,117 59 51,604 G3)

@ UBS AG 2023

Internal UBS rating scale and mapping of external ratings

Risk management and control
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(
)(
ECL
(©)
0-1 2-3 4-5 6-8 9-13 Y () )
168,525 877 0 0 56 0 169,457 a2 169,445
168,525 877 0 0 0 0 169,402 0 169,402
2 0 0 0 0 56 0 56 12) 44
862 11,150 832 996 837 0 14,676 ®) 14,671
862 11,150 832 996 836 0 14,675 ;) 14,670
0 0 0 0 1 0 1 @ 1
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
27,158 15,860 8,870 15,207 721 0 67,816 @ 67,814
27,158 15,860 8,870 15,207 721 0 67,816 @ 67,814
10,613 12,978 7,138 4,157 147 0 35,034 0 35,033
10,613 12,978 7,138 4,157 147 0 35,034 0 35,033
6,491 216,824 68,444 76,147 20,891 2,012 390,810 (783) 390,027
6,491 215,332 66,202 69,450 15,557 0 373,032 (129) 372,903
0 1,493 2,242 6,698 5,334 0 15,767 (180) 15,587
0 0 0 0 0 2,012 2,012 (474) 1,538
29,011 16,649 447 6,708 450 210 53,475 (86) 53,389
29,011 16,646 427 6,426 336 0 52,846 a7 52,829
0 2 20 283 114 0 419 ®) 413
0 0 0 0 0 210 210 (63) 147
242,660 274,337 85,731 103,216 23,102 2,222 731,269 (890) 730,379
FvOCI
1,307 840 0 92 0 0 2,239 0 2,239
243,966 275,178 85,731 103,308 23,102 2,222 733,508 (890) 732,618
@ UBS AG 2023 Risk management and control

Internal UBS rating scale and mapping of external ratings
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( ECL
@ (
0-1 2-3 4-5 6-8 9-13 ) )

7,252 5,961 4,772 3,049 1,025 108 22,167 “48)
7,252 5,917 3,812 2,229 596 0 19,805 3
0 44 960 821 429 0 2,254 ©@
0 0 0 0 0 108 108 (26)
1,770 14,912 6,986 10,097 6,107 124 39,996 (111
1,770 14,789 6,818 9,625 4,529 0 37,531 €))
0 123 168 472 1,578 0 2,341 (52)

0 0 0 0 0 124 124 0

2,781 2 11 1,007 0 0 3,801 0
11,803 20,874 11,769 14,153 7,132 233 65,964 (159)
2,288 16,483 9,247 11,885 3,739 36 43,677 (40)
2,288 15,777 8,960 11,355 3,429 0 41,809 32)
0 705 287 531 310 0 1,833 ©))

0 0 0 0 0 36 36 0

7 1,939 1,489 868 392 2 4,696 @
7 1,938 1,411 864 380 0 4,600 )

0 1 78 4 11 0 94 0

0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0
2,295 18,421 10,736 12,753 4,131 37 48,373 42

@ UBS AG 2023 Risk management and control

Internal UBS rating scale and mapping of external ratings

250/633



f
a E
ECL
ECL
PD
ECL
UBS AG
UBS
2022
2023 12 31
- UBS AG

CL

PD

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

supplemental disclosures required under SEC regulations

what-if

ooOoooOoo
LGD
ECL
UBS
ECL
2023
ECL
UBS AG consolidated
ECL

ECL

251/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
2023 12 31
100 100
100
( )
-0.50 3) (104) ®3) ()
+0.50 3 125 6 17
+1.00 7 274 14 42
( )
-1.00 O) (142) ® 0
-0.50 ) (76) ® 1n
+0.50 2 89 3 13
+1.00 5 188 7 26
GDP ( )
-2.00 10 27 11 14
-1.00 6 13 6 8
+1.00 ®) (12) ) )
+2.00 ) (22) (@) (10)
( )
-5.00 16 174 25 46
-2.50 8 84 12 21
+2.50 O (76) ©) @18
+5.00 (11) (149) (19) (34)
(S&P 500 EuroStoxx SMI)( )
-10.00 4 10 8 6
-5.00 2 5 3 2
+5.00 ©) ) ® @
+10.00 (©) ®) ) ()
ECL
PD LGD
ECL
PD LGD
UBS
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( )
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100 100
(133) “3) (10) (521) (63) (368)
2) D)) 1) (200) (36) (125)
(152) (108) 53) (252) (146) (23%)
(103) 5) G7) (186) (96) (164)
(140) (126) 78) (162) (151) (302)
(580) (396) (219) (1.322) 92) (1.193)
2022 12 31 ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL ECL
( )
100 100 100
(136) @) 13) (523) (184) @13)
“3) @6) 2) (176) (30) (126)
(136) ©n 64 (199) (174) (235)
(86) () (66) (162) 7 (153)
(125) 114) (111) (145) (153) (81)
(526) (329) (295) (1,208) (638) ,267)
ECL
ECL
ECL 580 2022 12 31 526 396
2022 12 31 329 ECL 146
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2023
2023 UBS AG
UBS AG 2022 12
31 13 2023 12 31
19
(6]
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
115,345 17,936 1.817 135,098 96,263 10,284 1,488 108,034
99,510 721 140 100,372 83,095 789 126 84,010
6,843 2,195 14 9,052 5,496 950 18 6,464
8,008 1,082 9 9,098 6,673 596 61 7,330
962 11,956 648 13,586 976 6,509 541 8,026
0 1,870 904 2,775 0 1,179 628 1,807
3 111 101 215 22 261 114 397
593 129,871 1.264 131,728 769 147,876 1,464 150,109
317 65,070 0 65387 575 84,882 2 85,459
0 35028 284 35,311 0 39,345 460 39,805
0 26,649 667 27,317 1 21,542 653 22,195
0 1,452 301 1,752 0 719 318 1,038
0 1,627 12 1,639 0 1,334 30 1,365
0 20,883 0 20,883 0 17,576 0 17,576
29,520 30,124 4,101 63,754 26,572 29,110 3,725 59,408
15,814 0 0 15814 13,071 1 0 13,072
62 16,716 215 16,994 35 14,101 230 14,366
13,262 3,332 0 16,594 13,103 3,638 0 16,741
0 4,172 1,254 5,426 0 3,602 736 4,337
0 5,541 4 5,545 0 7,590 114 7,704
0 0 1,208 1,208 0 0 1,32 1,326
367 233 205 804 307 178 190 675
2 0 1,088 1,112 57 0 792 849
68 2,165 0 2,233 57 2,182 0 2,239
0 1,948 0 1,948 0 1,878 0 1,878
68 207 0 276 57 278 0 335
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4,426 0 0 4,426 4,471 0 0 4,471
@ 0 0 17 17 0 0 21 21
149,962 200,979 7,108 358,139 128,132 207,028 6,608 341,858
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
25,451 6,110 151 31,712 23,578 5,823 114 29,515
16,310 236 87 16,632 16,521 352 78 16,951
28 4,893 58 4,979 36 4,643 27 4,707
8,320 806 0 9,126 5,880 706 1 6,587
794 117 4 915 1,141 84 3 1,229
716 136,833 3,158 140,707 640 152,582 1,684 154,906
400 71,322 21 71,743 587 87,897 24 88,508
0 32,656 107 32,763 0 37,429 116 37,545
0 30,209 2,717 32,926 0 24,963 1,184 26,148
0 1,341 273 1,614 0 920 279 1,199
0 1,271 20 1,291 0 1,309 52 1,361
0 42,275 0 42,275 0 45,085 0 45,085
0 78,509 7,832 86,341 0 62,603 9,240 71,842
0 25,069 2,297 27,366 0 30,055 1,978 32,033
0 15,922 0 15,922 0 13,221 0 13,221
0 6,927 0 6,927 0 15,333 0 15,333
UBS AG 0 1,327 1,623 2,950 0 508 1,287 1,796
« ) 0 892 674 1,566 0 993 691 1,684

26,167 288,796 13,438 328,401 24,219 296,148 13,015 333,382

@

UBS AG
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2023 202 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 122 31 12 31
() @ @ (¢D]
0.9 0.8 0.1 0.0 9 114 93 1 112 85
4901 401 412 412
2.3 1.7 0.0 0.0 6 101 98 30 100 97
200 275 252 200 200 200
162 1,849 318 145 1,350 322
1.2 1.3 135 205 150 115 196 144
@ 0.2 0.3 0.0 0.0
&4 1.2 0.9 0.1 0.1
@ 7.8 9.2
2.3 2.0 51 201 2 175
0.3 0.5 0.1 0.1 84 112 75 143
0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 1 306 9 565
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2

1.5 0.1) ©.1) 0.4 (0.8) 0.8 0.0 0.2 0.3) 0.0 1.8
0.1 ©.1) 0.1) 0.0 0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0) 0.0 0.1
0.5 0.0) 0.0) 0.4 0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0) 0.0 0.6
0.6 ©.1) 0.1) 0.1 0.4) 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.2) 0.0 0.9
1.5 (0.3) ©.3) 0.0 (0.0) 0.7 (0.5) 0.1 0.3) 0.0 1.3
0.5 0.0 0.0) 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2) 0.0 0.1) 0.0) 0.3
0.7 ©.2) 0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.6 ©.1) 0.0 0.2) 0.0 0.7
0.3 ©.1) 0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.1 ©.1) 0.1 0.0) 0.0 0.3
3.7 0.2 0.2 0.8 ©.7) 0.0 (0.0) 0.1 ©.1) 0.0 4.1
0.7 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.0) 0.0 0.0) 0.1 0.1) 0.0) 1.3
1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2
0.8 0.1 0.0 0.4 0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 1.1
1.7 0.3 0.3 0.0 (0.0) 1.9 (0.6) 0.0 ©.2) 0.0 3.2
0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 ©.1) 0.0 0.0) 0.0 0.1
1.2 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 1.8 ©.49) 0.0 0.2) 0.0 2.7
0.3 0.0) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1) 0.0) 0.3
9.2 0.4 0.3 0.0 0.0 3.5 3.2) 0.5 (2.6) 0.0 7.8
2.0 0.3 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2) 0.0 0.0) 0.0 2.3

2022 12 31 12
2.3 0.3) ©.3) 0.3 @1.8) 0.5 0.0 0.7 0.3) (0.0) 1.5
0.0 0.0) 0.00 0.0 0.0) 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0) 0.0) 0.1

275/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
0.6 0.0) ©.00 0.3 0.6) 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.0) 0.0) 0.5
1.4 ©.1 ©.1) 0.0 .0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.2) 0.0 0.6
1.1 0.6 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.4 ©.7 0.1 (0.0) (©.0) 1.5
0.5 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2) 0.0 0.1 0.0) 0.5
0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.3) 0.1 0.0) 0.0) 0.7
0.2 0.1 ©.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.3
4.2 0.1 0.1 0.7 .2 0.1 0.0 0.2 ©.3) (0.0) 3.7
0.9 ©.0) 0.00 0.4 ©.4) 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.3) ©.0) 0.7
1.6 0.1 0.0 0.0 ©0.3) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3
0.7 0.0 0.0 0.1 ©.1) 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0) 0.8
2.2 0.8) ©.9 0.0 0.0 1.1 ©-9) 0.3 ©-2) ©.1) 1.7
0.3 ©.3) 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0) 0.0 0.0) ©.0) 0.1
1.5 0.9 ©.3 0.0 0.0 0.8 ©.7 0.1 0.2) ©0.0) 1.2
0.3 ©.1) 0.00 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0) 0.0) 0.3
11.9 @.3) ©.9 0.0 0.0 47 @G.0) 0.7 @3.3) ©.3) 9.2
3.2 .0 .0 0.0 0.0 0.0 ©.1) 0.1 ©.2 (©.0) 2.0

(€3}

C
@ 2023 12 31 72 2022 12 31 67 2023 12 31
134 2022 12 31 130
h
UBS AG
UBS AG 2023 Risk management and
control
IFRS
2023 12 31
®

276/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

oooooog
@.® 25.6 25.6
® 131.7 5.1 117.6 9.1
20.9 20.5 0.4
® 46.0 10.2 35.8
224.3 0.0 35.8 0.0 0.0 117.6 0.0 0.0 70.9
0.1 0.1 0.0
2022 12 31
&)
@.3 16.7 16.7
® 150.1 5.9 133.5 10.7
17.6 17.3 0.3
® 44.8 11.4 33.4
229.2 0.0 34.6 0.0 0.0 133.5 0.0 0.0 61.2
0.2 0.2 0.0
@
©)
O]
21 ®)
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(€] (€H)

171.8 171.7 0.0 0.1 0.0 171.8  169.4 169.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 169.4
28.2 12.5 0.0 15.4 0.2 282  14.7 13.9 0.0 0.7 0.0  14.6

277/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
74.1 68.7 0.0 3.9 1.5 741 67. 64. 0. 1.8 1.7 67.8
2.3 32.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3 35 35. 0. 0.0 0.0  35.0
405.6 131.8 0.0 443 220.4 3965  390. 136. 0. 45.9  195.0  377.7
54.3 9.0 12.8  29.6 2.6 541 53 13. 10. 25.1 2.5  51.0
16.7 8.8 0.0 8.0 0.0 167 11 8. 0. 2.7 0.0  11.6
5.8 5.1 0.0 0.4 0.4 5.8 4. 3. 0. 0.7 0.0 4.2
34.9 34.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 349 36 36. 0. 0.0 0.0  36.4
555.7 482.1 0.0 745 0.0 556.6 527. 493. 0. 33.9 0.0  52.9
UBS
G 67.3 3.3 0.0  64.4 0.0 677 56 2. 0. 53.7 0.0 557
69.8 18.1 0.0 5.7 0.0 69.8 59 13. 0. 45.5 0.0  58.9
@ 9.8 9.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 9.8 7. 7. 0. 0.0 0.0 7.2
(€Y}
()
UBS AG
UBS AG

278/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

oooooog
21
UBS AG
UBS AG
@ @
2023 12 31
@
69.2 12.2) 56.9 (L.5) (55.2) 0.3 17.2 17.5 74.1
128.8 2.5) 126.3 (99.3) (23.4) 3.7 5.4 9.1 131.7
W 315 0.0 31.5 20.4) .5) 8.7 0.8 9.5 32.3
9.3 (89.6) 6.7 1.8) 4.9) 0.0 57.1 57.1 63.8
95.1 (89.6) 5.5 .8 3.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.5
325.7 (104.3) 221.4 (122.9) (85.9) 12.6 80.5 93.1 301.9
2022 12 31
60.8 1.1 49.6 (3.0) (46.4) 0.3 18.2 18.5 67.8
147.4 (2.5) 144.9 (110.9) (28.5) 5.5 5.2 10.7 150.1
o 33.5 0.0 33.5 (20.9) 1.9) 10.6 1.5 12.1 35.0
85.6 (76.8) 8.7 (L.5) 7.3) 0.0 50.7 50.7 5.4
84.4 (76.8) 7.6 (1.5 6.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 7.7
307.2 (90.4) 236.8 (136.3) ©4.1) 16.4 75.6 92.0 312.4
) IAS 32
oTC @

279/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

®)

*

280/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
® @
2023 12 31
®
16.1 (12.1) 4.0 (0.8) (3.2) 0.0 1.8 1.8 5.8
135.9 2.5 133.5 (99.3) (24.5) 9.7 7.2 16.9 140.7
1
® 33.5 0.0 33.5 7.2 ) 12.9 1.4 14.3 34.9
97.1 (89.8) 7.3 2.5) 4.8) 0.0 20.1 20.1 27.4
9%.7 (89.8) 6.9 @.5 ) 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.9
282.6 (104.3) 178.3 (119.7) (36.0) 2.5 30.4 53.0 208.7
2022 12 31
14.1 1.1 3.0 1.3 @.8) 0.0 1.2 1.2 4.2
150.3 (2.5) 147.8 (110.9) (26.2) 10.7 7.1 17.8 154.9
®
34.9 0.0 34.9 (20.0) 1.9) 13.0 1.6 14.5 36.4
92.5 (76.9) 15.6 (3.2) (12.4) 0.0 16.4 16.4 32.0
92.1 (76.9) 15.3 (3.2 2.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 15.3
201.7 (90.4) 201.3 (135.3) 42.3) 23.7 26.3 49.9 227.6
™ 1AS 32
oTC @
®

*

281/633



22

22a

31 31

31 90

22b

22d

2023 12 31

282/633

2023 12 31

22¢

20

154

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

2022 12

2022 12



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(€Y} "
7

76,579 44,524 57,435 36,742

28,105 15,195
3,000 2,110 1,500 1,220
7,043 6,299 3,432 2,685

115,535 77,5711

2,543 3,689

169 162

4,685 5,155

28 1,127

3,334® 815

17,844 14,090

1,846 1,842

249 44

30,698 26,924

®)
146,233 104,495
® 2023 @
(©)]
2023 12 31 97 2022 12 31 59
2023 12 31 47 2022 12
31 44
UBS AG UBS AG
CCAR

283/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooOoooOoo
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
44,524 23,374 36,742 16,470
2,110 1,976 1,220 1,050
6,299 5,928 2,685 2,302
52,933 31,278 40,647 19,822
UBS AG
UBS AG
a 2e
15
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

284/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

2023 12 31 2022 12 31 UBS AG

285/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(€3}
489,476 434,023
(&)
357,020 331,805
@ UBS AG
@
2023 12 31 160 2022 12 31 99
23
a
UBS AG

286/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooOood
2023 12 31
12

416.2 25.6 47.6 105.2 77.8 94.0 766.4

12.0 0.5 5.4 10.0 0.2 0.1 28.2

135.5 12.1 33.3 89.4 61.4 74.0 405.6

7.4 1.6 4.2 5.1 16.1 19.9 54.3

312.5 6.7 7.8 7.4 11.8 3.4 1.9 351.5

24.8 6.7 7.8 7.4 11.8 3.4 1.9 63.8

0.1 1.1 1.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 2.2

6.6 0.2 1.2 0.4 27.5 35.9

735.4 33.4 56.5 112.7 90.8 97.8 29.5 1,156.0

497.1 65.1 81.1 30.3 49.6 27.1 12.5 762.8

433.2 48.9 49.6 15.3 8.4 0.3 555.7

UBS AG

2.5 0.8 8.2 24.3 19.0 12.5 67.3

6.4 11.7 26.8 6.3 11.8 6.8 69.8

6.4 11.7 24.3 6.0 11.6 6.8 66.8

2.5 0.3 0.2 3.0

@

250.1 11.4 22.6 23.3 8.3 12.7 328.4

13.1 11.3 21.8 23.0 8.0 9.1 86.3

5.2 2.8 0.0 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.5 9.2

752.5 79.3 103.8 53.7 58.3 39.9 13.0 1,100.4

@

43.0 0.5 0.4 0.0 0.0 44.0

33.4 33.4

10.4 10.4

2.0 0.8 1.3 0.0 0.0 4.2

88.8 1.4 1.8 0.0 0.0 91.9

287/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
2022 12 31
12

425.2 28.7 34.5 78.8 70.5 92.8 730.4

13.3 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.1 14.7

141.9 16.3  28.3 74.9 55.6 73.0 390.0

8.8 4.2 2.8 3.0 14.8 19.7 53.4

300.4 10.0 7.8 3.6 9.9 2.0 1.5 335.1

24.6 10.0 7.8 3.6 9.9 2.0 1.5 59.4

0.3 0.9 0.9 0.1 0.0 0.0 2.2

7.1 0.2 2.0 0.4 28.0 37.7

732.9 39.5 43.4 82.4 82.4 95.1 20.6 1,105.4

524.3 40.2 49.6 20.7 35.2 23.5 11.8  705.4

464.5 285 = 23.8 7.7 2.3 0.3 527.2

UBS AG

2.0 4.8  21.2 16.3 11.8 56.1

4.6 8.8  23.3 7.2 10.0 5.7 59.5

4.6 8.8  23.3 4.8 9.5 5.7 56.5

2.4 0.5 3.0

(€D}

265.9 13.8 16.3 19.6 7.3 10.5 333.4

9.3 12.3 15.9 19.3 6.9 8.2 71.8

6.7 2.6 0.5 9.7

796.9 56.5 65.9 40.4 42.5 34.0 12.3  1,048.5

(3]

39.3 0.3 0.4 0.0 40.0

22.4 22.4

3.8 3.8

4.7 4.7

70.1 0.3 0.4 0.0 70.9

@ 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
@

288/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

10

289/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
UBS AG
2023 12 31
12
(€))
6.2 2.6 3.9 0.3 4.4 0.0 17.4
4.0 1.1 0.7 5.8
34.9 34.9
433.5 49.7 51.6 16.9 9.8 0.3 561.8
UBS AG
@)
2.8 1.7 1.7 11.0 31.9 24.1 12.9 86.1
6.4 11.9 27.4 7.0 12.8 8.1 73.6
6.2 0.1 0.4 0.5 1.1 1.1 9.4
0.0 0.1 0.4 0.5 1.1 1.1 3.3
4941 67.0 85.7 35.6 60.1 33.6 12.9 789.1
®3).®
31.7 31.7
®3).6)
140.7 140.7
42.3 42.3
()
13.1 11.8 22.5 25.7 8.1 11.8 93.0
22.1 0.1 0.8 0.3 0.3 7.2 30.8
249.9 11.9 23.3 26.0 8.4 19.0 338.4
744.0 78.9 109.0 61.6 68.5 52.6 12.9 1,127.5
©)
43.0 0.5 0.4 0.0 0.0 44.0
33.4 33.4
©)
10.4 10.4
2.0 0.8 1.3 0.0 0.0 4.2
88.8 1.4 1.8 0.0 0.0 91.9

290/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
2022 12 31
12

@
6.3 2.6 1.9 0.3 0.6 0.0 11.
3.3 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.0 4.
36.4 36.
464.6 28.8 24.5 8.2 2.6 0.3 529.

AG

@
2.2 0.6 1.2 6.8 27.6 21.2 12.7 72.
4.6 8.9 23.7 7.8 10.8 6.9 62.
5.6 0.1 0.4 0.5 1.2 1.3 9.
0.1 0.1 0.4 0.5 1.2 1.3 3.
523.1 41.2 52.2 24.0 42.8 29.8 12.7  725.
[ONO)
29.5 29.
154.9 154.
45.1 45.
(O]

9.4 12.4 16.0 19.7 7.1 12.3 76.
27.1 1.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 5.0 34.
266.0 13.8 16.4 20.0 7.5 17.3 341.
789.2 55.0 68.6 44.0 50.3 47.1 12.7  1,066.

(©)
39.3 0.3 0.4 0.0 40.
22.4 22.

(@)
3.8 3.
4.7 4.
70.1 0.3 0.4 0.0 70.
W
@ Tier
(O]
299 2022 12 31 278
18 2022 12 31 17 2022 12 31 ®

291/633



EDINETOIOICIO)
00000000000 0(E05852)
0000000
52 2022 12 31 46 652
2022 12 31 344 10 ®
©)

292/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
24
2023 UBS AG LIBOR
2022 12 31 90
LIBOR 2023 30 SOFR
2022 LIBOR UBS AG
LIBOR 1SDA2021 2022
2023 12 31 LIBOR
2022 12 31
2023 12 31
2022 12 31 @
LIBOR
14,269@
1,138®
32,006
4,606®
@ 2022 12 31 @ 1R LIBOR
10 2022 12 31
® LIBOR
® 2023 30 LIBOR 2023 30
2,000 ®
30 2022 12 31 LIBOR
2023 12 31 UBS AG UBS AG
20 LIBOR
LIBOR UBS AG
IBOR I1BOR

293/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooo0000
25
UBS AG
- UBS AG UBS AG 2023
Risk management and control Market risk
UBS AG
SOFR
EFFR SARON
EURIBOR ESTR SONIA
AUD LIBOR 0/N
TONA SORA
UBS AG
UBS AG

15

294/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

UBS AG

295/633



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

Ooooood
2023 12 31
) ()
114,618 0 0 2,203 (2,195) 8
83,333 3 0 35) 57 22
©)
33,877 468 291 132 @151) 19)
13,260 3 455 (910) 912 3
2022 12 31
@ )
92,415 0 0 (5,195) 5,169 @n
75,304 2 5 (5,813) 5,760 (53)
©)
20,566 845 3 (1,088) 1,105 18
13,844 7 528 318 (319) @
@ @
(€))
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
15,296 14,270
(508) (1,249)
79 (51)
6,333 4,577
(109) (180)
8,972
50

296/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
UBS AG

63,760 17,693 57,250 14,828

3,174) (5,055)

15,243 4,636 11,279 5,737

(“12) (1,002)
™ 2023 12 31 UBS AG 120

2022 12 31

297/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

oooooog
2023 12 31
12
1 6 12 62 35 115
1 2 2 22 7 34
2022 12 31
12
0 4 10 53 26 92
0 1 2 12 5 21
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(2,349) (4,692)
(1,331) (540)
(3,680) (5,232)
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(690) 250
266 266
(424) 515
2023 UBS AG 2023 2023
ARR 2019
IFRS I1AS 39 IFRS
LCH
1BOR IFRS
IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16 2023
ARR
2023 12 31 LIBOR
2022 12 31
- IFRS IFRS
a 2j
- 24
LIBOR

2022 12 31

298/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooOooood
20,383 0 0
2,179 0 0

299/633



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

26
a
UBS AG
2017 UBS AG UBS AG UBS
AG UBS AG UBS
UBS UBS AG UBS
AG UBS
UBS AG
UBS
UBS AG UBS AG UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS AG 6.5 27.5 2.8
2.5 13.5
UBS AG
65
58
70
UBS IFRS
10
50
2023 12 31 UBS 119.2
12 31 119.0
UBS
2023 12 31 UBS DBO
3,585 2022 12 31 4,418 IFRS
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

300/633

oOoOooodn

UBS AG

AG

UBS AG

2022



EDINETOOOO
000000000000(E05852)
ooooood

UBS 2024 315

301/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
UBS career-average revalued earnings scheme
60 65
20
UBS
UBS UBS UBS AG
2019 UBS AG UBS UBS
2023 12 31 260
2022 12 31 292
UBS AG
2023 UBS AG UBS 19 2022
2024 UBS 19
UBS 65 20
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
2024 UBS 12
UBS 65
UBS AG
2021 55
2010 2010 2017
2017 0.9
UBS AG
2021 UBS AG
UBS 2018 55
2021

2024 UBS 14

302/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

303/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
12 3 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

12,539 15,480 2,166 4,105 1,375 1,740 16,080 21,324
236 240 0 0 5 5 241 244
287 195 109 67 61 35 457 297
163 154 0 0 0 0 163 154

1,901 (2,424) 9 (1,474) 33 (267) 2,031 (4,165)
() 45 2 75) ) @ 1 31 [6)
) 1,168 2,653) 36 (1,575) 37 ©79) 1,241 (4,506)
@ 688 226 135 107 [6) 11 820 344
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
® 13) 0 0 0 0 ® 13)
(662) (796) @on) (123) (110) (111) (880)  (1,030)
0 ) 0 0 0 0 0 )
1,288 (291) 114 (408) 9 (28) 1,411 (727)
15,748 12,539 2,379 2,166 1,373 1,375 19,500 16,080
9,336 7,103 73 65 209 169 9,618 7,336
0 0 950 656 527 528 1,478 1,184
6,412 5,436 1,356 1,445 636 678 8,404 7,560
15,748 12,539 2,379 2,166 979 1,011 19,106 15,717
0 0 0 0 394 363 394 363

16,957 19,196 2,488 4,297 1,039 1,329 20,484 24,821
513 (1,942) 65 (1,312) 26 (223) 603 (3,476)
393 274 126 70 48 31 568 376
290 401 19 5 17 16 327 422
163 154 0 0 0 0 163 154

(662) (796) @on) (123) (110) (111) (880)  (1,030)

® @) 0 0 (O] (©)] 12 @an

2 (¢)) 0 0 0 0 2 )

1,685 (322) 130 (450) 0 0 1,815 772)
19,333 16,957 2,720 2,488 1,017 1,039 23,070 20,484
3,585 4,418 341 321 (356) (335) 3,570 4,404
4,418 3,716 0 0 0 0 4,418 3,716
102 77 0 0 0 0 102 77

(1,332) 656 0 0 0 0 (1,332) 656

397 3D 0 0 0 0 397 (31)
3,585 4,418 0 0 0 0 3,585 4,418
0 0 341 321 (356) (335) (15) 14)
(90) (80)
(105) (94)
383 355
(487) (449)

304/633



@

@

18c

305/633

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooOooooo
(€D)
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
236 240 0 0 5 5 241 244
287 195 109 67 61 35 457 297
(393) 274) (126) (70) (48) 31 (568) (376)
102 77 0 0 0 0 102 77
8 7 0 0 4 3 12 1
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
® (13) 0 0 0 0 ® (13)
236 230 an ®) 22 12 241 239
@ 19 17
259 256
@
(
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
(1,901) 2,424 (96) 1,474 (33) 267 (2,031) 4,165
(1,332) 3,078 (69) 1,451 33) 317 (1,434) 4,846
0 0 34 123 1 ®) £ 118
207 (408) 0 0 © 62 198 (490)
0 0 75 5 0 @ 75 4
(8) 19 0 1 5 48 (83) 30
(688) (226) (135) (107) 3 n (820) (344)
513 (1,942) 65 (1,312) 26 (223) 603 (3,476)
1,332 (656) 0 0 0 0 1,332 (656)
C ) (56) 173) [€3)) 162 ®) 43 (95) 32
( ®) 8
(103) 40
@
(
@)
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DBO
@
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
12 3 12 31 12 3 12 31 12 31 12 3
) 14.1 13.4 14.5 13.7 7.8 7.9
12 811 702 137 107 133 123
1,627 1,445 256 234 235 232
2,552 2,183 415 384 336 335
11 4,233 3,751 721 667 502 502
1 16 3,878 3,519 723 667 376 388
16 13,751 13,243 2,703 2,570 M7 516
(€Y}
DBO
UBS AG DBO
- a 5
DBO

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
12 3 12 31 12 3 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 3
1.48 2.34 4.79 5.02 4.72D 4.00® 3.28 3.81
0.00 0.00 3.00 3.08 0.00 0.00 2.10 2.20
2.48 3.39 0.00 0.00 6.28@ 5.73® 0.00 0.00

(€Y} (&) UBS
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65
65 45
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

BVG 2020 G Ml 2022( ) P 21.8 21.7 23.5 23.4

S3PA CMI 2022( 2.2 23.5 23.4 24.6

MP-2021 22.0 22.0 23.4 23.3

2018 6 20.8 20.6 23.5 23.4

65
65 45

2023 2022 2023 2022

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
BVG 2020 6 oMl 2022( ) P 23.5 23.5 25.1 25.1
S3PA CMI 2022 ( 24.0 25.0 25.7 26.4
MP-2021 23.5 23.4 24.8 24.8
2018 6 24.2 24.0 26.4 26.3

@ 2022 BVG 2020 G CMI 2021 @ 2022 S3PA CMI 2021
DBO
DBO
@

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
50 (857) (641) (164) 141) (50) (51)
50 973 723 183 157 54 55
50 639 487 137 127 4 4
50 @ @ (129) (118) 0 ®
50 144 106 ® ® 9 9
50 (144) (106) ® ©® ® ®
416 304 78 65 39 39
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
62 0 62 0 183 0 183 1
0 2,426 2,426 13 0 2,130 2,130 13
0 576 576 3 0 517 517 3
489 0 489 3 418 0 418 2
3,283 1,244 4,526 23 2,794 1,222 4,017 24
@
AMA - BBB- 2,605 0 2,605 13 2,117 0 2,117 12
AMA - BBB- 4,073 0 4,073 21 3,395 0 3,395 20
BBB- 668 0 668 3 598 0 598 4
0 45 45 0 0 0 0 0
1,004 1,910 3,004 16 867 1,997 2,864 17
378 481 859 4 351 367 718 4
12,652 6,681 19,333 100 10,724 6,233 16,957 100
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
19,333 16,957
@
uBS AG 69 189
uBS A6 116 28
UBS AG 2% 15
®
uBS A6 467 489
UBS AG 61 51
®
( UBS AG) 302 43
@ sep MMM BBB-  BBB-
S&P
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
@n 0 @n 6N 104 0 104 4

o
AMA  BBB- 2,375 0 2,375 87 1,729 0 1,729 69
AA  BBB- 357 0 357 13 207 0 207 12
BBB- 0 0 0 0 7 0 7 0
9 3 12 0 19 3 22 1
234 0 234 9 366 0 366 15
@
AMA  BBB- 310 38 348 13 367 90 457 18
BBB- 6 0 6 0 1 0 1 0
AMA  BBB- 97 0 97 4 9 0 9 4
BBB- 93 0 93 3 114 0 114 5
61 0 61 2 64 0 64 3
4 12 16 1 6 31 36 1
64 0 64 2 (280) 0 (280) (1)
(947) 0 (947) 35) (612) 0 (612) (25)
15 16 31 1 66 27 94 4
2,652 69 2,720 100 2,336 151 2,488 100
™ seP AMA  BBB-  BBB-
Sep

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
4 0 4 0 7 0 7 1
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54 0 54 5 55 0 55 5
23 0 23 2 24 0 24 2
(€]
AAA  BBB- 308 0 308 30 359 0 350 35
BBB- 3 0 3 0 4 0 4 0
AMA BBB- 51 0 51 5 74 0 74 7
BBB- 2 0 2 0 3 0 3 0
25 0 25 2 27 0 27 3
43 0 43 4 3 0 33 3
@
AMA  BBB- 271 0 271 27 266 0 266 26
BBB- 172 0 172 17 109 0 109 10
AMA BBB- 4 0 4 0 2 0 2 0
BBB- 6 0 6 1 5 0 5 0
0 9 9 1 0 11 11 1
49 0 49 5 54 0 54 5
®) 1 ) 16 5 1 6 1
1,007 10 1,017 100 1,027 12 1,039 100
@ S&p MM BBB-  BBB-
s&p
b
UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 320
2022 299
c
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG 2023
UBS AG 20 2022 20
2023 12 31 UBS AG 396
2022 12 31 253
- UBS AG UBS AG
26a
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27
a
UBS GEB
UBS
UBS
UBS AG UBS
AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
- a 4
LTIP GEB
Tier CET
UBS
TSR UBS TSR
GEB
EOP GEB
EOP
EOP
FOP AM EOP
DCCP
UBS Tier AT
AT DCCP
FINMA UBS AG
UBS DCCP
UBS AG
DCCP CET

GEB DCCP 20
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2023 12 31
2024 2023
2024 2024
2023 12 31
2.6
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2023 2024 ®
2022 2022
2023 2023

1,884 (36) 1,848 0 0 0

356 637 993 537 731 1,268

95 319 415 180 235 416

124 233 357 216 436 652

121 39 160 112 33 145

15 45 61 28 27 55

2,240 601 2,841 537 731 1,268

@

3,761 788 4,549 1,236 3,300 4,536

3,440 @ 3,436 0 0 0

110 87 197 113 209 321

169 245 414 301 1,029 1,331

42 459 501 822 2,062 2,884

®

168 111 279 224 214 438

6,160 1,500 7,669 1,997 4,245 6,242

@ 2023 12 31 @

®
® 818 575 46
197 135
109 22
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2022 2023 @
2021 2021
2022 2022
2,012 O] 2,003 0 0 0
346 561 907 582 730 1,312
191 225 416 294 240 534
123 211 334 238 395 634
11 30 41 30 40 70
21 95 116 20 54 74
2,358 552 2,910 582 730 1,312
@
3,799 709 4,508 1,290 2,652 3,942
3,481 0 3,481 0 0 0
104 62 166 122 180 302
185 215 400 588 636 1,224
29 432 461 580 1,836 2,416
®
146 72 217 230 189 419
6,304 1,332 7,636 2,101 3,571 5,672
® 2022 12 31 @
®
® 680 457 56
166 80
57 19
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2021 2022 @
2020 2020
2021 2021
2,136 ®) 2,128 0 0 0
389 399 788 767 606 1,373
175 174 350 374 180 553
134 151 285 290 318 608
51 17 69 48 32 79
29 55 84 56 77 133
2,525 301 2,916 767 606 1,373
@
4,175 685 4,860 1,007 2,323 3,419
3,858 ) 3,853 0 0 0
106 51 157 123 146 269
170 202 372 311 495 806
41 438 479 662 1,682 2,344
®
163 33 19 210 178 388
6,863 1,109 7,973 2,074 3,107 5,181
® 2001 12 31 @
®
® 631 419 56
157 77
59 13
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c
UBS AG 2023 2022
2023 ( ) 2022 ( )
614,428 17 295,921 15
279,310 20 358,424 19
(132,770) 15 (37,994) 14
(4,043) 19 (1,923) 15
756,925 19 614,428 17
217,420 174,329
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
14
d
UBS
UBS UBS
28
a
UBS AG UBS AG
IFRS 12
SEC UBS AG
2023 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS SE
EU
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2023 12 31 UBS AG o
UBS Americas Holding LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 2,900.0(2) 100.0
UBS Americas Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management AG Zurich, Switzerland CHF 43.2 100.0
UBS Bank USA Salt Lake City, Utah, USA usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Europe SE Frankfurt, Germany EUR 446.0 100.0
UBS Financial Services Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usD 0.0 100.0
UBS Securities LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 1,283.1(3) 100.0
UBS Switzerland AG Zurich, Switzerland CHF 10.0 100.0
@ ugs ac @ 1,000 2,900,000,0000
@ 100,000 1,283,000,000
UBS AG
SEC UBS AG
2023 12 31 UBS AG
UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.
UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong SAR, China HKD 153.8 100.
UBS Asset Management Life Ltd London, United Kingdom GBP 15.0 100.
UBS Asset Management Switzerland AG Zurich, Switzerland CHF 0.5 100.
UBS Business Solutions US LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.
UBS Credit Corp. Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 0.0 100.
UBS Fund Management (Luxembourg) S.A. Luxembourg, Luxembourg EUR 13.7 100.
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG Basel, Switzerland CHF 1.0 100.
UBS (Monaco) S.A. Monte Carlo, Monaco EUR 49.2 100.
UBS 0"Connor LLC Wilmington, Delaware, USA usb 1.0 100.
UBS Realty Investors LLC Boston, Massachusetts, USA usb 9.0 100.
UBS Securities Australia Ltd Sydney, Australia AUD 0.3® 100.
UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong SAR, China HKD 2,841.6 100.
UBS Securities Japan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan JPY 34,708.7 100.
UBS SuMi TRUST Wealth Management Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan JPY 5,165.0 51.
€))
SE
UBS AG SE
2023 2022 UBS AG SE
UBS AG UBS AG SE
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG SE
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 2022
1,101 1,243
1 3
0 (44)
(180) (41)
« ) @ (163) 32
@ an 73
o 0
(35) B
o7 (30)
983 1,101
980 1,098
SIX A6 @ 826 954
154 144
3 3
@ 2023 163 2022 27
@ 2023 17 2022 73 ® 2023
UBS AG 17 UBS AG

322/633



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooOoooOoo
c
UBS AG UBS AG 2023
UBS AG SE
UBS AG SE
2023 12 31
UBS AG SE
UBS SE
UBS
UBS UBS
HQLA
UBS
UBS
AG
UBS
2023 2022 UBS AG UBS
SE
2023 2022 UBS AG
UBS AG 2023
2022 10 30
440
2022 12 31 380
2023 12 31
UBS
@ ® ®
88 37 7,413 7,538 7,538
2 147 66 215 215
0 0 200 200 200
0 0 143 143 143
0 0 0 0 0
188 0 0 188 438
278 185 7,821 8,285 8,534
1 8 590 598 2
1 8 590 598 2
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2022 12 31
UBS
W,
@ @ ®
263 2 5,884 6,149 6,149
3 160 115 278 278
0 0 119 119 119
0 0 108 108 108
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 2 3 252
266 162 6,228 6,657 6,907
1 35 763 798 2
1 35 763 798 2
UBS AG
¢ ) 2@ ,® 05©
@ ygs @ s
2023 12 31 HQLA
2022 12 31 852
5,057 2022 12 31 UBS 110
UBS 1,050 ®
(O] ®)
® ygs UBS UBS
UBS AG SE
UBS AG
SE UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
SE
2023 2022 UBS AG SE
UBS AG
2023 2022 SE
UBS
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 UBS AG

ubs.com/investors Pillar 3 disclosures 2023
12 31 Pillar 3 Report
i SE UBS
AG
IFRS Pillar 3 disclosures
UBS AG
- ubs. com/investors Pillar 3 disclosures 2023 12 31
Pillar 3 Report

UBS

UBS
UBS

2023 12 31 2022 12 31 UBS AG

UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 3,560
3,360 2023 12 31 2022 12 31 UBS AG
29

UBS Hana

2023 UBS AG UBS Hana 51 Hana

UBS AG 23
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2023 12 UBS AG UBS AG AG
2024
UBS 2024 2024 UBS
AG AG
30
UBS AG
UBS UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
a
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
@
35 26 30
@
24 16 17
peee 36 23 26
3 2 2
( ) 1 1 1
@
63 42 45
162 110 122
@
( ) 147 106 112
o) @
® -
2023 2022 2021 LTIP 2023 2022
2021 UBS ®
2023 0.91 2022 0.96
2021 0.92
UBS AG
2023 11.7 10.6 2022
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b
@
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
UBS AG @ 5,121,564 2,443,580
@ 2023 2022
@
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31
UBS AG
c
UBS AG
()
2023 2022
28 28
(&)
55 28
( B 46 26
@ @ 2023 12 31 14 12
2022 12 31 ®
2023 12 31 21 18
d
2023 2022 UBS AG UBS AG
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021
12 31 2023 2022
UBS AG UBS AG

2023 2022 UBS AG
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2023 2022
217 251
664 402
(716) (438)
18 1
183 217
174 209
2023 12 31 202 12 31
155 138
10 4
103 9
8 7
N 28
f UBS AG UBS AG
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1
® 14,752 0
312 1
4,889 2,807
232 147
325 146
3,031 1
364 0
1,447 0
3,069 2,119
UBS AG 67,282 56,147
2,574 1,985
2,032 0
2
@ 2,995 1,79
™ @ UBS AG
18b
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UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 UBS AG
31 240

FINMA

UBS AG

UBS AG

UBS

2022

UBS AG

80
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UBS AG

UBS AG

2022 12

2023 12 31 o022 12 31 @
uBS 429 390
1,674 1,464

2,402 2,127

@) 4,505 3,981

411 340
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208 12 31,00 15 3 @
@ 3,081 4,614
112 76
® 379 (596)
69 (74)
@GN (40)
« ) (5) 19
@ 4,505 3,981
w @ ®
32
UBS AG
@
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1.19 1.08 1.11 1.05 1.09
1.10 1.07 1.08 1.05 1.18
1.28 1.21 1.25 1.23 1.37
100 0.71 0.76 0.71 0.76 0.91
o)
UBS AG
12 UBS AG
33 IFRS GAAP
UBS AG IFRS
FINMA IFRS IFRS
GAAP
FINMA FINMA 2020 1 BO
IFRS BO BO 25 42
FINMA
IFRS GAAP
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EL

12

FVTPL

EL

Risk management and control

IFRS
FVTPL GAAP
FVTPL
IFRS UBS
UBS
GAAP
GAAP E
|
GAAP ECL
GAAP  ECL
IFRS ECL
ECL
ECL
IFRS
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UBS UBS AG
UBS AG
GAAP

GAAP IFRS

IFRS

IFRS
UBS AG
GAAP
GAAP

IFRS
UBS
UBS

GAAP

IFRS

UBS

10.
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IFRS
IAS 19 UBS AG
GAAP FER 16
IFRS
GAAP
IFRS
GAAP
FER 26
FER 26
UBS
UBS
IFRS
IFRS
UBS
GAAP UBS
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GAAP
IFRS
34 SEC
UBS AG
2015
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG 2023 10 2023 12 31
33
UBS AG UBS
2023 12 31 C )Y aw H® @ UBS AG( )
11,181 7,229 9,057 (5,022) 22,444
(14,797) (3,055) (7,699) 5,907 (19,643)
891 785 952 (884) 1,765
(2,725) 4,959 2,310 22 4,566
7,879 1,031 1,105 (81) 9,934
2,581 5,067 13,350 (598) 20,399
(705) (456) (1,214) 585 (1,790)
1,876 4,611 12,136 13 18,610
2,994 228 1,542 (4,198) 566
10,023 10,829 17,092 (4.269) 33,675
C ) 18 57 31 37 143
3,356 2,201 10,097 0 15,655
3,951 3,840 6,155 (2,828) 11,118
888 411 1,048 (109) 2,238
8,195 6,452 17,301 (2,937) 29,011
(G 1,810 4,320 (240) (1,370) 4,521
( ) 251 779 224 “8) 1,206
¢ 1,550 3,540 (463) (,321) 3,315
( 0 0 25 0 25
(G 1,559 3,540 (488) (1,321) 3,200
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UBS AG UBS
2023 12 31 « H® ¢ H® @ UBS AG( )
1,559 3,540 (488) @,321) 3,290
79 1,523 222 (975) 849
3
3) 4 1 0 5
707 679 23 ©) 1,400
(19) (] 9)
7 2,202 245 (984) 2,235
©2) (36) 19) 0 (136)
(790) (790)
872) (36) 19) 0 ©27)
(101) 2,167 226 (984) 1,308
1,458 5,707 (262) (2,305) 4,598
27 27
1,458 5,707 (235) (2,305) 4,625
@ uss a6 UBS AG IFRS GAAP
ubs.com/investors Complementary financial information UBS AG UBS AG
@ UBS UBS SE
UBS AG ®
2022

13a
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UBS AG UBS
2023 12 31 C )P e H® @ UBS AG( )
49,620 87,044 35,142 171,806
61,579 6,241 16,696 (56,311) 28,206
61,116 63 37,022 (24,073) 74,128
34,048 1,640 9,124 (12,512) 32,300
91,940 255,205 93,581 (35,093) 405,633
24,403 9,149 23,429 (2,647) 54,334
322,705 359,343 214,995 (130,636) 766,407
121,947 101 14,463 (1.412) 135,008
51,325 0 5,930 (12,731) 44,524
126,916 5,845 40,190 (41,223) 131,728
12,924 7,959 0 20,883
46,658 10,022 29,688 (22,613) 63,754
308,444 15,968 92,300 (65,249) 351,463
1,957 216 2,283
52,134 37 2 (51,190) 983
5,842 1,798 3,687 (284) 11,044
212 5,974 79 6,265
1,488 147 7,633 (¢2)) 9,244
5,366 1,748 1,256 7 8,377
698,149 379,042 326,124 (247,298) 1,156,016
55,680 44,170 58,769 (141,898) 16,720
14,329 336 15,288 (24,171) 5,782
35,148 1,076 11,001 (12,430) 34,886
108,279 293,133 118,168 36,094 555,673
UBS AG 67,282 67,262
58,729 11,042 12 0 69,784
6,589 2,974 6,147 (2,997) 12,713
346,036 352,731 209,475 (145,402) 762,840
27,280 248 5,508 (1,325) 31,712
135,272 6,223 40,436 (41,225) 140,707
30,724 11,552 0 42,275
85,424 986 (69) 86,341
14,392 21,081 (8,107) 27,366
293,092 6,471 79,564 (50,726) 328,401
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1,903 208 413 @ 2,524
1,572 1,377 3,688 46 6,682
642,602 360,788 293,140 (196,083) 1,100,448
55,546 18,254 32,649 (51,215) 55,234
335 0 335
55,546 18,254 32,984 (51,215) 55,569
698,149 379,042 326,124 (247,298) 1,156,016
@ ygs Ac IFRS GAAP
ubs.com/investors Complementary financial information UBS AG UBS AG
@ UBS UBS
SE  UBS
UBS
2023 12 31 ues Ac® Ac® ® UBS AG( )
(23,275) (3,041) (1,886) (28,202)
()] ® @
109 109
“27) (287) (569) (1,283)
33 33
15 15 30
(9,561) (1,431) (3,251) (14,244)
4,890 1,625 3,920 10,435
(4,942) 9% 112 (4,924)
7,138 @ 44 7,181
UBS AG (6,000) (6,000)
©)
101,956 2,007 588 104,551
®
(84,366) (1,017) (159) (85,541)
(249) (251) (501)
3,698 (2,944) (754) 0
22,177 (1,954) (532) 19,690
63,608 86,232 45,359 195,200
( (6,040) (5,089) (2,306) (13,435)
591 7,860 253 8,704
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®
58,150 89,003 43,307 190,469
@
49,537 87,044 35,142 171,723
@
2,763 1,448 7,866 12,078
4), (5,
@ 5,858 511 299 6,668
@ UBS AG
@ ® s AG  UBS AG ®
4,553 ®
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UBS AG UBS
2022 12 31 C O g H® @ s S )
4,824 3,894 4,661 (1,575) 11,803
(5,449) (736) (2,604) 2,093 (6,696)
881 546 431 (449) 1,410
257 3,704 2,488 68 6,517
5,541 900 940 112 7,493
2,875 4,865 13,766 (660) 20,846
(684) (464) (1,327) 652 (1,823)
2,191 4,401 12,439 ®) 19,023
6,732 203 3,329 (8,382) 1,882
14,721 9,208 19,197 (8,210) 34,915
C ) an 50 ®3) @ 29
3,251 1,995 9,835 0 15,080
3,374 3,258 5,029 (2,660) 9,001
871 340 744 (109) 1,845
7,496 5,592 15,607 (2,769) 25,927
(G 7,242 3,566 3,592 (5,440) 8,960
( ) (28) 638 1,083 151 1,844
(G 7,270 2,928 2,509 (5,592) 7,116
¢ 0 0 2 0 32
(G 7,270 2,928 2,477 (5,592) 7,084
@ uss Ac UBS AG IFRS GAAP
ubs.com/investors Complementary financial information UBS AG UBS AG
@ UBS UBS SE
UBS AG
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UBS AG UBS
2022 12 31 » e H® @ UBS AG( )
7,270 2,928 2,477 (5.592) 7,084
(114) 197) (506) 298 (519)

3
® ?) 0 9 0 6
(2,791) (1,359) (631) 12 (4,793)
45 45
(2,863) (1,555) (1,128) 286 (5,260)
170 112) 23 0 81
796 796
966 112) 23 0 877
(1,897) (1,667) (1,104) 286 (4,383)
5,373 1,261 1,373 (5.306) 2,701
18 18
5,373 1,261 1,301 (5.306) 2,719
@ uss a6 UBS AG IFRS GAAP
ubs.com/investors Complementary financial information UBS AG UBS AG
@ UBS UBS SE
UBS AG ®
2022

13a
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UBS AG UBS
2022 12 31 ¢ YO a¢ H® @ UBS AG( )
48,689 84,465 36,291 0 169,445
39,691 6,357 19,063 (50,441) 14,671
51,493 903 34,110 (18,691) 67,814
35,594 1,221 10,074 (11,856) 35,033
90,168 229,861 101,231 (31,233) 390,027
24,005 9,532 21,880 (2.029) 53,389
289,641 332,339 222,649 (114,250) 730,379
95,810 173 13,899 (1,848) 108,034
41,056 0 5,578 (9,892) 36, 742
149,447 5,925 35,106 (40,368) 150,109
9,763 0 7,814 0 17,576
45,302 4,354 26,843 (17,091) 59,408
300,321 10,453 83,661 (59,308) 335,127
1,953 0 286 0 2,239
54,323 33 0 (53,255) 1,101
5,852 1,654 4,077 (267) 11,316
213 0 6,050 5 6,267
1,624 276 7,470 16) 9,354
6,930 1,768 951 4 9,652
660,856 346,522 325,144 (227,087) 1,105,436
41,395 37,123 51,555 (118,477) 11,596
9,425 247 13,303 (18,774) 4,202
35,528 1,518 11,191 (11,800) 36,436
98,628 273,316 132,619 22,608 527,171
UBS AG 56,147 0 0 56,147
50,706 8,965 1 (173) 59,499
4,903 2,221 5,554 (2,287) 10,391
296,733 323,391 214,222 (128,903) 705,442
25,059 183 5,843 (1,570) 29,515
153,778 6,177 35,314 (40,363) 154,906
32,346 0 12,746 G} 45,085
71,444 0 508 (110) 71,842
17,888 0 17,074 (2,928) 32,033
300,514 6,360 71,484 (44,977) 333,382
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1,904 239 1,041 @ 3,183
1,630 1,019 3,742 % 6,489
600,782 331,009 290,490 (173,785) 1,048,496
60,075 15,513 34,313 (53,303) 56,598
342 0 342
60,075 15,513 34,655 (53,303) 56,940
660,856 346,522 325,144 (227,087) 1,105,436
@ uss Ac UBS AG IFRS GAAP
ubs.com/investors Complementary financial information UBS AG UBS AG
@ UBS UBS
SE UBS AG
UBS

2022 12 31 ugs AcV Ac® ™ WS AG( )
17,286 (1,165) (5,491) 10,630
®) (©))
@ 157 453 1,120 1,729
(562) (292) (624) (1,478)
161 161
) (943) 244 (699)
(22,602) (2,690) (5,500) (30,792)
14,442 870 3,487 18,799
(9,346) (1,663) (1,274) (12,283)
« ) (12,215) ®) 31) (12,249)
UBS AG (4,200) (4,200)
©@ 78,866 550 a1 79,457
© (66,526) (860) (284) (67,670)
(258) (337) (595)
5,217 (2,088) (3,128) 0
884 (2,401) (3,740) (5,257)
57,895 92,799 57,061 207,755
« ) 8,824 (5,229) (10,505) (6,911)
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(3,111) (1,338) (1,196) (5,645)
(O]
63,608 86,232 45,359 195,200
&
48,607 84,465 36,291 169,363
“@
2,957 1,550 8,821 13,329
[ORE)]
12,044 216 248 12,508
™ UBS AG
@ UBS AG UBS AG UBS
AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
® ygs AG  UBS AG ® 4,253
®)
UBS AG UBS
2021 12 31 ¢ H® ¢ H® @ UBS AG( )
3,130 3,652 2,456 (703) 8,534
(2,847) (520) (1,024) 1,025 (3,366)
1,229 254 228 74) 1,437
1,512 3,386 1,660 48 6,605
3,751 807 1,369 (83) 5,844
3,837 5,204 16,151 @770) 24,422
(810) 481) (1,450) 755 (1,985)
3,027 4,723 14,702 14) 22,438
7,555 221 1,560 (8,396) 941
15,845 9,137 19,201 (8,445) 35,828
« ) (65) (98) (10) 24 (148)
3,401 2,008 10,161 1 15,661
4,255 3,442 4,474 (2,696) 9,476
949 285 755 (114) 1,875
8,605 5,825 15,390 (2,809) 27,012
« ) 7,305 3,409 3,910 (5,660) 8,964
( ) 203 622 1,090 11 1,903
« D 7,102 2,788 2,820 (5,649) 7,061
« ) 0 0 29 0 29
« ) 7,102 2,788 2,792 (5,649) 7,032
@ ygs ac UBS AG IFRS GAAP
ubs.com/investors Complementary financial information UBS AG UBS AG
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@ UBS UBS SE
UBS AG
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UBS AG UBS
2021 12 31 ¢ H® s H® @ UBS AG( )
7,102 2,788 2,792 (5.649) 7,032
6N (419) (607) 517 (510)
0 @s7) 0 157)
(1,129) (279) (250) an (1,675)
(26) (26)
(1,155) (699) (1,014) 500 (2,368)
170 (135) 67 0 102
46 46
217 (135) 67 0 148
(939) (834) (947) 500 (2.,220)
6,163 1,954 1,845 (5.,149) 4,813
13 13
6,163 1,954 1,858 (5.149) 4,826
@ uss Ac UBS AG IFRS GAAP
ubs.com/investors Complementary financial information UBS AG UBS AG
@ UBS UBS SE
UBS AG
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2021 12 31 ues Ac®  uss acH ™ UBS AG( )
« D 5,714 2,131 22,718 30,563
« )
@ Q@)
@ 16 0 577 593
(656) 276) (650) (1,581)
294 1 295
(817) 67 (750)
(1,840) “5) (3,038) (4,922)
1,033 817 2,658 4,507
« ) (1,970) 495 (385) (1,860)
«C )
« ) (3,073) (21) 0 (3,093)
UBS AG (4,539) (4,539)
© 97,250 1,177 193 98,619
© (78,385) (1,093) (320) (79,799)
(280) 20 (261)
5,240 (537) (4,702) 0
« D 16,212 (475) (4,811) 10,927
39,400 93,342 40,689 173,430
C ) 19,957 2,151 17,523 39,630
(1,462) (2,693) (1,151) (5,306)
@ 57,895 92,799 57,061 207,755
@ 53,729 91,031 47,946 192,706
@ 3,258 1,588 8,975 13,822
@@ 908 179 139 1,227
@ UBS AG
@ AG
® s AG  UBS AG ® 3,408
)
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UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
AG
2023 12 31
UBS AG
2013
UBS AG
UBS AG
2022 12 31
UBS AG
Form 20-F
2024

UBS AG

2023 12 31

2024

UBS AG

UBS AG
28
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2023 12 31
2023 12 31
UBS AG
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UBS AG
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
18,473 7,133 16,540 6,821
2,664 2,199 2,389 2,007
1,216 359 1,089 344
@ (24,683) (9,197) (22,104) (8,799)
(2,330) 495 (2,086) 463
( 12 (13) 18 (13) 17
(2,343) 513 (2,099) 480
2,435 2,756 2,193 2,618
125 99 111 95
(705) (684) (632) (651)
1,855 2,171 1,672 2,062
3 7,253 5,796 6,527 5,512
43 (110) 38 (106)
4 5,430 6,465 4,862 6,183
405 394 363 375
5 1,596 1,467 1,426 1,397
5 407) (937) (366) (888)
7,068 7,279 6,323 6,962
13,832 15,759 12,422 15,015
6 3,408 3,109 3,063 2,960
7 4,118 3,543 3,684 3,375
7,526 6,653 6,747 6,334
4 3,715 1,056 3,343 1,014
765 743 687 708
33 54 29 50
12,040 8,505 10,805 8,106
1,792 7,253 1,617 6,909
8 34 201 32 191
8 2 2 2 2
( 9 310 295 283 281
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1,515 7,157 1,364 6,817
@ 2023 12 31 2022 12 31

2022 12 31

@
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
@ 29,036 11,212 28,847 11,897
4,187 3,456 4,167 3,657
(€))
1,911 564 1,899 600
@ (38,797) (14,456) (38,552) (15,346)
(3,662) 778 (3,638) 808
« ) 12 (20) 28 (23) 30
(3,683) 806 (3.661) 837
3,827 4,332 3,825 4,566
196 156 194 166
(1,108) (1,075) (1,102) (1,135)
2,916 3,412 2,916 3,596
3 11,400 9,110 11,384 9,613
68 173) 66 (185)
4 8,535 10,162 8,480 10,784
637 619 633 654
5 2,509 2,306 2,487 2,437
5 (640) (1,473) (638) (1,549)
11,109 11,441 11,028 12,142
21,741 24,770 21,665 26,188
6 5,357 4,887 5,342 5,163
7 6,473 5,569 6,425 5,886
11,829 10,457 11,767 11,047
4 5,839 1,660 5,831 1,769
1,202 1,168 1,198 1,235
52 85 51 87
18,924 13,368 18,845 14,138
2,817 11,400 2,820 12,050
8 53 316 56 333
8 3 3 3 3
( ) 9 487 464 494 490
« ) 2,381 11,249 2,379 11,890
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31

12 49,449 48,344 41,620 44,684

12, 23 56,082 31,450 47,204 29,069

10, 12, 23 69,381 58,141 58,398 53,739

11, 12, 23 107,463 105,552 90,451 97,561

W 11, 12, 23 29,380 27,678 24,729 25,582

11, 12 5,116 5,039 4,306 4,657

13 124,682 98,566 104,943 91,104

14 10,056 14,701 8,464 13,588

15 40,874 43,746 34,403 40,434

12 3,000 1,872 2,525 1,730

4 48,090 51,029 40,477 47,165

5,049 5,134 4,250 4,745

11, 12, 16 9,905 13,516 8,336 12,491

558,527 504,767 470,106 466,550

20,183 18,748 16,988 17,329

19,250 18,042 16,202 16,676

23 62,428 47,329 52,545 43,745

10, 23 23,774 23,497 20,011 21,718

23 147,388 138,941 124,055 128,421

UBS AG 20, 23 70,620 61,202 59,440 56,568

13 27,280 25,058 22,961 23,160

14 16,921 17,429 14,242 16,109

13, 19 80,859 70,603 68,058 65,258

UBS AG 19, 20, 23 2,711 1,959 2,282 1,811

20 67,144 56,148 56,514 51,897

5,474 3,592 4,608 3,320

16 1,755 1,582 1,475 1,462

12 2,008 2,026 1,690 1,872

505,650 447,406 425,600 413,532

21 386 393 380 386

36,334 36,326 35,655 35,649

@ 22,190 36,326 23,936 35,649
14,144 11,719

14,642 13,485 7,107 10,167

« ) 1,515 7,157 1,364 6,817

52,877 57,361 44,506 53,018

558,527 504,767 470,106 466,550

359/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
77,573 66,872 65,293 61,809
77,012 66,314 64,820 61,293

@ GAAP @ 2023 12 31

22,190
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
31,360 20,359 26,395 18,818
(990) (1,069) (834) (988)
30,369 19,290 25,562 17,830
6,362 6,156 5,355 5,690
19,900 16,272 16,749 15,041
8 0 7 0
19,892 16,272 16,743 15,041
o 102,122 54,321 85,955 50,208
63,527 27,343 53,470 25,273
38,595 26,978 32,485 24,936
5 5 4 4

@ UBS AG
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31

12 77,724 75,987 72,589 77,933

12, 23 88,150 49,433 82,328 50,699

10, 12, 23 109,053 91,386 101,852 93,726

11, 12, 23 168,910 165,907 157,756 170,156

W 11, 12, 23 46,179 43,504 43,130 44,618

11, 12 8,041 7,920 7,510 8,122

13 195,975 154,926 183,031 158,894

14 15,806 23,107 14,762 23,699

15 64,246 68,760 60,002 70,521

12 4,715 2,942 4,404 3,017

4 75,588 80,207 70,596 82,260

7,936 8,070 7,412 8,276

11, 12, 16 15,569 21,244 14,539 21,786

877,893 793,393 819,912 813,710

31,724 29,468 29,629 30,224

30,257 28,358 28,258 29,085

23 98,124 74,392 91,644 76,296

10, 23 37,368 36,933 34,901 37,878

23 231,664 218,387 216,364 223,979

UBS AG 20, 23 111,001 96,197 103,669 98,660

13 42,879 39,386 40,046 40,393

14 26,596 27,395 24,839 28,096

13, 19 127,094 110,974 118,700 113,816

UBS AG 19, 20, 23 4,261 3,079 3,980 3,159

20 105,537 88,253 98,566 90,514

8,604 5,646 8,037 5,790

16 2,759 2,487 2,573 2,550

12 3,156 3,184 2,948 3,265

794,781 703,233 742,289 721,241

21 607 618 663 673

57,110 57,097 62,186 62,175

@ 34,878 57,097 41,747 62,175
22,232 20,439

23,014 21,196 12,395 17,732

« ) 2,381 11,249 2,379 11,890

83,112 90,160 77,623 92,469
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0000000
877,893 793,393 819,912 813,710
121,929 105,109 113,878 107,801
121,047 104,232 113,053 106,901

@ GAAP @ 2023 12 31

34,878
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31

49,292 32,000 46,036 32,820

(1,556) (1,680) (1,455) (1,723)
47,734 30,320 44,583 31,097
10,000 9,676 9,340 9,924
31,279 25,576 29,212 26,233
13 0 12 0
31,266 25,576 29,201 26,233
(€] 160,515 85,382 149,914 87,568
99,852 42,978 93,257 44,079
60,664 42,404 56,657 43,491
8 8 7 7

@ UBS AG
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UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS SE
2019 UBS
UBS SE

UBS AG 2003 UBS

UBS SE
UBS SE
2016 UBS
UBS
2023 12 31

UBS VAT

UBS

UBS AG

SE
SE

UBS

SE

UBS

UBS

UBS AG
UBS AG

UBS AG
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« D « )
2023 393 36,326 36,326 13,485 7,157 57,361
( ) 7,157 (7,157) 0
(6,000) (6,000)
O ©) 7 2,236 2,228) 0
@ (16,372) 16,372 0
« ) 1,515 1,515
2023 12 31 386 36,334 22,190 14,144 14,642 1,515 52,877
( ) « ) « )
2023 618 57,097 57,097 21,196 11,249 90,160
( ) 11,249 (11,249) 0
(9,431) (9,431)
O (11) 1 3,515 (3,502) 0
@ (25,734) 25,734 0
C D 2,381 2,381
2023 12 31 607 57,110 34,878 22,232 23,014 2,381 83,112
@ 21a @ 2003
SFTA SFTA SFTA
16,372 25,734 2023 12 31
22,190 34,878 UBS AG
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« D « D
2023 386 35,649 35,649 10,167 6,817 53,018
( 6,817 (6,817) 0
(5,361) (5,361)
O 6) 6 2,068 (2,062) 0
@ (13,780) 13,780 0
(4,516) (4,516)
C ) 1,364 1,364
2023 12 31 380 35,655 23,936 11,719 7,107 1,364 44,506
(
) « D « D
2023 673 62,175 62,175 17,732 11,890 92,469
( 11,890 (11,890) 0
(9,350) (9,350)
O (10) 10 3,607 (3,596) 0
@ (24,034) 24,034 0
(7,876) (7,876)
« D 2,379 2,379
2023 12 31 663 62,186 41,747 20,439 12,395 2,379 77,623
@ 21a @ 2023
SFTA SFTA SFTA
13,780 24,034 UBS
AG
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Board of Directors BoD 2024 23 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders AGM 1,515
1,485 3,000
2023 12 31 2023 12 31 @©
1,515 2,381 1,364 2,379
« ) 0 0 0 0
1,515 2,381 1,364 2,379
(1,515) (2,381) (1,364) (2,379)
« ) 0 0 0 0
14,642 23,014 7,107 12,395
(1,485) (2,334) (1,161) (2,025)
13,157 20,680 5,946 10,370
@ 3,000 4,715 2023 12 31
1.19 2,525 4,404 1,364
2,379 1,161 2,025
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UBS AG

UBS AG Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001
Zurich Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland UBS AG 620

Aktiengesel lschaft
UBS AG UBS UBS AG
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG

UBS AG 2023 12 31 10,398 2022 12
31 10,333
a

UBS AG GAAP  FINMA FINMVA 2020 1

UBS
AG 2023 UBS AG
GAAP IFRS UBS AG 33
UBS AG

- UBS AG 33

UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG Compensation Report

UBS AG UBS AG UBS

Tier AT UBS AG UBS AG
- UBS AG 27
UBS AG UBS AG 32

- UBS AG 32
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UBS AG

UBS AG

UBS AG
N 19
UBS AG UBS AG
Tier
UBS AG
TLAC
UBS AG
- UBS AG 20
UBS AG UBS AG

UBS AG
UBS AG

Capital Adequacy Ordinance 29 30
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UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
FX
FX
UBS AG FX
FX
FX
UBS AG
UBS AG
AG

UBS AG

UBS AG

FX

FX
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GAAP IFRS

UBS AG
GAAP FER 16

GAAP FER 16

GAAP FER 16 FER 26

UBS AG FER 26

GAAP FER 16 IFRS
GAAP FER 16
GAAP FER 16
- 22
UBS AG IFRS IAS 19
UBS AG
- UBS AG 26
UBS AG
UBS AG
GAAP ECL
UBS AG IFRS ECL
GAAP IFRS
UBS AG
- UBS AG
GAAP ECL
IFRS ECL
RWA
ECL EL
12
EL UBS AG

management and control
RWA
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GAAP FER 16
IFRS
UBS AG
IFRS
IAS 19

26

ECL
IFRS ECL

12
2023 Risk
ECL

PD LGD
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UBS ECL
- UBS AG Risk management and control Credit
policies for distressed assets
- 12
UBS AG IFRS UBS AG
2023
2023 12 UBS AG UBS AG AG
2024
UBS AG UBS AG 2023
Risk management and control
UBS AG
10 25
- UBS AG 10 25
a
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
6,575 5,271 5,922 5,016
6,616 5,423 5,960 5,165
“@2) (152) (38) (148)
678 525 605 496
7,253 5,796 6,527 5,512
b
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2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( 5,479 3,528 4,930 3,361
1,128 1,404 1,017 1,341
524 763 471 714
122 100 110 97
7,253 5,796 6,527 5,512
¢ o (,839) 12,687 (1,471) 12,184
(€]
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2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS Wilmington,
Delaware, USA 100 31,484 34,233 26,500 31,642
UBS AG Zurich, Switzerland 100 7.985 7.984 6,721 7,380
UBS SE Frankfurt, Germany 100 3,914 3,572 3,294 3,301
UBS AG Zurich, Switzerland 100 1,732 1,728 1,457 1,597
2,976 3,511 2,505 3,246
48,090 51,029 40,477 47,165
2023 2022 5,430 4,862
6,465 6,183 UBS AG UBS
AG UBS UBS SE
2023 UBS AG 3,715 3,343
UBS 3,500 3,135
2022 UBS AG 1,056
1,014 UBS SE 609
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS AG ™ 1,511 1,308 1,354 1,332
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0.1 0.0 1 0.0 0.0 2
1.7 1.5 97 1.0 1.2 79
® 0.1 0.2 49 0.1 0.1 64
0.7 0.5 45 0.5 0.7 39
0.0 0.0 13 0.0 0.0 16
(071C) 0.6 0.3 38 0.4 0.3 29
0.3 0.3 4 0.3 0.3 6
1.6 1.3 150 1.3 1.4 154
126.9 135.3 24,275 149.5 153.8 20,698
126.4 134.5 148.6 153.3
125.8 133.8 147.8 152.4
0.5 0.7 0.8 0.5
0.5 0.7 0.8 0.5
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7.9) 19.4) (20.9) (22.5)
(98.9) (98.9) (113.8) (113.8)
10.1 16.9 14.7 17.4
0.5 0.2 0.9 0.2
2.1 2.1 4.3 2.8
7.5 14.6 9.6 14.5
)
)
13.8 2022 12 31 11.2
®
® 2022 12 31 2.8
® 2023 12 31
60 2022 12 31 50 21 2022 12 31 43
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
@ @
® 0.1 0.1 905 0.3 0.1 759
21.7 17.6 10,662 26.7 21.1 9,553
0.0 0.0 104 0.0 0.0 104
0.0 0.0 593 0.0 0.0 558
(010) 10.2 12.1 1,322 13.1 16.2 1,288
0.1 0.1 81 0.2 0.2 126
32.0 30.0 13,563 40.3 37.7 12,283
13.1 15.9 1,593 24.5 26.5 1,631
0.0 0.0 0 0.0 0.0 0
37.5 39.6 3,218 46.4 47.1 3,007
0.4 0.6 39 0.8 0.5 31
0.0 0.0 1 0.0 0.0 2
(010) 5.3 5.2 752 8.6 8.6 993
0.0 0.0 5 0.1 0.2 9
55.9 60.7 5,568 79.6 82.3 5,732
0.2 0.3 27 0.2 0.3 31
5.4 7.8 226 5.2 6.3 206
0.0 0.0 61 0.0 0.0 46
(0T10) 2.5 5.0 168 2.6 4.2 133
8.0 7.6 611 8.1 8.9 486
16.1 20.7 1,004 16.1 19.8 901
1.2 1.1 80 0.8 0.9 70
0.0 0.1 1 0.1 0.2 1
0.1 0.0 1 0.0 0.0 2
1.4 1.2 81 1.0 1.1 73
® 0.1 0.1 M 0.1 0.1 59
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0.6 0.5 38 0.5 0.6 36
0.0 0.0 11 0.0 0.0 15
(0T10) 0.5 0.2 32 0.4 0.3 27
0.2 0.3 4 0.3 0.3 5
1.4 1.1 126 1.2 1.3 142
106.8 113.9 20,432 138.1 142.1 19,131
106.4 113.2 137.4 141.7
105.9 112.6 136.6 140.8
0.4 0.6 0.8 0.5
0.4 0.6 0.8 0.5
15.1) (16.4) (19.3) (20.8)
(83.2) (83.2) (105.2) (105.2)
8.5 14.2 13.6 16.1
0.4 0.2 0.8 0.2
1.7 1.7 4.0 2.6
6.3 12.3 8.8 13.4
)
)
11.6 2022 12 31 10.4
®
® 2022 12 31 1.3
®
2023 12 31 50 2022 12 31 40 17

2022 12 31 40
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15a
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
40,857 40,864 43,725 43,496
20,760 20,474 21,657 21,202
20,097 20,390 22,068 22,293
16 19 20 22
1
@ 2 2 4 4
1 1 1 1
40,874 40,884 43,746 43,518
@
36,255 36,065 38,452 38,020
@ UBS AG 10 10 @
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
34,388 34,395 40,414 40,203
17,473 17,233 20,018 19,597
16,915 17,162 20,397 20,606
14 16 18 20
1
@ 1 1 4 4
1 1 1 1
34,403 34,412 40,434 40,224
@
30,515 30,355 35,541 35,142
@ UBS AG 10 10 @
15b
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS w
0-1 31,902 36,214 26,852 33,472
2-3 8,929 7,193 7,515 6,649
4-5 24 237 20 219
6-8 0 0 0 0
9-13 0 0 0 0
1 81 1 75
40,857 43,725 34,388 40,414
) 18
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16a
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
6,824 9,029 5,743 8,346
@ 1,372 2,197 1,155 2,030
242 121 203 112
344 322 290 208
425 1,038 357 959
699 809 587 746
UBS AC UBS 483 519 407 480
@

9,905 13,516 8,336 12,491

@ UBS AG 17b 1 @ UBS AG  UBS

2023 12 31 918 772
2022 12 31 939 12d
16b
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31

115 102 97 95
66 65 56 60
82 70 69 65
1,491 1,345 1,254 1,243
UBS AG S 900 814 758 753
1,755 1,582 1,475 1,462

@
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17
2023
12 31 35 29 2022 12 31 52 48
10
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1
@ 8,011 4,733
2
@ 2,187 2,052
10,198 6,785
@
@
uBS AG 2023 12 31 2,804 2022 12
31 2,651
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
() 6,743 4,374
() 1,841 1,897
8,584 6,271
@
@
UBS AG 2023 12 31 2,360
2022 12 31 2,450
18
- UBS AG 2023 Risk management and control
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
UBS
® S
o 1 Aaa ARA ARA 251,204 45 230,979 46
2 Aal Aa3 AA+ AA- AA+ AA- 90,612 16 96,069 19
3 AL A3 At A A A 71,893 13 71,856 14
4 Baal Baa2  BBB+ BBB BBB+ BBB 10,340 2 8,013 2
5 Baa3 BBB- BBB- 5,328 1 6,156 1
6 Bal BB+ BB+ 127 0 287 0
7 Ba2 BB BB 774 0 566 0
8 Ba3 BB- BB- 1,940 0 1,958 0
9 Bl B+ B+ 750 0 868 0
10 B2 B B 503 0 524 0
1 B3 B- B- 121 0 20 0
12 Caal Caa2  CCC+ ccc CCC+ ccc 261 0 203 0
13 Caa3 ¢ cce- ¢ cce- ¢ 134 0 140 0
D D 29 0 9 0
434,016 78 417,648 83
124,511 22 87,119 17
558,527 100 504,767 100
UBS AG 2023 Risk management and control
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
UBS
o sep
0 1 Aaa ARA ARA 211,428 45 213,488 46
2 Aal Aa3 AA+ AA- AA+ AA- 76,271 16 88,797 19
3 AL A3 At A At A 60,511 13 66,416 14
4 Baal Baa2 BBB+ BBB  BBB+ BBB 8,703 2 7,407 2
5 Baa3 BBB- BBB- 4,485 1 5,690 1
6 Bal BB+ BB+ 107 0 265 0
7 Ba2 BB BB 651 0 523 0
8 Ba3 BB- BB- 1,633 0 1,810 0
9 Bl B+ B+ 631 0 802 0
10 B2 B B 423 0 485 0
1 B3 B~ B~ 102 0 19 0
12 Caal Caa2 CCC+ ccc  ccc+ cce 220 0 187 0
13 Caa3 C CCC- C CccC- C 113 0 129 0
D D 24 ] 8 0
365,302 78 386,026 83
104,803 22 80,524 17
470,106 100 466,550 100
UBS AG 2023 Risk management and control
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19
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
5,679 2,293 4,780 2,120
46,220 41,926 38,903 38,752
16,681 15,925 14,040 14,719
4,287 2,281 3,608 2,108
® 3,704 4,304 3,118 3,978
699 578 589 535
UBS AG
@ 2,711 1,959 2,282 1,811
« ) 877 1,336 738 1,235
80,859 70,603 68,058 65,258
) ) 20
2023 12 31
7,555 6,359 2022 12 31 5,379
4,972 58
49 2022 12 31 59 54
20 UBS AG
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS AG
UBS AG 67,292 59,202 56,639 54,720
UBS AG 2,711 1,959 2,282 1,811
546 3,041 460 2,811
UBS AG 1O 70,549 64,202 59,381 59,342
@ GAAP SRB
2023 12 31 UBS AG 66,951
56,352 2022 12 31 58,823 54,370 SRB
UBS AG
21a
UBS AG
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UBS AG 2023
0.10 0.10
UBS
AG
2023 12 31 UBS AG 386 2022 12 31 386
0.10 2022 12 31 0.10
UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 12 31 UBS AG 3,858,408,466 2022 12 31
uBS AG
2023 12 31 0.10 2022 12 31 0.10
380,000,000
UBS AG 50 2023 12 31 193 190
2022 12 31 197 193
21b
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG 100
UBS AG 2023 12 31 2022
12 31 UBS AG uBsS AG UBS
AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
) )
UBS AG
UBS AG 386 100 393 100
UBS AG
DTC (Cede & Co.), New York™ 29 7 28 7
Nortrust Nominees Ltd., London 15 4 17 4
Chase Nominees Ltd., London 34 9
@ DTC (Cede & Co.), New York The Depository Trust Company
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(@) )
UBS AG
UBS AG 380 100 386 100
UBS AG
DTC (Cede & Co.), New York™® 28 7 27 7
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17 4
33 9

@ DTC (Cede & Co.), New York

The Depository Trust Company
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0000000
22
a
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
)
344 322 290 298
344 322 290 208
@ 2023 12 31 341 287
2022 12 31 321 297
b
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
0 0 0 0
1
W 66 65 56 60
66 65 56 60
UBS UBS 11 24 10 22
UBS 34 7 29 6
112 95 94 88
@ 2023 12 31 37 31 14 12
2022 12 31 37 34 14 13
C
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
W
343 297 288 275
UBS AG « ) 0 0 0 0
C ) 0 0 0 0
28 41 25 39
3 4 3 4
31 45 28 42
@ FER 26 FER 16
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG FER 16 IFRS IAS 19
2023 124 115
76 68 49
47
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0000000
2022 55 51
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
- [IFRS UBS AG
26
23
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
)
4,344 77,258 2,609 65,310
3,804 2,535 2,526 1,061
UBS AG 70,620 61,202
UBS AG 2,711 1,959
116,967 68,654 100,990 51,093
35,235 51,206 26,500 39,168
35,319 1,267 32,075 2,801
15,979 15,121 13,003 7,775
29,380 27,678
@
16,644 2,004 332 420
14,821 1,194
904 232 219 208
4 4
3
® 2 6 2
@ ygs Ac UBS AG @ ygs Ac UBS AG ( AG
3
y @
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
o)
3,656 65,027 2,412 60,366
3,201 2,134 2,335 981
UBS AG 59,440 56,568
UBS AG 2,282 1,811
98,450 57,785 93,344 47,225
29,657 43,099 24,494 36,202
29,728 1,067 29,647 2,589
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13,450 12,727 12,018 7,187
24,729 25,582
@ 14,009 1,687 307 388
12,475 1,005
761 195 202 193
3 4
® 2 5 2
@ ygs Ac UBS AG @ ygs Ac UBS AG ( AG
y @
2023 12 31 86 72
2022 12 31 80 64 54
2022 12 31 62
2022 12 31
2023 12 31 10
2022 12 31
24
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 3 12 31 12 31 12 31
39 84 33 78
39 84 33 78
0 0 0 0
39 84 33 78
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
25a
2023 2022 2023 2022
12 3 12 31 12 31 12 31
60 53 51 48
434 415 365 384
1) 494 468 416 432
23 o 27 @

@
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25b
2022 2023 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31
@ 560 432 510
@ 21 ()
@ (81) 1 (75)
(10) (1)) @
1 w 1
() 468 416 432
(H) @
- UBS AG 31
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UBS AG
2023
BC
2023 Tier
CET UBS
526
Tier AT 35 AT
2023
AT 25
UBS AG
10 20 AG
2023
RWA RWA
RWA RWA
LRD
159 350
UBS AG CET RWA
14.8 UBS AG
10.6 10.1
UBS AG
260.2
LCR
207 1,300
2023 12 31 2.7
160 2,798
258 3,049

415/633

BS

AG

651

AT

6,439

CET
LRD

LCR
FINMA

16

66

HQLA

91.7
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IFRS
Tier
UBS AG
125
2023
RWA
RWA
3,541
192
15.3
Tier
34.2
HQLA
504
FINMA
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KM
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
12 31 30 30 31 12 31
C )
1 Tier (CET )! 52,553 53,107 53,904 53,476 53,995
2 Tier ! 65,051 64,767 65,622 65,791 65,836
3 1 65,052 64,767 65,622 66,279 66,321
2
C D
4 (RWA) 354,083 347,514 343,374 348,235 332,864
4a 3 28,327 27,801 27,470 27,859 26,629
(RWA )2
5 CET ¢ ) 14.84 15.28 15.70 15.36 16.22
6 Tier ¢ ) 18.37 18.64 19.11 18.89 19.78
7 () 18.37 18.64 19.11 19.03 19.92
CET (RWA )
8 () 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
9 () 0.12 0.11 0.09 0.08 0.06
%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(@)
4
10 G-SIB D-SIB ()
1 CET )’ 2.62 2.61 2.59 2.58 2.56
12 CET
6 10.34 10.64 11.11 10.86 11.72
)
13 643,939 608,933 606,158 589,317 575,461
14 ('t 10.10 10.64 10.83 11.16 11.44
(LeR)’
15 (HQLA) 129,961 109,248 97,726 98,761 101,609
16 50,376 48,781 47,083 52,382 53,616
16a 163,836 160,990 160,163 163,526 156, 764
16b 113,460 112,210 113,080 111,144 103,148
17 LCR( ) 260.16 225.93 207.98 189.11 191.19
(NSFR)®
18 279,758 263,737 253,927 254,983 254,433
19 304,938 279,160 283,937 288,991 280,166
20 NSFR( ) 91.74 94.48 89.43 88.23 90.82
! 2022 FINMA 2013/1 - CET ECL
2 RuA
3
SRB CET
RWA 4 SRB
UBS AG UBS AG >
BCBS 6
CET CET BCBS CET CET
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BCBS Tier

ubs.com/investors

NSFR 100

UBS AG

UBS

AG

2023 63

Pillar 3 Report
NSFR 80
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0.12
AT
2019
Annual reporting UBS

UBS AG SRB
RWA 10.12 CET 0.12
14.42
LRD

3.5 CET 5.0

CET AT
2023 12 31 UBS AG UBS AG

12 FINMA

2023 UBS AG
i UBS
UBS AG
30 2024
Tier Tier
UBS AG
FINMA 2028
2017 200
250 400
20
2023 12 31
225 300

UBS AG UBS AG ubs.com/investors

2023 Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet

Capital and capital ratios of our significant regulated subsidiaries
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SRB RWA LRD
FINMA
SRB
RIA
RUA 2028
2023 12 31 LRD

14.42% 51,048 14.42% 57,577 500" 32,197
Tier 10.12 35,822 10.12 40,404 3.50 22,538
4.50 15,934 4.50 17,972 1.50 9,659
5.50 19,475 5.50 21,965 2.00 12,879

0.12 414 0.12 467
Tier 4.30 15,226 4.30 17,173 1.50 9,659
Tier 3.50 12,393 3.50 13,978 1.50 9,659

Tier 0.80 2,833 0.80 3,195
18.37 65,051 16.29 65,051 10.10 65,051
Tier 14.84 52,553 13.16 52,553 8.16 52,553
Tier 3.53 12,498 3.13 12,498 1.94 12,498
Tier 3.19 11,286 2.83 11,286 1.75 11,286
Tier 0.34 1,212 0.30 1,212 0.19 1,212

354,083 399,369
643,939

RWA  LRD
2023 12 31
2
48,406
54,452
112.49
1 2
RWA 1.44 LRD 0.50 25

75
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SRB
2023 2023 2022
12 31 30 12 31
65,051 64,767 65,836
Tier 65,051 64,767 65,836
Tier 52,553 53,107 53,995
Tier 12,498 11,660 11,841
Tier 11,286 10,466 10,654
Tier 1,212 1,194 1,187
54,452 53,343 46,982
Tier 533 530 2,949
Tier 0 0 2,421
Tier 533 530 528
TLAC 53,920 52,814 44,033
119,504 118,110 112,818
354,083 347,514 332,864
1 43,448 41,355 39,589
1 121,374 120,263 121,021
2028 399,369 392,197 390,128
1 48,276 45,950 44,988
1 161,832 160, 350 172,887
643,939 608,933 575,461
)
18.4 18.6 19.8
Tier 14.8 15.3 16.2
2028 16.3 16.5 16.9
Tier 2028 13.2 13.5 13.8
)
10.1 10.6 11.4
Tier 8.2 8.7 9.4
)
112.5 115.6 117.1
1
225 300
250 400

20
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UBS
UBS
UBS AG UBS AG 2023
UBS AG 2023 How we create value for our
stakeholders Our focus on sustainability and climate Risk management
and control Sustainability and climate risk
2024 28 Annual reporting ubs.com/investors
UBS Group AG Sustainability Report 2023 Strategy Our
sustainability and impact strategy
UBS AG UBS AG UBS
ESG UBS AG
Wertpapierhandelsgesetz/WpHG 114 EU
2014/95 CSR-Richtlinie-Umsetzungsgesetz/CSR-RUG
UBS AG EU
Annual reporting ubs.com/investors
UBS Group Sustainability Report 2023 ubs.com/investors
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UBS AG consolidated financial statements

Primary financial statements and share information

Audied
Income statement

For the year ended
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LD

3
"

EYR PR R

EN R

Initeest incose tom Enandal instnements measured ol ssorized coit and (s value through

ek = na 0 &

{15,643} {6/536)

1,765 1,410

Oiher et income fom Snandal instiuments. measued &1 Tair walue Soough proft or leds

4366 6317

9934 7,483

. ...
{1,790} {1,823

Mt fee and cosmisdion income

TR N [P SR P ) FR TP T

18810 18,023
366 1,882

Todsl reveniies

IETS 34,915

Crenfit s eapenise | (pedease)

19

143 29

P opansts

Geesdandadunisatheepnes
Depreciation, amerlization end ispaistent of non-fnandal ssets

LLLL N
1,845

a8

1875

Cperating expedes

25,827

27012

e Ll L L T —

Tast expense | (banelit)

B,360

89564

Wt prnfit | s}

1116

7,061

Mt prois | ioss) attributatde to mon-contralling interests

a2

Met proiin | floss) attributably to sharsholders

1138
Bom
1206 1,844
3315
5
3350

7,084

7032
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Statement of comprehensive income
Fer the year ended
LS Muote 311223 319222 31221

Commprek ive income attributable to shanshaold

e profi / floss) 3,390 7,084 7,032
Other comprateniivg income Sat may be redasiied o the income statement

Foreign cumency transkation movesents related 1o net maets of foreign opesations, befone ta _ LT 1BE3) (1.0285)
Effective partion of changes in fair walue of hedging instruments designated & net investment hedes, belose e 1] ELE] 492

Effective partion of changes in fair walue of hedging instruments designated & net imvestment hedes necleaified 1o

thefneome slatemest L L I i
Income L relating bo foreign curmency transtatioss, inchading the eMect of net investiment hedge {17 4 a5

Subbotal foreign cunency tandlafion, net of Lix B4g 519) (510

Finencial assets measused at fair valle theough ather comprehenive income

449
e s S ey e S - M-
Subbotal fimancial ssets seaiuned 5 (air value through other comprehensive incose, met of 5 [
Cash flow hedges of interert rate fick 25
Effecive partion of changes in lair walue of derhative insusents designated as cah low hedges, belors L 136 (5,758) [EEK]
lqulrdl.ruau ............. = rhe .............. g 1“5 T
Income 1ae selating bo cash fiow hedge (309} 1,124 190
Subtistal cash flow hedges, net of wex 14007 (4,7293) (1675
Ceat ol hedging 5
Costofhedging beborerax e s
Income 1 selating bo cost of hedging 1] ] ]
Subtotal cost of bedging, et of L {19 45 (26)

Tenal cither comprehenive income that may be recaified 1o the income statesent, met of b 155 (5.260) (2.368)

Other compreherdies incame Sl vl ot be redassified 1o the income statesent

Definedbeneiplrs B
Gaing f [leides) on defned benefit plans, belon 1o (103} 40 133
Subtotal defined benefit plans, net of tax (136} Bl 102
Dwncredton nancd ablities desigrated atfsirvaboe 0 ®
Gains J (Jeges) frofm ovn coedit on Enancal liskifie: designated ot Tair value, Belore tax _ ] BET L]
Income te relating bo own credit om finencial liabiities deignated & {sir value i | 7] 0
Subbobal cwn eoesdil on Frandial Habiltes designated at fair value, met of lax {ra0p T96 A6
Tekal giher comprehendive income that will not be redlesified 1o the income stalement, et of tax {827} 877 148

Tenal ather comprehendive income 1,308 (4,383) 2220
Tetal comprehensive income atwibutable 1o shareholders 4598 3,701 4,813

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests

Met poofin | floss) 5 £ 29
Teksl cither compreherive income that will rot be recliailied to the incomme staement, et of ta {14) (16)
Tetal comprehensive income atsritatable 1o non-controling intereits 7 1 13

hd

Total compret ive income
Mt priit | s} 3315 7116 7,061
o ibicy” aer compveeenie SMoome thar may be el fo the Soome SEABTR 2235 fe = {7 )

o ihicy amber compreannie Seame thar il o be recleteifed o the innome staerent il Rad 13z
Tenal comprehensiee income 4,525 L7190 4,826
1 WARTS 2 S FICAT] SIRRGUERINg oF T0E SWHS franc and te the U colla. 3 Eflecthe | Apal 2002, a pammi ol Casalied a6 FIRanCll assats Measend af i ik Tioegh
mmMHanMmzﬂﬁmmﬁnmﬁhm:mufiiﬁ r-:h:umllqllﬁm.l-:;mm
from Q00 10 1he inore saienent. & Mainky rellecs & tigieniag of our oo Copdi seass.
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Balance sheet

LS Hase 31213 31,12.22
Assels

Cash snd balances & ceniral hanks 171,806 160,445

Recsivables bos seourities fnancing Iransecions meatred o smortiped et~ g9H  T4IM 67,814
Mﬂuﬂmﬂumdﬂmm a9 32,300 35,033
Loa and advances o custosers 8 ARG 39007
Dither firancial ssets saured 8t amartized cost 0,13 54,334 53,389
Tonal financisl ssets messsred & amontized cost TG, 407 730,379
Finencial astets al fair valioe held for ieading n 135,098 108,034

i e e R e
WWM“I“NMW”HW 351,463
Finencial assets measused at fair walle mg-wuwtm income ] 2,733

Goodwdlsndintangblessses M BN 6N
Deslimiad R Sasess B 9244 9,354
Tedsl sy 1,156,016 1,005,436

Ot el Sl e st i st
Tetal firancisl abiities measued ot smartized cost TEZ,BAL 705,442

Dierivative Snandal instnements R __'!IJ.JEJ!.H” __1-IJ..'|"[I? 154,306

Brckerage papsbles deignused slsitvaloe B 2,175 45,085
Dbt issued designated at i e R - Y - ) m TLEAL

Other francial Tatilies desigrated af faievae ) [ k- 32,033
Todsl firancisl Rabiiies meanumed o {sir value thiough peolis o loss 338,40 333,382
Prowisions 172 2,524 3,088
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Statement of changes in equity

LED
Belance 4 of 31 Ducermber 2020
Presius on shanes Hied

S of changes n et enmiogs of ssocies o joiotventves 1

" o ik et gt/ es! :
B
Batance a4 of 31 Decermber 2021

Shuare ol changes in retained samings of attocimes and joint wentures 1]
L . RO .

Balance a5 of 31 Decernber 2033 386 214,638 218,235
1 Enclages ovher compeshensive income: ielaned w2 defined besefi plars and own cidis, which & necorded dimctly in Rriained eamings. !hdmm—ldquﬁﬁnpmhm

pTGaton dsards qanied m enplyees of USS AG o it seboidiaies. 5 Inchedes the efects relned 1o the laench of UBS 45* opesrinnal panastship with Semioome Wisei Tes Holgings, Inc in
::Iﬂll. +m-3m:mmﬁunﬁumdwmm11nﬁﬂﬁ.q::mhun. - "
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Share information and eamings per share

Ordinary share capital

As of 31 December 2023, UBS AG had 3,858,408,466 issued shares (31 December 2022: 3,858,408, 466 shares). In the
second quarter of 2023, the share capital currency of UBS AG was changed from the Swiss franc to the US dollar, as
approved by shareholders at the 2023 Annual General Meeting (the AGM). As a result, the nominal value per share has
changed from CHF 0.10 to USD 0.10, resulting in a redassification between share capital and capital contribution reserve
ipresented as share premium in the consolidated financial statements) and leading to a share capital of
USD 385,840,846.60. The shares were entirely held by UBS Group AG.

Conditional share capital

As of 31 December 2023, the following conditional share capital was available to the Board of Directors (the BoD) of

LIBS AG:

- & maximum of USD 38,000,000 represented by up to 380,000,000 fully paid registered shares with a nominal value
of USD 0.10 each, to be isued through the voluntary or mandatory exercise of conversion rights and / or warrants
granted in connection with the issuance of bonds or similar finandal instruments on national or internaticnal capital
markets. This conditional capital allowance was approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
26 Movember 2014, having originally been approved at the AGM of UBS AG on 14 April 2010. The BoD has not
made use of such allowance.

Capital band, conversion capital and reserve capital

As of 31 Decernber 2023, UBS AG has not introduced a capital band, any conversion capital or any reserve capital.

Eamings per share

In 2015, UBS AG shares were delisted from the SE Swiss Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange. As of 31 December
2023, 100% of UBS AG's issued shares were held by UBS Group AG and therefore were not publicly traded. Accordingly,
eamnings per share information is not provided for UBS AG.
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Statement of cash flows

Far the year ended
L0 s i EV A |

Cash flows from / {used in) operating activities
Lucad o ... R /... SN L
Nomv<ash thomg Inchaed in et profit and othar adfustments:

Payables Trom securities finsncing trareaclions measused al assonized ool 1543 11.247) [751)
o e Ll

Net cash flow from | |used in) opesating acsviies (28,202 10,630 30,563

Cash flows fram / (used in) investing activities

Mea cxsh flori froi [ used in) inmvting scsvities (4,924} [12.283) (12500

Tabde continues below.
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Statement of cash flows (continuad)

Tabde continued from above.
Far the yeer ended
LS nas EIR Py iz

Cash flows from / {used in) financing activities

7,181 (12,245)
. Je0o0) Jaan

Mt cash florws frem ot inneing activities 501} [595)
Met cash flow from / |used in) finencing activities 13,650 (5,257)

Total cash flow
Cubadakopbuiot dbebogrengolbeyer 000000000000 B®

173,430

Mdlﬂu@mdﬂhﬂ:ﬂmﬁﬁuﬁqﬂhﬂn' T R T T ]
Cash and cath equivalents o the end of the year® 190,488 195,200 207,755
Hmﬂmmlmm IFL T2 159 283 T8 R0E

Additional information
Mt cash floww from [ used in) opesasing scliies indbodes:

Tmsm @ nm

%71 B 315 4,802

Dividends an aquily invessserts, investment funds and ssocistes received in cash® P2l 1,907 2531

1 Fosign aumency wansiation and fonsign eschange etfects on opeuning asses and Rabiities and on cash ans cash equival aaithin e Jiker net ady lime. Does pon inciedd foreign canmacy
twrige ¥iects relaned 1 wchange smaps. T EHective from 3003, UES AS hﬂmhmhh“dﬂhﬂnpﬂmuﬁmmmnmnm
Cusmamel deposics, from sasities Srandng tranactions meassed an o st and mes The
wuhumihnurnnﬁhumrurﬁmmmmmu—qmmiumum jbﬂ*rﬂlﬂ:iﬂgpﬂ.ﬂmmim 4 Inchides
fl'll'gh:ml.ﬁ AL modsad at amoniped okt (oognized on the balnos sheet in Fanding from UBS Groug AG) and measerd ot fair valus (eoognized on the talancs shees in Other financial Babilises

u-; :Lmq.smumamnulmmmmnmupmmm-mumuﬁmmxﬂmmxﬂ 31 Decemizer 3022
nalmm:lwmmmnhmm & Incluces: only balanoes with an eriginal naterity of teee months o s :m paper b induded in the balance shos
under Financial amets @ fair valae: non Beld er nadieg (31 Decombe 2023 USD6,345m; 31 Decerber 202 USD 6,048m; 31 Decamber 3021: UED 1,086m), financial sswrs neamied o arored o
[31 December 2033: 1050 255m; 31 Demmber 2027 USD 6,4559m; 31 Decembar 2021; USD 14 1n) and Fnanclal asses a1 fain valer beld for trading (31 Deosnber 20023: USD 19, 31 Deoember 2002 USD 2m;
31 Demmber M0F1- USD 0m). & Inchides disicends mosived from asocianes spord sithin Kt csh fiow tiom / sed in) insesting aciitie.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Dt e [T Oni-the-  Funding from
mesdined Al ofiedit ofilecl  designated alfai  counter debl  UBS Ghoup
LS smontized cosl shor-teew’ dg-teen” wakee  instruments’ AGH Tatal
Balance a3 of 1 Jamsary 2022 843z 43098 i) 71,460 2,128 58635 215655

Cash flowes (12,390 {12249 [ ET I] 2?? {251} 5903 (41}
ﬁﬂ'mwﬂwm..... e RN (06 O (1 (1289 (5058
d’lﬂﬁ'ﬂmw {8,y [l fLoey  (IzERq

MwosdNokene 0202020002000 WM A 2B 0 TR MR A6 W

Balance a5 of 31 December 2023 69,784 ] J2499 86,341 1,566 082  ATA
1 Dt wich i il oLl martericy of e tham one pear. T Dl with an osipinal manusty gueaned than of eqeal m oae yoar. Tae dasificiten of debr Gased ino Shom-mm and kageien o B0 Conside

ary warly sedemption feanmes. ¥ Included in brtanon sheer line Other financlal labilies. designaied o tiir valee. & lnchodes funding from UBS Grosp AG mesuned at amorized oos (ofer m Koo Bib) aed
reeasared an i walus [reder m Move 180)
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Notes to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements

Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies

The following table provides an overview of information induded in this Note.

147  a) Material accounting policies 158 4) Share-based and other deferred compensation plans
147 Basis of accounting 158 5) Post-employment benefit plans
147 1} Consoldation 158 6 Income taxes
147 2} Financial mstruments 160 7) Investments in associates
147 a FRecognition 180 B) Property, equipment and software
148 b. Classification, messurement and presantation 180 9) Goodwill
152 ¢ Loan commitments and financal guarantess 1681 10} Provisions and contingent liabilities.
152 d. Irterest income and expense 1681 11} Fareign currency translation
152 e Derecognition
152 f  Fair value of financial instrumants 162 b} Changes in accounting policies, comparability
153 g. Allswances and provisions for expected cradit and other adjustments
losses
156 h. Restructured and modified financial assets i62 €} IFRS Accounting Standards and Interpretations
157 i Offsetting to be adopted in 2024 and later and other
157 i Hedge accounting changes
158 3} Fee and commission income and expenses
Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 146

430/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

a) Material accounting policies

This Mote describes the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial staterments
(the Financial Staterments) of UBS AG and its subsidiaries (LJBES A4G). On 21 March 2024, the Financial Statements were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (the BoD).

Basis of accounting

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the |ASE), and are presented in US dollars.

Disclosures marked as audited in the “Risk, capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet™ section of this report form
an integral part of the Financial Statements. These disclosures relate to requirernents under IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Discloswres, and 1AS 1, Presentation of Financdial Statements, and are not repeated in this section.

The accounting policies described in this Note have been applied consistently in all years presented unless otherwise
stated in Mote 1b.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Preparation of these Finarcial Statements under IFRS Aceounting Stancards requines. managermsnt to apply judgrment ard make estimates snd asurmptions that
alfect reported amounts of assets, liabilies, income and esperses and discosure, of contingent assets and liabilties, and may invobe significant uncertaingy a1 the
tirme: they ase made. Such estimates and sssumptions ane based on the best svailable information. U85S AG regulary resssesses such estimates and assumplions,
which encomguss historical experience, expectations of the futie and other pemtinent factors, o deterrmine their continiing reevance based on current condition,
updating thern as necessary, Changes in thase estimanes and assumptions may have a significant effect on the Financial Statements. Furthermore, actual results
iy differ significantly fram UBS AG's extimustes, which could result in significant loases 1o UBS AG, beyand what was antidpated or provided for.

The fallowing afess contan extimaton uncsmainty of require critical judgment and have & gnificant effect on smounts recognized in the Fnancal
Szaterments:
expected cradit loss measunement (refer to Mem 2g in this Note and to Note 191
fair value mexsuwement (reles 1o item 2 in this Nobe and 1o Note 20);
incame taxes (refer to item & in this Mote and to Note 8);
provisiens and contingent liabilities {refer ta item 10in this Note and 1o Note 17%
post-employirent benefit plans irefer to iterm 5 in this Note and 1o Nate 26
goodwill {refer to isem 9 in this Nobe and to Note 12); and
econgalidation of structu red entities {refer to item 1 in this Note snd to Note 28).

1) Consolidation

The Finandial Statements include the financial staternents of UBS AG and its subsidiaries, presented as a single economic
entity; intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. UBS AG consolidates all entities that it controls,
including structured entities (SEs), which is the case when it has: (i) power over the relevant activities of the entity;
(i) exposure to the entity's variable retunns; and (i) the ability to use its power to affect its own returns.

Consideration i given to all facts and dircumstances to determine whether UBS AG has power over another entity, i.e.,
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of an entity when decisions about those activities need to be made.

Subsidiaries, induding SEs, are consolidated from the date when control is gained and deconsolidated from the date
when control ceases, Control, or the lack thereof, is reassessed if facts and circumstances indicate that there is a change
to one or more elements required to establish that control is present.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount of non-controlling interests, if any,
is measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.
¥ Refer to Mote 28 for more information

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Each individual entity it sssessed for consolidation in line with the sferementioned corsolidation prindpkes. The assessment of control can be comgiles and
reguires the use of significant judgrment, in panicular in determining whesher UBS AG has power over the entity. As the nature and extent of U85S AG's
inwohement is unique for each entty, thene i no uniform comoldation cutcome by entity. Certain entities within a class may be corsolidsted while others
iy Hed. When carying out the corselidstion assessmment, judgment i3 exsrcied corsidering all the relevant facts and droumstances, incuding the natuie
and activities of the investes, & well &5 the substance of voting and simiar rights.

¥ Refer to Note 28 for more information

2) Financial instruments

a. Recognition
LIBS AG generally recognizes finandal instruments when it becomes a party to confractual provisions of an instrument.

However, UBS AG does not recognize assets received in transfers that do not qualify for derecognition by the transferor
iapplying derecognition principles under IFRS Accounting Standards as described in item 2e below). UBS AG applies
settlernent date accounting to all standard purchases and sales of non-derivative finandal instruments.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

UBS AG rnay act in a fidudary capacity, which results in it holding or placing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts,
retirernent benefit plans and other institutions. Unless these iterns meet the definition of an asset and the recognition
criteria are satisfied, they are not recognized on UBS AG's balance sheet and the related income is excluded from the
Financial Statements.

Client cash balances associated with derivatives clearing and execution services are not recognized on the balance sheet
if, through contractual agreement, regulation or practice, UBS AG neither obtains benefits from nor controls such cash
balances.

b. Classification, measurement and presentation

Financial assets

Where the contractual terms of a debt instrurnent result in cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
ISPF) on the principal amount outstanding, the debt instrument is dassified as measured at amortized cost if it is held
within a business model that has an objective of holding financial assets to collect contractual cash flows, or at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if it is held within a business model with the objective of both collacting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL), including those held for trading or
those managed on a fair value basis, except for derivatives designated in certain hedge accounting relationships (refer to
itern 2] in this Note for more information).

Business model assessment and contractual cash flow characteristics
UBS AG determines the nature of a business model by considering the way financial assets are managed to achieve a
particular business objective at the time an asset is recognized.

In assessing whether contractual cash flows are SPPI, UBS AG considers whether the contractual terms of the financial
asset contain a term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows arising over the life of the
instrument. This assessment includes contractual cash flows that may vary due to environmental, social and governance
(ESG) triggers.

Financial iabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amartized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include Debt ssued measured at amortized cost and Funding from UBS
Group AG measured at amortized cost. The latter includes contingent capital instruments issued to UBS Group AG prior
to Novernbser 2023 that contain contractual provisions under which the principal amounts would be written down upon
either a spedified cormmaon equity tier 1 (CET1) ratio breach or a determination by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory
Authority (FINMA) that a viability event has occurred. Such contractual provisions are nat derivatives, as the underlying is
deemed to be a non-financial variable spedific to a party to the contract. lssuances after Movember 2023 include a
contractual equity conversion feature with the same triggers, i.e., a CET1 ratio breach or FINMA, viability event. When
the debt is issued in S dollars, these conversion features are dassified as equity and are accounted for in Share premium
separately from the amortized cost debt host.

When the legal bail-in mechanism for write-down or conversion into equity does not form part of the contractual terms
of issued debt instruments, it does not affect the accounting dassification of these instruments as debt or equity.

If a debt were to be written down or converted into equity in a future period, it would be partially or fully derecognized,
with the difference between its carrying amount and the fair value of any equity issued recognized in the income
statemnent.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss

UBS AG designates certain issued debt instruments as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, on the basis
that such financial instruments include embedded derivatives that are not dosely related and which significantly impact
the cash flows of the instrurnent and / or are managed on a fair value basis (refer to the table below for more information).
Financial instruments including embedded derivatives arise predominantly from the issuance of certain structured debt
instruments,

Measurement and preseniation
After initial recognition, UBS AG dassifies, measures and presents its financial assets and labilities in accordance with
IFRS 9, as described in the table below.
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Classification, measurement and presentation of finandial assets

Finandal assets dassification Significant items inchuded Measurement and presentation
Measured at This dlassification includes: Measured at amotized cost wsing the effective interest
amortized cost — cash and balances at central banks: uhﬂud“mhrwmmqﬂ
_ s cue from hariks: {refer to Rems 2d and 2g in this Note for more information).
= receables from securities financing transactions;
— cash eal i bles & ; rfdlmtmgltermaremgmdhhlm
irstnarrents;
. — intenest income, which & accounted for in socordance
= residential and commercial morbgages; with iteim 2d in this Mote:
- corpatate loans; = ECL and reverzals; and
- ﬁmmr:’ﬁn:dldmg Lembsard loans, and = Horeign exchange (Fx) trarslation gairs and losses,

= loans 1o financal advisors; and
— debt securities held as high-quality liquid sssets
(HOLAL

This dlassification primarily includes debt securities

FVocl bl @ HQLA

‘When a financial aseet at amortized cost is derecognized,
the gain of ks i recognized in the income statement.

For amounts arsing from settlement of camain derivatives,
see below in this table,

Measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
reported in Other comprehensive inoome, net of applicable
income taoss, watil such investments ane derscogrized,

Upan derecognition, any accurmulated balances in Ophar
m:ynmummw

staternent and reponted within Other incame.

Thie following iterre, which are determined on the same

basis 4% for finandal assets meatuned &t amortized cost, are

recognized in the income statement:

— interest income, which & accounted for in sccordance
with iterm 2d in this Mote:

= ECL and reversak; and

— F¥ translation gains and losses.
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Classification, measurement and presentation of finandial assets

Financial assets chassification  Significant items induded

Measurement and presentation

Measured at | Held lor Finardal assets held for trading include:

FVTPL trading — &ll derhvatives with & positive replacement value, except
thiose that are designated and effective hedging
irstruments; and

~ other financial assets acquired principally for the
pupose of seling or rehasineg in the nears term, or
Mammm?wmﬂgmw
irstruments that are managed together and for which
there & evidence of a recent actual pattern of shom-
term pralit taking. Included in this category are debt
irstruments (including those in the lorm of securties,
money market paper, and traded corporate and bank
Ieang) and equity instiuments.

Mandatoriy Finarrdal assets mandatonly measured a2 FUTPL that ane
measured at ot hekd for trading include:
FUTPL- Ot _ urpin structured instruments, certain commercial

Imans, and receivables from securities financing
transsctions that are managed on & fain value besi;

= Ians managed on a fair value bass, incuding those
hedged with credit derivatives;

— certain debt seourities held as HOLA and managed on a
Lair value basis;

— certain investrent fund holdings and assets held to
hedge delivery chligations related to cash-setthed
emphoyes compensation plars;

— brokerage receivables, for which contractual cash Flows
do nat meet the SPPI criterion because the angreoate
halance i sooounted for &5 & single wnit of account,
with interest being caloulated on the individual
COMpOnEents;

- auction rate seounties, Tor which contraciusl cash fows
do nat meet the SPPI criterion because inesest may be
reset &t rates that contain leverage:

— equity instruments; and
— asgets hebd under unit-inked investiment contracs.

Measured at fair vale, with changes recognized in the
income statement.

Derivitive asests (including derivatives that are designated
and efiective hedging instruments) are generally
presenbed &5 Derdathe financial inctruments, scept those
exchange-traded derivatives (ETD) and over-the-counter
{OTC)cleared deshvatives that ane legaly settled on a daily
basis or econamically net ssttled on a daily basis, which
afe presenbed within Casch collaters) receiables on
derivative irsruments,

Changes in Fair value, initial transaction aosts, dividends.
and gaing and locies ansing on deposal of redemplion are
rem;tmdlnﬂﬁwndhh frovm firnancial
instruments measured af fair valie through prafit ar fos,
excepl inberest income on instruments ather than
derivatives (refer to item 2d in this Mote), interest on
derivatives desipnated as hedging irstruments in hedges
of interest rate risk and forward points on certain short-
and long-duration FX, contracts acting &% econamic
hecges, which are repored in Net interest incame,

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that ane

desig rasted and effective hedging irstrumenits ane
presented either in the incorme staterment o Other
comprehentie incame, depending an the type ol hedpe
redationship (reles o item 2j in this Note for more
infafmation],
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Classification, measurement and presentation of finandial liabilities

Financial liabilities dassification  Significant items included

Measurement and presentation

Measured at amortized cost This dassification includes:

~ demand and time deposits;

= retail savings / deposits;

- wweep deposits;

— payables from securities financing transactions;

= ror-struciued delbd ssued,

— subordinated dabi;

- commerdal paper and centificates of depait;

- ohligations agairst funding from UBS Group AG; and

= cash collateral payables on derivative nstruments.
Held for trading Financial lishilities hebd for trading include:

= all derivatives with & negative replacement value
{including certain loan commments), sxoepd thise
that ane nated and eflective hedging
insiruments; and

- obligations 1o deliver financial instrumenits, such as

debt and equity instruments, that LIBS AG has sold to
third parties but does mot cwn (short posttions).

Financial liabilites designated at FVTPL include:

— sued hybeid debit instruments, primarily equity-
linked, creda-linked and rates-linked bonds or notes;

— isued debit instruments managed on & faif value
b

Designated at
FWYTPL

— obligations agairat funding from UBS Group AG
managed on & fair value besi;

— certain payables from securities financing
Lransactions,

— amounts due under unit-inked imsestment contracts,
the cash flows of which are linked 1o financal assets
meatuned &t FYTPL and eliminate an accounting
mismateh; and

= brokerape payables, which arise in conjunction with
brakerape receivables and ane messured at FYTPL to
achieve measurement consistency.

Measured at amortized oot using the effective interest
et

When a linancial kability at amortized oodt is
derecognized, the gain o ko & recognized in the income
Statement,

Inberest income generated from client deposits
derecogrized puriiant to certain depost seeep programs
i presanted within Net interest income from Fnancial
nstruments meauned af far valie through prafn or los
and ather,

Measurement and presentation of financial Eabilties
dassified at PVTPL follow the same prindples as for
Tinancial asets dassified at FUTPL, except that the amount
of chanpe in the fair value of a financial Kebility

ristes] a2 FUTPL that is atiributable 1o i
ﬁl?m‘snmaadn ritupruemdlnmurw

iy directly within Retained samings

and is never redassified to the indome stabement,

Derivative liabilities (rcluding dervatives that ae
desin rasted and effective hedging irstrumenits) are
generally presented as Derivative financial

excepl those excha and OTC-cleased
derivatives that are legaly settled on a daily basis o
economicaly ret settied on a daly basis, which are
presenbed within Cash callatersl payables on daratie
EngrumenE.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

. Loan commitments and financial guarantees

Loan commitments are arrangements to provide credit under defined terms and conditions. Irmevocable |oan
commitments are classified as: (i) derivative loan commitments measured at fair value through profit or loss; (i} loan
commitrments designated at fair value through profit or loss; or (i) loan commitments not measured at fair value.
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require UBS AG to make spedified payments to reimburse the holder for
an incurred boss because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a specified
debt instrument,

d. Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in the income statement based on the effective interest method. When
calculating the effective interest rate (the EIR) for financial instruments (other than credit-impaired finandal instruments),
LBS AG estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the instrument, but not expected credit losses,
with the EIR applied to the gross camying amount of the financial asset or the amortized cost of a finandal lability.
However, when a financial asset becomes oredit impaired after initial recognition, interest income is determined by
applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the instrument, which represents the gross cammying amount adjusted for any
credit loss allowance.

Upfront fees, including fees on loan commitments not measured at fair value where a loan is expected to be issued, and
direct costs are included within the initial measurernent of a financial instrurnent measured at amortized cost or FYOCI
and recognized over the expected life of the instrument as part of its EIR.

Fees related to loan commitments where no loan is expected to be issued, as well as loan syndication fees where UBS AG
does not retain a portion of the syndicated loan or where UBS AG does retain a portion of the syndicated loan at the
same effective yield for comparable risk as other participants, are induded in Met fee and commission income and either
recognized over the life of the commitment or when syndication oocurs.

¥ Refer to item 3 in this Note for more information

Interest income on finandal assets, excluding derivatives, is included in interest income when positive and in interest
expense when negative. Similarly, interest expense on financial liabilities, excluding derivatives, is induded in interest
expense, except when interest rates are negative, in which case it is included in interest income.

¥ Refer to item 2b in this Note and Note 3 for more information

e, Derecognition

Financial assets

LIBS AG d izes a transferred finandal asset, or a portion of a financial asset, if the purchaser has obtained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or a significant part of the risks and rewards combined with a practical
ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Where finandial assets have been pledged as collateral or in similar arrangements, they are considered to have been
transferred if the counterparty has received the contractual rights to the cash flows of the pledged assets, as may be
evidenced by, for example, the counterparty's right to sell or repledge the assets. In transfers where control over the
financial asset is retained, UBS AG continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involverent,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset following the transfer.
¥ Refer to Mote 22 for more information

Financial Nabilities

UBS AG derecognizes a financial liability when it is extinguished, i.e., when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, canceled or expires. When an existing financial liability is exchanged for a new one from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an esisting liability are substantially modified, the original liability is
derecognized and a new liability recognized with any difference in the respective camying amounts recorded in the
income statement.

Certain OTC derivative contracts and most exchange-traded futures and option contracts deared through central dearing
counterparties and exchanges are considered to be settled on a daily basis, as the payment or receipt of a variation
margin on a daily basis represents a legal or economic settlerment, which results in derecognition of the associated
derivatives.

¥ Refer to Mote 21 for more information
f. Fair value of finandal instruments
UBS AG accounts for a significant portion of its assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is the price on the
measurement date that would be received for the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal market, or in the most advantageous market in the absence of a principal
market.

¥ Refer tao Mote 20 for more information
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The use of valuation techniques, modeling assumptions and estimates of uncbosnable market inputs in the fair valuation of financial instruments requires
sgnificant judgment and could affect the amount of gain or loss recorded for @ particulss position. Valuation techniques that rely mare heavily on
unobsenable inputs and sophisticated madels inhesently require & higher level of judgment and may require adjustment 1o reflect factors thet market
panticipants would consides in estimating fa value, such a3 dose-cut costs, which are presented in Nobe 200,
LIES A5 governance framework over i valie measurement i deseribed in Mote 20b, and UBS AG provides a senstivity analyiis of the estimated effects
arising from changing significant unokservable inputs in Level 3 financial instruments to reasonably possible altemative ssumptions in Nobe 201
3 Refer to Note 20 for more information

g. Allowances and provisions for expected credit losses

ECL are recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost, finandial assets measured at PVOC, fee and lease
receivables, financial guarantees, and loan cormmitments not measured at fair value. ECL are also recognized on the
undrawn portion of committed unconditionally revocable credit lines, which incude UBS AG's credit card limits and
master credit fadilities, as UBS AG is exposed to credit risk because the borrower has the ability to draw down funds
before LBS AG can take credit risk mitigation actions.

Recognition of expected credit losses

ECL are recognized on the following basis.

- Stage 1 instruments: Maximum 12-month ECL are recognized from initial recognition, reflecting the portion of lifetime
ECL that would result if a default occurs in the 12 months after the reporting date, weighted by the risk of a default
QCCUTING.

- Stage 2 instrurnents: Lifetime ECL are recognized if a significant increase in credit risk (an SICR) is observed subsequent
to the instrument's initial recognition, reflecting lifetime cash shortfalls that would result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument, weighted by the risk of a default cccuring. When an SICR is
no longer observed, the instrument will move back to stage 1.

- Stage 3 instrumenits: Lifetime ECL are always recognized for credit-impaired financial instruments, as determined by
the occurrence of one or more loss events, by estimating expected cash flows based on a chosen recovery strategy.
Creditdmpaired exposures may indude positions for which no allowance has been recognized, for example because
they are expected to be fully recoverable through collateral held.

= Changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition are also recognized for assets that are purchased credit impaired (PCI).
PCI financial instruments indude those that are purchased at a deep discount or newly originated with a defaulted
counterparty; they remain a separate category until derecognition.

All or part of a financial asset is written off if it is deermed uncollectible or forgiven. Write-offs reduce the principal amount

of a clair and are charged against related allowances for credit losses. Recoveries, in part or in full, of amounts previously

written off are generally credited to Credit loss expense / (release).

ECL are recognized in the income staternent in Credlit loss expense [ (releasa). A mrrespmcing ECL allowance is reported
as a decrease in the carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet. For financial
assets that are measured at FVOC, the carrying amount is not reduced, but an accumulated amount is recognized in
COther comprehensive income, For off-balance sheet financial instruments and other credit lines, provisions for ECL are
presented in Provisions.

Default and credit impaimment

LBS AG applies a single definition of default for credit risk management purposes, regulatory reporting and ECL, with a
counterparty dassified as defaulted based on quantitative and qualitative criteria.
¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of this repart for more information

Measurement of expacted cradit losses

IFRS 9 ECL reflect an unbiased, probability-weighted estimate based on loss expectations resulting from default events.
The method used to calculate ECL applies the following principal factors: probability of default (PD), loss given default
ILGD) and exposure at default (EAD). Parameters are generally determined on an individual financial asset level. Based
on the materiality of the portfolio, for credit card exposures and personal account overdrafts in Switzerland, a portfolio
approach is applied that derives an average PD and LGD for the entire portfolio. PDs and LGDs used in the ECL calculation
are point-in-time(PT)-based for key ios and consider both current conditions and expected cydical changes. For
material portfolios, PDs and LGDs are determined for different scenarios, whereas EAD projections are treated as scenario
independent.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

For the purpose of determining the ECL-relevant parameters, UBS AG leverages its Basel ll advanced internal ratings-
based (4-IRB) models that are also used in determining expected loss (EL) and risk-weighted assets under the Basel I
framewark and Fillar 2 stress loss models. Adjustments have been made to these models and IFRS 9-related models have
been developed that consider the complexity, structure and risk profile of relevant portfolios and take account of the fact
that PDs and LGDs used in the ECL caloulation are PIT-based, as opposed to the comesponding Basel Il through-the
(TTC) pararneters. All models that are redevant for measuring expected credit losses are subject to UBS AG's model
validation and oversight processes.

Frobability of default: PD represents the probability of a default over a specified tirme period. A 12-month PD represents
the probability of default determined for the next 12 months and a lifetime PD represents the probability of default over
the remaining lifetime of the instrument. PIT PDs are derived from TTC PDs and scenario forecasts. The modeling is region,
industry and client segment specific and considers both macroeconomic scenario dependencies and dient-idiosyneratic
information.

Expasure af default: EAD represents an estimate of the exposure to credit risk at the time of a potential default occurring,
considering expected repayments, interest payments and accruals, discounted at the EIR. Future drawdowns on facilities
are considered through a credit corversion factor (a CCF) that is reflective of historical drawdown and default patterns
and the characteristics of the respective portfolics.

Loss given default LGD represents an estimate of the loss at the time of a potential default occurring, taking into account
expected future cash flows from collateral and other credit enhancernents, or expected payouts from bankruptoy
proceedings for unsecured claims and, where applicable, time to realization of collateral and the senicrity of daims. LGD is
commanly expressed as a percentage of EAD.

Estimation of expected credit losses

Number of scenarios and estimation of scenario weights
Determination of probability-weighted ECL requires evaluating a range of diverse and relevant future economic conditions,
espedially with a view to modeling the non-inear effect of assurnptions about macroeconomic factors on the estimate,

To accommodate this requirement, UBS AG uses different economic scenarios in the ECL caloulation. Each scenario is
represented by a specific scenario narrative, which is relevant considering the exposure of key portfolios to economic
risks, and for which a set of consistent macroeconomic variables is determined. The estimation of the appropriate weights
for these scenarios is predominantly judgment-based. The assessment is based on a holistic review of the prevailing
economic or political conditions, which may exhibit different levels of uncertainty. It takes into account the impact of
changes in the nature and severity of the underlying scenario narratives and the projected economic variables.

The determined weights constitute the probabilities that the respective set of macroeconomic conditions will ocour and
not that the chosen particular narratives with the related macroeconomic variables will materialize.

Macroecanamic and other factors

The range of macroeconomic, market and other factors that i modeled as part of the scenario determination is wide,
and historical information is used to support the identification of the key factors. As the forecast horizon increases, the
availability of information decreases, requiring an increase in judgment. For cycle-sensitive PD and LGD determination
purposes, UBS AG projects the relevant economic factors for a period of three years before reverting, over a specified
pericd, to cycle-neutral PD and LGD for longer-tern projections.

Factors relevant for ECL calculation vary by type of exposure. Regional and client-segment characteristics al'en?eneﬁlly
taken into account, with specific focus on Switzerland and the US, considering UBS AG's key ECL-relevant portfolios.

For UBS AG, the following forwarddooking macroeconomic variables represent the most relevant factors for ECL

caloulation:

- gross domestic product (GDP) growth rates, given their significant effect on borrowers’ performance;

= wunemployment rates, given their significant effect on private clients’ ability to meet contractual obligations;

- house price indices, given their significant effect on mortgage collateral valuations;

— interest rates, given their significant effect on counterparties’ abilities to senice debt;

- consumer price indices, given their overall relevance for companies’ performance, private dients’ purchasing power
and economic stability; and

= equity indices, given that they are an important factor in UBS AG's corporate rating tools.

Scenario eration, review process and govemance
A& team of economists, which i part of Group Risk Control, develops the forward-looking macrceconomic assumptions
with involvement from a broad range of experts.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

The scenarios, their weights and the key macroeconomic and other factors are subject to a critical assessment by the
IFRS 9 Scenario Sounding Sessions and ECL Management Forum, which include senior managerent from Group Risk
and Group Finance. Important aspects for the review include whether there may be particular credit risk concerns that
may not be capable of being addressed systernatically and require post-model adjustrents for stage allocation and ECL
allowance.

The Group Model Governance Committee (the GMGC), as the highest authority under UBS AG's model govemnance
framewaork, ratifies the decisions taken by the ECL Management Forum.
¥ Refer to Note 19 for more information

ECL measuremant pemnod

The period for which lifetime ECL are determined is based on the maximum contractual pericd that UBS AG is exposed
to credit risk, taking into account contractual extension, termination and prepayment options. For irmevocable loan
commitrents and financial guarantee contracts, the measurement pericd represents the maxirmum contractual pericd
for which UBS AG has an obligation to extend credit.

Additionally, some financial instruments include both an on-demand loan and a revocable undrawn commitrment, where
the contractual cancellation right does not limit UBS AG's exposure to credit risk to the contractual notice period, as the
client has the ability to draw down funds before UBS AG can take risk-mitigating actions. In such cases UBS AG is required
to estimate the period over which it is exposed to credit risk. This applies to UBS AG's credit card limits, which do not
have a defined contractual maturity date, are callable on dernand and where the drawn and undrawn components are
managed as one exposure. The exposure arising from UBS AG's credit card limits is not significant and is managed at a
portfolio level, with credit actions triggered when balances are past due. An ECL measurement period of seven years is
applied for credit card limits, capped at 12 months for stage 1 balances, as a proxy for the period that UBS AG is exposed
to credit risk.

Custornary master credit agreements in the Swiss corporate market also include on-demand loans and revocable undrawn
commitrments. For smaller commercial facilities, a risk-based monitoring (RbM) approach is in place that highlights
negative trends as risk events, at an individual facility level, based on a combination of continuously updated risk
indicators. The risk events trigger additional credit reviews by a risk officer, enabling informed credit decisions to be
taken. Larger corporate facilities are not subject to Rb, but are reviewed at least annually through a formal credit review.
LIBS AG has assessed these credit risk management practices and considers both the RbM approach and formal credit
reviews as substantive credit reviews resulting in a re-origination of the given facility, Following this, a 12-month
measurement period from the reporting date is used for both types of facilities as an appropriate proxy of the period
over which UBS AG is exposed to credit risk, with 12 months also used as a look-back period for assessing an SICR,
abways from the respective reporting date.

Significant incraase in credit nisk

Finandial instruments subject to ECL are monitored on an ongoing basis. To determine whether the recognition of a
maxirmum 12-month ECL continues to be appropriate, an assessment is made as to whether an SICR has ocourred
since initial recognition of the financial instrument, applying both quantitative and qualitative factors.

Prirnarily, UBS AG assesses changes in an instrument's risk of default on a quantitative basis by comparing the annualized
forward-looking and scenaric-weighted lifetime PD of an instrument determined at two different dates:

- at the reporting date; and

- at inception of the instrument.

If, based on LUBS AG's guantitative modeling, an increase excesds a set threshold, an SICR is deemed to have occurred
and the instrument is transferred 1o stage 2 with lifetime ECL recognized.

The threshold applied varies depending on the original credit quality of the borrower, with a higher SICR threshold set
for those instruments with a low PD at inception. The SICR assessment based on PD changes is made at an individual
financial asset level. A high-level overvew of the SICR trigger, which is a multiple of the annualized remaining lifetime
PIT PD expressed in rating downgrades, is provided in the "SICR thresholds™ table below. The actual SICR thresholds
applied are defined on a more granular level by interpolating between the values shown in the table.

SIOR thresholds

mm:tmwm ww:
-3 3
&8 2
013 1

¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of this repart for more details about UBS AG"s internal reting system
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Irrespective of the SICR assessrent based on default probabilities, credit risk is generally deemed to have significantly
increased for an instrument if contractual payments are more than 30 days past due. For certain less material portfolics,
specifically the Swiss credit card portfolio, the 30-day past due criterion is used as the primary indicator of an SICR. Where
instruments are transferred to stage 2 due to the 30-day past due criterion, a minimum period of six months is applied
before a transfer back to stage 1 can be triggered, where applicable. For instruments in Personal & Corporate Banking
and Global Wealth Management Region Switzerand that are between 90 and 180 days past due but have not been
reclassified to stage 3, a one-year period is applied before a transfer back to stage 1 can be triggered.

Additionally, based on individual counterparty-specific indicators, external market indicators of credit risk or general
economic conditions, counterparties may be moved to a watch list, which is used as a secondary qualitative indicator for
an SICR. Exception maiiﬁement is further applied, allowing for individual and collective adjustments on exposures
sharing the same credit risk characteristics to take account of spedific situations that are not otherwise fully reflected.

In general, the owverall SICR determination process does not apply to Lombard loans, securities finanding transactions and
certain other asset-based lending transactions, because of the risk management practices adopted, induding daily
monitoring processes with strict margining. If margin calls are not satisfied, a position & dosed out and dassified as a
stage 3 position. In exceptional cases, an individual adjustrnent and a transfer into stage 2 may be made to take account
of specific facts.

Credit risk officers are responsible for the identification of an SICR, which for accounting purposes is in some respects
different from intemal credit risk management processes. This difference mainly arises because ECL accounting
requirements are instrument-spedific, such that a borrower can have multiple e:r.ﬁﬁm allocated to different stages, and
maturing loans in stage 2 will migrate to stage 1 upon renewal irespective of the actual credit risk at that time. Under a
risk-based approach, a haolistic ml.nterpartg credit assessment and the absolute level of risk at any given date will
determine what risk-rnitigating actions may be warranted.

¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contrel” section of this repoart for more information

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The caleulstion of ECL requires management to.apply significant judgment and ke estimates and assumptions that can result in significant changes 1o the
tirring and the amount of ECL recognized.

Determination of & Sgnificant increase i creoit risk
IFRS 9 does not include & definition of what constitutes an SICR, with UBS AG's asesment corsidering qualative and quantitative criteria. An FRS 9 ECL
Managerrent Forum has been established 1o review and challenge the SICR results.

Sosnarios, SCenaris waights and macroeconomic variies

ECL reflect an wnbimsed and probability-weighted amount, which UBS AG determines by evalusting a range of posshble cutcomes. Management selects
fonward-ooking scenarios that indude relevant macroeconomic varisbles and management's assumptions around future emnomic conditions. IFRS @
Seenario Sounding Sessicns, in sddition to the IFRS 9 ECL Managerment Farum, are in pleoe to derive, revisw and challenge the scenario selection and weights,
and to determnine whether any additional post-modsd adjustrents are required that may significantly affect ECL.

ECL measuramant pasod

Lifetime ECL are gersrally determined based upon the contractissl maturity of the transaction, which significantly sffects ECL. For credit card limits and Swiss
callshle master credit facilities, judgment is required, as UBS AG must detemine the period over which it i expossd to cedit risk. & seven-yesr period i
applied for credit card limits, capped at 12 months for stage 1 position, and a 12-month period appliied for master credit faclities.

Modaling and posl-madsl sdiustmants

& number of comples modek have besn developed or modified to caleulste ECL, with additional pest-model adjustreents required that may sigrificantly
affect ECL. The models are govemed by LUBS AG"s model validation controls and approved by the GRGC. The post-model adjustments are approved by the
ECL Marsgement Forum and endorssd by the GMGC.

& seritivity analysis covering key macroscanomic variables, scenarnic weights and SICR trigger points on ECL messurement i provided in Nose 190,
¥ Refer to Mote 19 for more information

h. Restructured and modified financial assets
When payment default is expected, or where default has already occurred, UBS AG may grant concessions to borrowers
in financial difficulties that it would not consider in the normal course of its business, such as preferential interest rates,
extension of maturity, modifying the schedule of repayments, debt / equity swap, subordination, etc.

¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of this repart for more information

Modifications result in an alteration of future contractual cash flows and can ooour within UBS AG's nommal risk tolerance
or as part of a credit restructuring where a counterparty is in financial difficulties. The restructuring or modification of a
financial asset could lead to a substantial change in the terms and conditions, resulting in the original finandial asset
being derecognized and a new financial asset being recognized. Where the modification does not result in a
derecognition, any difference between the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the original EIR and the existing
gross carrying amount of the given financial asset is recognized in the income statement as a modification gain or loss.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

i, Offsetting

LBS AG presents financial assets and liabilities on its balance sheet net if (i) it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and (i) it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the lability
simultaneously. Metted positions indude, for example, certain derivatives and repurchase and reverse repurchase
transactions with various counterparties, exchanges and clearing houses.

In assessing whether UBS AG intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously, emphasis is placed on the effectiveness of operational settlernent mechanics in eliminating substantially
all credit and liquidity exposure between the counterparties. This condition Eredudes offsetting on the balance sheet for
substantial amounts of UBS AG's financial assets and liabilities, even though they may be subject to enforceable netting
arrangerments. Repurchase arrangements and securities financing transactions are presented net only to the extent that
the settlement mechanism eliminates, or results in insignificant, credit and liquidity risk, and processes the receivables
and payables in a single settlement process or cyde.
¥ Refer to Mote 21 for more information

j. Hedge accounting

LBS AG applies hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 where the criteria for documentation and hedge effectiveness
are met. If a hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued.
Voluntary discontinuation of hedge accounting is not permitted under IFRS 9.

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk related to debt instruments and loan assets

The fair value change of the hedged item attributable to a hedged risk is reflected as an adjustrment to the carrying
amount of the hedged itern and recognized in the income statemnent along with the change in the fair value of the
hedging instrument.

Fair value hedges of FX risk related to debt instruments

The fair value change of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is reflected in the measurement of the hedged
itern and recognized in the income statement along with the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument. The
foreign currency basis spread of cross-currency swaps designated as hedging derivatives is excluded from the designation
and accounted for as a cost of hedging with amounts deferred in Other comprehensive income within Equity. These
armounts are released to the income statement over the term of the hedged item.

Discontinuation of fair value hedges

Discontinuations for reasons other than derecognition of the hedged itern result in an adjustment to the carrying amount,
which is amortized to the income statement over the remaining life of the hedged item using the effective interest
method. I the hedged item is derecognized, the unamortized fair value adjustment or deferred cost of hedaging amount
is recognized immediately in the income statement as part of any derecognition gain or loss.

Cash flow hedpges of forecast transactions

Fair value gains or losses associated with the effective portion of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges for cash flow
repricing risk are recognized initially in Other comprehensive income within Equity and reclassified to Inferest income
from financial instruments measured at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income or Interest
expense from financial instruments measured at amortized cost in the peniods when the hedged forecast cash flows
affect profit or loss, induding discontinued hedges for which forecast cash flows are expected to occur. If the forecast
transactions are no longer expected to occour, the deferred gains or losses are immediately redassified to the income
staterment.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Gains or losses on the hedﬁing instrurnent relating to the effective portion of a hedge are recognized directly in Other
comprehensive income within Equity, while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective and / or undesignated portion
ifor example, the interest element of a fonward contract) are recognized in the income statement. Upon disposal or partial
disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recognized in Equity associated with
the entity is reclassified to Other income.

interest Rate Benchmark Reform

LBS AG continued hedge accounting during the period of uncertainty before existing interest rate benchmarks were
replaced with alterative risk-free interest rates. During this period, UBS AG assumed that the current benchmark rates
wiould continue to exist, such that forecast transactions were considered highly probable and hedge relationships remain,
with little or no consequential impact on the financial staternents. Upon replacement of existing interest rate benchmarks
by alternative risk-free interest rates, UBS AG applied the requirements of Amendments to IFRS 9, [AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16 (Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2), where applicable.

¥ Refer ta Mate 25 for more information
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

3) Fee and commission income and expanses

LIBS AG earns fee income from the diverse range of services it provides to its dients. Fee income can be divided into two
broad categories: fees eamed from services that are ided over a certain period of time, such as management of
clients’ assets, custody services and certain advisory services; and fees eamed from PIT services, such as undenwriting fees,
deal-contingent merger and acquisitions fees, and brokerage fees (e.q., securities and derivatives execution and dearing).
LBS AG recognizes fees eamed from PIT services when it has fully provided the service 1o the dient. Where the contract
requires services to be provided over time, income is recognized on a systematic basis over the life of the agreement.

Consideration received is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations in a contract. Owing to the
nature of UBS AG's business, contracts that include multiple performance obligations are typically those that are
considered to include a series of similar performance obligations fulfilled over time with the same pattern of transfer to
the dient, e.q., managemeant of client assets and custodial services. As a consequence, UBS AG is not required to apply
significant judgment in allocating the consideration received across the various performance obligations.

PIT services are generally for a fixed price or dependent on deal size, e.g., a fixed number of basis points of trade size,
where the amount of revenue is known when the performance obligation is met. Fixed-over-time fees are recognized on
a straight-ine basis over the performance period. Custodial and asset management fees can be variable through reference
to the size of the customer portfolio. However, they are generally billed on a monthly or quarterly basis once the
customer’s portfolio size is known or known with near certainty and therefore also recognized ratably over the
performance period. UBS AG does not recognize performance fees related to management of clients’ assets or fees
related to contingendies beyond UBS AG's control until such uncertainties are resolved.

LIBS AG's fees are generally earned from short-term contracts. As a result, UBS AG's contracts do not include a finanding
component or result in the recognition of significant receivables or prepayment assets. Furthermore, due to the short-
term nature of such contracts, UBS AG has not capitalized any material costs to obtain or fulfill a contract or generated
any significant contract assets or liabilities.
LBS AG presents expenses primarily in line with their nature in the income staterment, differentiating between expenses
that are directly attributable to the satisfaction of specific performance obligations associated with the generation of
revenues, which are generally presented within Total revenues as Fee and commission expense, and those that are related
to personnel, general and administrative expenses, or depreciation and amortization which are presented within
Operating expenses. For derivatives execution and clearing services (where UBS AG acts as an agent), UBS AG only records
its specific fees in the income statement, with fees payable to other parties not recognized as an expense but instead
directly offset against the assodated income collected I;:'om the given dient.

¥ Refer to Note 4 for more information, including the diseggregation of revenues

4) Share-based and other deferred compensation plans

LBS AG recognizes expenses for defermed compensation awards over the period that the employes is required to provide
service to become entitled to the award. Where the service period is shortened, for example in the case of employees
affected by restructuring programs or mutually agreed termination provisions, recognition of such expense is accelerated
to the termination date. Where no future service is required, such as for employees who are eligible for retirerent or
who have met certain age and length-of-service criteria, the services are presumed to have been received and
compensation expense is recognized over the performance year or, in the case of off-cycle awards, immediately on the
grant date.

Share-hased compensation plans

LIBS Group AG is the grantor of and maintains the obligation to settle share-based compensation plans that are awarded
to employees of UBS AG. As a consequence, UBS AG classifies the awards of UBS Group AG shares as equity-settled
share-based payment transactions. UBS AG recognizes the fair value of awards granted to its employees by reference to
the fair value of UBS Group AG's equity instruments on the date of grant, taking into account the terms and conditions
inherent in the award, including, where relevant, dividend rights, transfer restrictions in effect beyond the vesting date,
market conditions, and non-vesting conditions.

For equity-settled awards, fair value is not remeasured unless the terms of the award are modified such that there is an
incresnental increase in value. Expenses are recognized, on a per-tranche basis, over the service period based on an
estimate of the number of instruments expected to vest and are adjusted to reflect the actual outcomes of service or
performance conditions.

For equity-settled awards, forfeiture events resulting from a breach of a non-vesting condition (i.e., one that does not
relate to a service or performance condition) do not result in any adjustment to the share-based compensation expense.

For cash-settled share-based awards, fair value is remeasured at each reporting date, so that the cumulative expense
recognized equals the cash distributed.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Other deferred compensation plans
Compensation expense for other deferred compensation plans is recognized on a per-tranche or straight-line basis,
depending on the nature of the plan. The amount recognized is measured based on the present value of the amount
expected to be paid under the plan and is rereasured at each reporting date, so that the cumulative expense recognized
equals the cash or the fair value of respective financial instruments distributed.

¥ Refer to Mote 27 for more information

5) Post-employment benefit plans

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans specify an amount of benefit that an employes will receive, which usually depends on one or more
factors, such as age, years of service and compensation. The defined benefit liability recognized in the balance sheet is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation, measured using the projected unit credit method, less the fair value
of the plan’s assets at the balance sheet date, with changes resulting from remeasuremnents recorded immediately in
Other comprehensive income. If the fair value of the plan's assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, the recognition of the resulting net asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. Calculation of the net defined benefit
obligation or asset takes into account the specific features of each plan, including risk sharing between employes and
employer, and is calculated periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The et defined benefit Rability or asset ot the balance sheet date and the related personne| expense depend on the sxpected future benefits 1o be provided,
determined wing & numbsr of economic and demographic assumptions. & range of ssumptions could be applied, and diffesent ssumptions could
dgnificanitly alter the defined benefit Rabilty o ssset and persion expense recognized. The most significant assumptions include life expectancy, disoount
rate, expected salary increases, pension inoesses and interest credits on retiement savings account balances. Sensitivity analysis for ressonable possible
movernents in sach sagnificant assumption for LBS AG™s post-employment obligations is provided in Note 26.

¥ Refer to Note 26 for more information

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan pays fixed contributions into a separate entity from which post-employment and other
benefits are paid. UBS AG has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts if the plan does not hold
sufficient assets to pay employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
Compensation expense is recognized when the employees have rendered services in exchange for contributions. This is
generally in the year of contribution. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in future payments is available.

&) Income taxes

UBS AG is subject to the income tax laws of Switzerland and those of the non-Swiss jurisdictions in which UBS AG has
business operations.

UBS AG's provision for income taxes is composed of current and deferred taxes, Current income taxes represent taxes to
be paid or refunded for the current pericd or previous periods.

Deferred tax assets (DTAs) and deferred tax liabilities (DTLs) are recognized for temporary differences betwesn the
carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in deductible or taxable amounts, respectively in
future periods. DTAs may also arise from other sources, including unused tax losses and unused tax credits. DTAs and
DTLs are measured using the applicable tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and that will be in effect when such differences are expected to reverse.

DTAs are recognized only to the extent it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which these
differences can be used. When an entity or tax group has a history of recent losses, DTAs are only ized to the
extent that there are sufficient taxable ternporary differences or there is convinging other evidence that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred and current tax assets and liabilities are offset when: (i) they arise in the same tax reporting group; (i) they relate
to the sarne tax authority; (i) the legal right to offset exists; and (iv) with respect to current taxes they are intended to
be settled net or realized simultanecusly.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as income tax benefit or expense in the income statement, except for current
and deferred taxes recognized in relation to: (i) the acquisition of a subsidiary (for which such amounts would affect the
amount of goodwill arising from the acquisition); (i} unrealized gains or losses on financial instruments that are classified
at PVOCI; (i) changes in fair value of derivative instrurnents designated as cash flow hedges; {iv) remeasurements of
defined benefit plans; or (v certain foreign currency translations of foreign operations. Amounts relating to points (i)
through (v) above are recognized in Other comprehensive income within Equity.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

LBS AG reflects the potential effect of uncertain tax positions for which acceptance by the relevant tax authority is not
considered probable by adjusting current or deferred taxes, as applicable, using either the most likely amount or expected
value methods, depending on which method is deemed a better predictor of the basis on which, and extent to which,
the uncertainty will be resobved.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Tax lawes are complex, and judgment and interpretations sbout the application of such laws are requined when accounting for income taves, UBS AG corsidess
the performance of its businesses and the socuracy of historical forecasts and other factor when evaluating the neooverability of its DTAS, including the
remaining tae lom carry-forvard period, and it sseument of expected future toable profit in the borecast period used lor recognising DTAL. Etimating
future peofitability and business plan forecasts is inherently subjective and is particularly senditive 1o future economic, market and other conditions.

Forecasts are reviswed annually, but adjustments may be made st other times, i requised. If recent losses have besn incurred, comvingng evidence i
required io prove there i aulficient fuiune profitabdity given that the value of LBS 4G DTAS may be affected, with efects primarily recognized through the
ireccsroe Staberment.

In addition, judgment i requined 1o aosess the expected value of uncertain tax positions and the relsted probabilities, including inberpretation of tax lawa,
the resolution of ary income tax-related appeals and litigation.

¥ Refer to Mote B for more informaton

7) Investments in associates

Interests in entities where UBS AG has significant influence over the financial and operating policies of these entities but
does not have control are classified as investments in assodates and accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. Typically, UBS AG has significant influence when it holds, or has the ability to hold, between 20% and 50%
of an entity’s woting rights. Investments in assodates are initially recognized at cost, and the carmying amount is increased
or decreased after the date of acquisition to recognize UBS AG's share of the investee's comprehensive income and any
impairment losses. The net investrment in an associate is impaired if there is objective evidence of a loss event and the
carrying amount of the investment in the associate excesds its recoverable arount.
* Refer to Note 28 for more information

8) Property, equipment and software

Froperty, equipment and software is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, Software
developrment costs are capitalized only when the costs can be measured reliably and it is probable that future economic
benefits will arise. Depreciation of property, equipment and software begins when they are available for use and is
calculated on a straight-line basis over an asset's estimated useful life.

Property, equipment and software are generally tested for impairment at the appropriate cash-generating unit level,
alongside goodwill and intangible assets as described in item 2 in this Mote. An impairment charge is recognized for such
assets if the recoverable amount is below its carrying amount. The recoverable amounts of such assets, other than
property that has a market price, are generally determined using a replacement cost approach that reflects the amount
that would be currently required by a market participant to replace the service capacity of the asset. If such assets are no
longer used, they are tested individually for impairmnent.

¥ Refer ta Mote 11 for more information

9) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired that arises in a business combination. Goodwill is not amortized but is assessed for impairment at the end
of each reporting period, or when indicators of impairment exist, UBS AG tests goodwill for impairment annually, mespective
of whether there is any indication of impairment.

An impairment charge is recognized in the income staternent if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of a
cash-generating-unit.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

UBs AG's methodology for goadwill impainment testing i besed on & mosdel that i most sendtive to the following key asumptiors: () forecasts af earnings
auailable to shareholders (typically estimated on a discrete basis for years ane to thiee but could extend up 1o Tive years, & parmitted under IFRS Accounting
Staredard, in order to reflect facts and crcumstances spedfic to a cash-generating wnit); (i) changes in the discount rates; and (i) changes in the kong-term
grewth rate.

Earnings svailable to sharsholders are estimated on the basis of forecast results, which are pan of the basiness plan approved by the BaD. The discount
rates and growth rates ane determined using external information, and alo cordidering inputs from both internal and exsernal analysts and the view of
mansgernent.

The key assumptions used to desermine the recoverable amounts of each cash-generating unit are tested for sensithity by applying ressonably possible
changes te those asumpticns.

¥ Refer to Motes 2 and 12 for more information
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

10) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are liahilities of uncertain timing or amount, and are generally recognized in accordance with 1AS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, when: (i) UBS AG has a present obligation as a result of a past event; (i) it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and (jii) a refiable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made.

The majority of UBS AG's provisions relate to litigation, regulatory and similar matters, restructuring, and employee
benefits. Restructuring provisions are generally recognized as a consequence of management agreeing to materially
change the scope of the business or the manner in which it is conducted, including changes in management structures.
Provisions for employee benefits relate mainly to senice anniversaries and sabbatical leave, and are recognized in
accordance with measurement princples set out in item 4 in this Mote. In addition, UBS AG presents expected credit loss
allu;-.lalnm within Prowisions if they relate to a loan commitrment, financial guarantee contract or a revolving revocable
credit line,

145 37 provisions are rmeasured considering the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date.

When conditions required to recognize a provision are not met, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the likelihood of
an outflow of resources is remote. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed for possible obligations that arise from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed cnly by uncertain future events not wholly within the control of UBS AG.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Recognition of provisions often involves significant judgment in assessing the existence of an obligation that results from past events and in estimating the
prabshility, the timing and the amount of any outfiows of resources. This is particulary the case for igation, reguistory and smilar matters, which, due o
their nature, ane subject to mary uncertainties, making their outcome difficult to predict.

The amounit of any provision recognized & seritive to the asumgtions used, and there could be & wide range of possible outcomes for any particular
matter,
Management regulsly reviews all the available inlesmation regarding such matters, induding legal advice, to assess whethes the recognition criteria for
provisions have been satisfied and to determine the timing and the amount of any potentisl cutfiows.

¥ Refer to Naote 17 for more information

11) Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency of the reporting entity at the
spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction. At the balance sheet date, all monetary assets, including those at
FWOCI, and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the
closing exchange rate. Transkation differences are reported in Other met income from financial instruments measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

Mon-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

Upon consolidation, assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into US dollars, UBS AG's presentation
currency, at the dosing exchange rate on the balance sheet date, and income and expense items and other comprehensive
income are translated at the average rate for the period. The resulting foreign currency translation differences are recognized
in Equity and redassified to the incore statement when UBS AG disposes of, partially or in its entirety, the foreign operation
and UBS AG no longer controls the foreign operation.

Share capital issued and share premium held are translated at the historic average rate, with the difference between the
historic average rate and the spot rate realized upon repayment of share capital reported as Shave premium. Curnulative
amounts recognized in Other comprehensive income in respect of cash flow hedges and financial assets measured at FYOC
are translated at the dosing exchange rate as of the balance sheet dates, with any translation effects adjusted through
Retained earmi

¥ Refer to Mote 32 for more information
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

b) Changes in accounting policies, comparability and other adjustments

Mew or amended accounting standards

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Effective from 1 January 2023, UBS AG has adopted IFRS 17, insurance Contracts, which sets out the accounting
requirements for contractual rights and cbligations that arise from insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held. The adoption has had no effect on UBS AG's financial statements. UBS AG does not provide insurance services in
any market

Amendments to (A5 12, Income Taxes

In May 2023, the |ASE issued amendments to 145 12, ncome Taxes, in relation to top-up taxes on income under Global
Anti-Base Erosion Rules that is imposed under legislation that has been enacted or substantively enacted to implement
the Fillar Two model rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.

Certain countries in which UBS AG operates had enacted such legislation by 31 Decernber 2023, including Switzerland,
which introduced a tax with effect from 1 January 2024 that is expected to be a qualified domestic minimum top-up tax,
and other countries (including Germany, France and Italy) also introduced top-up taxes in respect of a non-domestic
UBS AG's worldwide operations with effect from 1 January 2025. Moreover, it is expected that other countries will enact
such legislation in 2024.

The amendments to 145 12 introduced an exception, whereby deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should not
be recognized or disdosed in respect of top-up taxes, which has been applied for the purposes of these financial
staternents.

An assessment was performed of UBS AG's potential exposure to top-up taxes under legislation that was enacted or
substantively enacted to implernent the Pillar Two model rules by 31 December 2023, reflecting country-by-country
reporting and, also, the corporate tax expenses of UBS AG entities for recent years and those expected in future years.
This assessment indicated that UBS AG's profits in future years are expected to be almost entirely earmed in countries
with corporate tax expenses that are at a tax rate of 15% or more and will not, therefore, be subject to top-up taxes.
Consequently, UBS AG is not expected to have a material annual exposure to top-up taxes for future years under this
legislation.

c) IFRS Accounting Standards and Interpretations to be adopted in 2024 and later and other changes

Other amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards
The LASE has issued a number of minor amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards, effective from 1 January 2024 and
later. These amendrnents are not expected to have a significant effect on UBS AG when they are adopted.
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Mote 2a Segment reporting

UBS AG's businesses are organized globally into five business divisions: Global Wealth Management, Personal &

Corporate Banking, Asset Management, the Investment Bank, and Mon-core and Legacy. All five business divisions are

supported by Group Iterns and qualify as reportable segments for the purpose of segment reporting. Together with

Group Items, the five business divisions reflect the management structure of UBS AG.

- Global Wealth Management provides financial senvices, advice and solutions to private wealth dients. s offering
ranges from investrment management to estate planning and conporate finance advice, in addition to specific wealth
rmanagement and banking products and services.

- Personal & Corporate Banking serves its private, corporate and institutional clients’ needs, from banking to
retirement, financing, investments and strategic transactions, in Switzerland, through its branch network and digital
channels.

- Asset Management is a global, large-scale and diversified asset manager. It offers investment capabilities and styles
across all major traditional and alternative asset classes, as well as advisory support to institutions, wholesale
intermediaries and wealth management clients.

- The Investment Bank provides a range of services to institutional, corporate and wealth management clients globally,
to help them raise capital, grow their businesses, invest and manage risks. Its offering indudes research, advisory
services, facilitating clients raising debt and equity from the public and private markets and capital markets, cash and
derivatives trading across equities and fixed income, and financing.

- Non-core and Legacy indudes positions and businesses not aligned with our strategy and policies previously reported
in Group Functions and smaller amounts of assets and labilities of UBS AG's business divisions that have been assessed
as not strategic in light of the acquisition of the Credit Suisse Group.

- 0Our Group functions are support and control functions that provide services to the Group. Virtually all costs incurred
by the support and control functions are allocated to the business divisions, leaving a residual amount that we refer
to as Group Items in our segrment reporting. Group functions is made up of the following major areas: Group Services
iwhich consists of the Group Operations and Technology Office, Corporate Services, Compliance, Regulatory &
Governance, Finance, Risk Control, Humnan Resources, Communications & Branding, Legal, the Group Integration
Office, Group Sustainability and Impact, and Chief Strategy Office) and Group Treasury.

Financial information about the five business divisions and Group Items is presented separately in internal management
reports to the Executive Board, which is considered the “chief operating decision-maker” pursuant to IFRS 8, Operating
Segments,

UBS AG's intermnal accounting policies, which include management accounting policies and service-level agreements,
determine the revenues and expenses directly attributable to each reportable segment. Transactions between the
reportable segments are carried out at intemally agreed rates and are reflected in the operating results of the reportable
segments. Revenue-sharing agreements are used to allocate external client revenues to reportable segments where
several reportable segments are involved in the value creation chain. Total intersegrment revenues for UBS AG are
immaterial, as the majority of the revenues are allocated across the segments by means of revenue-sharing agreements.
Interest income eamed from managing UBS AG's consolidated equity is allocated to the reportable segments based on
average attributed equity and curmency composition. Assets and liabilities of the reportable segments are funded through
and invested with Group functions, and the net interest margin is reflected in the results of each reportable segment.

Segment assets are based on a third-party view and do not incude intercompany balances. This view is in line with
internal reporting to management. If one operating segment is involved in an external transaction together with another
operating segrent or Group function, additional criteria are considered to determine the segment that will report the
associated assets. This will indude a consideration of which segment's business needs are being addressed by the
transaction and which segment is providing the funding and / or resources. Allocation of liabilities follows the same
principles.

Mon-current assets disclosed for segrment reporting purposes represent assets that are expected to be recovered more
g'ban f12 months after the reporting date, excuding finandal instrurnents, deferred tax assets and post-employment

enafits.
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Note 2a Segment reporting (continued)
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Note 2b Segment reporting by geographic location

The operating regions shown in the table below comespond to the regional management structure of UBS AG. The
allocation of total revenues to these regions reflects, and is consistent with, the basis on which the business is managed
and its performance is evaluated. These allocations involve assumptions and judgments that management considers to
be reasonable, and may be refined to reflect changes in estimates or management structure, The main principles of the
allocation methodology are that dient revenues are attributed to the domicile of the given client and trading and portfolio
management revenues are attributed to the country where the risk is managed. This revenue attribution is consistent
with the mandate of the regional Presidents. Certain revenues, such as those related to Non-core and Legacy Portfolio,
are ranaged at a Group level. These revenues are induded in the Global line.

The geographic analysis of non-current assets is based on the location of the entity in which the given assets are recorded.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Tetsl resvenie Total noe-cLiment susts

USD ba Share % USD ba Share %
Bspica! 133 9 86 47
2.6
o .
e ————
100 18.3

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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LIS b Shive % USD bn Shane S
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2

LIS b Share % USD bn Share %

Ameiica! 145 40 9.0 47
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Income statement notes

Note 3 Net interest income and other net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss
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S0 1657 m dor Fersnal B Corpoune Banking, USD 2,840m 4 Aseer Management, USD 3,350m fo the Iwesomaom Bank, USO On fo Mos=oore and Legacy amdl USD 10m for Groug s for 1 yoa

erdded 31 Decemizer 200 1: USD 14,585m tw Gloal Weah Management, USD 1,645 for Porsonal B Comene Banting, USD 3,330 m tar St Maragenent, USD & 553 for the Invesrm Sank, LSD 0m f

Wr-coie amd Ligacy and U0 33m for Groae lreres). For the e ended 31 Decmber 2003, Not-com: and Legacy (perinisly sipored within Gomp Fanctions) R{niEens a sEpans repanabls sement and Gaep
Finctians hi bien mnamed GITU NEns Friol peiods kave been revies 10 ilien thi Chanoe.
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Mote 5 Other incomea

Far the year ended
LS nas EIR Py iz
Aagiciaes, joint ventures and ssbsidiaries
Me2 gaice ) feases) from aoguisitions snd dispessls of subsidiarie M 148 {11y
Mot gairs | fosses) fom diposals of wesiments in sssocistes sndjointvernes [ My £
S o ot pls it e B =
Tensl (138) 1,024 134

Mot gabs / fosses) feom ok o feandll assets sesmed ot e vaiue Wrouch e corpmiveshfooome 0 9

Met gaire | fosses) from properses held bor sale B m 100
Income fross shaved seniced provided 1o UBS Group AG of its subsidiaries SER 450 51
Dihert ' ' ) 112 Elid Pyl

Totsl ather inoome 366 1,682 341
1 Inchices fusinn echange qains | jioes) sdat Fed tsan oher canzeek Tacome related 10 the disosal or clasune of Foreign pesations, Fefer [0 N 23 for mone inkemation about UZ5 AL 'S acquisiions
and cisposals of sisdciaies and bsinesses. 3 lndudes an USD B4Em gain seboed 10 the sale of UBS AG's shasshiokfing in Mitubishi CompeUES Bealy inc. 3 indudks. 2 LED 255m shaw of poporionane
rmlnnhmmhmdllﬂ-mﬁuppnhmhquimmNlmmhw-ltmpluhﬂg-lumﬁhmhﬁhdmw A Inclazies rem mscrived fom
thisd parties. & Madnby sefates  the sale of & inBasl, & Wnchasios gaine of L1SD 21m safated  th reg of LIES A5 ommd a gain of IS 3m in 2027 and & ks of
WSO 1T in 2021} T Mainly sefaies to & porsion of ﬂﬂlmﬂuﬁﬂdmiﬁsmmmmhiﬂuﬂmI'Ilrn-hl'lh'lt-'l.-'llgmmmhﬂn
gins | Jioswes) from aoguisitions and disposaks of sebsidianes) and income of USD 10 1m selaced m & legacy lnigasion setilement and a legacy tmbrepocy clin. & lndedes a gain of USD 100m fom the sak of UES
A5's domestic wealth managenen besimss i Assia.

Note 6 Personnel expensas

Far the yeer ended
s minn nn

¥E3

Tenal personnel epenies. 15,080 15561
1 Inchides soke-2ased alloammoes, 2 Rt 1o Mot 27 for moR inlomation. ) Comis of cieh and Seleied COmpesation wvaik ans s beed on compersabhs revenie: and S o i ising a formiilelc appmacy.
1t ales indurks eaperaes rolard o OENSRSERN CETAHITHEE with francal stekon ameed imo at the e of nrehret That are sebject na weting Mquiemens. 4 Rrler 1o K 26t mase inlamanion.
Incheckes cunaimen qaies of USD 3 for die yoa ended 31 Decersber 2037 (o the year ended 31 Deosnizer 2022 USD 130y for fie yeor ended 31 December 207 - USD £5m), witich represent & seduction in the
defined benfit nbligarion relned v e Swis pevsion plan reseking hom a deavee in hasdooem following emiduring acvives.

Personnel expenses increased by USD 575m to USD 15,655m and included integration-related expenses of USD 626m.

MNote 7 General and administrative expenses
Far the year ended
LS EIRVE:] 31222 E[RFE]
451 436
e
e
507 530

€
E:E
B
Fo
E3BE3A

geion gy sed simiarmatest o ®6

Tenal qenersl and adssinitrate expenses 11,118 9,001 9,475
1 Beflects thi men inosaase, incleging iaremies o 1hisd parties, i g ton litiganion, reguiannsy and similar matiers reoognized in the income sunement. Reler 1o Maie 17 for mon: infoenasion.

General and administrative expenses increased by USD 2,117m to USD 11,118m, which included integration-related
expenses of USD 491m, largely reflected in higher consulting and real estate costs.
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Mote B Income taxes

Far the year ended
LS 311223 ETRFEF ETRFET]

Tax enpenie § (benefit)

Total nom-Swiss - 1.263
1903

Tetal income tax expense | (benefit) recogrized in the incose stxiement 1,706 1,844

Income tax recognized in the income statement
The Swiss current tax expenses related to taxable profits of UBS Switzerland AG and other Swiss entities.

The non-Swiss current tax expenses related to expenses of USD 100m in respect of US corporate alternative minimum
tax (CAMT) and USD 518m in respect of other taxable profits of non-Swiss subsidiaries and branches,

The non-Swiss net deferred tax benefit primarily related to a benefit of USD 274m in respect of an increase in deferred
tax assets (DTAs) that resulted from an increase in the expected value of future tax deductions for deferred compensation
awards due to an increase in the Group’s share price during the year. In addition, the net deferred tax benefit included
a benafit of USD 100m in respect of the recognition of DTAs for tax credits camried forward in respect of CAMT. Thesa
benefits were partly offset by a net deferred tax expense of USD 112m that primarily related to the amortization of DTAs
previcusly recognized in relation to tax losses carried forward.

Excluding any potential effects from the remeasuremnent of DTAs in connection with the business planning process and
any material jurisdictional statutory tax rate changes that could be enacted, UBS AG expects a tax rate for 2024 of around
24%.

For the year ended
LED EaR bl i EV R o3
Operating profit / fessy before tax 451 B,360 B354
Income teees &1 Swiss tax rabe of 18 5% for 2023, 18% for 2027 and 18.5% for 2021 Ei6 1,613 1,658

H‘wmur&udup"apu.mmw

s T o G B
dnngmmdmwm ........................................................................................
Adjustments bo defemed 1xe halances Srising fros changes in tax rales 0 {1
Cther iserms ' ' 240 230

Incomg te expuers | (henedit) 1,844 1,803
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Mote B Income taxes (continuad)

The components of operating profit before tax, and the differences between income tax expense reflected in the financial
staternents and the amounts calculated at the Swiss tax rate, are provided in the table above and explained below.

Component Description

Mon-Swiss tax rates Tio the eatent that LBS AG profits of lodtes arise outside Switzerland, the applicable local tae rate may diller from the

differing from the Swvis e rate. This iem redlects, for such peofits, an sdjustment from the tax expense that would arise st the Swiss tax

Swwiss tax rate rate to the tax experse that would arise a2 the applicable local tax rate. Similary, it reflects, for such losses, an adustrment
from the tax benefit that would arise at the Swiss tax rate 1o the tax berefit that would arse at the applicable local tax
rate,

Tax effects of losses Thits ibesm relates to tax losses of entities arising in the year that are not recognized & DTAS and where no tax berefit arises

not recognized in refation 1o those loses. Thenefone, the ta caloulated by applying the local tax rate 1o those kosses a3 described
above i reversed,
Thits itesrm redates bo taxable of the year that ane offset by tax losses of previcus far wehiich mo DTAS were

::Mnmw:dmhuu mnhlmmrmd.Cuneqm,nnﬁ;:ntmmﬂﬂuwmwnargulnmw;mmm&pnﬂfsmd

now utilized the tax expense calculsted by applying the local tax rate on those profits is reversed,

Mon-taxable and lower- Thits ibesm redates to tax deductions for the year in respect of permanent differences. These indude deductions in respect of

income prafits that are eithes not tasable or are taxable at a hower rabe of tae than the local tax rate, They also inclisde deductions

made Tor tax purpases, which are not reflected in the sccounts.

Mon-deductible Thits ibesm redates to addtional taxable income lor the year in respect of nent differences. These include income that

expenses and is recognized Tor tax purposes by an entity but i not included in its tht is reported in the financial statements, &

additional taxable well &% experes for the year that ane non-deductible (g, chent entestainment costs are not deductible in centain

income locations).

Adjustments related to Thits ibesm redates to adjustments to cumrent ta sdqpenss for pror years (eg., il the tax payable lor & year & agresd with the

prior years, current tax ta Buthorities in &n amount that differs from the amount previously reflected in the financial gatements),

Adjustments related to Thits ibesm redates to adjustments to deferned tax positions recognized in prior years (e.g, if 8 tax loss for a year i fully

prior years, deferred recagnized and the amount of the tax loes agreed with the tax authorites i expected to ditfer from the amount previously

tan recagnized & DTAS in the socounts).

Change in deferred tax Thits ibesm refates to changes in DTAS, including chamges in DT.As préviously recognized resulting from resssessments of

recagnition expected future taxable profits. it ko includes chamges in temporary differences in the year, for which delemed tax i not
fecognized.

Adjustments to Thits ibesm relates to remeasunements of DTAs and lishilities recognized due to changes in tax rates. Thse have the eflect

deferred tax balances of changing the futuse tax swing that & expected from tax loses of deductible tax diffenences and thenefiore the amount

ariging from changes in of OTAs recognized o, alernatively, changing the ta oot of additionsl taxable income from taable termporany

tan rates diflerences and theselore the defered tax lishility.

Crther items Orther isems include other differenoes between prolits or losses a2 the local tax rate and the actual local tax expense or

beeredit, ircluding movemernts in provisions lof uncertain positions. in relation 1o the current year and other iberrs,

Income tax recognized directly in eguity

A net tax expense of USD 2BBm was recognized in Other comprehensive income (2022 net benefit of USD 1,095m) and
a net tax benefit of LISD 12m was recognized in Share premium (2022: net benefit of USD Sm).
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Mote B Income taxes (continuad)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

UBS AG has gross DTAs, valuation allowances and recognized DTAs related to tax loss carry-forwards and deductible
temporary differences, as well as deferred tax liabilities in respect of taxable temporary differences, as shown in the table
belnw The valuation allowances reflect DTAs that were not recognized because, as of the last remeasurement period,

gmﬂt did not consider it probable that there would be sufficient future taxable profits available to utilize the
relate tax loss carry-forwards and deductible temporary differences.

The recognition of DTAs is supported by forecasts of taxable profits for the entities concerned. In addition, tax planning
opportunities are available that would result in additional future taxable income and these would be utilized, if necessary.

Deferred tax abilities are recognized in respect of investrments in subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests in
joint arrangements, except to the extent that UBS AG can control the timing of the reversal of the associated taxable
temporary difference, and it is probable that such will not reverse in the foreseeable future. However, as of 31 December
2023, this exception was not considered to apply to any taxable termporary differences.

LA i ELA ki
Walustion Valluation
Griods Hiowance Recogrized Giizds allovence Retngrined
14s3 iR4es) i8S 12708 (8720) 3988
95 1] a5 L] L] L]
 iated 10 el BEENS CotE wm.ﬁ- [T
BB | et S LB L7 L L I a A
o i it 1o compensation aved beiits 1457 {05 [F Ligg {75 557
o which Mm cash fow hecipes f1id [ 619 T a iy
Tonal dehemed ta ssses 16,318 8.078) 5,244 18,482 3,128 5,354
T T — ..
o iy redased o otdver ications iiq ILOeT

Deferred tax Rabilities
Tl defirmed tax Eabilisies 162 FEt]

1 A ffset of DALs, a5 apabcabk. 3 A o1 31 Decerbe 2073, USS AG secogaized DTAS of LD 206m (31 Drcemzer 202Z UISD 47 br) In sespuect of eaikies (hat incussed losses in £ifwe! the cLmer: o1 peceding
.

In general, US federal tax losses incurred prior to 31 December 2017 can be carried forward for 20 years. US federal tax
losses incurred after that date can be carried forward indefinitely, although the utilization of such losses is limited to 80%
of the entity's future year taxable profits. UK tax losses can also be carried forward indefinitely; they can shelter up to
either 25% or 50% of future year taxable profits, depending on when the tax losses arose. The amounts of LIS tax loss
carry-forwards that are included in the table below are based on their amount for federal tax purposes rather than for
state and local tax purposes.

Unrecognized tax boss canry-forswards
LS

ETRFFE 31222
Within 1 year 12 Fil]
T S
msmum' ’ ) ) 2,708 11,106
From 11 mzum ' ' ) 1,199 1610
o M- "
Total 0,630 12,091

o it rdanee o phe LS T2 354 kL

e P Sy
A b e e S
1 Belane 1 UES AG's US branch.
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Note 9 Financial assets at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement

The tables below provide information about finandal instruments and certain credit ines that are subject to expected
credit loss (ECL) requirements. UBS AG's ECL disclosure segments, or "ECL segments” are aggregated portfolios based
on shared risk characteristics and on the same or similar rating methods applied. The key segments are presented in the

table below.
¥ Refer to Note 19 for more information about expected credit loss measurement
Segment Segment description Dwscription of credit risk sensitivity Business division
Private clients with Lending to private chents secured by Serditive to the interest rate environment, - Personal & Corporate Banking
mortgages owwner-peoupied real unemployment levels, real estate collateral _ Glabal Wealth Mana
personal sccount overdrafts of those  values and other regional aspects gement
Real estate finandng Rertal o income-producing real estate  Sersitive to unemployment laels, the - Personal & Corporate Banking
financing to private and cosporate interest rate ervironment, real estate - Glabal Wealth Manapement
dients secured by real estate collateral values and others regional - k- Bk
Hpei
Large corporate clients  Lending to large corporate and multi-  Serditive to GOP developments, - Personal & Corporate Banking
national chents unemployment levels, seasonality, — Investrent Bark
business cycles and collateral values
{diverse collatenal, induding real etste
and ather collateral typesy
SME clients Lending to small and medium-sized Serditive to GOP developrments, = Personal & Comporate Banking
orporate unemployment levels, the inberest rate
enviranment and, to some extent,
seasonalty, business cydes and collaseral
walues (diverse collateral, including real
estabe and ather colateral types)
Lombard Loars seciured by pledges of marketable  Sercitive to equity and debit markets (eg., - Global Wealth Management
guarantess and othes forms  changes in collateral valies)
of collateral {including concentration in
haerlge funds, private equity and unlisted
equities), as well as ursecused recourse
Credit cards Credit card solutions in Switzerland and  Sercitive to unemployment leels - Personal & Comporate Banking
the LS - Global Wealth Managemen:
Commodity trade Working capital finandng of commaodity  Serditive primarily to the strength of - Personal & Comporate Banking
finance traders, extended on a 2elf-  indiidual transsction Strectures and
lqusdating basis collateral values (price volatility of
commodities), as the prmary source for
debit service i directly linked 1o the
shiprrents financed
Financial intermediaries  Lending to financial institutions and Sersitive to GOP development, the - Personal & Corporate Banking
and hedge funds persion funds, induding sxposures to  interest rate erwironment, price and T
brokar-dealers and clearing houses wolatility riges in financial markets, and

regulstony and political rik

¥ Refer to Naote 191 for more detalls regarding sensitivity
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Note 9 Financial assats at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement
(continued)

The tables below provide ECL exposure and ECL allowance and provision information about financial instruments and
certain non-financial instruments that are subject to ECLs.

LA ER I
Carrying asourn” ECL alowances

Financial instruments messured st amortized cost Total  Seagel  Shgeld  Slaged Totsl Siagel  Siage? Samged
Cohadbmeecesatoenvaibas =~~~ 0000000000 Me wie 8 6 @ 0 ¢ @ 0

£33

8%
83

Tetsl fircancisl saets mestured o smantised cost TE6407
Financial asbets measused at fair walue Bwouch dther comprehentive intome 1n3
Totel o-halance shewt firandal st within the soope of EOL requinessents 768640

Off-balance sheet (within the scope of ECL) Tortal

62
o idbich: Finanois! dmermedianes sad hedps fik 22549
of wiich: Commoily ok fnaes Ler LR Fi

rrrm&lnmmrrm 44018 L0ES 1,678

.. ﬂ'm-ﬁ?—' ..... :'Iu!'

Fonward saring reverse nepurchase wmﬂﬂuhmﬂrgqm

Tensl oiff-balance thest financisl instruments and credt lines 130006 134410

Tenal sllowances and provisions 1,244 (308)
1 T camying amaiam of Hinancial o meamnsd 3T STOTRM OHE Ipresants the moal gies sepmei tot of T st ECL allrwancs.

ggﬂw
L {=IS
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Note 9 Financial assats at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement
(continued)
L IR
Carrging asoun? ECL alwances
Financial instruments measwred at amortized cost Tolsl  Stagei  Stagel  Slaged Totsl  Slagel  Siagel  Samged

Cash and belonces seentvalbanks MBS el a0 a0 im0
0

— i Gl R i — T
Dduﬁufﬂlmuﬂudlmm: 53389 5REM9 413 147 |BE)
i foas o B e R
Total financisl ssets meased o smortized cost TIITE TIZESN G044 1685 {Bod}
Financial astets measused at fair vale Bwough ather comprehensive income ih8  1re 1] ] o
Toksl oi-halance ahest firndal kit within the soope of EOL fequinsent: TALEE TI4EED 16044 1,685 {890}

3
5

B
-Buzzzsin.

I

Off-balance sheet (within the scope of ECL) Tolsl Stagei  Stagel  Slage 3 Totel  Stagel1  SiageZ
Gueanies o ALIGT | 19BO5 2254 WE G 08

%Eﬁaﬁéﬁéﬂ
sleeezeniE

E’E&?“f@f&?'ﬁgﬂ
ﬁéﬁ: a?a? a;aé =

2
Tenal off-baksnce shest financial instruments and chadi lines 14337 107,545 6,522 20 201}
Totsl lowarces snd provisions [0
1 T camying amaum of tinancial s neamned 31 aTOTEM 000 presents the ol g s eeposer mor of T sspective ECL allrwancs.

gl
5.
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Note 9 Financial assats at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement
(continued)

Coverage ratios are calculated for the core loan portfolio by taking ECL allowances and provisions divided by the gross
carrying amount of the exposures. Core loan exposure is defined as the sum of Loans and advances to customers and
Loans to financial advisors.

These ratios are influenced by the following key factors:

= Lombard loans are generally secured with marketable securities in portfolios that are, as a rule, highly diversified, with
strict lending policies that are intended to ensure that credit risk is minimal under most circumstances;

= mortgage loans to private clients and real estate financing are controlled by consenative eligibility criteria, including
low loan-to-value ratios and strong debt service capabilities;

- the amount of unsecured retail lending (including credit cards) is insignificant;

- lending in Switzerland includes government-backed COVID-12 loans;

- contractual maturities in the loan portfolio, which are a factor in the caloulation of ECLs, are generally short, with
Lombard lending typically having average contractual maturities of 12 months or less, real estate lending generally
between two and three years in Switzerland, with long-dated maturities in the U5, and corporate lending between
one and two years with related loan commitments up to four years; and

- write-offs of ECL allowances against the gross loan balances when all or part of a financial asset is deemed uncollectible
or forgiven, reduces the coverage ratios.

The total combined an- and off-balance sheet coverage ratio was at 22 basis points as of 31 December 2023, 1 basis
point higher than on 31 Decernber 2022, The combined stage 1 and 2 ratio of 10 basis points was unchanged compared
with 31 December 2022; the stage 3 ratio was 22%, materially unchanged compared with 31 December 2022,

s
{Grass carmying asoun (USD &) ECL conerage (bpd)

Total  Sane!  Sage?  Tiaged Total  Seane 1

4

3

n

e
ﬁ 1 e
e 0 2487
40 153 & aEm
e B T een
10 4 1N 1am
= |
3 17 4 4482
5 i L] 1163

ECL comerage (pd)

Hi-halsrce sheet Sugel  Stagel  Slege 1B Staged
7 L] [ an
o 2 B B
& 1) [ an
e g
n T
e ]
- B
- e
A el
Dither off-balance shew cosmitments q 12 5 o
ooty B R = o
Tetsl® 124037 4562 134 15 [ 122 1 208
Totsl o s off-balsnce dhiet 538,065 51L1¥ 13958 2978 2 & 105 L] 3157

1 Inleckes Loans and advancrs 10 cemenis and Loams m Srandal adeisen, shich ae presemied on 1he alance sioet e Cober tinancal asrts mesured ot anonind ot T Esdutes foraad saning messs
e and sp0uthes bomowing agrements, 3 Includes on-Salanon sheet oo, o and off balance shoet exposum (notional) and the rkned E0L cossage i (bps)
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Mote 9 Financial assats at amortized cost and other positions in scope of axpacted credit loss measurament
{continued)

b3 i

SME cherts 14,154 177 b3 ] E
Voo coportelending &S0 33 2s67 99 e B W M

La=bard 132,313 2 1 ] (L]

Creckt cardk 1,869 190 45 56 a3

. Comsodiywedefineece . 3% aME D W WS W@ 0 & R®I

Dthet loare and advances o austasess n} ] . S— T e iR

Laans to financidl adizors pH] b 124 @I 1Em

T T N N Gt G e e

Taasl" F] 4 114 B 23

Total Stage 3

5 1,163

[ ]

B 188

.......................................................................... | N )

a 1] a 04

B B -

20 — 2 B E—

5,390 8,900 7 5 7 ]

2,450 245 ] 3 3 3 ]

BN % T N AU S - S AN

1803 11454 7T 1 ] 7] ] ]

S4700 SniE 148 5 H 1 & ]

110537 W75 8522 1 10 106 16 £

Tetel on- and off-balance sheet! SMME 479040 1B kil 5 112 10 12

1mmmmwmﬂmm‘mmﬂEﬂmmﬂmmﬁmmmmnI'I)ﬂhdcmr. TEMM‘E‘EW

mepunchens and seouties bomowing agrements. 3 lndudes on-salno sheet eposen, o and off dalance shoet esposum (Rotional) and the skned E0L cossage atio (bps).

Mote 10 Derivative instruments

Owarview

Over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts are usually traded under a standardized Intemational Swaps and Derivatives
Association (I5DA) master agreement of other recognized local industry-standard master agreements between LUBS AG
and its counterparties. Terms are negotiated directly with counterparties and the contracts have industry-standard
settlement mechanisms prescribed by ISDA or similar industry-standard solutions. Other OTC derivatives are deared
through clearing houses, in particular interest rate swaps with LCH, where a settled-to-market method has been generally
adopted, under which cash collateral exchanged on a daily basis is considered to legally settle the market value of the
derivatives, Regulators in various jurisdictions have introduced rules reguiring the payment and collection of initial and
variation margins on certain OTC derivative contracts, which may have a bearing on price and other relevant terms.

Exchange-traded derivatives (ETD) are standardized in terms of their amounts and settlernent dates, and are bought and
sold on regulated exchanges. Exchanges offer the benefits of pricing transparency, standardized daily settlernent of
changes in value and, consequently, reduced credit risk.

Maost of UBS AG's derivative transactions relate to sales and market-making activity. Sales activities indude the structuring
and marketing of derivative products to customers to enable them to take, transfer, modify or reduce current or expected
risks. Market-making aims to directly support the facilitation and execution of client activity, and involves quoting bid
and offer prices to other market participants with the aim of generating revenues based on spread and volurme. UBS AG
also uses various derivative instruments for hedging purposes.

¥ Refer ta Mates 15 and 20 far more Information abaut derivative instruments

¥ Refer to Note 25 for more information about derivathves designated in hedge accounting relationships
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Mote 10 Derivative instruments (continuad)

Risks of derivative instruments

The derivative financial assets shown on the balance sheet can be an impartant cormponent of UBS AG's credit exposure;
hioweever, the positive replacement values related to a respective counterparty are rarely an adeguate reflection of
LBS AG's credit exposure in its derivatives business with that counterparty. This is generally the case because, on the one
hand, replacement values can increase over time (potential future exposure), while, on the other hand, exposure may be
mitigated by entering into master netting agreements and bilateral collateral arangements. Both the exposure measures

;Jsed intemally by UBS AG to control credit risk and the capital requirements imposed by regulators reflect these additional
Aciors.

¥ Refer to Nate 21 for more information about derivative financial assets and liabilities after consideration of netting potential
permitted under enforceable netting arrangements

¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of this repart for more information about the risks arising from derivative
Instruments

Derivative instruments

i3 ELR

Hational amoimnis Molional smounts

redzied 1o felaled B
Defivative  Desivative derivartive financisl L Drtivative Derieative  derivative finandal Dther
finandial Tirancial auetiand  notiona finencial financid assets and  notional
LS b e liathilies lishiliges®?  amountsts el Fabiities Fabidities??  amounts?A
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Mote 10 Derivative instruments (continuad)

On a notional amount basis, approsimately 51% of OTC interest rate contracts held as of 31 Decernber 2023
(21 Decermber 2022: 46%) mature within one year, 30% (31 Decernber 2022: 32%) within cne to five years and 19%
(31 December 2022: 22%) after five years.

Motional amounts of interest rate contracts cleared through either a central counterparty or an exchange that are legally
settled or economically net settled on a daily basis are presented under Other notional amounts in the table above and
are categorized into maturity buckets on the basis of contractual maturities of the cleared underying derivative contracts.
Other notional amounts related to interest rate contracts increased by USD 2.5tm compared with 31 December 2022,
nr:FaIinIy reflecting lower compression activity and higher business volumes driven by elevated interest rate volatility and
inflation.

Note 11 Property, equipment and software
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Note 12 Goodwill and intangible assets

Introduction
LBS AG performs an impairment test on its goodwill assets on an annual basis or when indicators of impairment exist.

UBS AG considers Asset Management, as reported in Mote 2a, as a separate cash-generating unit (a CGLU), as that is the
level at which the performance of investrment {and the related goodwill} is reviewed and assessed by management. Given
that a significant armount of goodwill in Global Wealth Management relates to the acquisition of PaineWebber Group,
Inc. in 2000, which mainly affected the Americas portion of the business, this goodwill remains separately monitored b
the Americas, despite the formation of Global Wealth Management in 2018, Therefore, goodwill for Global Wealt
Management is smaralz;; considered for impairment at the level of two CGUs: Americas, and Switzedand and
International {consisting of EMEA, Asia Pacific and Global).

The impairment test is performed for each CGU to which goodwill is allocated by comparing the recoverable amount
with the carrying amount of the respective CGU. UBS AG determines the recoverable amount of the respective CGlUs
based on their value in use. An impairment charge is recognized if the camying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 177

461/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

MNote 12 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

As of 31 Decernber 2023, total goodwil recognized on the balance sheet was USD 6.0bn, of which USD 3.7bn was
carried by the Global Wealth Management Americas CGU, USD 1.2bn was carried by the Global Wealth Management
Switzerland and International CGU, and USD 1.1bn was carried by Asset Management. Based on the impairment testing
methodology described below, UBS AG conduded that the goodwill balances as of 31 December 2023 allocated to these
CGls were not impaired. For each of the CGUs, the recoverable amount substantially exceeded the camrying value as of
31 December 2023 and there was no indication of a significant risk of goodwill impairment based on the testing
performed as of 31 December 2023,

Methodology for goodwill impairment testing

The recoverable amounts are determined using a discounted cash flow model, which has been adapted to use inputs
that consider features of the banking business and its regulatory environment. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the
surn of the discounted eamings attributable to shareholders from the first three forecast years and the terminal value,
adjusted for the effect of the capital assumed to be needed over the next three years and to support growth beyond that
period. The terminal value, which covers all pericds beyond the third year, is caloulated on the basis of the forecast of
the third-year profit, the discount rate and the long-term growth rate, as well as the implied perpetual capital growth.
For the Global Wealth Management Americas CGU, the methodology is consistently applied, however, the forecast
period was extended from three to five years (with a terminal value thereafter) in 2023 to provide for the CGU's specific
planning assumptions, namely the ongoing investments in the core banking infrastructure in the US to enhance the
product capabilities and offerings in this market in the mid term. The extension of the forecast period from three to five
years did not trigger, defer or avoid an impairment of goodwill as of 31 December 2023,

The carrying amount for each CGU is determined by reference to UBS's equity attribution framework. Within this
framework, UBS attributes equity to the businesses on the basis of their risk-weighted assets and leverage ratio
denominator (both metrics include resource allocations from Group lems to the business divisions), their goodwill and
their intangible assets, as well as attributed equity related to certain common equity tier 1 deduction iterns. The
framework is prirnarily used for the purpose of measuring the performance of the businesses and indudes certain
management assumptions. Attributed equity is equal to the capital a CGU regquires to conduct its business and is currently
considered a reasonable approsimation of the carrying amount of the CGUs. The attributed equity methodology is also
applied in the business planning process, the inputs from which are used in calculating the recoverable amounts of the
respective CGL.

Assumptions

Valuation parameters used within UBS AG's impairment test model are linked to external market information, where
applicable. The moded used to determine the recoverable amount is most sensitive to changes in the forecast eamings
available to shareholders in years one to three, to changes in the discount rates and to changes in the long-term growth
rate. The applied long-term growth rate is based on long-term economic growth rates for different regions worldwide.
Earnings available to shareholders are estimated on the basis of forecast results, which are part of the business plan
approved by the Board of Directors.

The discount rates are deterrnined by applying a capital asset pricing model-based approach, as well as considering
quantitative and qualitative inputs from both internal and external analysts and the view of management. They also take
into account regional differences in risk-free rates at the level of the individual CGUs. In line with discount rates, long-
term growth rates are determined at the regional level based on nominal GDP growth rate forecasts.

Key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts of each CGU are tested for sensitivity by applying a
reasonably possible change to those assumptions. Forecast earnings available to shareholders were changed by 20%,
the discount rates were changed by 1.5 percentage points, and the long-term growth rates were changed by
0.75 percentage points. Under all scenarios, reasonably possible changes in key assumptions did not result in an
impairment of goodwill or intangible assets reported by Global Wealth Management Americas, Global Wealth
Management Switzerland and International, and Asset Management.

If the estimated earnings and other assurnptions in future periods deviate from the current outlook, the value of goodwill
attributable to Global Wealth Management Americas, Global Wealth Management Switzerland and Intermational, and
Asset Management mar become impaired in the future, giving rise to losses in the income staternent. Recognition of any
irmpairment of goodwill would reduce IFRS Accounting Standards equity and net profit. It would not affect cash flows
and, as goodwill is required to be deducted from capital under the Basel Il capital framework, no effect would be
expected on UBS AG's capital ratios.

Discount and growth rates

Discount rates Goorwth rales
% 1213 311232 Hiza 1222
L il e iR L I LL - L . 18
Global Wealth Menagement Switzerland nd Intemational a5 a4 4 36
et Mo T T
Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 178

462/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 12 Goodwill and intangible assets (continuad)
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The table below presents estimated aggregated amortization expenses for intangible assets.

] Iritengithe adse
Estimated O e O

%
e

328 13
123

Mote 13 Other assets

a) Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

Teral giher Enancial assess measured at amontized cost 54,334 53,389

1 Fapeniminandy inclikes cith oolateral pessicesd o mrhanges and chasing houses 10 S seaulios. waling acisly tisegh hoss coumepaties.

Effective from 1 April 2022, LIBS has reclassified a portfolio of finandial assets from Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income with a fair value of USD 6.5bn (the Portfolic) to Other financial assets measured at
amortized cost.
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Mote 13 Other assets (continuad)

The Portfolio's cumnulative fair value losses of USD 449m pre-tax and USD 333m post-tax, previously recognized in Other
comprehensive income, have been removed from equity and adjusted against the value of the assets on the
reclassification date, so that the Portfolio is measured as if the assets had always been dassified at amortized cost, with
a value of UsD 7.4bn as on 1 April 2022, The reclassification had no effect on the income statement. The redassified
Portfolio is made up of high-guality liquid assets, primarily US government treasuries and US government agency
mortgage-backed securities, held and separately managed by UBS Bank USA. The accounting reclassification has arisen
as a direct result of the transformation of UBS's Global Wealth Management Americas business, which has significantly
impacted UBS Bank USA. This includes initiatives approved by the Group Executive Board to significantly grow and extend
the business, as disclosed on 1 February 2022 during UBS's fourth quarter 2021 earnings presentation. Over the two
years preceding the reclassification date, UBS Bank USA's deposit base grew by more than 100% generating substantial
cash balances, with a number of new products being launched, induding new depasit types that are longer in duration,
additional lending and a broader range of customer segments targeted. Following the commencement of these activities
and the announcement made in the first quarter of 2022, the Portfolio is no longer held in a business model to collect
the contractual cash flows and sell the assets but is instead solely held to collect the contractual cash flows until the
assets mature, requinng a reclassification of the Portfolio in line with IFRS 9 with effect from 1 April 2022,

b) Other nen-finandial assets

Lo A 1222
Preious setal and other physical commedities 4,426 447
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Note 14 Customer deposits, and funding from UBS Group AG

a) Customer deposits

e
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Customer deposits increased mainly due to net inflows into time deposit products, and pesitive foreign curmency effects,
partly offset by continued shifts into money market funds and US-govemment securities. In addition, customers
continued to shift funds from Demand and Sweep depaosits into time deposits,

b) Funding from UB5S Group AG measured at amortized cost

Tenal funding fram UBS Group AG messured at amortized cout™ 67,282 56,147
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LBS AG uses interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives to manage the risks inherent in certain debt instruments held
at amortized cost. In some cases, UBS AG applies hedge accounting for interest rate risk as discussed in item 2j in Mote
1a and Mote 25. As a result of applying hedge accounting, the life-to-date adjustment to the camying amount of Funding
from UBS Group AG measured at amortized cost was a decrease of USD 3.2bn as of 31 December 2023 and a decrease
of USD 5.1bn as of 31 December 2022, reflecting changes in fair value due to interest rate movements.

Of the Total funding from UBS Group AG measured at amortized cost outstanding as of 31 December 2023, USD 65.6bn
pays a fixed interest rate and USD 1.7bn pays a floating rate of interest.
3 Refer to Note 23 for maturlty information
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Note 15 Debt issued designated at fair value
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Mote 16 Debt issued measurad at amortized cost
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LIBS AG uses interest rate and foreign exchange derfvatives to manage the risks inherent in certain debt instruments held

at amortized cost. In some cases, UBS AG applies hedge accounting for interest rate risk as discussed in item 2j in Mote

1a and Mote 25. As a result of applying hedge accounting, the life-to-date adjustment to the camying amount of Debt

issued measured at amortized cost was a decrease of USD 0.4bn as of 31 December 2023 and a decrease of USD 1.0bn
as of 31 December 2022, reflecting changes in fair value due to interest rate movements.

Subordinated debt consists of unsecured debt obligations that are contractually subordinated in right of payment to all
other present and future non-subordinated obligations of the respective issuing entity. All of the subordinated debt
instrumenits outstanding as of 31 Decernber 2023 pay a fixed rate of interest.

¥ Refer to Note 23 for maturity infermation
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Note 17 Pravisions and contingent liabilities

a) Provisions

The table below presents an overview of total provisions.
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The following table presents additional information for provisions other than provisions for expected credit losses,
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Restructuring provisions relate to onerous contracts and personnel-related provisions. Onerous contracts for property are
recognized when UBS AG is committed to pay for non-lease components, such as utilities, sendce charges, taxes and
maintenance, when a property is vacated or not fully recovered from sub-tenants. Personnel-related restructuring
provisions are generally used within a short period of time, The level of personnel-related provisions can change when
natural staff atirition reduces the number of people affected by a restructuring event, and therefare results in lower
estimated costs,

Information about provisions and contingent liabilities in respect of litigation, regulatory and similar matters, as a dass,
is included in Note 17b, There are no material contingent liabilities associated with the other classes of provisions.
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MNote 17 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

b) Litigation, regulatory and similar matters

LBS operates in a legal and regulatory environment that exposes it to significant litigation and similar risks arising from
disputes and regulatory proceedings. As a result, UBS is involved in various disputes and legal proceedings, including
itigation, arbitration, and regulatory and criminal investigations. “UBS,"” "we" and “our,” for purposes of this Note,
refer to UBS AG and / or one or maore of its subsidiaries, as applicable.

Such matters are subject to many uncertainties, and the cutcome and the timing of resolution are often difficult to
predict, particularly in the earlier stages of a case. There are also situations where UBS may enter into a settlement
agreement. This may occur in order to avoid the expense, management distraction or reputational implications of
continuing to contest liability, even for those matters for which UBS believes it should be exonerated. The uncertainties
inherent in all such matters affect the amount and timing of any potential outflows for both matters with respect to
which provisions have been established and other contingent liabilities. UBS makes provisions for such matters brought
against it when, in the opinion of management after seeking legal advice, it is more likely than not that UBS has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resounces will be required, and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Where these factors are otherwise satisfied, a provision may be established for
claims that have not yet been asserted against UBS, but are nevertheless expected to be, based on UBS's experience with
similar asserted daims. If any of those conditions is not met, such matters result in contingent liabilities. If the amount of
an obligation cannot be reliably estimated, a liability exists that is not recognized even if an outflow of resources is
probable. Accordingly, no provision is established even if the potential outflow of resources with respect to such matters
could be significant. Developments relating to a matter that occur after the relevant reporting period, but prior to the
issuance of financial statements, which affect management’s assessment of the provision for such matter (because, for
example, the developments provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period), are adjusting
events after the reporting period under 145 10 and must be recognized in the finandal statements for the reporting
period.

Specific litigation, regulatory and other matters are described below, incuding all such matters that management
considers to be material and others that management believes to be of significance to UBS due to potential financial,
reputational and other effects. The amount of damages claimed, the size of a transaction or other information is provided
wihere available and appropriate in order to assist users in considering the magnitude of potential exposures.

In the case of certain matters below, we state that we have established a provision, and for the other matters, we make
no such statement. When we make this statement and we expect disclosure of the amount of a provision to prejudice
seriously our position with other parties in the matter because it would reveal what UBS believes to be the probable and
reliably estimable outflow, we do not disclose that amount. In some cases we are subject to confidentiality obligations
that preclude such disclosure. With respect to the matters for which we do not state whether we have established a
provision, either: {a) we have not established a provision; or (b) we have established a provision but expect dischosure of
that fact to prejudice seriously our position with other parties in the matter because it would reveal the fact that UBS
believes an outflow of resources to be probabde and reliably estimable.

With respect to certain litigation, regulatory and similar matters for which we have established provisions, we are able to
estimate the expected tirming of outflows. However, the aggregate amount of the expected outflows for those matters
for which we are able to estimate expected timing is immaterial relative to our current and expected levels of liquidity
over the relevant time periods.

The aggregate amount provisioned for litigation, regulatory and similar matters as a class is disclosed in the *Provisions”
table in Mote 17a above, It is not practicable to provide an aggregate estimate of hability for our litigation, regulatony
and similar matters as a class of contingent liabilities. Doing so would require UBS to provide speculative legal assessments
as to claims and proceedings that imwolve unique fact patterns or novel legal theories, that have not yet been initiated or
are at earI% stages of adjudication, or as to which alleged damages have not been quantified by the daimants. Although
LBS th cannot provide a numerical estimate of the future losses that could arise from ltigation, regulatory and
similar matters, UBS believes that the aggregate amount of possible future losses from this class that are more than
remaote substantially exceeds the level of current provisions.

Litigation, regulatory and similar matters may also result in non-monetary penalties and consequences. A guilty plea to,
of conviction of, a crime could have matenal consequences for UBS. Resolution of regulatory proceedings may require
LIBS to obtain waivers of regulatory disqualifications to maintain certain operations, may entitle regulatory authorities to
lirnit, suspend or terminate licenses and regulatory authorizations, and may permit financial market utilities to limit,
suspend of terminate UBS's participation in such utilities. Failure to obtain such waivers, or any limitation, suspension or
termination of licenses, authorizations or participations, could have material consequences for UBS.

The risk of loss associated with litigation, regulatory and similar matters is a component of operational risk for purposes
of determining capital requirements. Information concerning our capital requirements and the caloulation of operational
risk fior this purpose is included in the "Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet” section of this report.
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MNote 17 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

Provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters by business division and in Group ltems"
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1. Ingquiries regarding cross-border wealth management businesses

Tax and regulatory authorities in a number of countries have made inquiries, served requests for information or examined
employess located in their respective jurisdictions relating to the cross-border wealth management services provided by
UBS and other financial institutions.

Since 2013, UBS (France) 5.A., UBS AG and certain former employees have been under imvestigation in France in relation
to UBS's cross-border business with French clients. In connection with this investigation, the investigating judges ordered
UBS AG to provide bail (" caution™) of EUR 1.1bn.

In 2019, the court of first instance returned a verdict finding UBS AG guilty of unlawful solicitation of clients on French
territory and aggravated laundering of the proceeds of tax fraud, and UBS (France) S_A. guilty of aiding and abetting
unlawful solicitation and of laundering the proceeds of tax fraud. The court imposed fines aggregating EUR 3.7bn on
UBS AG and UBS (France) 5.4 and awarded EUR 800m of civil damages to the French state. A trial in the Paris Court of
Appeal took place in March 2021. In December 2021, the Court of Appeal found UBS AG guilty of unlawful solicitation
and aggravated laundering of the proceeds of tax fraud. The court ordered a fine of EUR 3.75m, the confiscation of
EUR 1bn, and awarded civil damages to the French state of EUR 800m. UBS appealed the dedision to the French Supreme
Court. The Suprerne Court rendered its judgment on 15 Movember 2023, 1t upheld the Court of Appeal’s decision
regarding unlawful solicitation and aggravated laundering of the proceeds of tax fraud, but overturned the confiscation
of EUR 1bn, the penalty of EUR 2.75m and the EUR 800m of civil damages awarded to the French state. The case has
been remanded to the Court of Appeal for a retrial regarding these overturned elernants. The French state has reimbursed
the EUR 800m of civil damages to UBS AG.

Our balance sheet at 31 Decernber 2023 reflected a provision in an amount that UBS believes to be appropriate under
the applicable accounting standard. As in the case of other matters for which we have established provisions, the future
outflow of resources in respect of such matters cannot be determined with certainty based on currently available
information and accordingly may ultimately prove to be substantially greater ior may be less) than the provision that we
have recognized.

2. Madoff

In redation to the Bernard L. Madoff investment Securities LLC (BMIS) investment fraud, UBS AG, UBS (Luxermbourg) 5.4
inow UBS Europe SE, Luxembourg branch) and certain other UBS subsidiaries have been subject to inguiries by a number
of regulators, induding the Swiss Financial Market Supenvisory Authority (FINMA) and the Lusembourg Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier. Those inquiries concermed two third-party funds established under Luxembaourg law,
substantially all assets of which were with BMIS, as well as certain funds established in offshore jurisdictions with either
direct or indirect exposure to BMIS. These funds faced severe losses, and the Luxernbourg funds are in liquidation. The
documentation establishing both funds identifies UBS entities in various roles, including custodian, administrator,
manager, distributor and promoter, and indicates that UBS employess serve as board members.

In 2009 and 2010, the liquidators of the two Luxembourg funds filed daims against UBS entities, non-UBS entities and
certain individuals, induding current and former UBS employees, seeking amounts totaling approsdmately EUR 2.1bn,
which includes amounts that the funds may be held liable to pay the trustee for the liguidation of BMIS (BMIS Trustee).

A& large number of alleged beneficiaries have filed daims against UBS entities (and non-UBS entities) for purported losses
relating to the Madoff fraud. The majority of these cases have been filed in Luxernbourg, where decisions that the dlaims
in eight test cases were inadmissible have been affirmed by the Luxembourg Court of Appeal, and the Luxembourg
Supreme Court has dismissed a further appeal in one of the test cases.
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MNote 17 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

In thee US, the BMIS Trustea filed claims against UBS entities, among others, in relation to the two Luxembourg funds and
one of the offshore funds. The total amount daimed against all defendants in these actions was not less than USD 2bn.
In 2014, the US Supreme Court rejected the BMIS Trustee’s motion for leave to appeal decisions dismissing all daims
except those for the recovery of approsimately USD 125m of payments alleged to be fraudulent conveyances and
preference payments. In 2016, the bankruptcy court dismissed these claims against the UBS entities. In 2019, the Court
of Appeals reversed the dismissal of the BMIS Trustee's rernaining claims, and the US Supreme Court subsequently denied
a petition seeking review of the Court of Appeals’ decision. The case has been remanded to the Bankmuptcy Court for
further proceedings.

3. Foreign exchange, LIBOR and benchmark rates, and other trading practices

Foreign exchange-related re?u.nbmﬂ.r marttars: B-e%ilnning in 2013, numerous authorities commenced inmg?atiuns
concerning possible manipulation of foreign exchange markets and precious metals prices. As a result of these
investigations, UBS entered into resclutions with Swiss, US and United Kig?dnm regulators and the European
Commission. UBS was granted conditional immunity by the Antitrust Division of the DOJ and by authorities in other
jurisdictions in connection with potential competition law violations relating to foreign exchange and precious metals

Lsinesses,

Foreign exchange-refated civil litigation: Putative class actions have been filed since 2013 in US federal courts and in other
jurisdictions against UBS and other banks on behalf of putative classes of persons who engaged in foreign currency
transactions with any of the defendant banks. UBS has resolved US federal court class actions relating to foreign currency
transactions with the defendant banks and persons who transacted in foreign exchange futures contracts and options
on such futures under a settlement agreement that provides for UBS to pay an aggregate of USD 141m and provide
cooperation to the settlerment classes. Certain class members have excluded themselves from that settlement and have
filed individual actions in US and English courts against UBS and other banks, alleging violations of US and European
competition laws and unjust enrichment. UBS and the other banks have resolved those individual matters,

In 2015, a putative class action was filed in federal court against UBS and numerous other banks on behalf of persons
and businesses in the US who directly purchased foreign currency from the defendants and alleged co-conspirators for
their own end use. In 2022, the court denied plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. In March 2023, the court granted
defendants’ summary judgrent mation, dismissing the case. Plaintiffs have appealed.

LIBOR and other benchmark-related regulatory matters: Numerous government agencies conducted investigations
regarding potential improper attempts by UBS, among others, to manipulate LIBOR and other benchmark rates at certain
times. UBS reached setterments or otherwise conduded investigations relating to benchrmark interest rates with the
investigating authorities. UBS was granted conditional leniency or conditional immunity from authorities in certain
jurisdictions, incduding the Antitrust Division of the DOJ and the Swiss Competition Commission (WEKQ), in connection
with potential antitrust or competition law violations related to certain rates. Howewver, UBS has not reached a final
settlernent with WEKO, as the Secretariat of WEKO has asserted that UBS does not qualify for full immunity.

LIBOR and other benchmark-related civl fitigation: A number of putative class actions and other actions are pending in
the federal courts in Mew York against UBS and numerous ather banks on behalf of parties who transacted in certain
interest rate benchmark-based derivatives. Also pending in the US and in other jurisdictions are a number of other actions
asserting losses related to varous products whose interest rates were linked to LIBOR and other benchmarks, including
adjustable rate mortgages, preferred and debt securities, bonds pledged as collateral, loans, depository accounts,
investrments and other interest-bearing instruments. The complaints allege manipulation, through various means, of
certain benchmark interest rates, including USD UBOR, Eurcyen TIBOR, Yen UBOR, EURIBOR, CHF LIBOR, GBP LIBOR and
seek unspecified compensatony and other damages under varying begal theories.

LED LIBOR class and individual actions i the US: In 2013 and 2015, the district court in the USD LBOR actions dismissed,
in whole o in part, certain plaintiffs’ antitrust claims, federal racketeering claims, Commedity Exchange Act daims, and
state common law daims, and again dismissed the antitrust caims in 2016 following an appeal. In 2021, the Second
Circuit affirmed the district court's dismissal in part and reversed in part and remanded to the district court for further
proceedings, The Second Circuit, amang other things, held that there was personal jurisdiction over UBS and other
foreign defendants. Separately, in 2018, the Second Circuit reversed in part the district court's 2015 decision dismissing
certain individual plaintiffs’ claims and certain of these actions are now proceeding. In 2018, the district court denied
plaintiffs’ motions for dass certification in the USD dass actions for claims pending against UBS, and plaintiffs sought
permission to appeal that ruling to the Second Circuit. The Second Circuit denied the petition to appeal. In 2020, an
individual action was filed in the Morthern District of California against UBS and numerous other banks alleging that the
defendants conspired to fix the interest rate used as the basis for loans to consumers by jointly setting the USD LUBOR
rate and monopolized the market for UBOR-based consumer loans and credit cards. In Septerber 2022, the court
granted defendants’ motion to dismiss the complaint in its entirety, while allowing plaintiffs the opportunity to file an
amended complaint. Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint in October 2022, and defendants moved to dismiss the
amended complaint. In October 2023, the court dismissed the amended complaint with prejudice. In January 2024,
plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the Minth Circuit Court of Appeals. Defendants filed their response to the appeal in
March 2024,
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MNote 17 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

Other benchmark class actions in the US:

Yen LIBOR / Eurcyen TIBOR — In 2017, the court dismissed one Yen LIBOR / Euroyen TIBOR action in its entirety on
standing grounds. In 2020, the appeals court reversed the dismissal and, subsequently, plaintiffs in that action filed an
amended complaint focused on Yen LIBOR. In 2022, the court granted UBS's motion for reconsideration and dismissed
the case against UBS. The dismissal of the case against UBS could be appealed following the disposition of the case
against the remaining defendant in the district court.

CHF LIBOR — In 2017, the court disrissed the CHF LIBOR action on standing grounds and failure to state a claim. Plaintiffs
filed an amended complaint, and the court granted a renewed maotion to dismiss in 2019. Plaintiffs appealed. In 2021,
the Second Circuit granted the parties’ joint motion to vacate the dismissal and remand the case for further proceedings.
Plaintiffs filed a third amended complaint in Movember 2022 and defendants moved to dismiss the amended complaint
in January 2023,

EURIBOR = In 2017, the court in the EURIBOR lawsuit dismissed the case as to UBS and certain other foreign defendants
for lack of personal jurisdiction. Plaintiffs have appealed.

GBP LIBOR = The court dismissed the GBP LBOR action in 2019, Plaintiffs have appealed.

Government bonds: Putative class actions have been filed since 2015 in US federal courts against UBS and other banks
on behalf of persons who participated in markets for US Treasury securities since 2007, A consolidated complaint was
filed in 2017 in the US District Court for the Southern District of New York alleging that the banks colluded with respect
to, and manipulated prices of, US Treasury securities sold at auction and in the secondary market and asserting claims
under the antitrust laws and for unjust enrichment. Defendants’ motions to dismiss the consolidated complaint were
granted in 202 1. Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint, which defendants moved to dismiss later in 2021. In March 2022,
the court granted defendants’ motion to dismiss that complaint, and in February 2024, the Second Circuit affirmed the
district court’s dismissal. Similar class actions have been filed concerning Eurcpean govemment bonds and other
government bonds.

In 2021, the European Commission issued a decision finding that UBS and six other banks breached European Union
antitrust rules in 2007-2011 relating to European government bonds. The European Commission fined UBS EUR 172m.
LBS is appealing the amaount of the fine.

With respect to additional matters and jurisdictions not encompassed by the settlements and orders referred to above,
our balance sheet at 31 Decemnber 2023 reflected a provision in an amount that UBS believes to be appropriate under
the applicable accounting standard. As in the case of other matters for which we have established provisions, the future
outflow of resources in respect of such matters cannot be determined with certainty based on currently available
information and accordingly may ultimately prove to be substantially greater ior may be less) than the provision that we
have recognized.

4. Swiss retrocessions

The Federal Supreme Court of Switzerland ruled in 2012, in a test case against LBS, that distribution fees paid to a firm
for distributing third-party and intra-group investrment funds and structured products must be disclosed and surrendered
to clients who have entered into a discretionary mandate agreement with the firm, absent a valid waiver. AINMA issued
a supervisory note to all Swiss banks in response to the Supreme Court decision. UBS has met the FINMA requirements
and has notified all potentially affected dients.

The Supreme Court decision has resulted, and continues to result, in a number of dient requests for UBS to disclose and
potentially surrender retrocessions. Client requests are assessed on a case-by-case basis. Considerations taken into
account when assessing these cases include, among other things, the existence of a discretionary mandate and whether
or not the dient documentation contained a valid waiver with respect to distribution fees.

Cur balance sheet at 31 December 2023 reflected a provision with respect to matters described in this item 4 in an
armount that UBS believes to be appropriate under the applicable accounting standard. The ultimate exposure will depend
on dient requests and the resolution thereof, factors that are difficult to predict and assess. Hence, as in the case of other
matters for which we have established provisions, the future outflow of resources in respect of such matters cannot be
determined with certainty based on currently available information and accordingly may ultimately prove to be
substantially greater (or may be less) than the provision that we have recognized.
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Mote 18 Other liabilities

a) Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

LS a2 311222

Tetal gither nandal lisbilites sessured at amortized cost 12,13 10,391

b) Other financial liabilities designated at fair value

LS Az 31222
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) Other non-financial liabilities
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Additional information

Note 19 Expected cradit loss measurement

a) Expected credit losses in the period

Total net credit loss expenses were USD 143m in 2023, reflecting net credit loss expenses of USD 23m related to stage 1
and 2 positions and net credit loss expenses of USD 120m related to credit-impaired (stage 3) positions.
¥ Refer to Nate 19b for more information regarding changes to expected credit boss models, seenarios, scenario weights and the
post-model sdjustments and to Note 19¢ for more information regarding the development of ECL allowances and provisions

Stage 3 met expenses of USD 120m were recognized across a number of defaulted positions, with net expenses of
USD 56m in the Investrnent Bank, USD 37m in Personal & Corporate Banking and USD 27m in Global Wealth
hManagemeant.

Credit loss expense / (release)

Perhorming possions Credit-impained positions
LS Stages | and 2 Stage 3 Total

[{F:]

b £ 1
1] 1] o
19 1] F]
1 1
1] 1] o
1123 125} {148)
" Trarsing wih the TS Guarel o 2003, N-0ort 390 Ligacy Decane & 5pasie Rporiabif SIQEN: and GRep FLINS 135 Doon rnaned GIoup N8 FII peiods hawe boon el 32 SEA80 Hhesk changes.

b) Changes to ECL models, scenarios, scenario weights and key inputs

Refer to Mote 1a for information about the prindples governing expected credit loss (ECL) models, scenarios, scenario
weeights and key inputs applied.

Govamance

Comprehensive cross-functional and cross-divisional govemance processes are in place and are used to discuss and approve
scenario updates and weights, to assess whether significant increases in credit risk resulted in stage transfers, to review
model outputs and to reach conclusions regarding post-model adjustments.

Modeal changes

During 2023, the model review and enhancement process led to adjustments of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) and credit conversion factor (CCF) models, resulting in a USD 27m increase in ECL allowances. This includes
an increase of USD 16m in the Investment Bank, mainly related to lending to Large corporate clients, and a USD 12m
increase in Personal & Corporate Banking, mainly related to lending to Lange canporate clients and SME clients,
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Mote 19 Expected cradit loss measurement (continuad)

Secenanio and key input updates

During 2023, the scenarics and related macroeconomic factors were updated from those applied at the end of 2022 by
considering the prevailing economic and political conditions and uncertainty. The review focused on events that significantly
changed the economic cutlook during the year: the inflation outlook and economic growth in Europe, and rising ghobal
interest rates due to central banks" adoption of mare restrictive monetary policies.

Basafime scanario: the projections of the baseline scenario, which are aligned to the economic and market assurnptions used
fior UBS"s business planning purposes, are broadly in line with external benchrmarks, such as that from Bloomberg Consensus,
Oxford Economics and the Intemational Monetary Fund World Economic Outlook. The expectation for 2024 is that global
growth slows down under the weight of monetary policy tightening and continued pressure on real purchasing power due
to high, though falling inflation, and fading fiscal support. Unemployment rates are forecast to increase siightly from their
2023 levels. Interest rates are expected to rerain high, given the persistence of inflationary pressures, leading to a less
optimistic outlook for house prices worldwide, incuding in Switzerland.

Mild debt crisis scenario: The first hypothetical downside scenario is the mild debt crisis scenario. At the beginning of the
second quarter of 2023, UBS replaced the global crisis scenario applied at the end of 2022 and at the end of the first guarter
of 2023 with the mild debt orisis scenario, Economic, market and political developments suggested that the scenario suite
should be rebalanced by reintroducing a mild downside scenario. The mild debt crisis scenario covers similar risks, but the
assurnptions are milder than the global crisis scenario, Therefore, the scenario shodks are less severe. [t assumes that political,
solvency and liquidity concems cause a sell-off of sowereign debt in emerging markets and the peripheral Eurozone. The
global econormy and finandal markets are negatively affected, and central banks are assumed to ease their monetary policy.

i geopoiitical crisis scenario: The second downside scenario is aligned with the 2024 Group binding stress
scenaric and was updated in 2023 to reflect expected risks, resulting in minimal changes, Geopolitical tensions cause an
escalation of security concems and undermine globalization. The ensuing economic regionalization leads to a surge in global
commodity prices and further disruptions of supply chains, and raises the specter of prolonged stagflation. Central banks
are forced to further tighten monetary policy to contain inﬁaﬂm&urﬁ_ The severe interest rate and house price
assumptions in the scenario had a substantive impact on model ECL allowances for loans secured by mortgages in
Switzerand and the US. These effects were partly offset by post-model adjustment releases related to loans secured by
mortgages. Refer to the section below on "Scenano weights and post-model adjustments™ for more details.

Asset price inflation scenaricc The upside scenario is based on positive developments, such as an easing of geopolitical
tensions across the globe and a rebound in Chinese economic growth. A combination of lower cormmaodity prices, effective
monetary policies and easing supply chain disruptions helps to reduce inflation. Improved consumer and business sentiment
lead to a global economic rebound, enabling central banks to normalize interest rates, which causes asset prices to increase
significantly.

The table below details the key assumptions for the four scenarios applied as of 31 December 2023,

Scenario weights and post-model adjustments

The scenario weights did not change during 2023, but the scenario suite was adjusted in the second quarter of 2023 to
replace one of the two severe downside scenarios with a mild downside scenario. The mild debt crisis scenario, developed
in earty 2023, was introduced in the scenario suite with the same weight as the more severe global crisis scenario, i.e.,
15%, to balance a somewhat more optimistic outlook with milder scenario assumptions. The weights were kept
unchanged for the stagflationary geopaolitical crisis, baseline and asset price inflation scenarios, i.e., 25%, 60% and 0%,
respectively. The weights are shown in the table below.
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Note 19 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

However, unguantifiable risks continue to be relevant, as the geopolitical risks remained high in 2023, and the impact
on the world economy from escalations with unforeseeable consequences could be severe. In the near term, this
uncertainty relates primarily to developments in the Russia-Ukraine and Middle East conflicts. Models, which are based
on supportable statistical information past experiences regarding interdependencies of macroeconomic factors and
their implications for credit risk portfolios, cannot comprehensively reflect such extraordinary events, such as a pandemic
or a fundamental change in the world political order. Rather than creating multiple additional scenarios to attempt
gauging these risks and applying model parameters that lack supportable information and cannot be robustly validated,
management continued to also apply post-model adjustmants.

Total stage 1 and 2 allowances and provisions were USD S80m as of 31 December 2023 and included post-model

adjustments of USD 133m (31 December 2022: USD 131m). Overlays are to cover for uncertainty levels, including the
geopaolitical situation.

Economic stenaros and weights applied
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Note 19 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Seanario sssumptions O year Thiee years cumilative
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¢) Development of ECL allowances and provisions

The ECL allowances and provisions reuu{gmd in the period are impacted by a variety of factors, such as:

- the effect of selecting and updating forward-looking scenarios and the respective weaights;

- origination of new instruments during the pericd,

- the effect of passage of time (lower residual lifetime PD and the effect of discount urwind) as the ECL on an instrument
for the remaining lifetime decreases (all other factors remaining the same);

- derecognition of instruments in the period,

= change in individual asset quality of instruments;

- movements from a maxinmum 12-month ECL to the recognition of Efetime ECL (and vice versa) following transfers
betwean stages 1 and 2;

- movements from stages 1 and 2 to stage 3 (credit-impaired status) when default has become certain and PD increases
to 100% {or vice versal;

= changes in models or updates to model parameters;

- write-cff; and

foreign exchange translations for assets denominated in foreign currencies.
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Note 19 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

The table below explains the changes in the ECL allowances and provisions for on- and off-balance sheet financial
instruments and credit lines in scope of ECL requirements between the beginning and the end of the period due to the
factors listed above.

Development of ECL allowances and provisions
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Mowvernents with profit or loss impact: Stages 1 and 2 ECL allowances and provisions increased on a net basis by USD 23m:

- Net movernent from nesw and derecognized transactions indudes USD 27m stage 1 expenses and USD 9m stage 2
releases: Stage 1 expenses are primarily driven by new loans secured by real estate and corporate lending. The residual
effect is spread across other lending segments. Stage 2 releases are largely driven by redemption of real estate lending
in Personal & Corporate Banking and Global Wealth Management.

- Remeasurements with stage ransfers include USD 8m releases in stage 1 and USD 7m expenses in stage 2, This mainly
includes the transfer of a few large corporate and real estate finandng transactions from stage 1 1o 2 (i.e., releases in
stage 1 and related but generally higher expenses in stage 2), driven by rating downgrades and scenario effects.

- Remeasurements without stage transfers include stage 1 releases of USD 7m and stage 2 releases of USD 14m. These
redeases of USD 2 1m relate to large corporate lending (USD 23m) and real estate lending (USD 14m), substantially due
to scenario effects, partly offset by expenses to a single sovereign counterparty (USD 15m).

= Model changes: refer to Note 18b for more information.

Movements without profit or loss impact: Stages 1 and 2 allowances increased by USD 31m, almaost entirely driven by
FX. Stage 3 allowances decreased by USD 21m, driven by FX and other movements of USD 48m, partly offset by net
write-offs / recoveries of USD 63m.
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Note 19 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Development of ECL allowances and provisions
L0
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As explained in Mote 1a, the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk (an SICR) considers a number of qualitative
and quantitative factors to determine whether a stage transfer between stage 1 and stage 2 is required, although the
primary assessment considers changes in PD based on rating analyses and economic outlook. Additionally, UBS AG takes
into consideration counterparties that have moved to a credit watch list and those with payments that are at least 30
days past due.

ECL stage 2 (“significant deterioration in credit risk”) allowances / provisions a4 of 31 December 2023 - classification by trigger
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d) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The tables bedow provide UBS AG's maximum exposure to credit risk for financial instruments subject to ECL requirements
and the respective collateral and other credit enhancements mitigating credit risk for these classes of financial
instruments.
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Note 19 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

The maximurm exposure to credit risk includes the car arnounts of finandal instruments recognized on the balance
sheet subject to credit risk and the notional amounts for ry.t;?f balance sheet arrangements. Where information is available,

collateral is presented at fair value. For other collateral, such as real estate, a reasonable alternative value is used. Credit
enhancemants, such as credit derivative contracts and guarantees, are included at their notional armounts. Both are
capped at the maximum exposure to credit risk for which they serve as security. The "Risk management and control”
section of this report describes management’s view of credit risk and the related exposures, which can differ in certain
respects from the requirements of IFRS Accounting Standards.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
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Note 19 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

@) Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on UBS AG's intemal credit
rating S{S!E‘ITI and year-end stage classification. Under IFRS 9, the credit risk rating reflects UBS AG's assessment of the
probability of default of individual counterparties, prior to substitutions, The amounts presented are gross of impaiment
allowances.

¥ Refier to the "Risk management and contral” section of this report for more detalls regarding UBS AG™s internal grading system

Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category
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Note 19 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category
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Mote 19 Expected cradit loss measurement (continuad)

f) Sensitivity information
As putlined in Note 1a, ECL estimates involve significant uncertainties at the time they are made.

ECL models

The models applied to determine point-in<time PD and LGD rely on market and statistical data, which has been found
to correlate well with historically observed defaults in sufficiently homogeneous segments. The risk sensitivities for
each of the ECL reporting segments to such factors are surnmarized in Note 9.

Sustainability and climate risk

sustainability and climate risk may negatively affect dients or portfolios due to direct o indirect transition costs, or
expasure to physical risks in locations likely to be impacted by climate change. Such effects could lead to a deterioration
in credit worthiness, which in tum would have an impact on ECLs. While some macroeconomic indicators used in the
current PD models could be influenced by climate change, UBS currently does not use a spedific sustainability and dimate
risk scenario in addition to the typically four general economic scenarios applied to derive the weighted-average ECL. The
rationale for the approach at this point in time is the significance of model risks and challenges in calibration and
probability weight assessment given the paucity of data.

Instead, UBS AG focuses on the process of vetting clients and business transactions and takes individual actions, where
transition risk is deerned to be a significant driver of a counterparty's credit worthiness. This review process may lead to
a downward revision of the counterparty’s credit rating, or the adoption of risk mitigating actions, and hence affect the
individual contribution to ECLs.

At the portfolio level, UBS has started to use stress |oss assuml::tinns to assess the extent to which sustainability and
climate risk may affect the quality of the loans extended to small and medium-sized enterprises, large corporate clients
and financial institutions. Initial tests were based on a set of assumptions presented by external parties (such as the Bank
of England}, and complemented by internally derived dimate pathway scenarios. Such analysis undertaken during 2022,
and reassessed during 2023, concluded that the counterparties are not expected to be significantly impacted by physical
or transition risks, mainly as there are no material risk concentrations in high-risk sectors. The analysis of the corporate
loan book has also shown that any potential significant irnpacts from transition costs or physical risks would materialize
over a time horizon that exceeds in most cases the contractual lifetime of the underlying assets. Based on current
information on regulatory developments, this would also apply to the portfolio of private dients’ mortgages and real
estate financing, given the long lead times for investrnents in upgrading the housing stock.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, it was assessed that the magnitude of any impact of sustainability and dimate
risk on the weighted-average ECL would not be material as of 31 December 2023, Therefore, no specific post-model
adjustment was made in this regard.
¥ Refer to "UBS AG consolidated supplemental disclosures required under SEC regulations™ for the maturity profile of UBS AG"s
core loan book

Forward-locking scenarios

Depending on the scenario selection and related macroeconomic assumptions for the risk factors, the components of
the relevant weighted-average ECL change. This is particularly relevant for interest rates, which can move in both
directions under a given growth assumption, e.g., low growth with high interest rates in a stagflation scenario, versus
lowe growth and falling interest rates in a recession. Management generally locks for scenario narratives that reflect the
key risk drivers of a given credit portfiolio.

As forecasting modeds are complex, due to the combination of multiple factors, simple what-if analyses involving a change
of individual parameters do not necessarily provide realistic information on the exposure of segments to changes in the
macroecononmy. Portfolio-specific analyses based on their key risk factors would also not be meaningful, as potential

compensatory effects in other segments would be ignored. The table below indicates sorme sensitivities to ECLs, if a key
macroeconomic variable for the forecasting pericd is amended across all scenarios with all other factors remaining

unchanged.
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Note 19 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Potential effect on stage 1 and stage 2 positions from changing key parameters a3 of 31 December 2023

Sensitivities can be more meaningfully assessed in the context of coherent scenarios with consistently developed
macroeconomic factors. The table above outlines favorable and unfavorable effects, based on reasonably possible
alternative changes to the economic conditions for stage 1 and stage 2 positions, The ECLimpact is calculated for material
portfolios and discdosed for each scenario.

The forecasting horizon is limited to three years, with a moded-based mean reversion of PD and LGD assurned thereafter.
Changes to these timelines may have an effect on ECLs: depending on the cycle, a longer or sharter forecasting horizon
will lead to different annualized lifetime PD and average LGD estimaticns, This is currently not deemed to be material for
EHF_., as a large proportion of loans, including maortgages in Switzerland, have maturities that are within the forecasting

orizon.

Scenario weights and stage allocation

Potential effect on stage 1 and stage 2 positions from changing scenario weights or moving to an ECL lifetime caloulation as of 31 December 2003
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Mote 19 Expected cradit loss measurement (continuad)

Potential effect on stage 1 and stage 2 positions from changing scenario weights or moving to an ECL lifetime caloulation as of 31 December 2002
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Scenario weighits

ECLis sensitive to changing scenaric weights, in particular if narratives and parameters are selected that are not close to
the baseline scenario, highlighting the non-linearity of credit losses.

As shown in the table above, the ECLs for stage 1 and stage 2 paositions would have been USD 396m (31 December
2022: 15D 329m) instead of USD 580m (31 December 2022: USD 526m) if ECLs had been determined solely on the
baseline scenario. The weighted-average ECL therefore amounted to 146% (31 Decemnber 2022: 160%) of the baseline
value. The effects of weighting each of the four scenarics 100% are shown in the table above.

Stage allocation and SICR

The determination of what constitutes an SICR is based on managernent judgment, as explained in Note 1a. Changing
the SICR trigger will have a direct effect on ECLs, as more or fewer positions would be subject to lifetime ECLs under any
SCENArio.

The relevance of the SICR trigger on overall ECL is demonstrated in the table above with the indication that the ECL
allowances and provisions for stage 1 and stage 2 positions would have been USD 1,193m, if all non-impaired positions
across the portfolio had been measured for lifetime ECLs irmespective of their actual SICR status. This amount companes
with actual stage 1 and 2 allowances and provisions of USD 580m as of 31 December 2023,

Maturity profile

The maturity profile is an important driver in ECLs, in particular for transactions in stage 2. A transfer of a transaction
into stage 2 may therefore have a significant effect on ECLs. The current maturity profile of most lending books is relatively
short.

Lending to large corporate clents is generally between one and two years, with related loan commitments up to four
years. Real estate lending is generally between two and three years in Switzerland, with long-dated maturities in the US.
Lombard-lending contracts typically have average contractual maturities of 12 months or less, and incdude callable
features.

A& significant portion of our lending to SMEs and Real estate financings is documented under multi-purpose credit
agreements, which allow for various forms of utilization but are unconditionally cancelable tT LBS at any time: (i) for
drawings under such agreemenits with a fixed maturity, the respective term is applied for ECL calculations, or a masimum
of 12 months in stage 1; (i} for unused credit lines and all drawings that have no fixed maturity {e.q., current accounts),
UBS generally applies a 12-month maturity from the reporting date, given the credit review policies, which require either
continugus monitoring of key indicators and behavioral pattems for smaller positions or an annual formal review for any
other limit. The ECLs for these products are sensitive to shortening or extending the maturity assumption.
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Mote 20 Fair value measursment

a) Valuation principles

All financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value are categorized into one of three
fair value hierarchy levels in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. The fair value hierarchy is based on the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. In certain cases, the inputs
used to measure fair value may fall within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. For disclosure purposes, the level in
the hierarchy within which an instrurnent is classified in its entirety is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the position's fair value measurement:

- Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2 - valuation technigues for which all significant inputs are, of are based on, observable market data; or

- Level 3 - valuation technigues for which significant inputs are not based on observable market data.

Fair values are determined using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, where available. Where
the market for a finandal instrument or non-finandial asset or liability is not active, fair value is established using a
valuation technigue, including pricing models, Valuation adjustments may be made to allow for additional factors,
including medel, liquidity, credit and funding risks, which are not explicitly captured within the valuation technique, but
which would nevertheless be considered by market participants when establishing a price. The limitations inherent in a
particular valuation technique are considered in the determination of the classification of an asset or liability within the
fair value hierarchy. Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument is the individual instrument, and UBS AG
applies valuation adjustments at an individual instrument level, consistent with that unit of account. However, if certain
conditions are met, UBS AG may estimate the fair value of a portfolio of financial assets and liabilities with substantially
similar and offsetting risk exposures on the basis of the net open risks.
* Refer to Mote 20d for mere information

b) Valuation governance

LIBS AG's fair value measurement and model governance framework includes numerous controls and other procedural
safeguards that are intended to maximize the quality of fair value measurernents reported in the financial statements.
New products and valuation technigues must be reviewed and approved by key stakeholders from the risk and finance
control functions. Responsibility for the ongoing measurement oFtEmam:iaI and non-financial instruments at fair value is
with the business divisions.

Fair value estimates are validated by the risk and finance control functions, which are independent of the business
divisions. Independent price verification is performed by Finance through benchmarking the business divisions' fair value
estimates with observable market prices and other independent sources. A governance framework and associated
controls are in place in order to monitor the quality of third-party pricing sources where used. For instruments where
valuation models are used to determine fair value, independent valuation and model control groups within Finance and
Risk Control evaluate UBS AG's models on a regular basis, including valuation and model input parameters, as well as
pricing. As a result of the valuation controls employed, valuation adjustments may be made to the business divisions’
estimates of fair value to align with independent market data and the relevant accounting standard.
¥ Refer to Mote 20d for mare information
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

c) Fair value hierarchy

The table below provides the fair value hierarchy classification of finandial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value. The narrative that follows describes valuation technigues used in measuring their fair value of different
product types (induding significant valuation inputs and assumptions used) and the factors considered in determining
their classification within the fair value hierarchy.

During 2023, assets and liabilities that were transfemed from Level 2 to Level 1, or from Level 1 to Level 2, and were held
for the entire reporting period were not material. In the fourth quarter of 2023, UBS AG has prospectively amended its
approach to testing for observability as part of an accounting methodology alignment following the acquisition of Credit
Suisse_ This methodaological change enhances UBS AG's assessment of sensitivities to unobservable valuation parameters.
Application of the new methodology as of 31 December 2022 would have resulted in USD 1.3bn lower Level 3 liabilities
{as of 31 Decernber 2023 the balance of affected liabilities in Level 3 was USD 1.9bn), with an offsetting impact to Level
2 liabilities,

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation technigues’

3.12.23 3A2E
LD Lewel 1 Lt 2 Lewed 3 Tolal Lewel 1 Level 2 Liwed 3 Total

Financial assets al fair valhue held for ieading

Finencisl assets at fair value not hebd for rading
o wihicy Ciranane ane municinl Bonds
of which: Covernment bl Jdonds ) ;

e on Ao

Finencial aseets measured at fai walue Seough other comprebendve income
of which Commerols paper and contibemtes of depont 0L

.. of which: Covparat and municipel bonck

Morrfinancial seoets. masouned a1 {8t wslue on & pecuring basis
Prisgious selals and ottt physical commedilies 44% 0 [} 4406 44T (i 0 4471
Mo firancisl sests maasured 81 {air uslue on & Ron-necuming bas . .

Cther mon-Snansal assess? [ 0 17 17 ] (i P H

2,182 0 233
T A )
s

Biw@
g
Yinld

Total sty reasuned o Tair value 149,962 200,979 7058 358139 018132 207018 6,698 341858

Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments m

485/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation techniques {continuwed)®
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Valuation techniques

LBS AG uses widely recognized valuation technigues for determining the fair value of financial and non-financial
instruments that are not actively traded and quoted. The most frequently applied valuation techniques indude discounted
value of expected cash flows, relative value and option pricing methodologies.

Discounted value of expected cash flows is a valuation technique that measures fair value using estimated expected
future cash flows from assets or liabilities and then discounts these cash flows using a discount rate or discount margin
that reflects the credit and / or funding spreads required by the market for instrurnents with similar risk and liquidity
profiles to produce a present value. using such valuation techniques, expected future cash flows are estimated
usunrég an observed or implied market price for the future cash flows or by using industry-standard cash flow projection

els. The discount factors within the calculation are generated using industry-standard yield curve modeling
technigues and models.

Redative value models measure fair value based on the market prices of equivalent or comparable assets or liabilities, making
adjustments for differences between the characteristics of the cbserved instrument and the instrument being valued.

Option pricing models incorporate assumptions regarding the behavior of future price movernents of an underlying
referenced asset or assets to generate a probability-weighted future expected payoff for the option. The resulting
probability-weighted expected payoff is then discounted using discount factors generated from iwsmndad yield
curve modeling technigues and maodels. The option pricing model may be implemented using a dosed-form analytical
formula or other mathematical technigues (e.g., binomial tree or Monte Carlo simulation).

Where available, valuation technigues use market-observable assumptions and inputs. If such data is not available, inputs
may be derived by reference to similar assets in active markets, from recent prices for comparable transactions or from
other observable market data. In such cases, the inputs selected are based on historical experience and practice for similar
of analogous instrurnents, dervation of input levels based on similar products with obsenvable price levels, and knowledge
of current market conditions and valuation approaches,

For more complex instruments, fair values may be estimated using a combination of observed transaction prices,
COMSensUs ricigsenrices and relevant quotes. Consideration is given to the nature of the quotes (e.q., indicative or firm)
and the relationship of recently evidenced market activity to the prices provided by consensus pricing services. LBS AG
also uses intemally developed models, which are typically based on valuation methods and techniques recognized as
standard within the industry. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include benchmark interest rate
curves, credit and funding spreads used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, equity index prices, foreign
exchange rates, levels of market volatility and correlation. Refer to Mote 20e for more information. The discount curves
used by UBS AG incorporate the funding and credit characteristics of the instruments to which they are applied.
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Financial instruments excluding derivatives: valuation and classification in the fair value hierarchy

Product Valuation and dassification in the fair value hierarchy
Governmsent bills Walugtion — Generally valued using prices obtsned directly fram the markst.
and bonds Irstruments nat priced disectly using active-market data are valued using discounted cash flow valuation
technigues that incorporabe market data for similar government irstruments,
Fair walue — Generally traded in active markets with prices that can be obitained disectly from these markets, resulting
hierarchy in casification as Level 1, while the remaining positions are classified a3 Level 2 and Level 3.
Corporate and Valuation - Generally valued using prices obtained directly from the market lor the security, or similar securities,
municipal bonds w'ltmta:l for seniorily, maturity and liguidity.
- N prices are not available, instrurments ane valued using dicounted cash flow valustion technigues
incomparating the: credit spresd of the Bxwer of similar e
— Fof convertible bonds without directly comparable prices, issuances mey be priced using & convertible
bend model,
Faif walue = Generally clasified & Level 1 or Level 2, depending mhdepﬁ&tadhgmmbeﬂmmmm
hierarchy - Lnﬁ!mmnuknemmlﬂ:lepri:lnglnhmm
Traded loans and Valugtion = Vahued directly using market prices that reflect recent trardbotions of quobed deslsr prices, where available.
Ioans measured at = Whene no market price data is available, loars are valued by relative value benchmarking using pricing
fair value derived fram debl instruments in comparable entties or different products in the same entity, o by using
a credit defauly swap valustion techraque, which requires inputs for credit speeach, credit recovery rites
and irterest rates. Recently originated commencial real estate |nans are measured wsing a secusitization
appraach based on rating agency guidelnes.
Fair walue ~ Irstruments with suitably desp and liquid pricing information are dassified as Level 2.
hierarchy — Pasitions requiring the use of valuation technigues, or for which the price sources have nsufficient trading
depith, are classdied as Level 3.
Inwestment fund Valugtion ~ Predominantly exchal with readily svalable quoted prices in liguid markets, Where market
units prices are not available, fair value may be measured using net asset values (NAWS).
Faif walle — Listed units are dasdied & Level 1, provided there & sufficent trading activity 1o justify sctive-market
hierarchy classification, while othes positions ane dassified as Level 2.
— Pasitions for which NAVS are not availsble, or whee the unit or underling irvestments are illiquid are
clansified o Level 3.
Asset-backed Valugtion = For liquid securities, the valuation process will use trade and price data, updated for movements in marke?
securities (ABS) lesels betwween the time of trading and the time of valuation, Less liquid instruments ase mestised wing
discounted expected cash flows incorporating price data for instrurments o indices with similar risk profiles.
Fair value - Residential mortgege-hacked secuities, commerndal mortgape-bhacked securities and other ABS are
hierarchy generally dassified &3 Level 2. However, ¥ significant inputs. are unobsenable, or if market of fundamental
data is not svailable, they are classilied as Level 3.
Auction rate Walugtion — ARS ase valued wtilizing & discounted cash flow methodology. The model captures inberest rate risk
securities (ARS) efmanating from the nole coupon, credt sk attributable 1o the underying dosed-end fund investments,
ligquidity rick as & function of the kevel of trading volume in thess positions, and extension risk, a5 ARS are
perpetual instrisments that require an assumption regarding their maturity o Ssues redemplion date,
Fair walue = Grarular and liquid pricing information is generally not available for ARS. A & result, thess securities are
hierarchy classified s Leved 3.
Exquity instruments Valuation = Listed equity instrurments ane generally valued using prices obtsined directly from the market.
= Unlisted equity hd:llngs-. including etuity positions, are initially marked &t thesr trarsaction price
anid are revalued whe mm of price movement becomes availshle of when the posltion i
dumadtu-belmp-ad
Fai valie = The majority of equity securities are actively traded on pubbc stock exchanges where quoted prices ane
hierarchy readily and regulary availsble, resulting in Level 1 classification,
- Equilty securitied less actively traded will be dassflied as Level 2 and iliquid positions as Level 3,
Finandal assets for Valuation — The majority of assets are listed on exchanges and Lair values are determined using quated prices.
unit-lnked
imves tment Faif walue — Most assets are classified & Level 1 f actively traded, or Level 2 if trading i not active.
rontratis hierarchy — Irstruments lor which prices ane not readily avalable are classified as Level 3,
Securities Valuation = These instruments are valued using discounted expected cash Plow techniques. The discount rate applied
financing is hased on furding cuned that are relevant to the collateral eligibiity terms.
transactions
Fair value = Collateral funding curves for these instruments are generally observable and, as & result, thess positions
hierarchy are classilied s Level 2.
= Where the collateral terres are non-standard, the funding curve may be considered unobsenable and
these posltions are dassified as Level 3.
Brokerage Valugtion — Faif value iz determined based on the value ol the underhing balances.
receivables and
payables Fair walue — D to their or-demand nature, these receivables and payables ase deemed as Level 2,
hierarchy
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Product Valuation and classification in the fair valwe hierarchy

Finandial liabilities Walustion — The fair values of investment contract labiities are determined by reference 1o the fair value of the

related to unit- corresponding asets,

linked investment

conteacts Fair value = The liabilities thamreehes are not actively traded, but are mainly referenced 50 instruments that are
hiesraschy actively traded and are therelore classified & Leved 2.

Precious metals and Walustion — Physical assets are valued wsing the spot rate obhaerved in the relevant market.

ather physical

commuodities Fair value — Generally traded in active markets with prices that can be obitsined dirsctly from these markets, resulting
hieranchy in classification as Level 1.

Debt igswed Walustion = The risk management and the valuation approaches for these instruments are closely aligned with the

designated at fair enuivalent desivatives business and the underlying risk, and the valuation lechnigues used for this

walue component ane the same &1 the relevant valuation tlechniques deseribed below,
Fair value — The absenvabdity & dosely aligned with the equivalent derivatives business and the underlying risk.
hieranchy

Commercial paper Walustion — Generally valued using discounted cath flow valuation techniques incorporating the spresd of the Esuer

and certificates of of sirrilar issuers over the underlying curency risk-free ourve.

depasit Fair value — Due to the shari-dated nature of the positions and liguid underying pricing inputs, they are generally
hieraschy classified s Leved 2.

Derivative instruments: valuation and classification in the fair value hierarchy

The curves used for discounting expected cash flows in the valuation of collateralized derivatives reflect the funding terms
associated with the relevant collateral arangement for the instrument being valued. These collateral arrangements differ
across counterparties with respect to the eligible currency and interest terms of the collateral. The majority of
collateralized derivatives are measured using a discount curve based on funding rates derived from ovemight interest in
the cheapest eligible currency for the respective counterparty collateral agreement.

Uncollateralized and partially collateralized derivatives are discounted using the alternative reference rate (the ARR) (or
equivalent) curve for the currency of the instrument. As described in Mote 20d, the fair value of uncollateralized and
partially collateralized derivatives is then adjusted by credit valuation adjustments (CVAs), debit valuation adjustrments
(D\As) and funding valuation adjustments (FvAs), as applicable, to reflect an estimation of the effect of counterparty
cradit risk, UBS AG's own credit risk, and funding costs and benefits.

¥ Refer to Mote 10 for more information about derivative instruments

Derivative product  Valuation and cdassification in the fair value hierardy

Interest rate Walustion = Iriterest rate Swap contracts are valued by estimating futuee inesest cash fiows and discounting thase cash
contracis e using & rate that reflects the appropriate funding rate for the position being measuned. The yisld
curves used bo estimate future index level and discount rates are generated using market-standard yield
curve models using interest rates uociated with curent market sctivity. The key inputs to the modek are
iriterest rate swap rates, lonsard rate agreement rates, shori-term inferest rate futures prices, basis swap
spreadk and inflation swap rates.
= Initesest rabe ncontiacts are valued using various market-standand odels, usi that
mmnﬁmﬂﬂmmm wolatiities and mrrdumw g fnpuss
— When the rratu ity of an inberest rate swap of option contrec exoseds the term for which standard market
quiates are absenvable for 8 significant input pasameter, the contracts ane valued by exrapolation from the
last absenable point using standand assumptions or by relerence to another chaervable oomparable input
paramete 1o represent @ suitable peoey foe that portion of the tesm.

Faif walue = The majority of interedt rate swaps are classified as Level 2, as the standard market contracts that form the
hierarchy inpuits for yield cunve model are generally traded in active and choenable rmardets.
— Optiors ane generally ireated as Level 2, & the calibration process enables the model output to be validated
1o sctive-market levels, Models calibeated in this way are then used 1o revalue the portialio of both standand
options and mone exatic products.
— Irrberest rabe swap of optioh contracts are classified as Level 3 when the terms exceed standand market-
absenable

quites.
= Exntic options for which appropriate volatility or corelation nput levels cannot be implied from abservable
market data ane classified & Leved 3,

Credit derivative Walustion = Credit dervative contracts are valued using industry-standard models based primarly on market credin
contracis spreadk, upfront pricing points and implied recoveny rates. Where & derivative credit spread is nat directly
waailable, it iy be derived from the price of the relerence cash bond.
= Asset-backed oredit derivatives are valued wing a valustion technique similar o that of the underying
security with an adjustment 1o reflect the funding differences betwesn cath and synithetic form.

Faif walue = Single-entity and portlolio credit dervative contracts are dassified as Level 2 when cedit spreads and
hierarchy recovery rabes are determined from actively traded obse rvable market dsta. Where the underlying reference
namels) are mot actively traded and the correlstion cannot be directly mapped to actively traded tranche
irstruments, thess comiracts are classified as Level 3,
= Aqwet-backed credit dervatives lollow the chasactenstics of the underlying security and are therelore
distributed across Level 7 and Level 3,
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Derivative product Valeation and dassification in the fair vabe hierarchy

Foreign exchange Walugtion = Open spot loreign exchange (Fx) contracts ane vabued using the Fx gpot rate observed in the market.
contracis = Fonward FX contracts ane valued wsing the FX spot rate adjusted for forsard pridng points absened from
standard market-based sounoes.

— Ower-the-counter (OTC) X option contracts are valued using market-standard eption valuation models.
The models used for shomer-dated options (i.e., matusities of five years of k) tend 1o be different than
those used for lomger-dated options because the models needed lor lonper-dated OTC FX conracts requine
stditional eonsideration of imerest rate and FX rate inberdependency.

= The valustion for multi-dimensional P options uses a multiHocal volatility model, which is calibrated 1o the
obuerved FX volatilities for 8l relevant P pairs.

Faif walue = The markets for Fx spot and FX forward pricing points are bath actively traded and observable and
hierarchy therefore wuch FX contracts are generaly classified o Level 2.
= A significant noof OTC FX contracts are dangified & Level 2 as i are derived
M?ﬂﬂmmmmtammmdMMEmkm s mesty

Exquity / index Walustion — Equity forward contracts have a single stock or index underlying and are valued using market-standard
contracis models. The key inputs to the modek are stock prices, estimated dividend rates and equity funding rites
{wehich are implied from prices of fonsard contracts observed in the market). Estimated cash flows are then
discoumed using markes-standard discounted cash flow models wsing a mte that reflects the appropriate
funding rate for that portion of the partialio, When no market data is availsble for the instrument matwrity,
they are valued by extrapolation of svailable dsta, vse of historical dividend data, or use of data for &
redated equity.

= Equity option contracts are valued using market-tandard models that estimate the equity forward level a5
duubedfnreq:gﬂmrdmmard inccrporate inputs for stock valatlity and for comelation
in & basket. The probabibity-weighted expected aption payoll generated is then
discounted wsing rmarket-atandard discounted cash flow models spplying & rate that reflects the
appropriate funding rate for that portion of the portfalio. When volatility, fonward of comrelation inputs are
nat available, they are valued wsing extrapolstion of availsble data, historical dividend, eomrelation or

valatility data, or the eguivalent data for a related egquity.

Fair walue = As inputs are desived mestly from standard market contracts traded in active and chservable markets, &
hierarchy significant proportion of equity fonsand contracts ane classfied as Level 2.
= Equity aption positions for which inputs are derived from standand market contracts traded in active and
observable markets are alio dassified as Level 2. Level 3 positions are thase for which valatiity, foreard or
comelation inpuis ane not obsenable.

Comemodity Walustion - Commodity foreard and swap contracts are measured using market-standard models that use market
contracts fanward bevels on standard instrumernts,
= Commodity option contracts afe rmexswed wing market-standard option models that estimate the
fonsard level & described for commadity farward and swap contracts, incorporating inputs
hrﬂeu:h'ﬂl of the u iredes o Far commod on baskets of commodities
of bespoke gmmﬁmg the ulummﬁdﬁm alusy Irmrpﬁ'mwmhptﬂ for the comelation
betwesn different commadities or commodity indices.

Faif walue = Individual commodity contracts are typically classified a3 Level 2, because active forward and wolatility
hierarchy rraatket data is svailable.

d) Valuation adjustments and other items

The cutput of a valuation technigue is always an estimate of a fair value that cannot be measured with complete certainty.
As a result, valuations are adjusted where appropriate and when such factors would be considered by market participants
in estimating fair value, to reflect dose-out costs, credit exposure, model-driven valuation uncertainty, funding costs and
benafits, trading restrictions and other factars.

Deferred day-1 profit or loss reserves

For new transactions where the valuation technique used to measure fair value requires significant inputs that are not
based on observable market data, the financial instrurnent is initially recognized at the transaction price. The transaction
price rmay differ from the fair value obtained using a valuation technigue, where any such difference is deferred and not
initially recognized in the income statement,

Deferred day-1 profit or loss is generally released into Other net income from financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss when pricing of equivalent products or the underlying parameters becomes observable or when
the transaction is closed out.

The table below summarizes the changes in deferred day-1 profit or loss reserves during the respective period.
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Deferred day-1 profit or loss reserves
L0

mrmmﬁmwm
Mdrlmmmgrndhﬂmsmm
Fﬂ'dy'lml'mq‘
Resenve halance s the end of the year 7 422 418

Crawn credit
Own credit risk is reflected in the valuation of UBS AG's fair value option liabilities where this component is considered
relevant for valuation purposes by UBS AG's counterparties and other market participants.

Changes in the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss related to own credit are
recognized in Other comprehensive income directly within Retained eamings, with no reclassification to the income
statement in future periods. This presentation neither creates nor increases an accounting mismatch in the income
statement, as UBS AG does not hedge changes in own credit.

Own credit is estimated using own credit adjustment (OCA) curves, which incorporate observable market data, including
market-observed secondary prices for UBS's debt and debt curves of peers. In the table below, the change in unrealized
own credit consists of changes in fair value that are attributable to the change in UBS AG's credit spreads, as well as the
effect of changes in fair values attributable to factors other than credit spreads, such as redemptions, effects from time
decay and changes in interest and other market rates. Realized own credit is recognized when an instrument with an
associated unrealized OCA is repurchased prior to the contractual maturity date. Life-to-date amounts reflect the
cumulative unrealized change since initial recognition.
¥ Refer to Nate 15 for more information about debt issued designated at fair value

Own credit adjustments on financial liabilities designated at fair value

Included in Dther compretensive income
For the year ended
FIRFF] 3 M.12.21
Fealived gain / loss) [ 1 ()
T S S
Total gain 1 oy, befon tax (B&T} BET 46
el 128 R 31.12.21
Recognized an the balance shewt & of the end ol the pesiod: . .

memwmup fei}.} 556 (315
i e T e M— J—
J-memwaum i) Fig {172

Credit valuation adjustments

In order to measure the fair value of OTC derivative instruments, including funded derivative instruments that are
classified as Financial assets at fair value not held for trading, CWAs are neaded to reflact the cradit risk of the counterparty
inherent in these instruments. This amount represents the estimated fair value of protection reguired to hedge the
counterparty credit risk of such instruments. A CVA is determined for each counterparty, considering all exposures with
that counterparty, and is dependent on the expected future value of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates,
applicable collateral or netting arrangements, break clauses, funding spreads, and other contractual factors.

Funding valuation adjustments

FvAs reflect the costs and benefits of funding assodated with uncollateralized and partially collateralized derivative
receivables and payables and are calculated as the valuation effect from moving the discounting of the uncollateralized
derivative cash flows from the ARR to OCA using the CVA framework, induding the probability of counterparty default.
An FVA i also applied to collateralized derivative assets in cases where the collateral cannot be sold or repledged.
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Debit valuation adjustments

A DVA is estimated to incorporate own credit in the valuation of derivatives where an VA is not already recognized. The
DVA calculation is effectively consistent with the CVA framework, being determined for each counterparty, considering
all exposures with that counterparty and taking into account collateral netting agreements, expected future mark-to-
market movements and UBS AG's credit default spreads.

COrther valuation adjustments

Instruments that are measured as part of a portfolio of combined long and short positions are valued at mid-market levels
to ensure consistent valuation of the long- and short-component risks. A liguidity valuation adjustment is then made to
the overall net long or short exposure to move the fair value to bid or offer as appropriate, reflecting current levels of
market liquidity. The bid-offer spreads used in the calculation of this valuation adjustment are obtained from market
transactions and other relevant sources and are updated periodically.

Uncertainties assodated with the use of model-based valuations are incorporated into the measurement of fair value
through the use of model reserves. These reserves reflect the amounts that UBS AG estimates should be deducted from
waluations produced directly by models to incorporate uncertainties in the relevant modeling assumptions, in the model
and market inputs used, or in the calibration of the model output to adjust for known model deficiencies. In arriving at
these estimates, UBS AG considers a range of market practices, including how it believes market participants would
assess these uncertainties, Model reserves are reassessed periodically in light of data from market transactions, consensus
pricing sefvices and other refevant sources.

Balance sheet vabuation adjustments on financial instruments

LA niza 11222
Cresdit vasation adjustments! [ER] 33
Funding and debit vahuation sdjussents [CF] (45
Otheralustionadustments [ Ee)
Ry P ETY
af wihvich: model ucestainty 23 fur]

1 Aaroants do ot indede e aqaing defaulind coumeRanis.
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

e) Level 3 instruments: valuation techniques and inputs

The table below presents material Level 3 assets and liabilities, together with the valuation techniques used to measure
fair value, the inputs used in a given valuation technique that are considered significant as of 31 Decernber 2023 and
unobservable, and a range of values for those unobservable inputs.

The range of values represents the highest- and lowest-level inputs used in the valuation technigues. Therefore, the range
does not reflect the level of uncertainty regarding a particular input or an assessment of the reasonableness of UBS AG's
estimates and assumptions, but rather the different underlying characteristics of the relevant assets and liabilities held by
UBS AG. The ranges will therefore vary from period to pericd and parameter to parameter based on characteristics of
the instruments held at each balance sheet date. Furthermore, the ranges of uncbservable inputs may differ across other
financial institutions, reflecting the diversity of the products in each firm's inventory.

Valuation technigues and inputs used in the fair value measurement of Level 3 assets and liabilities
Fair valne - Range ol inpisty
iahilities ETNFRI] 31222
hesets Sagnificant
Valustion unateervabie weighied
LS e IALF 3N 34233 HA222 vechnigels) inguatis)" low  high  aversge®  low  high aversge?  usit!
Finencial assets and liskiftes a fair value held fo trading and Finencial assets at fair voliae ot el for prading
muw Fiel atioe vathoe 100
.08 08 8p 80 satke compurable Wﬂ“#“ﬂg‘“ﬂ”mﬁwﬁ
Imwmuduqunﬁl basis
e Geshllows | Dmummargin  £1 AW M2 42 panly
Travtec oave, Ao
s o N bl
o covrmimeants s’ Fiel e vahot 100
st 23 07 00 80 saketcomparable  leanpricesquivelent 6 MM S8 30 100 97 pein

detigreated 5 Lair value 13 20 eash flowe Funding spread 5 2M FERIR i painls

deesteste @83 @85 4f  oF Opensodel  bes B8 M2 75 W3 pani
Discounted especied basis

g
'
=
#

=
£
#

100 1251 100 %
1Thm':n1§g'lTntlmtp-:nm TGRS and bk points. Foints ane a peroeniage of parfeg., ll]pﬂmvnhtllnﬂldpmj. 2ViEgRd asges o mist
=Cerkanie finarciad insrumons aag wene ciloiland ﬁwmuhhuiﬁm insmmems. Waighied sverages e po provided fin I"llldl'ﬂmﬂ'lh’ lahiiies

ar wali and dirandial ars s wonild o be meaningtel 3 The range of inpurs s not disdosed, & e a of values gisen T diverse nanare of thie insesmenss. & Debr
hn.lddﬂuudnﬁld.p‘h‘l‘_fmdLﬁﬁmMﬁﬂmﬂmﬂylﬂuﬁqumhﬁgl undealying s, a5 well a8 ranes Dnkoed and credin binked noves,
all o which hawe thert ane o be The ey inihe vesy Frandal Eoes i s ke
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Significant unobservable inputs in Level 3 positions

This section discusses the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of Level 3 instruments and assesses the
potential effect that a change in each unobservable input in isolation may have on a fair value measurement. Relationships
between observable and uncbservable inputs have not been included in the summary below.

Input Deseription
Bond price = Where market prices are not svailable for a bond, fair value i messured by comparison with abservable pricing data from
eqpuivalent sirvilar irstruments. Faclors condidened when selecting comparabie instruments indude credit quality, maturity and irdustry

of the issuer. Fair value may be measured esther by a direct price comparison or by conversion of an instrument price into &
yield {either & an outright yield or as a spread 1o the relsvant benchmark rate),

— For corporate and municipal bonds, the range represents the range of prices from reference Bsuances used in determining
fair walue, Bonds priced at 0 ase distressed to the point that no reooveny & expected, while prices significantly in exoess of
100 of par relate 1o inflation-fnked of structured ssusnces that pay 8 coupon in eacess of the market benchimark a3 of the
mesmsiement date.

= For credit derivatives, the bond price ranoe represents the ranoge of prices used for referende instruments, which ane Bypically
converted 1o.an equivalent yield or credit spread as pan ol the valustion process.

Loan price = Where marke! prices are nol svalable for 8 traded loan of 8 loan commitrment, fair value is messured by comparson with

epuivalent observable pricing data for smilar instrurments. Facion cordidered when selecting comparabie instruments. indude |rdustry
segment, collsteral quality, maturity and Eser-specific covenants. Fair value may be messured sither by a direct price
omparison of by conversion of an instrument price into & yield. The range represents the range of prices derved from
relerenie isswances of a similar credit quality used 1o measure Tair value lﬂ%ﬂdﬂ‘lhﬂulﬂﬂ 3, Lowans priced at 0 are
distrested to the point that no recovery is expected, while 8 curment price of 100 représents & loan that i expected to be
repaid in full

Credit spraad = Waluation models for credit derivatives and other credit seritive products ine an T the credit d, which
Bam&ﬁbndhmqmﬂmmmﬂemudmw;m anpmuﬁuw
in redation to the yield on & benchmark security of reference rate, typically either US Treasury of ARR, and i generally expressed
in terms ol basis points. An increase f(decrease) in cedit spread will increase / (decrease) the value of eredit protection offered
Iy credit default swaps and other credit derivative products. The income statement effect from such chanpes depends on the
nature and direction of the positions held. Creds spreads may be negative where the sisst i more creditworthy than the
benchmark against which the spresd is caloulated, & wider credit spread represents decreasing creditwarthiness. The nlﬁ
represents & diverse set of underyings, with the lower end of the range representing cedits of the highest quality and
uppes end of the range representing greater kvels of credit rik.

Discount margin — The discount mangin (DM) spread represents the discount rates applied 1o present value cach flows of an asset to reflect the
ket return required for uncestainty in the estimated cash fiows. DM spreads are & rate of rates spplied on top of a floating
index {e.g., Secwred Overnighit Financing Rate (SOFRY) to discount expected cash flows. Generally, & decrease / (ncrease) in
the D in isolation would result ina highes £ (ower) lair value.

— The high end of the range relstes to securities that are priced low within the market relstive to the expected cash flow
schedule. This indicates that the market is pricing an increased risk of credit kass into the sscurity that is greater than what is
being caplured by the expected cash flow generation process. The low ends of the ranges are typical of funding rates on
better-quality instruments,

Funding spread = Structuned financng trarsactions are valued using synithetic funding cunes thet best represent the swsets that ase pledged &
eollatesal for the transsctions. They afe not représentative ol wiene LIBS AG can fund Rsel on an ursecured basis but provide
an estimate of where UBS AG can souwce and deploy secuned funding with counterparties for a given type of collateral. The
Tursding spreads are expressed in terms of hasis points, and if furding spreads widen, this increases the efect of discounting.

= A small proportion of structured debt instruments and pon-structuned fived-rate bonds within linancial Rabilities designated
&t Tair value had an expodune to funding spreads that wis lonper in duration than the actively traded market.

Volatility — Volatility messures the variability of future prices lor a panticular instrument and i generaly expretied a3 b percentage, whene
& higher rumber reflects a more wolstile instrument, foe which future price movements are more likely to ocour. Volaidity is
& key input info option models, where it & used to derive a probabifity-hased distribution of future prices for the wnderlying
intrument. The effect of valatiity on individual postions. within the portfoliio is driven primarily by whether the option
contract & & long of short pasition. In most cases, the fair value of an option increases a5 & result of an incresse in volatility
and is reduced by a decrease in volatiity. Generally, volatifty used in the messurement of fair value is derived Trom active-
rrarket option prices {referred 1o as implied volatility). & key festure of implied volatility is the volatity “smile” o "skew,”
which represents the eflect of pridng options of dilerent aption strikes at dlfferent implied volatiity levels,
= Volatiities ol low intensst rates tend 1o be much higher than voletfities of high interest rates, In addition, different curnencies
sty have sgnificantly different implisd volstilites.
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Input Description

Correlation = Comelation meaiwes the intermelstionship between the movements of two vasiables, It s espressed as @ percentage beteeen
=100% and +100%, whese «100% represents perfectly correlated varisbles (meaning a movement of one varsble is
msssciated with a moverment of the ather varisble in the wame direction) and —100% implies that the variables are inversly
comelated (mesning & movement of one varisble & ssodated with @ movement of the other varishle in the opposite
direction). The effect of corelation on the measurement ol fair value depends on the speclic terms of the instruments being
valued, reflecting the ranpe of different payolf features within such instrurments.

Exquity dividend = The derivation of a foreard price for an individual steck or index is important for measuring fair value for fonsand of Seap

yields contracts and for measuring Tair value using aption pricing models. The relationship between the current stock price and the
Tareeard price & based on & combination of expected future dividend levels and payment timings, and, to & lesser extent, the
redesant funding rates applicable to the sock in question. Dividend yields are generally espressed & an annualized percentage
of the share price, with the lowest it of 0% representing & stock that i not expected to pay any dividend. The dividend
ﬂmdum:gwmﬂmﬂmmmwhd&mhlngfﬂmhrlmwm that are sensitive 1o an
equity fonward price.

f) Level 3 instruments: sensitivity to changes in unobservable input assumptions

The table below summarizes those finandal assets and labilities classified as Level 3 for which a change in one or more
of the unobservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible favorable and unfavorable altemnative assumptions would
change fair value significantly, and the estimated effect thereof. The table below does not represent the estimated effect
of stress scenarios. Interdependencies between Level 1, 2 and 3 parameters have not been incorporated in the table.
Furthermore, direct interrelationships between the Level 3 parameters discussed below are not a significant element of
the valuation uncertainty.

Sensitivity data is estimated using a number of technigues, including the estimation of price dispersion among different
market participants, variation in modeling approaches and reasonably possible changes to assumptions used within the
fair value measurement process. The sensitivity ranges are not always symmetrical around the fair values, as the inputs
used in valuations are not always predsely in the middle of the favorable and unfavorable ranga.

Sensitivity data is determined at a product or parameter level and then aggregated assuming no diversification benefit.
Diversification would incorporate estimated correlations across different sensitivity results and, as such, would result in
an overall sensitivity that would be less than the sum of the individual component sensitivities, However, UBS AG believes
that the diversification benefit is not significant to this analysis.

Senditivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable input asumptions!

113 AL

Fanceable Uniavorable Favorsble Unlgsnrable
LS changes changes hanges. change
Teaded o, losns meatred o (5T velue, logn commitments and quarsntee i [rsi 19 (13
mmm“mu s — T —
qum;wlmmu1m i e s
B L —~ e —3
Credit derivatives, et 1 L] 3 (4
Fersign eachirge dirfesSies, net 5 o 0 =
e — o e
Total TE1 [ TiE (5o
1 Senstiviy of Isiod 402 w0l The-CouTiEr 2UDL NCHTEMEns is reperied wilh 1he SoWAaier oraative or Oiber. 3 IRCAGES appied in ETNALNG VILETIDN UNDNTARTY A0THS Varioes paneem
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

g) Level 3 instruments: movements during the period

The table below presents additional information about material Leval 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. Level 3 assets and liabilities may be hedged with instruments dassified as Level 1 or Level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy, and, as a result, realized and unrealized gains and losses included in the table may not indude the effect
of related hedging activity. Furthermore, the realized and unrealized gains and losses presented in the table are not
lirited solely to those arising from Level 3inputs, as valuations are generally derived from both observable and
unobservable parameters. Assets and liabilities transferred into or out of Level 3 are presented as if those assets or
liabilities had been transferred at the beginning of the year.

Movements of Level 3 instruments
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

h) Maximum exposure to credit risk for finandal instruments measured at fair value

The tables below provide UBS AG's rmaximum exposure to oredit risk for financial instruments measured at fair value and
the respective collateral and other credit enhancements mitigating credit risk for these classes of finandal instruments.

The maximum exposure o credit risk includes the carrying amounts of finandal instruments recognized on the balance
sheet subject to credit risk and the notional amounts for off-balance sheet arrangements. Where information is available,
collateral is presented at fair value. For other collateral, such as real estate, a reasonable altemative value is used. Credit
enhancements, such as credit derivative contracts and guarantees, are included at their notional armounts. Both are
capped at the maximum exposure to credit risk for which they serve as security. The “Risk management and control”
section of this report describes management’s view of credit risk and the related exposures, which can differ in certain
respects from the requirements of IFRS Accounting Standards.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
ERR i)
CM [fﬂw Wu
Collsierslized credit figk
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epore o collaberal debit  Secured by Other derivative andsub-  and credit
LS credit risk fectived  instruments  resl emste  collateral  Netling  confracl palicipationd enhancesely
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Mote 20 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

i} Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The table below provides the estimated fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
.13 EIRFir]
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The fair values included in the table above have been calculated for disclosure purposes only. The valuation techniques
and assurnptions described below relate only to the fair value of UBS AG's financial instruments not measured at fair
value. Other institutions may wse different methods and assumptions for their fair value estimations, and therefore such
fair value disdosures cannot necessarily be compared from one financial institution to another. The following principles
ware applied when determining fair value estimates for financial instrurnents not measured at fair value.

- For finandial instruments with remaining maturities greater than three months, the fair value was determined from
quoted market prices, if available.

- Where quoted market prices were not available, the fair values were estimated by discounting contractual cash flows
using current market interest rates or appropriate yield curves for instrurnents with similar credit risk and maturity.
These estimates generally include adjustments for counterparty credit risk or UBS AG's own credit.

— For short-term financial instrurments with remaining maturities of three months or less, the carrying amount, which is
net of credit loss allowances, is generally considered a reasonable estimate of fair value.
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Note 21 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

UBS AG enters into netting agreements with counterparties to manage the credit risks associated primarily with
repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions, securities borrowing and lending, over-the-counter derivatives, and
exchange-traded derivatives. These netting agreements and similar arrangements generally enable the counterparties to
set off liabilities against available assets received in the ordinary course of business and / or in the event that the
counterparties to the transaction are unable to fulfill their contractual obligations.

The tables below provide a summary of financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements, as well as financial collateral received or pledged to mitigate credit
exposunes for these financial instruments.

LBS AG emgages in a variety of counterparty credit risk mitigation strategies in addition to netting and collateral
qtsl;fngenﬂnm Therefore, the net amounts presented in the tables below do not purport to represent their actual credit
risk exposure,

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements
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Note 21 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreemaents
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Mote 22 Restricted and transferred financial assets

This Mote provides information about restricted finandial assets (Mote 22a), transfers of financial assets (Mote 22b and
22c) and financial assets that are received as collateral with the right to resell or repledge these assets (Note 22d).

a) Restricted financial assets

Restricted financial assets consist of assets pledged as collateral against an existing liability or contingent lability and
other assets that are otherwise explicitty restricted such that they cannot be used to secure funding.

Financial assets are mainly pledged as collateral in securities lending transactions, in repurchase transactions and in
relation to mortgage loans, which serve as collateral against loans from Swiss mortgage institutions and US Federal Home
Loan Banks and in connection with the issuance of covered bonds. Of these pledged mortgage boans, approximately
LSD 2.0bn as of 31 December 2023 could be withdrawn or used for future liabilities or covered bond issuances without
breaching existing collateral requirements (31 December 2022: approximately USD 3.1bn). Existing liabilities against Swiss
central mortgage institutions and US Federal Home Loan Banks and for existing covered bond issuances were USD 15.4bn
as of 31 December 2023 (31 Decemnber 2022: USD 9.0bn).

Repurchase and securities lending arrangements are generally entered into under standard market agreements. For
securities lending, the cash received as collateral may be more or less than the fair value of the securities loaned,
depending on the nature of the transaction. For repurchase agreements, the fair value of the collateral sold under an
agreement to repurchase is generally in excess of the cash borrowed.

Other restricted financial assets include assets protected under client asset segregation rules, assets held under unit-lnked
investrment contracts to back related liabilities to the pdi% holders and assets held in certain jurisdictions to comply with
explicit mininnum local asset maintenance requirements. The carrying amount of the liabilites associated with these other
restricted finandial assets is generally equal to the carrying amount of the assets, with the exception of assets held to
comply with local asset maintenance requirements, for which the associated liabilities are greater.

Restricted finandal assets
LD 3223 31222
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In addition to the table abowe, USD 4.7bn were placed at central banks to meet local statutory mininmum reserve
requirements as of 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: USD 4.4bn).
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Mote 22 Restricted and transferred financial assets (continued)

In addition to restrictions on financial assets, UBS AG and its subsidiaries are, in certain cases, subject to regulatony
requirements that affect the transfer of dividends and capital within UBS AG, as well as intercompany lending. Supervisory
authorities also may require entities to measure capital and leverage ratios on a stressed basis, such as the Federal Reserve
Board's Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review (CCAR) process, which may limit the relevant subsidiaries’ ability to
make distributions of capital based on the results of those tests.

Supervisory authorities generally have discretion to impose higher requirements or to otherwise limit the activities of
subsidiaries.

Mon-requlated subsidiaries are generally not subject to such requirements and transfer restrictions. However, restrictions

can also be the result of different legal, regulatory, contractual, entity- or country-specific arrangements and / or
requirements.

b) Transferred finandial assets that are not derecognized in their entirety

The table below presents information for finandal assets that have been transferred but are subject to continued
recognition in full, as well as recognized liabilities assodated with those transferred assets.

Transferred financial assets subject to continued recognition in full
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trandemed necogrized trardemed recogrized
ety on balance sheel et on balance sheet
Finencial astets al fair valoe held for ieading thet say be soid or repledged by counleparties 44,524 23,974 35,742 16,470
Finnial ssses t foir vl R o wading ity b sl o regldiad By e S B SES
Cousterparties 2180 1,976 1,220 1,050
Dbt sepurties daiikid i O il et aiied a v it iy b e B S
suild of repladgad by counlmpartios 5,299 5,078 1,685 2,302
Tetal financisl ssets translemed 52,933 31,278 40,647 19,822

Transactions in which financial assets are transferred but continue to be recognized in their entirety on UBS AG's balance
sheet include securities lending and repurchase agreements, as well as other finandal asset transfers. Repurchase and
securities lending arrangernents are, for the most part, conducted under standard market agreements and are undertaken
with counterparties subject to UBS AG's normal credit risk control processes.

¥ Refer to Note 1a item 2e for more information about repurchase and securities lending agreements

Financial assets at fair value held for trading that may be sold or repledged by counterparties include securities lending
and repurchase agreements in exchange for cash received, securities lending agreements in exchange for securities
received and other financial asset transfers.

For securities lending and repurchase agreements, a haircut of between 0% and 15% is generally applied to the
transferred assets, which results in assodated liabilities having a carrying amount below the canrying amount of the
transferred assets. The counterparties to the associated liabilities included in the table above have full recourse to UBS AG.

In securities lending arrangements entered into in exchange for the receipt of other securities as collateral, neither the
securities received nor the obligation to return thern are recognized on UBS AG's balance sheet, as the risks and rewards
of ownership are not transferred to UBS AG. In cases where such financial assets received are subsequently sold or
repledged in another transaction, this is not considered to be a transfer of finandial assets.

Other financial asset transfers primarily include securities transferred to collateralize derivative transactions, for which the
carrying amaount of associated liabilities is not induded in the table above, because those replacement values are managed
on a portfolio basis across counterparties and product types, and therefore there is no direct relationship between the
spedific collateral pledged and the assodated liability.

Transferred finandal assets that are not subject to derecognition in full but remain on the balance sheet to the extent of
LBS AG's continuing involvernent were not material as of 31 December 2023 and as of 31 December 2022.
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Mote 22 Restricted and transferred financial assets (continued)

) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their entirety with continuing involvement

Continuing imvaolvernent in a transferred and fully derecognized financial asset may result from contractual provisions in
the particular transfer agreement or from a separate agreement, with the counterparty or a third party, entered into in
connection with the transfer.

The fair value and carrying amount of UBS AG's continuing invalvernent from transferred positions as of 31 December
2023 and 31 Decemnber 2022 was not material. Life-to-date losses reported in prior periods primarily relate to legacy
positions in securitization vehicles that have been fully marked down, with no remaining exposure to loss,

d) Off-balance sheet assets received

The table below presents assets received from third parties that can be sold or repledged and that are not recognized on
the balance sheet but that are held as collateral, including amounts that have been sold or repledged.

Off-balance sheet assets received
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Note 23 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

a) Maturity analysis of carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

The table below provides an analysis of carrying amounts of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as well as off-balance
sheet exposures by residual contractual maturity as of the reporting date. The residual contractual maturity of assets
includes the effect of callable features. The residual contractual maturity of liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures is
based on the earliest date on which a third party could require UBS AG to pay.

Derivative finandial instruments and financial assets and liabilities at fair value held for trading are presented in the Due
within 1 month column; however, the respective contractual maturities may extend over significantly longer periods.
Assets held to hedge unit-inked investment contracts (presented within Financial assets at fair value not held for trading)
are presented in the Due within 1 month column, consistent with the maturity assigned to the related amounts due
under unit-linked investrment contracts (presented within Other financial fiabilities designated at fair value),

Other finandial assets and liabilities with no contractual maturity, such as equity securities, are presented in the Perpetual /
Not applicable column. Undated or perpetual instruments are dassified based on the contractual notice pericd that the
counterparty of the instrument is entitled to give. Where there is no contractual notice period, undated or perpetual
contracts are presented in the Perpetual / Not applicable column.

Mon-finandial assets and liabilities with no contractual maturity are generally included in the Perpetual f Not applicable
colurmnmn.
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Note 23 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (continued)
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b) Maturity analysis of financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis

The table below provides an analysis of finandial liabilities on an undiscounted basis, including all cash flows relating to
lurlnr_lpal and future interest payments, The residual contractual maturities for non-derivative and non-trading financial
bilities are based on the earliest date on which LBS AG could be contractually required to pay. Derivative positions and
trading liabilities, predominantly made up of short sale transactions, are presented in the Due within T month column,
as this provides a conservative reflection of the nature of these trading activities. The residual contractual maturities may

extend over significantly longer periods.

311233

Due bistween D between
Tand3 Fand 12

LS fronths ot

Fingncial lishilities recognized en halance shest!

Perpetusl |
[
spphicable

Due betwesn  Due between
1and2yesrs 2 and 5 years

“Payables from sexurities financing sraractions
(Cash coll mersl payaties on desiuasive in

mﬂumm&wmm-ww 2B
el iswued mesiured at amortived cost

o wibioh: e fiabiliner

Tenal firancisl labiities measued &t smartized cost

110

TR
&5

355

Finencial lishilities at fair vahoe beld for wading™*

Euh&nhwda]rmmmu“

apables designated o {aif vaiue
at fai walue®

Dbt fssued )
Delx b m 1,/ PUUD BRI —— ] Ma—

03

Total firancial iabilities. measuned 1 Tair walue through
1.9

150

profit of bess
Total L]

[T 516 129

Gussantes, luen commitments. and lorwand shaning iransscsions.

Gusrsnlee

Fuuduﬁ'lg mw:ﬂmnm
bormwing agreements”

Imewvicable commited prolongation of edating leans

L

0E 1.3

L N

00 0o

Teaal 14 1.8

0.0 0.0

a2

Due between  Due betwesn
1and 3 and 12
monthy

LIS By monthi

Due betwesn  Due between
1and 2 yesrs 2 and 5 year

[Due over
5 pears

I o 1
Asourits due 1o banks
Papabiles from securities Hnlﬂrgm

cdl J E & e e e .....'.....................................................:............ e et ot h e et o e e ot et e
M5

o wiich; dpere il

03

03

]
(1]

.2 -

el bl e st gt sepyge gy iy,

Tensl fircancisl labilities meatured ot smartized cost
for gt

Tenal financisl abiities measued & fair value thcugh
profit of boss

0.4

164

L den e

N - )
5.0

20,0

17.3

a7a 12.7

et abde committed p ol It

LT

oo 40.0

B2
ER:
4.7

Tonal 03 04

(1] i k]

1 mhﬂmmnhmhﬁhmmmmmmmmlhhmm

pymens. ¥ The time-beciat Perpenal | Ko azplicable indudes |
ndlmdmnhlmmupﬂll‘ﬂﬂpmhunumudnndm

tior 1 capiual

geneially opsesent uastiosemed cash Hows of fater imesss and pring
3 Canying amoen b tair wakie. Managemen belses thal Wi bes mpasens

4 Conmrachal manuities of financial lasiites a1 fain valer held for vading e USD 23.50n der witiin 1 monch

(31 December 2022 D 3780n), USD 1.60m gus bevweon 1 month and | pea (31 December 2032 S0 1720} and USD 0tn duen beoween | and 5 peass (31 December 2003 USD0tn). S Inchudes LED 52n
[31 December 2022 S0 46m) relates o fair walues of dovisrsive lan commniments and fosward siarting mvers mparcthas agreenents cinsliod as oelsnives, e within D sithin | month®. The tal
rantracival comminied amgens of USD 85200 {31 December 2022 USD 34 &} is presenced in Mot 10 under nosional amounts. & Funum [nfeTes] paymens on varkazke-ring abilites as devesnined by iwlesace

‘the azphicable imesesT e piesailing as of the seponiag dare. Funase pincipal pagments
Lmn;mﬁnmmr;m:ﬁ*mm&

Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments

504/633

1har it variabie ane dermimeined oy eeienoe m the oo diTons @esing at T rrsant wpomng dae. 7 Exchades Serhatier

220



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Mote 24 Interest rate benchmark reform

During 2023, UBS AG largely completed the transition of the USD London Interbank Offered Rate (UBOR) contracts. The
transition of the largest remaining non-derivative exposure, the US mortgage portfolio of approximately USD 9bn as of
31 Decemnber 2022, was substantially completed, with these contracts automatically converting to term Secured
Owvernight Financing Rate (SOFR) from their next interest rate reset date following the cessation of the respective USD
LIBOR rates, i.e., 30 June 2023. Corporate loans in the Investment Bank have now also been transitioned to altermative
rates,

In August 2022, to facilitate the transition of derivatives linked to the USD UBOR Swap Rate, UBS AG adhered to the
June 2022 Benchmark Module of the ISDA 2021 Fallbacks Protoool on the USD LIBOR Swap Rate. As of 31 December
2023, the transition of these USD LIBOR-linked derivatives had been materially accomplished.

The table below sets out the contracts that remained as of 31 December 2022. Mo contracts are included as of
21 December 2023 given transition has largely completed as noted above.
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In addition, as of 31 December 2023 UBS AG had approximately USD 2bn equivalent of yen- and US dollar-denominated
funding from UBS Group AG that, per current contractual terms, if not called on their respective call dates, would reset
based directly on JPY LIBOR and USD LIBOR. Furthermore, several contracts providing funding from UBS Group AG
reference rates indirectly derived from IBORs, if they are not called on their respective call dates. These contracts have
robust IBOR fallback language, and the confirmation of interest rate calculation mechanics will be communicated in
advance of any rate resets.

MNote 25 Hedge accounting

Derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships

LIBS AG applies hedge accounting to interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, induding structural foreign exchange
risk related to net investments in foreign operations.
¥ Refer to "Market risk” in the "Risk management and control” section of this report for more information about how risks arise
and how they are managed by UBS AG

Hedging instruments and hedged risk

Interest rate swaps are designated in fair value hedges or cash flow hedges of interest rate risk arising solely from changes
in benchmark interest rates. Fair value changes arising from such risk are usually the largest component of the overall
change in the fair value of the hedged position in transaction curmency.

Cross-currency swaps are designated as fair value hedges of foreign exchange risk. Foreign exchange forwards and
foreign exchange swaps are mainly designated as hedges of structural foreign exchange risk related to net investrments
in foreign operations. In both cases the hedged risk arises solely from changes in the spot foreign exchange rate.

The notional of the designated hedging instruments matches the notional of the hedged iterns, except when the interest
rate swaps are designated in cash flow hedges after the trade date, in which case the hedge ratio designated is
determined based on the swap sensitivity.
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MNote 25 Hedge accounting (continuad)

Hedged items and hedge designation

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk related to debt instruments and loan assets

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk related to debt instruments and loan assets involve swapping fixed cash flows
associated with the loans to customers (induding long-term fixed-rate mortgage loans in Swiss francs), debt securities
hield, customer deposits, funding from UBS Group AG, debt issued to floating cash flows by entering into interest rate
swaps that either pay fixed and receive floating cash flows or that receive fixed and pay floating cash flows. The floating
future cash flows are based on the following benchrark rates: Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR), Effective Federal
Funds Rate (EFFR), Swiss Average Rate Owernight (SAROM), Euro Interbank Offered Rate (EURIBOR), Euro Short-Term Rate
(ESTR), Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONLA), AUD London Interbank Offered Rate (AUD LIBOR), Tokyo Overnight
Average Rate (TOMA) and Singapore Overnight Rate Average (SORA).

Cash flow hedges of forecast transactions

UBS AG hedges forecast cash flows on non-trading finandial assets and liabilities that bear interest at variable rates or
are expected to be refinanced or reinvested in the re, due to movements in future market rates. The amounts and
timing of future cash flows, representing both principal and interest flows, are projected on the basis of contractual terms
and other relevant factors, including estimates of prepayments and defaults. The aggregate prindpal balances and
interest cash flows across all portfolios over time form the basis for identifying the non-trading interest rate risk of
LIBS AG, which is hedged with interest rate swaps, the maximurn maturity of which i 15 years. Cash flow forecasts and
risk exposures are monitored and adjusted on an ongoing basis, and consequently additional hedging instruments are
traded and designated, or are terminated resulting in a hedge discontinuance.

Fair value hedges of foreign exchange risk related to issued debt instrumants

Debt instruments denominated in currencies ather than the US dollar are d?jjfgnated in fair value hedges of spot foreign
exchange risk, in addition to and separate from the fair value hedges of interest rate risk. Cross-currency swaps
economically convert debt instruments denominated in currencies other than the US dollar to US dollars. The hedge
designations also involve intragroup debt instruments which are eliminated upon consolidation but FX gains and losses
impact consalidated profit or loss.

Hedges of mat investmants in foreign operations

UBS AG applies hedge accounting for certain net investrments in foreign operations, which include subsidiaries, branches
and associates. Upon maturity of hedging instruments, typically one to three months, the hedge relationship is terminated
and new designations are made to reflect any changes in the net investrments in foreign operations.

Economic relationship between hedged itern and hedging instrurnent

The economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument is determined based on a qualitative
analysis of their critical terms. In cases where hedge designation takes place after the trade date of the hedging
instrument, a gquantitative analysis of the possible behavior of the hedging derivative and the hedged itemn during their
respective terms is also performed.

Sources of hedge ineffectiveness

In hedges of interest rate risk, hedge ineffectiveness can arise from mismatches of critical terms and / or the use of
different curves to discount the hedged item and instrument, o from entering into a hedge relationship after the trade
date of the hedging derivative.

In hedges. of foreign exch risk redated to debt Esued, hedge ineffectiveness can arise due to the disu:ounthiuf the
hedging instruments and undesignated risk components and lack of such discounting and risk components in the hedged
iterms,

In hedges of net investments in foreign operations, ineffectiveness is unlikely unless the hedged net assets fall below the
designated hedged amount. The exceptions are hedges where the hedging curmency is not the same as the currency of
the foreign operation, where the currency basis may cause ineffectiveness.

Hedge ineffectiveness from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in Other net
incovme from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated in hedge accounting relationships

Non-hedge-accounted derivatives are mandatorily held for trading with all fair value movements taken to Other net
income from financial instrumernts measured at fair value through profit or loss, even when held as an economic hedge
or to facilitate client clearing. The one exception relates to forward points on certain short- and long-duration foreign
exchange contracts acting as economic hedges, which are reported in Met interest income.
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Note 25 Hedge accounting (continued)

All hedges: designated hedging instruments and hedge ineffectiveness
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Note 25 Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges: profile of the timing of the nominal amount of the hedging instrument
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Interest rate benchmark reform

In 2023, UBS AG applied the relief provided by interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and
IFRS 7), published by the International Accounting Standards Board in September 2019, to its hedges in US dollars and
Singapore dollars until they transitioned to alternative reference rate (ARR) designations in May 2023 and June 2023,
respectively. The transition of fair value hedges tock place following the IBOR transition for swaps with LCH (formerly
the London Clearing House), with hedge relationships continuing in accordance with interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phasa 2 to IFRS G, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16). Cash flow hedge relationships were discontinued
and replaced with new ARR d&s:gmtmns in May 2023,

As of 31 Decemnber 2023, there were no hedge relationships where the designated risk is LBOR and maturing after the
cessation date of the applicable interest rate benchmarks. The following table provides details on the hedging instrurnents
in such hedge relationships as of 31 December 2022,

Hedges of net investmenis in foreign operations are not affected by the amendments.
¥ Refier to Mote 1a item 2f for more information about the relief provided by the amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 related to
Interest rate benchmark reform
¥ Refer to Mote 24 for more information about the transition progress

Hedging instruments referencing LIBOR
3.12.22
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined benefit plans

LBS AG has established defined benefit plans for its employees in various jurisdictions in accordance with local regulations
and practices. The marar plans are located in Switzerand, the UK, the US and Germany. The level of benefits depends
on the specific plan rules. UBS AG has not been involved in the major Credit Suisse defined banefit plans.

Swiss pension plan

In 2017, a significant number of employess were transferred from UBS AG to UBS Business Solutions AG, which is a
directly held subsidiary of UBS Group AG. There continues to be one pooled UBS Swiss pension plan in Switzerland
covering the employees of UBS AG and those transferred to UBS Business Solutions AG. UBS AG and UBS Business
Solutions AG both are legal sponsors of the UBS Swiss pension plan. Since the date of the employee transfer, UBS AG
and UBS Business Solutions AG apply proportionate defined benefit accounting, i.e., the net pension cost and the net
pension asset / liability of the UBS Swiss pension plan are allocated proportionally between UBS AG and UBS Business
Solutions AG based on the aggregated net pension cost and defined benefit obligations related to their employees. The
LIBS Swiss pension plan offers retiremnent, disability and survivor benefits and is governed by a Pension Foundation Board.
The responsibilities of this board are defined by Swiss pension law and the plan rules. The UBS Swiss pension plan exceeds
the minimum benefit requirements under Swiss pension law.

Savings contributions to the UBS Swiss pension plan are paid by both the employer and the employee. Depending on the
age of the employes, UBS AG pays a savings contribution that ranges between 6.5% and 27.5% of the contributony
base salary and between 2.8% and 9% of the contributory variable compensation. Employees can choose the level of
savings contributions paid by them, which vary between 2.5% and 13.5% of the contributony base salary and between
0% and 9% of the contributory variable compensation, depending on age and choice of savings contribution category.
LIBS AG also pays risk contributions that are used to fund disability and survivor benefits.

The plan offers to members at the nomal retirement age of 65 a choice between a lifetime pension and a partial or full
lurnp sum payment. Participants can choose to draw early retirernent benefits starting from the age of 58, but they can
also continue employment and remain active members of the plan until the age of 70. Employees can make additional
purchases of benefits to fund early retirement benefits.

The pension amount payable to a participant is calculated by applying a conversion rate to the accumulated balance of
the participant’s retirement savings account at the retirerent date. The balance is based on credited vested benefits
transferred from previous employers, purchases of benefits, employee and employer contributions made to the
participant's retirement savings account, and interest accrued. The annual interest rate credited to participants is
determined by the Pension Foundation Board at the end of each year,

Although the LUBS Swiss pension plan is based on a defined contribution promise under Swiss pension law, it is accounted
for as a defined benefit plan under IFRS Accunﬁngeswﬂarﬂ primarily because of the obligation to accrue interest on
the participants’ retirement savings accounts and the payment of lifetime pension benefits.

An actuarial valuation in accordance with Swiss pension law is performed regularly. Should an underfunded situation on
this basis ocour, the Pension Foundation Board is required to take the necessary measures to ensure that full funding can
be expected to be restored within a maximum period of 10 years. If a Swiss plan were to become significantly
underfunded on a Swiss pension law basis, additional employer and employee contributions could be required. In this
situation, the risk is shared between employer and employess, and the employer is not legally obliged to cover more than
S0% of the additional contributions required. As of 31 December 2023, the UBS Swiss pension plan had a technical
funding ratio in accordance with Swiss pension law of 119.2% (31 December 2022: 119.0%).

The investment strategy of the UBS Swiss pension plan complies with Swiss pension law, including the rules and
regulations relating to diversification of plan assets, and is derived from the risk budget defined by the Pension Foundation
Board hased on regularly performed asset and liability management analyses. The Pension Foundation Board strives for
a medium- and long-term balance between assets and liabilities.

As of 31 December 2023, the UBS Swiss pension plan was in a surplus situation on an IFRS Accounting Standards
measurerment basis, as the fair value of the plan's assets exceeded the defined benefit obligation (DBO) by USD 3,585m
i21 Decernber 2022: USD 4,418m). However, a surplus is only recognized on the balance sheet to the extent that it does
not exceed the estimated future economic benefit, which equals the difference between the present value of the
estimated future net service cost and the present value of the estimated future employer contributions. As of both
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the estimated future economic benefit was zero and hence no net defined
benefit asset was recognized on the balance sheet.

The regular employer contributions to the UBS Swiss pension plan in 2024 are estimated at USD 315m.
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

UK pension plan

The UBS UK pension plan is a career-average revalued eamings scheme, and benefits increase automnatically based on
LK price inflation, subject to defined caps. The normnal retirement age for most participants is 60 or 65. The plan provides
guaranteed lifetime pension benefits to participants upon retirement. The UK plan has been dosed to new entrants for
more than 20 years and participants are no Icm;ger accruing benefits for current or future service. Instead, employees
participate in the UBS UK defined contribution plan.

The governance responsibility for the UBS UK plan lies jointly with the UBS UK Pension Trustee Board and UBS AG. The
Elan assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of financial assets, which indude longevity swaps to hedge the risk
etween expected and actual longevity.

In 2019, UBS AG and the UBS UK Pension Trustee Board entered an arrangement whereby a collateral pool was
established to provide security for the UBS UK pension fund. The value of the collateral pool as of 31 December 2023
was USD 260m (31 December 2022: USD 292m) and includes corporate bonds, govermment-related debt instruments
and other financial assets. The arrangement provides the Pension Trustee Board dedicated access to a pool of assets in
the event of UBS AG's insolvency or not paying a required funding contribution.

In 2023, UBS AG made funding contributions of USD 19m to the UBS UK pension plan (2022: USD Sm). The employer
contributions to the UBS UK pension plan in 2024 are estimated at USD 19m, subject to regular funding reviews during
the year,

U5 defined benefit plans
There are two main UBS US pension plans, with a normal retirement age of 65. Both plans were closed to new entrants
more than 20 years ago. Since they dosed, new employees have participated in a UBS defined contribution plan.

One of the UBS defined benefit plans is a contribution-based plan in which each participant accrues a percentage of
salary in a retirernent savings account. The retirement savings account is credited annually with interest based on a rate
that is linked to the average yield on one-year US government bonds. For the other UBS defined benefit plan, retirement
benefits accrue based on the career-average earnings of each individual plan participant. Former employees with vested
benefits can take a lump sum payment or a lifetime annuity.

As required under applicable pension laws, both plans have fidudaries who, together with UBS AG, are responsible for
the governance of the plans.

Each plan's fiduciaries are responsible for the imestment decisions with respect to the plan assets. The plan assets of
both plans are invested in diversified portfolios of financial assets.

The employer contributions to the UBS US defined benefit plans in 2024 are estimated at USD 12m.

German pension plans

There are two major unfunded UBS defined benefit plans in Germany. The nomnal retirernent age is 65 and benefits are
paid directly by UBS AG. In the larger of the two plans each participant accrues a percentage of salary in a retirement
savings account. The accurnulated account balance of the participant is credited on an annual basis with guaranteed
interest at a rate of 5%. The plan has been dosed to new entrants, and all participants younger than the age of 55 as of
June 2021 no longer accrue benefits. In the other plan, amounts are accrued annually based on employee elections
related to variable compensation. For this plan, the accumulated account balance is credited on an annual basis with a
guaranteed interest rate of 6% for amounts accrued before 2010, of 4% for amounts acorued from 2010 to 2017 and
of 0.9% for amounts accrued after 2017. Both plans are subject to German pension law, whereby the responsibility to
pay pension benefits when they are due resides entirely with UBS AG. A portion of the pension payments is directly
increased in line with price inflation.
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

In June 2021, UBS AG implemented a new funded UBS pension plan with interest credited to participants equal to actual
investment returns with a guaranteed minimum of 0%. The plan was implemented retrospectively for new hires since
June 2018 and for all eligible active participants younger than 55 from July 2021. Each participant accrues a percentage
of salary in a retirement savings account.

The employer contributions to the UBS German defined benefit plans in 2024 are estimated at USD 14m.
Financial information by plan

The tables below provide an analysis of the movement in the net asset / liability recognized on the balance sheet for
defined benefit plans, as well as an analysis of amounts recognized in net profit and in Other comprehensive income.

Defined benefit plans
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)
Income satement — expenses relssed to defined bemefit plars!
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The table below provides information about the duration of the DBO and the timing for expected benefit payments.

Swiss plan UK glan S and Genman plans®
Il nann Az A HA2ZE N1
Duration of the defined bensfit obligation (in yeers) 141 134 .5 13.7 18 74
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Actuarial assumptions
The actuarial assumptions used for the defined benefit plans are based on the economic conditions prevailing in the
jurisdiction in which they are offered. Changes in the defined benefit obligation are mast sensitive to changes in the
discount rate. The discount rate is based on ?he yield of high-quality corporate bonds quoted in an active market in the
currency of the respective plan. A decrease in the discount curve increases the DBO. UBS AG regularly reviews the
actuarial assumpticns used in calculating the DBO to determine their continuing relevance.

¥ Refer to Note 1a item 5 for a deseription of the sccounting policy for defined benefit plans

The tables below show the significant actuarial assumptions used in calculating the DBO at the end of the year,

Significant actuarial assumptions of defined benefit

plans
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Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions

The table below presents a sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption, showing how the DBO would
have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumption that were reasonably possible at the balance sheet
date. Unforeseen circumstances may arise, which could result in variations that are outside the range of alternatives
deemed reasonably possible. Caution should be used in extrapolating the sensitivities below on the DBO, as the
sensitivities may not be linear.

Senaitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions!
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Fair value of plan assats
The tables below provide information about the composition and fair value of plan assets of the major defined benefit
plans.

Composition and fair value of plan assets

Swids defined benefit plan

EY R Fi] 11222

Flon amet Flan asset
Fair val sllocation % Fair welue llocasion %
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)
Composition and fair value of plan assets (continued)

LK defined benefit plan
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

b) Defined contribution plans

UBS AG sponsors several defined contribution plans, with the most significant plans in the US and the UK. UBS AG's
obligation is limited to its contributions made in accordance with each plan, which may include direct contributions and
matching contributions. Employer contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense and were
U5D 320m in 2023 and USD 299m in 2022,

¥ Refer to Note & for more informathon

) Related-party disclosure

LBS AG is the principal provider of banking services for the pension fund of UBS AG in Switzerland. In this capacity,
LBS AG is engaged to execute most of the pension fund's banking activities. These activities can include, but are not
limited to, trading, securities lending and borrowing and derivative transactions. The non-Swiss UBS AG pension funds
do not have a similar banking relationship with UBS AG. During 2023, UBS AG received LISD 20m in fees for banking
services from the major post-employment benefit plans (2022: USD 20m). As of 31 Decemnber 2023, the major post-
employment benefit plans held USD 3%6m in UBS Group AG shares (31 Decemnber 2022: USD 253m).

¥ Refer to the "Composition and fair value of plan assets” table in Note 26a for more information about fair value of investments in

UBS AG and UBS Group AG Instruments held by the Swiss pension fund

Note 27 Employes benefits: variable compensation

a) Plans offered

UBS has several share-based and other deferred compensation plans that align the interests of Group Executive Board
(GER) members and other employees with the interests of investors.

Share-based awards are granted in the form of notional shares and, where permitted, carry a dividend equivalent that may be
paid in notional shares or cash. Awards are settled by delivering UBS shares at vesting, except in jurisdictions where this is not
permitted for legal or tax reasons.

Deferred compensation awards are generally forfeitable upon, among other circumstances, voluntary termination of

ermployment with UBS. These compensation plans are also designed to meet regulatory requirements and incdude special
provisions for regulated employees. For the majority of variable compensation awards granted under such plans to

employess of UBS AG, the iranmr entity is UBS Group AG. Expenses associated with these awards are charged by UBS
Group AG to UBS AG. For the purpose of this Mote, references to shares refer to UBS Group AG shares.

The most significant deferred compensation plans are descoribed below.
¥ Refer to Mote 1a item & for a description of the sccounting policy related to share-based and other deferred compensation plans

Mandatory deferred compensation plans

Long-Term Incentive Plan
The Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTI is a mandatory deferred share-based compensation plan for senior leaders of the
Group {i.e., GEB members and selected senior management).

The number of notional shares delivered at vesting depends on two equally weighted performance metrics over a three-
year performance period: retum on common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital and relative total shareholder return, which
compares the total shareholder retum (TSR) of UBS with the TSR of an index consisting of listed Global Systernically
Important Banks as determined by the Financal Stability Board (exduding UBS). The final number of shares vest over
three years following the performance period for GEB mernbers, and diff-vest in the year following the performance
period for selected senior management.

Equity Ownership Fan / Fund Ownership Plan
The Equity Cwnership Plan (EOP) i the deferred share-based compensation plan for employees outside of the GEB that
are subject to deferral requirements. EOP awards generally vest over three years,

Certain Asset Management employees receive some or all of their EOP in the form of notional funds (Fund Canership
Plan or FOP, previously named AM EOP). This plan is generally delivered in cash and vests owver three years. The amount
delivered depends on the value of the underhying investrment funds at the time of vesting.

Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 232

516/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 27 Employee benefits: variable compensation (continued)

Deferred Contingent Capital Plan

The Deferred Contingent Capital Plan (DCCP) is a deferred compensation plan for all employees who are subject to
deferral requirements. Such employees are awarded notional additional tier 1 (AT1) capital instruments, which, at the
discretion of UBS, can be settled in cash or a perpetual, marketable AT1 capital instrument. DCCP awards generally bear
notional interest paid annually {except for certain regulated employees) and vest in full after five years. Awards are
forfeited if a viability event cccurs {i.e., if FINMA notifies the firm that the DCCP awards must be written down to mitigate
the risk of insolvency, bankruptcy or failure of UBS) or if the firm receives a commitrnent of extracrdinary support from
the public sector that is necessary to prevent such an event. DCCP awards are also written down if the Group's CET1
capital ratic falls below a defined threshold. In addition, GEB members forfeit 20% of DCCP awards for each loss-making
year during the vesting period.

Financial advisor variable compensation

In line with rarket practice for US wealth management businesses, the compensation for US financial advisors in Global
Wealth Management consists of cash compensation and deferred compensation awards, determined using a formulaic
approach hased on production.

Cash compensation reflects a percentage of the compensable production that each financial advisor generates.
Compensable production is generally based on transaction revenue and investment advisory fees and may reflect further
adjustments. The percentage rate generally varies based on the level of the production and firm tenure.

Financial advisors may also be granted annual deferred compensation. These amounts generally vest ower a six-year
pericd. The annual deferred compensation amount reflects the overall percentage rate and production.

Cash compensation and deferred compensation awards m;}r be reduced for, among other things, errors, negligence or
caredessness, or failure to comply with the firm's rules, standards, practices and / or policies, and / or applicable laws and
requlations.

Financial advisors may also participate in additional programs to support promoting and developing their business or
suppaorting the transition of client relationships where appropriate. Financial advisor compensation also indudes expenses
related to compensation comrmitments with finandial advisors entered into at the time of recruitment that are subject to
vesting reguirements.

Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 233

517/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 27 Employee benefits: variable compensation (continued)

b) Effect on the income statement

Effect an the income staternent for the financial year and future periods

The table below provides information about compensation expenses related to total variable compensation that were
recognized in the financial year ended 31 December 2023, as well as expenses that ware defemred and will be recognized
in the income statemnent for 2024 and later. The majority of expenses deferred to 2024 and later that are related to the
2023 performance year pertain to awards granted in February 2024, The total unamortized compensation expense for
urwested share-based awards granted up to 31 December 2023 will be recognized in future periods over a weighted
average period of 2.6 years.

Variable compensation
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Variable compensation (contineed)
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Note 27 Employee benefits: variable compensation (continued)

) Outstanding share-based compensation awards

Share and performance share awards
Movernents in outstanding share-based awards granted by UBS AG and its subsidiaries to employees during 2023 and
2022 are provided in the table below.

Movements in outstanding share-based compensation awards

Weighted Weighted

‘geand avitage giant

Murniber of shares date foir  Mumber of shanes date {5
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Cutstanding, &t the end of the year T56,915 19 E14 438 17
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The total carrying amount of the liability related to cash-settled share-based awards as of 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022 was USD 14m and USD 7m, respectively.

d) Valuation

LIBS share awards

UBS measures compensation expense based on the average market price of UBS shares on the grant date as quoted on
the SIX Swiss Exchange, taking into consideration post-vesting sale and hedge restrictions, non-vesting conditions and
market conditions, where applicable. The fair value of the share awards subject to post-vesting sale and hedge restrictions
is discounted on the basis of the duration of the post-vesting restriction and is referenced to the cost of purchasing an
at-the-money European put option for the term of the transfer restriction. The grant date fair value of notional shares
without dividend entitlernents also includes a deduction for the present value of future expected dividends to be paid
between the grant date and distribution.

Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other entities

a) Interests in subsidiaries

LIBS AG defines its significant subsidiaries as those entities that, either individually or in 2ogregate, contribute significantly
to UBS AG's financial position or results of operations, based on a number of criteria, including the subsidiaries’ eguity
and contribution to UBS AG's total assets and profit or loss before tax, in accordance with the requirements set by
IFRS 12, Swiss regulations and the rules of the US Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC).

Individually significant subsidiaries

The table below lists UBS &G's individually significant subsidiaries as of 31 December 2023. Unless otherwise stated, the
subsidiaries listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares held entirely by UBS AG and the proportion
of cwnership interest held is equal to the voting rights held by UBS AG.

The country where the respective registered office is located is also the principal place of business. UBS AG operates
through a global branch network and a significant proportion of its business activity is conducted outside Switzerland,
including in the UK, the US, Singapore, the Hong Kong SAR and other countries. UBS Europe SE has branches and offices
in a number of EUJ Member States, induding Germany, Haly, Luxernbourg, France and Spain. Share capital is provided in
the currency of the legally registered office.

Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 236

520/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Mote 28 Interasts in subsidiaries and othar antities (continued)

Individually significant subsidiaries of UBS AG as of 31 December 2023"

Compény Registered affioe Frimary business Share capital in million  Equity intesest sccumulated in %
UBE Americas Holding LLC Wilninghon, Delswsne, USA Group Nems usn 2,900.00 1000
UBS hmericas Inc. Wilmington, Delewsre, USA Group Nems usn oo 1000

T Wgede: GHG and (RGNS subsknes of U &G, 3 LOMISS OF conmon s copital of IS0 LOTO ard Acqewing g shar capital of USD 2, 900,000,000. 3 Cansis of common shase Capisal of

S0 103,308 and ne-woting prefenes shase capital of USD: 1,243,000,000.

Other subsidiaries

The table below lists other direct and indirect subsidiaries of UBS AG that are not individually significant but contribute
to UBS AG's total assets and aggregated profit before tax thresholds and are thus disclosed in accordance with
requirements set by the SEC.

Other subsidiaries of UBS AG as of 31 December 2023
Ciampany Registesed oifice

UBS Axeet Maragement fAmesicagfine. Wiksingis, Delownm, U5A
LIBS Asvet Managesient (Hong Kong) Limited China

LIS Sesurilies Hong Kong Limiled Harg Kong SAR, China rvesiment Bank HED 18416 1000
LIRS Secuities Japan Co., L1d, Tokya, lagan Fevestment Barit 1Y 34,708.7 1000
LIBS Subl TRUST Wealth Menagement Ca., Ld. Tokyn, lapan Global Wealth Mansgessen Iy 5,965.0 510

1 nclages a il amoem relating 10 mdeenabk e e

Consolidated structured entities
Consolidated structured entities (SEs) include certain investment funds, securitization vehicles and client investment
vehicles. UBS AG has no individually significant subsidiaries that are SEs.

In 2023 and 2022, UBS AG did not enter into any contractual obligation that could require UBS AG to provide financial
support to consolidated SEs. In addition, UBS AG did not provide support, financial or otherwise, to a consolidated SE
when UBS AG was not contractually obligated to do so, nor does UBS AG curently have any intention to do so in the
future. Furthermore, UBS AG did not provide support, financial or otherwise, to a previously unconsolidated SE that
resulted in UBS AG controlling the SE during the reporting period.
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Mote 28 Interasts in subsidiaries and othar antities (continued)

b) Interests in associates and joint ventures

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no associate or joint venture was individually material to UBS AG.
Also, there were no significant restrictions on the ability of assodates or joint ventures to transfer funds to UBS AG or its
subsidiaries as cash dividends or to repay loans or advances made. There were no quoted market prices for any associates
or joint ventures of UBS AG.

Investments in assodates and joint ventures
LS

g o e e o e ———— M8

Fareign currency Iransdation a7 (30
Carrying smount & the end of the year
B ... S ...

o iy finior e £

T ol 2023, s of negatie LD 152 1100 ocknes (i 2002, consbis of UED 27 40 asoaaies and USD 5 Do |l werleresl 3 For 2003, consss of negaiet WISD 170 Bom Jsooaits (o 2002,
oonsic of negaries UED Tam from asmdaiest A In 2023, UES AG's kegal exainy interest amdened m 17%. UBS 465 i rpsenno on 1 Soaed of Diveone.

¢) Unconsolidated structured entities

LBS AG is considered to sponsor another entity if, in addition to ongoing involvement with that entity, it had a key role
in establishing that entity ar in bringing to?r!rher relevant counterparties for a transaction fadlitated by that entity. During
2023, UBS AG sponsored the creation of various SEs and interacted with a number of non-sponsored SEs, including
securitization vehicles, client vehicles and certain investment funds, that UBS AG did not consolidate as of 31 December
2023 because it did not contral them.

Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The table below presents UBS AG's interests in and maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated SEs, as well as the
total assets held by the SEs in which UBS had an interest as of year-end, except for investment funds sponsored by third
parties, for which the carrying amount of UBS's interest as of year-end has been disclosed.

As a consequence of the acquisition of the Credit Suisse Group and the resulting increase in interests in structured
entities, interests in client vehicles sponsored by UBS are presented separately to other vehicles sponsored by third parties,
to clearly distinguish the different types of entities that UBS is involved with. Further, bonds issued by US
govemment-sponsored entities included within Group Treasury's HQLA portfolio have been excluded given UBS does not
absorb significant risk and third-party funding vehicles of large multi-nationals have been excluded as they are no longer
considered structured entities. Prior periods have been restated to reflect these changes. s a consequence of these
changes, UBS AG does not disdose any interest in other vehicles sponsored by third parties.

Sponsored unconsolidated structured entities inowhich UES did not have an interest at year-end
During 2023 and 2022, UBS AG did not earn materal income from sponsored unconsolidated SEs in which UBS did not
hiave an interest at year-end.

During 2023 and 2022, UBS AG and third parties did not transfer any assets into sponsored securitization vehicles created
in the year. UBS AG and third parties transferred assets, alongside deposits and debt issuances (which are assets from
the perspective of the vehicle), of USD 0.5bn and USD 0.5bn, respectively, into sponsored dient vehicles created in 2023
(2022: USD 1bn and USD 3bn, respectively). For sponsored investment funds, transfers arose during the period as
investors invested and redeemed positions, thereby changing the overall size of the funds, which, when combined with
market movermnents, resulted in a total closing net asset value of USD 44bn (31 Decembser 2022: USD 38bn).
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Mote 28 Interasts in subsidiaries and othar antities (continued)

ENR ¥

Mazimum
LIS o, enneed mbere dnoiave Total e 1o lois!
Finencisl astets at fair value beld for irading 7,538 7,538
Detbatle nasdialinsinnents 1 w8 35T
4 _ 1] o 200 200
Finencial assets ai fair vahoe not held for rading 1] [] 143 143 143
Finencial astets measured al fai walue Beoush other B o o o o
cofrprehendive incose
Other financial sssets seeured & amonized cost 188 [] o 188 438
Tenal sty I8 185 THN B, 285 B34
Dierivative Snandal instnaments 1 B 590 5598 1
Total Gabilities. 1 B 50 508 1
Aggnts, held by the unconsolidaed struciured ensities in which UES
AG had an inserest (USD b ™ Pl 118
ENN
Securilization Client Vehides Iesiment Maximum
LIS o, dnnend e dnien wehides!?  sponsoed by UBS? Tunds Tanal epiine 1o hoss!
__El'ﬂlﬂlmn!hi‘ﬂ!l’d‘lhnﬂ'ﬂg x| 2 5EE4 &, 149 E,,1-Ig__

o
Mmuhrﬂnw b - e ; b
Tiokal ety 66 162 6,228 5,657 6,207
Dierivative Snasdal insinsmenis i a5 T3 738 2
Tieksl Rabilities. 1 a5 T3 798 2
Aessat, held by the uncensoldated structured ensities in which UBS
AG had &n intenest (USD br) Eg z 55

1 Inclaies securities ksued by soertiznion sineciend ncitios sporemed by both UBS and thisd pares. Iﬁnﬂﬂmqmnmmummqﬂrxamhhm
mgulaiTey iguilenens and s o aonsdined an irmesrem fund Eflecies fom 31 Deosniser 2003, bongk isend by US gossmment-spomsond otk indisd in Grsap Treaseny's HOLA aad imenss in third-
ety tancling wekides of bigs multi-aationak base Been eadurked, sith rior perloss restaned. T sesaETE resabod in 3 deokats in iR in spoiitimnion vehkide: of USD 352m and 3 de0ans in [emHess in
it vahiicles of USD) 5,057 a5 of 31 December 20072, These was & cormesponding decnses in asws Reld by sxuritzation vohicks in shich UBS has an imees of USD 1120 and & decreass in assets hald by dient
webiches in which UBS Bas an immies of U0SD 10500 2500 31 Decenba 2020, § For the parpass of this i VTS G I |Gt MDA £ Mot craskder T sk-seducing offects of milne] o ot
oot enhanoements. 4 Brprosents the piincial anoun cesanding. & Seprosens the markes valee of ol assets. & Ropseiants e e awet valee of fie invesimen funds spovssd by UBS and the cning
arepmit of UBS's imessrs i 1he ivastnen funds aor sparsared by LSS,

LBS AG retains or purchases interests in unconsolidated SEs in the form of direct investments, financing, guarantees,
letters of credit and derivatives, as well as through management contracts. UBS AG's maximum exposure to loss is
generally equal to the carmying amount of UBS AG's interest in the given SE, with this subject to change over time with
market movernents. Guarantees, letters of credit and credit derivatives are an exception, with the given contract's
notional amount, adjusted for losses already incurred, representing the maximurm loss that UBS AG is exposed to.

The maximum exposure to loss disclosed in the table above does not reflect UBS AG's risk management activities,
including effects from financial instruments that may be used to economically hedge risks inherent in the given
unconsolidated SE or risk-reducing effects of collateral or other credit enhancements.

In 2023 and 2022, UBS AG did not provide support, finandal or otherwise, to any unconsolidated SE when not
contractually obligated to do so, nor does UBS AG currently have any intention to do so in the future,

In 2023 and 2022, income and expenses from interests in unconsolidated SEs primarily resulted from mark-to-market
movernents recognized in Other net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss,
which were generally hedged with other financial instruments, as wedl as fee and commission income received from UBS-
sponsoned funds.

Interests in securitization wehicles
As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, UBS AG held interests, both retained and acquired, in various
securitization vehicles that relate to finanding, undenwriting, secondary market and derivative trading activities.
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Mote 28 Interasts in subsidiaries and other entities (continuad)

The numbers outlined in the table above may differ from the securitization positions presented in the 31 December 2023
Pillar 3 Report, available under “Fillar 3 disclosures™ at ubs.comfinvestors, for the following reasons: (i) exdusion of
synthetic securitizations transacted with entities that are not SEs and transactions in which UBS AG did not have an
interest because it did not absorb any risk; (i) a different measurement basis in certain cases (e.g., IFRS Accounting
Standards carrying amount within the table above compared with net exposure amount at default for Fillar 3 disclosures);
and (jii} different classification of vehicles viewed as sponsored by UBS AG versus sponsored by third parties.

¥ Refer to the 31 December 2023 Pillar 3 Report, available under “Pillar 3 disdosures™ &t whs comfrvestors, for more information

Interests in chient vehicles sponsored by UBS

UBS-sponsored client vehicles are established predominantly for clients to gain exposure to spedfic assets or risk
exposunes. Such vehicles may enter into derivative agreements, with UBS or a third party, to align the cash flows of the
entity with the investor's intended investment objective, or to introduce other desired risk exposures.

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, UBS AG retained interests in client vehicles sponsored by UBS that
relate to financng, secondary market and derivative trading activities, and to hedge structured product offerings.

Interests in investment funds

Investrnent funds have a collective investrment objective, and are either passively managed, so that any dedsion-making
does not have a substantive effect on variability, or are actively managed and investors or their governing bodies do not
have substantive voting or similar rights.

LIBS AG holds interests in a number of investment funds, primarily resulting from seed investrents or in order to hedge
structured product offerings. In addition to the interests disdosed in the table above, UBS AG manages the assets of
VEFIOUS led investrnent funds and receives fees based, in whole or in part, on the net asset value of the fund and / or
the performance of the fund. The specific fee structure is determined based on various market factors and considers the
fund's nature and the jurisdiction of incorporation, as well as fee schedules negotiated with dients. These fee contracts
represent an interest in the fund, as they align UBS AG's exposure with investors, providing a variable return based on
the performance of the entity. Depending on the structure of the fund, these fees may be collected directly from the
fund's assets and / or from the investars. Any amounts due are collected on a regular basis and are generally backed by
the fund's assets. Therefore, interest in such funds is not represented by the on-balance sheet fee receivable but rather
by the future exposure to variable fees. The total assets of such funds were USD 356bn and USD 336bn as of
21 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively, and have been excluded from the table above. UBS AG did not
have any material exposure to loss from these interests as of 31 Decemnber 2023 or as of 31 December 2022.

MNote 29 Changes in organization and acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and businesses

Disposals of subsidiaries and businessas

Sale of UBS Hana Asset Management Co., Ltd.

In the fourth quarter of 2023, UBS AG completed the sale of its 519% stake in UBS Hana Asset Man ent Co., Ltd. to
Hana Securities. Upon completion of the sale, UBS AG recorded a pre-tax gain of USD 23m (net of a foreign currency
translation loss) in Asset Management which was recognized in Other income.

Changes in organization

Legal structure integration

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG, and
bioth entities entered into a definitive merger agreement. The completion of the merger is subject to regulatony approvals
and is expected to occur by the end of the second quarter of 2024.

LBS also expects to complete the transition to a single US intermediate holding company in the second quarter of 2024
and the planned merger of UBS Switzerland AG and Credit Suisse {Schweiz) AG in the third quarter of 2024.
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Mote 30 Related parties

Related parties of UBS AG are:

- enfities within UBS Group, ie, the parent entity, UBS Group &G, and fellow subsidiaries consolidated within
UBS Group (induding Credit Suisse subsidiaries from the date of the acquisition of the Credit Suisse Group),;
associates (entities that are under the significant influence of UBS AG or other group entities consolidated within
UBS Group);

joint ventures (entities in which UBS AG or other group entity consolidated within UBS Group shares control with
anather party);

post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of UBS AG's employees or employees of entities related to UBS AG;
key management personnel and close family members of key management personnel; and

entities over which key management personnel or their close family members have solely or jointly a direct or indirect
significant influence.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling
the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. UBS AG considers the members of the Board of Directors (the BoD) and
the Executive Board (the EB} of UBS AG and the members of the Board of Directors (the BoD) and the Group Executive
Board (the GEB) of UBS Group AG to constitute key management personnel.

a) Remuneration of key management personnel

The Vice Chairman of the BoD has a specific management employment contract and receives pension benefits upon
retirernent. Total rermuneration of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman of the BoD and all EB members is included in the
table below,

Remuneration of key management personnel
LIS v, e e vl EIRFRT

Base salaries and other cash payments’
MIHMMUM; )
. N

mumm@mumm 1 1
Ghurie-based ga=persatian] ' 2 45
Tetal 1 122
Tenal (CHF ) 106 12

1 May inchuste sabe-baeed allzawanoet in line with markes pradioe and seqeliony neqainmoms. ] The Geh pomion may ako indacie biocies shares in line with ssqelmiony (COTQBRSCN St
15 barseed o the sharw psioe on grant dne @iing ime aoment permnane oo, Relr m Koo 27 for mose informanion. For B5 members, shose-based thmm:nmlmmw

mompoasd of LTI gwads. For the Chadinan of 1he BaD, the share-sassd oompension o 2003, 1002 and 1021 was armfinely composed of UBS shases, 4 e fane amoents dholeed reprasent 1he respeciss
105 ol amonts manslaed ot the anplicabls perimanoe sward cemency Exhange wnes {2023 USD CHF 0.91; 2022 USD ) CHF 038 J021: USD/ CHF 0.52)

The independent members of the BoD, including the Chairman, do not have employrent or service contracts with UBS
AG, and thus are not entitled to benefits upon termination of their service on the BoD. Payments to these individuals
for their sendces as independent members of the BoD amounted to USD 11.7m (CHF 10.6m) in 2023,
USD 11.1m (CHF 10.7m) in 2022 and USD 7.5m (CHF 6.9m) in 2021.

b) Equity holdings of key management personnel

Equity holdings of key management personnel!

A E) I )
Mussbes of UES Gioup A shares held by members of the BaD, EB and parties cleely linked 1o them® 5,121,564 2,843,580
1 Ko ptioans seee Bikd in 2023 aned 2007 by aon-independent menier of the SoD and any EB mombe or 3oy of i slated paries. ) Esdlines shases pramied undsl saiable compereation. plans with forksinn

Of the share totals above, no shares were held by close family members of key management personnel on 31 December
2023 and 31 Decemnber 2022. Mo shares were held by entities that are directly or indirectly controlled or jointly controlled
by key management personnel or their dose family members on 31 December 2023 and 31 DE{EH’I{]H 2022. As of
31 December 2023, no member of the BoD or EE was the beneficial owner of mare than 1% of the shares in UBS Group
AG.
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Mote 30 Related parties (continuad)

) Loans, advances, mortgages and deposit balances with key management personnel

The non-independent members of the BoD and EE members are granted loans, fixed advances and mortgages in the
ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms and conditions that are available to other employees,
including interest rates and collateral, and neither involve more than the normal risk of collectability nor contain any other
unfavorable features for the firm. Independent BoD members are granted loans and mortgages in the ordinary course of
business at general market conditions.

Outstanding balances with key management personnel were as follows.

Loans, advances and mortgages to key management personnel!

LIS i, nnpd ebhere vl 023 022
Batance al the beginning of the year 8

Balance at the end of the yes? 55

Balance at the-end of the yesr {CHF mF-" 46

I8

8

5

" Bl laarc @ SECAIE Dan: :Mmm1mmmum.mmmmmunﬁ-1 Decombe 2023 and ) URESed 8 Rooram o Coech oliies a5 of 31 Decomiay 2002, § Wil Lot
anunts dischied reprosens The sespeciee 1S dolla anosns mandaied at de sl year-oed cising esthange @i

In addition, there were USD 21m (CHF 18m) cutstanding deposit balances with key management personnel as of
31 December 2023,

d) Other related-party transactions with entities controlled by key management personnel

In 2023 and 2022, UBS AG did not enter into transactions with entities, over whom key management personnel or their
close family members have solely or jointly a direct or indirect significant influence and as of 31 December 2023,
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, there were no outstanding balances related to such transactions.
Furthermore, in 2023 and 2022, such entities did not sell any goods or provide any senvices to UBS AG, and therefore
did not receive any fees from UBS AG. UBS AG also did not provide senvices to such entities in 2023 and 2022, and
therefore also received no fees,

e) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Loans to and outstanding receivables from assodiates and joint wentures
L0

Carrying amount & the beginning of the yesr

Carrying amoust f the end of the year
o ihicly werdrued s s’ receiadies

Other transactions with assodiates and joint ventures

o of bor the yasr ended
L0 iaza E) A i
Payments to sssociabes snd joint vertuse fior goods and senvces received 155 138
Feest received for senvices provided 1o assocales snd joint vertunes, w0 4
...... s B A s
cwumnmmmthtmnmﬂmmmar
¥ Refer to Note 28 for an overview of investments in associates and joint ventures
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Mote 30 Related parties (continuad)

) Receivables and payables from / to UBS Group AG and other subsidiaries of UBS Group AG

LD m miza E) N ]
Recetvablies

Asnunits dee from hanks' 14,752 L]
Mmﬁmf*w'“““““d‘mm
.w..'d..'"m‘ﬁ“.._.l’: e A T
Finencial assets ai fair vahoe held for ieading 125 146

1 Beflects fumding provided 1o Coedin Sebime. 3 Wainly sepresents fending recogaied from UES Gioap 45 watis deslqeansd o falt valar. Arler m Nove 185 foe meor inkaimation.

Note 31 Invested assets and net new monay

The following disclosures provide a breakdown of UBS AG's invested assets and a presentation of their development,
including net new maoney, as required by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

Invested assets

Invested assets consist of all dient assets managed by or deposited with UBS AG for investment purposes. Invested assets
include managed fund assets, managed institutional assets, discretionary and advisary wealth management portfalios,
fiduciary deposits, time deposits, savings accounts, and wealth management securities or brokerage accounts. All assets
held for purely transactional purposes and ¢ -<only assets, including corporate client assets held for cash
management and transactional purposes, are excluded from invested assets, as UBS AG only administers the assets and
does not offer advice on how they should be invested. Also exduded are non-bankable assets (e.q., art collections) and
deposits from third-party banks for funding or trading purposes.

Discretionary assets are defined as client assets that UBS AG decides how to invest. Other invested assets are those where
the client ultimately decides how the assets are invested. When a single product is created in one business division and
sold in another, it is counted in both the business division managing the investment and the one distributing it. This
results in double counting within UBS AG's total invested assets and net new money, as both business divisions are
independently providing a service to their respective dients, and both add value and generate revenue.

Mat new money

Met new money in a reporting pericd is the amount of invested assets entrusted to UBS AG by new and existing clients,
less those withdrawn by existing dients and clients who terminated relationships with UBS AG.

Met new money is calculated using the direct methad, under which inflows and outflows to / from invested assets are
determined at the dient level, based on transactions. Interest and dividend income from invested assets are not counted as
net new money inflows. Market and currency movements, as well as fees, commissions and interest on loans charged, are
excluded from net new money, as are effects resulting from any acquisition or divestrnent of a UBS subsidiary or business.
Reclassifications between invested assets and custody-only assets as a result of a change in service level delivered are
generally treated as net new money flows. However, where the change in service level directly results from an externally
impased regulation or a strategic decision by UBS AG to exit a market or specific service offering, the one-time net affect is
reported as Other affects.

The Investment Bank does not track invested assets and net new maney. However, when a client is transtered from the
Investrment Bank to another business division, this may produce net new money even though the dient’s assets were
already with UBS AG.

In 2023 UBS AG has changed its accounting policy for net new money and invested assets to include its share of net new
money and invested assets from associates, to better reflect the business strategy and aligned with the equity method
accounting applied to these entities, Comparative figures in the tables below have been restated to reflect this change,
resulting in an increase to invested assets as of 31 Decembar 2022 of USD 24bn and an increase to net new money for
2022 of USD 8bn, all relating to Asset Management.
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Note 31 Invested assets and net new money (continued)

Invested aisets and net new money
s o of for the yaer ended

LS b EiRFFE] ELN Pl
Fund &sets sanaged by UBS 429 Ex]
Dty e
Othes irwested assets ) ) ) 2,402 2137
Tonal inmested assers” 4,505 3,381

o iy abedvie oo 411 i
Met ew money’ 112 76

1 Comarative figares b boon restated 1o indlade et now money and imvesied assets from asscines. 2 Indudes Souke coums.

Development of invested assets

LIS ETRFFL] I
Tanal ireested asses at the beginning of the year?

Tenal irwested assets at the end of the peer?

1 Comparative figares harve boon restaed 1o inclade et now money and invested assets from assocines. 2 nchudes Coulle coums. 3 Inchudies imesest and dividend income.

MNote 32 Currency translation rates

The following table shows the rates of the main currencies used to translate the financial information of UBS AG's
operations with a functional currency other than the US dollar into US dollars.

Cloging wachnge rate Merage rate"
T ] For the yser ended
EIRFFE] 1222 nan ETRPFE .12.21
1 CHF 118 1.08 101 1.05 109
e e s e e e
1 GOF 11 13 15 1.23 137
100 FY ' ' 0 076 o 0.76 031

1 Wil e SIINER faTs ol aperaions stk a lenctiaral oiter than the US dolls e mmslared inin US dollass iing menth-end rams. Dischied svirage anes 107 & jear Ispsenl 3 sndge of
ettt el rans, siphngd Hooniing 10T IRCom S00 epense wolames of all opeurions of LUBS AG sith 1he sma farction al caneecy Yo sch menth. Weighted merge s foe infiideal basines: dhviions
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Note 33 Main differences between IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP

The consolidated financial staternents of UBS AG are prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. The Swiss
Financial Market Supendsory Authority (FINMA) requires financial groups presenting finandial statements under IFRS
Accounting Standards to provide a narrative explanation of the main differences between IFRS Accounting Standards
and Swiss generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) (the FINMA Accounting Ordinance, FINMA Circular 202041
"Accounting - banks” and the Banking Ordinance (the BO)). Induded in this Note are the significant differences in the
recognition and measurement between IFRS Accounting Standards and the provisions of the BO and the guidelines of
FIMMA, governing true and fair view financial staternent reporting pursuant to Art. 25 to Art 42 of the BO.

1. Consolidation

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, all entities that are controlled by the holding entity are consalidated. Under Swiss
GAAP controlled entities deemed immaterial to a group or those held only termporarily are exempt from consolidation,
but instead are recorded as participations accounted for under the equity method of accounting or as financial
investrments measured at the lower of cost or market value,
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Note 33 Main differences between IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP (continued)

2. Classification and measurement of financial assets

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, debt instruments are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FPYOCH) or fair value throwgh profit or loss (FYTPL), depending on the nature of the business
model within which the particular asset is held and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the asset. Equity
instruments are accounted for at FVTPL by UBS. Under Swiss GAAFP, trading assets and derivatives are measured at PYTPL,
in line with IFRS Accounting Standards. However, non-trading debt instrurnents are generally measured at amortized
cost, even when the assets are managed on a fair value basis. In addition, the measurement of finandal assets in the
form of securities depends on the nature of the asset: debt instrumnents not held to maturity, i.e., instruments available
for sale, and equity instruments with no permanent holding intent, are classified as Anancial investrments and measured
at the lower of (amortized) cost or market value. Market value adjustrnents up to the original cost amount and realized
gains or losses upon disposal of the investment are recorded in the income statement as Other income from ordli

activities. Equity instruments with a permanent holding intent are classified as participations in Non-consolidated
investments in subsidiaries and other participations and are measured at cost less impairment. Impairment losses are
recorded in the incorme statement as impairment of investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and other participations,
Reversals of impairments up to the original cost amount and realized gains or losses upon disposal of the investrent are

recorded as Extraordinary income [ Extraordinary expenses.,

3. Fair value option applied to financial liabilities

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, UBS applies the fair value option to certain financial liabilities not held for trading.
Instruments for which the fair value option is applied are accounted for at FUTPL. The amount of change in the fair value
attributable to changes in UB5's own credit i presented in Other comprehensive incame directly within Retained eamings.
The fair value option is applied primarily to issued structured debt instruments, certain non-structured debt instruments,
certain payables under repurchase agreements and cash collateral on securities lending agreements, amounts due under
unit-linked investrnent contracts, and brokerage payables.

Under Swiss GAAP, the fair value option can only be applied to structured debt instruments consisting of a debt host
contract and one or mone embedded derivatives that do not relate to own equity. Furthermore, unrealized changes in
fair value attributable to changes in UBS's own credit are not recognized, whereas realized own credit is recognized in
Net trading income.

4, Allowances and provisions for credit losses

Swiss GAAP permit use of IFRS Accounting Standards for accounting for allowances and provisions for credit losses based
on an expected credit loss (ECL) model. UBS has chosen to apply the IFRS 9 ECL approach to those exposures that are in
the ECL scope of both frameworks, IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP.

For the small residual exposures within the scope of Swiss GAAP ECL requirernents, which are not subject to ECL under

IFRS Accounting Standards due to dassification differences, UBS applies alternative approaches.

~ For exposures for which Pillar 1 intermal ratings-based models are applied to measure credit risk, ECL is determined by
the regulatory expected loss (EL), with an add-on for scaling up to the residual maturity of exposures maturing bayond
the next 12 months, as appropriate. For detailed information on regulatary EL, refer to the “Risk management and
control” section of this report.

= For exposures for which the Fillar 1 standardized approach is used to measure credit risk, ECL is determined using a
portfolio approach that derives a conservative probability of default (PD) and a conservative loss given default (LGD)
for the entire portfolio.

5. Hedge accounting

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, when cash flow hedge accounting is applied, the fair value gain or loss on the effective
portion of a derivative designated as a cash flow hedge is recognized initially in equity and reclassified to the income
staternent when certain conditions are met. When fair value hedge accounting is applied, the fair value change of the
hedged itern attributable to the hedged risk is reflected in the measurement of the hedged item and is recognized in the
income statement along with the change in the fair value of the hedging derivative. Under Swiss GAAP, the effective
portion of the fair value change of a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow or as a fair value hedge is deferred
on the balance sheet as Other assets or Other labilities. The carrying amount of the hedged itern designated in fair value
hedges is not adjusted for fair value changes attributable to the hedged risk.
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Note 33 Main differences between IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP (continued)

6. Goodwill and intangible assets

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, goodwill acquired in a business combination is not amortized but tested annually for
impairment. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are also not amortized but tested annually for impairment.
Under Swiss GAAP, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are amaortized over a period not exceeding
five years, unless a longer useful life, which may not exceed 10 years, can be justified. In addition, these assets are tested
annually for impairment.

7. Post-employment benefit plans

Swiss GAAP permit the use of IFRS Accounting Standards or Swiss accounting standards for post-employrent benefit
plans, with the election made on a plan-by-plan basis.

UBS has edected to apply 145 19 for the non-Swiss defined benefit plans in the UBS AG standalone finandial staterments
and Swiss GAAP (FER 16} for the Swiss pension plan in the UBS AG and the UBS Switzerland AG standalone financial
staternents. The requirements of Swiss GAAP are better ali with the specific nature of Swiss pension plans, which
are hybrid in that they combine elements of defined contribution and defined benefit plans, but are treated as defined
benefit plans under IFRS Accounting Standards. Key differences between Swiss GAAP and IFRS Accounting Standards
include the treatment of dynamic elernents, such as future salary increases and future interest credits on retirement
savings, which are not considered under the static method wsed in accordance with Swiss GAAP. Also, the discount rate
used to determine the defined benefit obligation in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards is based on the yield of
high-quality corporate bonds of the market in the respective pension plan country. The discount rate used in accordance
with Swiss GAAP (i.e., the technical interest rate) is determined by the Pension Foundation Board based on the expected
returns of the Board's investrment strategy.

For defined benefit plans, IFRS Accounting Standards require the full defined benefit obligation net of the plan assets to
be recorded on the balance sheet subject to the asset ceiling rules, with changes resulting from remeasuremnents
recognized directly in equity. However, for non-Swiss defined benefit plans for which IFRS Accounting Standards are
elected, changes due to remeasurements are recognized in the income statement of UBS AG standalone under Swiss
GAAP.

Swiss GAAP require employer contributions to the pension fund to be recognized as personnel expenses in the income
staternent. Swiss GAAP also require an assessment of whether, based on the pension fund’s finandal staterments prepared
in accordance with Swiss accounting standards (FER 26), an economic benefit to, or obligation of, the employer arises
from the pension fund that is recognized in the balance shest when conditions are met. Conditions for recording a
pension asset or liability would be met if, for example, an employer contribution reserve is available or the employer is
required to contribute to the reduction of a pension deficit (on an FER 26 basis).

8. Leasing

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, a single lease accounting model applies that requires UBS to record a right-of-use
iRol) asset and a corresponding lease liability on the balance sheet when UBS is a lessee in a lease arangement. The
Rol asset and the lease liability are recognized when UBS acquires control of the physical use of the asset. The lease
liability is measured based on the present value of the lease payments over the lease term, discounted usin? UBs's
unsecured borrowing rate. The Rol asset is recorded at an amount equal to the lease liability but is adjusted for rent
prepayments, initial direct costs, any costs to refurbish the leased asset and / or lease incentives received. The Roll asset
is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful ife of the underying asset.

Under Swiss GAAP, leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards, but not necessarily legal title in the
underying assets, are dassified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Whereas finance
leases are recognized on the balance sheet and reasured in line with IFRS Accounting Standards, operating leases are
not recognized on the balance sheet, with payments recognized as General and administrative expenses on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, which commences with control of the physical use of the asset. Lease incentives are treated
as a reduction of rental expense and recognized on a consistent basis over the lease term.

4. Netting of derivative assets and liabilities

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, derivative assets, derivative liabilities and related cash collateral not settled to market
are reported on a gross basis unless the restrictive netting requirernents under IFRS Accounting Standards are met:
iy existence of master netting agreements and related collateral arrangements that are unconditional and legally
enforceable, in both the normal course of business and the event of default, banknuptcy or insolvency of UBS and its
counterparties; and (i) UBS's intention to either setthe on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Under Swiss GAAP, derivative assets, derivative liabilities and related cash collateral not settled to market
are generally reported on a net basis, provided the master netting and the related collateral agreements are legally
enforceable in the event of default, bankruptcy or insolency of UBS's counterparties.
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Note 33 Main differences between IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP (continued)

10. Negative interest

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, negative interest income arising on a financial asset does not meet the definition of
interest income and, therefore, negative interest on financial assets and negative interest on financial Habilities are
prasented within interest expense and interest income, respectively. Under Swiss GAAP, negative interest on financial
assets is presented within interest income and negative interest on financial liabilities is presented within interest expense.

11. Extraordinary income and expense

Certain non-recurring and non-operating income and expense items, such as realized gains or losses from the disposal
of participations, fixed and intangible assets, and reversals of impairments of participations and fixed assets, are classified
as extraordinary items under Swiss GAAP. This distinction is not available under IFRS Accounting Standards. &

Note 34 Supplemental guarantor information required under SEC regulations

loint liability of UBS Switzerland AG

In 2015, the Personal & Corporate Banking and Wealth Management businesses booked in Switzerland were transferred
from UBS AG to UBS Switzerland AG through an asset transfer in accordance with the Swiss Merger Act. Under the
terms of the asset transfer agreement, UBS Switzerland AG assumed joint liability for contractual obligations of UBS AG
existing on the asset transfer date, including the full and unconditional guarantee of certain registered debt securities
issued by UBS AG. To reflect this joint liability, UBS Switzerland AG is presented in a separate column as a subsidiary co-
guarantor.

The joint liability of UBS Switzerland AG for contractual utlligatinns of UBS AG decreased in 2023 by USD 1.0bn to
LSD 3.3bn as of 31 Decemnber 2023. The decrease substantially relates to a combination of contractual maturities, early
extinguishments, fair value movements and foreign currency elrfe

Supplemental guaramtor consolidated income statement
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Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated balance sheet
LD UBS
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Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of cash flows
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Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guaramtor consolidated income statement
LD 3
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Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated balance shaet
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Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of cash flows
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Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guaramtor consolidated income statement

T UBS

" LIRS &G Swilzeslend AG Cithes Birmination LIRS &G

For the yesar ended 31 Dwcernber 2001 (standslane}! Itandalons)! subdidiaies? eilies leordoldated)

Inieneat income from Enandal infinements measused a1 ssonized codt and
tai watue dvouh ather car e come M RER A4S 0Od RS
Mt inbeneia ineomme frem linanciel isstrosents Sesuned at i vake though
prolit o bees and cther 1,229 54 128 274} 1,437
et intened income 1,512 31386 1,660 48 6605
Ciher met income Fom Snandal instruments. measwred a1 Tai welue Srough

Fu:f-d:unfrudmlm 5004
478
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thﬂﬂnﬂmi‘mﬂ 3027 14,702 (14} 21,438
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Hﬂndw !,-lll]1 0,161 1 15,661
mmmwdmﬁuﬁlm 049 755 {114} 1,875
Operating experdes 8,605 (2,809} 702
Operating profit ! floss) belore tax 7,305 3,910 (5,660} 8,964
Tast espense | (banefit) 203 1,090 {11y 1,903
Mt proin | o) 7102 2,820 (5,649} 7061
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Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of comprehensive income

LD LS
L5 AG Switzerland &G Other Dirrinatior: LIRS &G
For the yesar ended 31 Ducernber 2001 Inandalone]! (ssndelone)! auhsidiaies? eiliied [eonsslidated)

Comprehirdive income attributabie to thansholders
Mea pro | fless) 7002 2,788 1742 (5,643} 7.032

Diher comprehentive income
Other compreheniivg income Shat may be redasiied o the income
slilisin]

Foregn ureny wndatonnetoftax BT 51

Finencial asiets measused al laF walie Beoach sthes
rr-ﬂ-ﬂ--'-!-'r-!w*‘ﬂI

ot et
wmwmn:mnmunn
income itsberment, nel of {1,155} 1699) {1.014) 5000 {2,368

WWWMMHIMHMHH

Maﬁmﬂnmdhbllﬁuﬂwud.ﬂruﬁgmdm 46 A6
Tenal ather comprehirdive incomé that will not be reclmsiflied o the
incemi itsbetment, nel of L

217 (135) &7 o 148

Tetsl ather comprehansive income (935 {834) (247) 500 (22200
Tenal comprehensive income atributable to shareholders 6,163 1,954 1,845 (5,143} 4,813

Tatal comprehensiee income atvitustable b nos-contraling inbesess 13 1

Tedsl comprehensive income 6,163 1,054 1,858 5,148} 4,826
1 Amoents presemied for UBS &G smndalone and UES Swimnibng 45 saacalone nepesent IFES sandalons informanion. Reter m the UES AG smedalons aad UBS Swittrland AG siandaions frandal siamments
under “Complementary fisascial informarion” a1 ubs conSrvenon for information peeparcd in acooianoe with Sebs GAAF. 3 The “Mber sssiciades” oiumn indudes consobdared inlomation fm the
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Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information required under SEC regulations (continued)

Supplemental guarantor consolidated statement of cash flows

gy g Dthar LIRS AG
For the yeaar ended 31 Ducember 20301 DESAG' Switeerland A" subridiaries! jenrenlidated)
et by flovie Trinen 1 {Litieel i) opeeting sowiitie: 5714 FAES] T 30,563
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Management's report on internal control over financial reporting

Management's responsibility for internal contral over financial reporting

The Board of Directors and management of UBS AG are responsible for establishing and raintaining adequate intemal
controd over financial reporting. UBS AG's internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE).

UBS AG's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

- pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and
dispositions of assets;

- provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of UBS AG management; and

- provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial staternenits.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstaterments.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management's assessment of internal control over finandial reporting as of 31 December 20232

UBS AG management has assessed the effectiveness of UBS AG's internal control over financial reporting as of
31 December 2023 based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Comrmission {COS0) in Internal Control = Integrated Framework (2013 Framework). Based on this assessment,
management believes that, as of 31 December 2023, UBS AG's intemal contrel over finandial reporting was effective.

The effectiveness of UBS AG's internal control over finandial reporting as of 31 December 2022 has been audited by Emst
& Young Ltd, UBS AG's independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their Report of the independemt
registerad public accounting firm on intemnal control over financial reporting, which expresses an ungualified opinion on
the effectiveness of UBS AG's internal control over financial reporting as of 31 Decernber 2023,

Reports of the statutory auditor / independent registered public accounting firm included in this report

The accompanying reports of the independent registered public accounting firm on the consolidated financial statements
Report of the independent registered public accounting firm on the consofidated financial statements and internal control
over finandal reporting Report of the independent registered public accounting firm on internal control over financial
repovting of UBS AG are included in our filing on 28 March 2024 with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form
20-F pursuant to US reporting obligations.

The accornparnying statutory auditor's report on the audit of the consolidated finandal statements of UBS AG Statutory
auditor's report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements, in addition to the aforementioned reports, is
included in our UBS AG Annual Report 2023 available on our website and filed on 28 March 2024 with all other relevant
non-LUS exchanges.

Annual Report 2023 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial information 125

540/633



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

UBS AG standalone financial statements
(audited)

Income statement

USDm CHF m
For the pear ended For the year ended
Mole EY Rl ] A i 1213 311222
Iniereat and discount income® 18,473 7133 16,540 6821
Iriterest and dividend income lrom Irading partilo! 1664 219 13m 1097

e e e e T i

Fee and commission income fom secusities and imesiment business snd ather fee and

Met fee and commission income 1,855 FAN|
Met trading income 3 153 5796 6,527 5512
Mt income from diapassl of financial investments. 43 (190} £}

Dividend income fom irsestments in sutsidiaries and other participation. 4 5430 BASE 4,862 6,183

psismant o invesiments in subsidiostes.snd other parsidputions 4 U N NN . S

auialy
(Changes in provisions Tor [gation, regulatory and similar matters, and other provisions i3

Mt proiin | fioas) 1,515 7157 1,364 BEIT

1 Inevisst i noame inchides inerest inoome, which wes no manesial for 1he yer snded 31 December 7073 (appeoaimaredy USD 0.0 (CHF 0.4bn) for 1 year seced 31 Decomber 10371 & inclecks negacks
imiessr enperee on fnandal which mas nm manerial for 1he pea ended 31 Decerber 1033 (appecaimandy S0 0Ltha (CHF Dutba] for th year ended 31 Decsnbe 2037).
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Balance sheet

UsDm CHF m
Kiste: A 31232 1223 R

Asseis
CommdbwecesMomnwwowds R M MM G

Othir sets 11,12, 16 9.905 13,516

D {1y cLShmars i 147,388 138,941 124,055 128421

Share capilal H E- 383 & 385

?.....l;. ----I’ﬁ}’a&------- """};&k"'hjﬁ""""'j@

1mhmwmmdlumﬂunﬂmwﬂlmudﬂmm 2 The capital comisbarsion sewerve: balance of UISD 22, 150m as. of
k1] 33 can b fre of withholding tae 10 e sh of changes in eqaiy far mos infomaton.
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Balance sheet {continued)
50 m CHFm

31213 31232 i 123
Off-balance sheet items
(Contingent kablites,goes 30 M3IW 2635 1ABIE
Sub-parlicipations feeach 1,068} (34 (98]
Contgent eblesoet XM B B T
., of which: graransses 00 chiel parties reltedto sodbelioes o B BT R38E SEN)
oot e commimes o B0 R WA TR0
Sebepaliepdliong L I— L L o
Imevocatie loan commitments, net 19,892 16,172 6,743 15,041
Forwed sturimg tranuacions! L i 85,088 oz
o il finnieansy SEATNG reveirse nepurohiare AgreTens 6357 2747 STAA 25373
o ihicly rapircane Areement 35595 26978 J2485 24996

Off-balance sheat items

Contingent liabilities indude indemnities and guarantees issued by UBS AG for the benefit of subsidiaries and creditors
of subsidiaries.

Where the indemnity amount issued by UBS AG is not specifically defined, the indemnity refates to the sobvency or
minimurm capitalization of a subsidiary, and therefore no amaount is included in the table above.

Joint and several liability - value-added tax
UBS AG is jointly and severally liable for the combined value-added tax (VAT) liability of UBS entities that belong to the
VAT group of UBS in Switzerland. This contingent liability is not included in the table above.

Guarantess — LIBS Europe SE

Foliowing the combined UK business transfer and cross-border merger of UBS Limited into UBS Europe SE in March 2019,
UBS AG issued a guarantee for the benefit of counterparties of UBS Europe 5E's investment banking business, covering
transactions subject to master netting agreements.

A similar guarantee that UBS AG issued in 2003 for the benefit of each counterparty of UBS Limited also continues to be
effective. This guarantee covers transactions in accordance with and contemnplated under any agreerment entered into by
UBS Limited prior to the merger into UBS Eurcpe SE, to the extent that such an agreement has not been amended by
UBS Europe SE thereafter.

Under both guarantees, LUBS AG promises to pay to the beneficiary counterparties any unpaid liabilities covered under
the terms of the guarantees on demand. These guarantees are induded as contingent liabilities in the off-balance sheet
iterns table above.

Indemnities — UBS Europe SE

In connection with the establishing of UBS Europe SE in 2016, UBS AG entered into agreements with UBS Europe SE
under which UBS AG would provide UBS Europe SE with limited indemnification of payment obligations that may arise
from certain litigation, regulatory and similar matters.

A5 of 31 December 2023, the amount of such potential payment obligations could not be reliably estimated and the
likelihood of an outflow is not considered to be probable or the probability of an cutflow was assessed to be remote;
therefore, the table above does not incude any amount related to this limited indemnification.

In addition, in accordance with the bylaws of the Deposit Protection Fund of the Association of German Banks, UBS AG
issued an indemnity in favor of this fund on behalf of UBS Eurcpe SE. The probability of an outflow was assessed to be
remote, and as a result, the table above does not include any exposure arising under this indemnity.

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) 3
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Statement of changes in equity

Vizhutary
o sy BETINg
canital afwlid  reseree and Het profit i
Stalutery  cvwebette  ofersitctog prolit § o) {hona)
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Statement of proposed appropriation of total profit and dividend distribution

The Board of Directors (the BoD) proposes that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (the AGM) on 23 April 2024
approve the appropriation of total profit and an ordinary dividend distribution of USD 3,000m out of the total profit
IUsD 1,515m) and out of the Voluntary eamings resene (USD 1,485m) as follows.

Appropriation of and distribution out of total profit

USD m CHF m

For the pear ended For the year ended

HA 31.12.23

Mepelborthepeiod s 1384
Prolit 1 (Jnss) carvied foreard [1] o
Total profit susilsble for apprapation 1,515 1,364
Agproprstion of total peoky
Dividend distritution {1,515) (1,364}
Profit f (loss) cafied forward [] 0
Proposed dividend oul of voluriary eamings reserse
Tatal voluntary esnings resenve belone dstribution 14,642 7.167
Dividend distritution {1,485 (1,161}
Titsl voluntary samings seienve sher distribution 13,157 5,048
3 Fon dsirathve purpases, the propossd dieidend of IS0 3,300 b comerd 10 Sadss fTancs & B codng eedange g i o 31 POT3 (CHF 11050 1. 191, which oqeass 2 Swss kan: dacend of CHF 2,525
aﬂmﬂrﬂthlmﬂtmmmdmpﬁﬂﬁmdmﬂ,mmudﬁmmm
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Note 1 Mame, legal form and registered office

UBS AG is inconporated and domiciled in Switzerand. Its registered offices are at Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001 Zurich
and Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland. UBS AG operates under Art. 620 et seq. of the Swiss Code of
Obligations and Swiss banking law as an Aktiengesellschaft, a corporation limited by shares.

LBS AG is aregulated bank in Switzerland and is 100% owned by UBS Group AG, the ultimate parent of the UBS Group.
UBS AG holds imvestments in and provides funding to subsidiaries, induding the other banking subsidiaries of the UBS
Group. In addition, UBS AG operates globally, including business activities from all five UBS business divisions and Group
Iterns. In the ordinary course of business, the main contributors to the net profit / (loss) of UBS AG are Global Wealth
Management, the Investment Bank, Group Treasury and Group Senices. The balance sheet is mainly composed of
financial assets and liabilities from the Investrnent Bank, Global Wealth Management businesses booked outside of
Switzerland and Group Treasury, as well as investmenits in subsidiaries and other participations in Group Treasury and
fived assets of Group Services.

UBS AG employed 10,398 personnel on a full-time equivalent basis as of 31 Decermnber 2023, compared with 10,333
personnel as of 31 Decernber 2022,

Note 2 Accounting policies

a) Significant accounting polices

UBS AG standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Swiss GAAP (the FINMA Accounting Ordinance,
FiMhAA Circular 202071 “Accounting - banks™ and the Banking Ordinance) and represent “reliable assessment statutory
single-entity finandal statements.” The accounting policies are principally the same as those outlined in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements of UBS AG induded in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023, Major differences between
the Swiss GAAP requirernents and IFRS Accounting Standards are described in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
staternents of UBS AG. The significant accounting policies applied for the standalone finandial statements of LIBS AG are
discussed below.
¥ Refer to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more information

Compensation policy

The compensation structure and processes of UBS AG conform to the compensation principles and framework of LUBS
Group AG. For detailed information, refer to the Compensation Report of LUES Group AG.

Deferred compensation

Expenses for deferred compensation awards granted by UBS Group AG to employees of UBS AG in the form of UBS
shares, notional investrent funds and notional additional tier 1 (AT1) capital instruments are charged by UBS Group AG
to UBS AG.

¥ Refer to Naote 27 to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more information

Foreign currency translation

Mon-Us dollar-denominated transactions are translated into S dollars at the spot exchange rate on the date of the
transaction. At the balance sheet date, all non-US dollar-denominated monetary assets and liabilities, as well as non-US
dollar-dencminated equity instrurments recorded in Trading portfolio assets and Financial investments, are translated into
Us dollars using the closing exchange rate. Mon-rnonetary itemns measured at historic cost are translated at the spot
exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities of branches with functional currencies other than the
Us dollar are translated into US dollars at the dosing exchange rate. Income and expense items of such branches are
translated at weighted-average exchange rates for the period. All currency translation effects are recognized in the
income statement.

The main currency translation rates used by UBS AG are provided in Mote 32 to the UBS AG consolidated financial
staternents in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023,
¥ Refer to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more information

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) 5
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MNote 2 Accounting policies (continued)

Presentation currencies

As the primary presentation currency of the finandal staternents of UBS AG is the US dollar, amounts in Swiss francs are
additionally presented for each component of the financial statements. UBS AG applies the modified closing rate method
for converting the US dollar presentation currency amounts into Swiss francs: assets and liabilities are converted at the
clasing rate, equity positions at historic rates, and income and expense items at the weighted-average rate for the period.
The resulting currency translation effects are recognized separately in the Voluntary earnings resernvse.

Structured debt instruments

Structured debt instruments consist of debt instruments issued and transacted over the counter and include a host

contract and one or more embedded derivatives that do not relate to UBS AG's own equity. By applying the fair value

option, the vast majority of structured debt instruments are measured at fair value as a whole and recognized in Fnancial

liabilities designated at fair value. The fair value option for structured debt instruments can be applied only if the following

criteria are cumulatively met:

~ the structured debt instrument is measured on a fair value basis and is subject to risk management that is equivalent
to risk managernent for trading activities;

~ the application of the fair value option eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise; and

- changes in fair value attributable to changes in unrealized own credit are not recognized.

Fair value changes related to Financial Nabilities designated at fair value, excluding changes in unrealized cwn credit, are

recognized in Met trading income. Interest expense on Financial fabilities designated at fair value is recognized in inferest

expense.

Where the designation criteria for the fair value option are not met, the embedded derivatives are assessed for bifurcation
for measurement purposes. Bifurcated embedded derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss and
presented in the same balance sheet line as the host contract.,

* Refer to Mote 19 for more information

Group-internal funding

UBS AG obtains fundintlg from UBS Group AG in the form of loans that are subject to mandatory conversion and / or debt
waiver, as explained below, and generally either qualify as loss-absorbing tier 1 capital or as gone concern loss-absorbing
capacity, i.e., total funding eligible as total loss-absorbing capacity (TLAC), at the UBS AG consolidated and standalone
levels. & portion of Group-internal funding obtained is further on lent by UBS AG to certain subsidiaries in the form of
lpans.

¥ Refer to Note 20 for information about funding eligible gs total loss-absorbing capacity &t the UBS AG level

LBS AG obligations arising from Group-intermal funding it has received are presented as Funding received from UBS
Group AG measured at amortized cost and Funding recefved from UBS Group AG within Financial fabilities designated
at fair value. UBS AG daims arising from Group-internal funding it has provided are presented as Funding provided fo
significant regulated subsidiaries eligible as total loss-absorbing capacity and are measured at amortized cost less any
allowance for expacted credit losses.

Subordinated assets and liabilities

Subordinated assets are composed of claims that, based on an irmevocable written declaration, in the event of liguidation,
bankruptcy or compaosition concerning the debtor, rank after the claims of all other creditors and may not be offset
against amounts payable to the debtor nor be secured by its assets. Subordinated labilities are composed of
corresponding obligations.

Subordinated assets and liabilities that contain a point-of-non-viability dlause in accordance with Swiss capital
requirements pursuant to Art. 29 and 30 of the Capital Adequacy Ordinance are disclosed as being Swubfect to mandatory
conversion and [ or debt waiver and provide for the claim or the obligation to be written off or converted into equity in
the event that the issuing bank reaches a paint of non-viability.

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) [
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MNote 2 Accounting policies (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries and other participations

Investments in subsidiaries and other participations are Equitr]',r interests that are held to camy on the business of UBS AG
or for other strategic purposes. They incdude all subsidiaries directly held by UBS AG through which UBS AG conducts its
business on a global basis. The investments are measured individually and carried at cost less impairment. The carrying
amount is tested for impairment annually and when indicators of a potential decrease in value exist, which include
significant operating losses incurred or a severe depreciation of the currency in which the investment is denominated. If
an investment in a subsidiary is impaired, its value is generally written down to the net asset value. Subsequent recoveries
in value are recognized up to the original cost value based on either the increased net asset value or a value above the
net asset value if, in the opinion of management, forecasts of future profitability provide sufficient evidence that a
carrying amount above net asset value is supported. Management may exercise its discretion as to what extent and in
which period a recovery in value is recognized.

Impairments of investments are presented as Impaimment of investments in subsidiares and other participations and
reversals of impairments are presented as Extraordinary income in the income statement. Impairments and partial or full
reversals of impairments for a subsidiary during the same annual period are determined on a net basis.

¥ Refer to Note 4 for more information

Hedge accounting for Investments in subsidiaries and other participations

UBS AG applies hedge accounting for certain investments in subsidiaries and other participations denominated in
currencies other than the US dollar, which are designated as hedged items. For this purpose, foreign exchange (FX)
derivatives, mainly FX forwards and FX swaps, are used and designated as hedging instruments.

The hedged risk is determined as the change in the cm'r.i:g amount of the hedged item arising solely from changes in
spot FX rates. Consequently, UBS AG only designates the spot element of the FX derivatives as hedging instruments.
Changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments attributable to changes in forward points are not part of a hedge
accounting designation. These amounts, therefore, do not form part of the effectiveness assessment and are recognized
in Net trading income.

The effective portion of gains and losses of these FX derivatives is deferred on the balance sheet as Other assets or Other
liabilities to the extent no change is recognized in the camying amount of the hedged item arising from changes in spot
FX rates. Otherwise, the effective portion of gains and losses of these FX derivatives is matched with the cormesponding
valuation adjustments of the hedged item recorded in the income statement and recorded either as a reduction of
impairmeant of investments in subsiciaries and other participations or as Extracrdinary income.

Revenue and expense transfers with other Group entities

UBS AG pays to and receives amounts from other Group entities in connection with revenue sharing arrangements,
primarily related to the Investrnent Bank. Revenues transferred to and received from Group entities are settled in cash as
entity revenue transfers paid or received. When the nature of the underlying transaction between UBS AG and the Group
entity contains a single, clearly identifiable service component, related income and expenses are presented in the
respective income statement line item, e.g., Fee and commission income from securities and fmvestment business and
other fee and commission income, Fee and commission expense or Net trading income. To the extent the nature of the
underying transaction contains various service components and is not dearly attributable to a particular income
staternent line itern, related income and expenses are presented in Sundry ardinary income and Sundry ordinary expenses.

UBS AG receives services from UBS Business Solutions AG, mainly relating to the Group Operations and Technology
Office, as well as certain other services from other Group entities.

UBS AG provides services to Group entities, mainly relating to real estate and selected other Group Services functions.

Services received from and provided to Group entities are settled in cash as entity cost transfers paid or received. Entity
cost transfers paid are presented within General and administrative expenses and entity cost transfers received are
presented within Sundry ordinary income or Income from real estate holdings.

* Refer to Notes 5 and 7 for more information

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) 7

547/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

MNote 2 Accounting policies (continued)

Post-employment benefit plans

Swiss GAAP permit the use of IFRS Accounting Standards or Swiss accounting standards for post-employment benefit
plans, with the election made on a plan-by-plan basis.

LBS AG has elected to apply Swiss GAAP (FER 16) for the Swiss pension plan in its standalone finandial statements. The
requirements of Swiss GAAP (FER 16) are better aligned with the spedific nature of Swiss pension plans, which are hybrid
in that they combine elements of defined contribution and defined benefit plans but are treated as defined benefit plans
under IFRS Accounting Standards. Swiss GAAP (FER 16) require that the employer contributions to the pension fund are
recognized as Personnel expenses in the income statement. The employer contributions to the Swiss pension fund are
determined as a percentage of contributory compensation. Furthermore, Swiss GAAP (FER16) require an assessment as
to whether, based on the financial statements of the pension fund prepared in accordance with Swiss accounting
standards (FER 26), an economic benefit to, or obligation of, UBS AG arises from the pension fund that is recognized in
the balance sheet when conditions are met. Conditions for recording a pension asset or liability would be met if, for
example, an employer contribution reserve is available or UBS AG is required to contribute to the reduction of a pension
deficit {on a FER 26 basis).

Key differences between Swiss GAAP (FER 16) and IFRS Accounting Standards include the treatrment of dynamic elements,
such as future salary increases and future interest credits on retirement savings, which are not considered under the static
method used in accordance with Swiss GAAP (FER 16). Also, the discount rate used to determine the defined benefit
obligation in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards is based on the yield of high-guality corporate bonds of the
market in the respective pension plan country. The discount rate used in accordance with Swiss GAAP (FER 16), Le., the
technical interest rate, is determined by the Pension Foundation Board, based on the expected retums of the Board's
investment strategy.
¥ Refer to Mote 22 for more information

LBS AG has elected to apply IFRS Accounting Standards (IAS 19) for its non-Swiss defined benefit plans. However,
remeasurernents of the defined benefit obligation and the plan assets are recognized in the income statement rather
than directly in equity. For corresponding disclosures in accordance with 145 19 requirernents, refer to Mote 26 to the
consolidated financial statements of UBS AG.

¥ Refer to the UBS AG consolideated financial statements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more information

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are not recognized in UBS AG's standalone financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities may
be recognized for taxable temporary differences. Changes in the deferred tax liability balance are recognized in the
income staterment.

Allowances and provisions for expected credit losses

LBS AG is required to apply expected credit loss (ECL) approaches for credit-impaired and non-credit-impaired financial
instruments in its standalone financial statements.

For the substantial majority of non-credit-impaired exposures within the scope of the Swiss GAAP ECL reguirements,
LBS AG has chosen to apply the IFRS Accounting Standards ECL approach that is also applied in its consolidated financial
staternents. These exposures include all financial assets that are measured at amortized cost under both framesworks,
Swiss GAAP and IFRS Accounting Standards, fee and lease receivables, daims arising from Group-intemnal funding
presented as Funding provided to significant reguiated subsidiaries eligible as total loss-absorbing capacity, guarantees,
irevocable loan commitments, revolving revocable credit lines and forward starting reverse repurchase and securities
borrowing agreements. Further information about the ECL approach under IFRS Accounting Standards is provided in
Mate 1 to the consolidated financial statements of UBS AG.
¥ Refer to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more information

For the small residual population of exposures within the scope of the Swiss GAAP ECL requirements, which are not

subject to ECL under IFRS Accounting Standards due to cassification differences, alternative approaches are applied.

~ For exposures for which Pillar 1 internal ratings-based models are applied for measurement of credit risk RWa&, ECL for
such exposures is calculated as the regulatory expected boss (EL), with an add-on to scale up to the residual maturity
of exposures maturing beyond the next 12 months. This approach is mainly applied for brokerage receivables
presented within Due from customers, which generally mature within 12 months. For detailled information about
regulatory EL, refer to the "Risk management and control” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2023,

- For exposures for which the standardized approach is applied for the measurement of credit risk RWA, ECL is
determined using a portfolio approach that derives a conservative probability of default (PD) and a conservative loss
given default (LGD) for the entire portfolio. This approach is mainly applied for a small number of koans to large
corporate clients presented within Due from customers.
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Note 2 Accounting policies (continued)

LBS applies a single definition of default for credit risk management purposes, regulatory reporting and ECL, with a
counterparty classified as defaulted based on quantitative and qualitative criteria.
¥ Refer to "Credit policles for distressed essets” in the "Risk management and contral™ section of the UBS AG consolidated financial
statements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more information

An allowance for credit losses is reported as a decrease in the carrying amount of a finandal asset. For an off-balance
sheet item, such as a commitment, a provision for credit losses is reported in Prowisions. Changes to allowances and
provisions for credit losses are recognized in Crealit oss fexpensa) / release.

¥ Refer to Mote 12 for more information

Dispensations in the standalone financial statements

As UBS AG prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, UBS AG is exernpt
from various disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The dispensations indude the management report, the
statement of cash flows and various note disclosures, as well as the publication of full interim financial statements,

b) Changes in accounting policies

There were no significant changes in accounting policies during 2023.

¢} Change in organization

In Decemnber 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG, and
both entities entered into a definitive merger agreement. The completion of the merger is subject to regulatory approvals
and is expected to occur by the end of the second quarter of 2024

d) Risk management
UBS AG is fully integrated into the Group-wide risk management process described in the audited part of the “Risk
management and control” section of the UBS AG Annual Repart 2023

Further information about the use of derivative instruments and hedge accounting is provided on the following pages
and in Motes 1, 10 and 25 to the consolidated financial statemnents of UBS AG.
¥ Refer to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more information

Note 3a Met trading income by business

UsD= CHF
Far the year ended For the pear ended
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Note 3b Net trading income by underlying risk category
T CHF
For the year ended For the pear ended
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Note 4 Investments in subsidiaries and other participations

The table below provides the camying amount, the equity interest and the registered office information regarding the
investrnents in subsidiaries and other participations.

Euity irriereat
accumdlated in % Carying amaunt in USD m Canrying amant in CHF m

31223 niza H.A223 312.22
31,484 34133 26,500 31,642

R N — )
3914 3,204 3,30

Cm T e
2,505 3,246
40,477 47,165

Tetsl iwestments in asbsidiaries and other partidpaiions 43,050

Dividend income from investments in subsidiaries and other Ipamfrpai‘mﬂs of USD 5,430m (CHF 4,862m) in 2023 and
USD 6,465m (CHF 6,183m) in 2022 was mainly atiributable to UBS Switzerand AG, UBS Asset Management AG,
LBS Americas Holding LLC and UBS Europe SE.

In 2023, UBS AG recognized Impairments of investments in subsidianies and other participations of USD 3,715m
(CHF 3,343m), mainly due to an impairment related to UBS Americas Holding LLC of USD 3,500m (CHF 3,135m), as the
recoverable amount of this partidpation declined, mostly due to lower forecasted profits and dividend payouts. In 2022,
UBS AG recognized Impairments of investrments in subsidiares and other participations of USD 1,056m (CHF 1,014m),
mainly due to impairments related to UBS Eurcpe SE of USD 628m (CHF 609m), which partly offset the dividends received
from this subsidiary.

MNote 5 Sundry ordinary income and expenses

] CHF m
Far the year ended For the pear ended
A E AR bl E T el ] 122z
Income fross services prosided 1o UBS Group AG of its sutsidiarie! 1,511 1358 1.5 1,332
- mgﬂumiuﬂlrmmmm' =
P
Tekal sundry oidingsy income 1,59 1,467 1.4 1397
Expenses from revenue tarlers 1o UBS Group AG of its sutdidiaries {394 (629} 355 (5EE)
Nt o s o il s
-— T

Total sundy ordinery expefes 1407) (537} (366 (EaE)
1 Services provided by UBS &G primarily mlated 10 Group bems. Mainly mlaoes 0o debt instrements awilazie o sale. Safer o Mot 15 fo mone inkmation.

Note 6 Personnel expenses

U0 s CHF m

Far the yaer ended Fior thee yesar ended
A nnn nnn 122z
1,536 :

o iy il et Mo excomodl Beneiits o coldipaninns froadt o Tiel perin fuade © D frEa £ L]
Oiher personnel sxperses 106 106 o5 10

Tenal personnel epenies. 3,408 3,909 3,063 2,350
T ReTkects e ReTeaaerement of e Cefined BEReT GRIgalioh a6 Mo ob Pl JG0t ARIECg ATOUNES INCEced N ITRAEST COTH 10 1R RO 5w AETned BERIE pIars, I8 mAkh 145 19 & anpled
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Note 7 General and administrative expenses

s CHF m
Far the yesr ended Farr thee ypesad ecdesd
nnn AR ] £ i 12z
451 415 404 195

B g e e e
Teksl geneisl snd sdsinzt e epeises 4118

Note 8 Extraordinary income and expenses
LD CHF m

Far the yesr ended For the pear ended

1.3 ETRFF] nun ETRFRE
FResverscl o impairments. of and provisions. for subidisries snd other paticipations' 5 0 4
et i fom it s g
STk A T —— T
Total extracedinary income m EF 191

Totsl exiracadinary expenses 3 ] ]
1 Refer 10 Mote £ for moie infoamarion.

] !m:tﬂsﬂ
1 1 1

Net gains from disposals of properties of USD 80m (CHF 74m) in 2022 mainly reflected gains on the sale of properties in
Basel,

Gains from disposals of subsidiaries and other participations of USD 116m (CHF 113m}) in 2022 mainly induded a gain
from the sale of UBS AG's wholly owned subsidiary UBS Swiss Financial Advisers AG to Vontobel.
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MNote 9 Taxes

LED s CHF m
Far the yesr ended Farr thee ypesad ecdesd
A nara N1n a2z
Income 1 experae | (beneft) 7 m 55 258

Income tax expense of USD 279m (CHF 255m) was recognized for UBS AG in 2023, compared with USD271m
(CHF 258m) for 2022. The income tax expense for 2023 was reduced by a benefit of USD 397m (CHF 356m) in respect
of the utilization of tax bosses carried forward, primarily in the US and in Jersey. The income tax expense for 2023 related
to UBS AG's taxable profits that were primarily earned in other locations.

The income tax expense for 2022 was reduced by a benefit of USD 204m (CHF 195m) in respect of the utilization of tax
losses carried forward, primarily in the US and the UK. The income tax expense for 2022 related to UBS AG's taxable
profits that were primarily eamed in other locations.

For 2023, the average tax rate, defined as income tax expense divided by the sum of operating profit and extracrdinary
incorme minus extraordinary expenses and capital tax, was 15.5% (2022: 3.6%).

MNote 10 Securities financing transactions

UED Bn CHF b
e Mnara A3 .12.22

On-balance sheet
Resgeivatles bos securifies fnanding Iransscfions, gros 1570 1313 13 1214

Papables from securities financing areactiond, net

238
Bty phedlged &2 collateral in connection with securities franding Iransscions 757
B P 73
d-mmjmuﬂdwu o e
e w"mwm”
dmmmmmwwnymuﬂ s
Off-balance sheet
Fair vale of sssets seceiwed &4 collsbersl in conmection with securities financing ransactions. Errd E1FT] ETET 281
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Mote 11a Collateral for loans and off-balance sheet transactions

EfRF¥I] NALE
Unsetured Total Seured Unsecured Total

LTI NTees L T BT TP R 105736
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Mote 11b Credit-impaired financial instruments
FIRF: FIRFET]

Tesl credit-mpained firancisl instruments! 517 120 390
1 Crodfir-irpained financal isienents am financal ases and ob-oalmde sheet positos subject o incemed oedin lnwmes, ako ielesed 10 2 wage 3 posiions.
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Guarsnies and loan comsitments &7 1] £l Ell
Total credit-impaired financial instruments’ 534 « 04 3

1 Crodfir-irpained financial istenents am financial asers and of-aalmde sheet positons subject o incemed oedin nses, ako elesed 10 2 wage 3 posiions.

Note 12 Allowances and provisions

Allowances and provisions of USD 2,249m {CHF 1,893m) as of 31 December 2023 included allowances and provisions
for credit losses of USD 294m (CHF 247m). Allowances and provisions of USD 2,237m (CHF 2,068m) as of 31 December
2022 included allowances and provisions for credit losses of USD 287m (CHF 266m).

The 2023 increase in allowances and provisions for credit losses of USD 7m (a decrease of CHF 19m) induded net credit
loss expenses of USD 13m (CHF 13m), primarily related to credit-impaired positions, as well as USD 7m (CHF 33m) for
write-offs and other movements that did not impact the income statement.

Met credit loss expenses in 2023 included a net expense of USD S4m (CHF 48m) on credit-impaired positions, in the
Investmient Bank, and a net release of USD 34m (CHF 29m) in Group Iterns on a single position.

Mote 12a Allowances for credit losses

Incriatse Rl
secognized  recognized
Balsnce i the inthe Retiveries Fargign Balsnce
at ol incose incose and past Redassication | curfengy ool
LS .12.22 Slalesien talesenl  Wrile-ofls  due insenes athei  trandation EJRFII]
Default rik refating 1o co-balince sheetexpasores. 21 9 o . LA [ S
L AUUOOTOI . O, OO, . WOVSTOO SO ..
LA LA LA 7 s L
0 ] 1] [i] 1] T
0 [t} o Q 3 241
Incrige [
recogrized  recognized
Balsnce in the inghe Recivmies Fareign Balsnce
s ol incose incose and past Redassications ! CurTency ool
(¥ it 1.12.22 Slalesen talesenl  Wrile-ofls  due insenes ather  trandation EJRFI]
Defoul ik reaiing fo cn-balance sheeteposes L. I © S 0 _m o " L B LELIN
_ Ofwhict e geditiowses A Lo LA G L ¥ eeeeeeeeem L ol
_ WA epecedowdbues L L S LA, LA, LA A L =,
Cihes L] (i 0 1] 1] 1] 1] L7
Total allowances 195 33 0 (7 [i] 1 (13) 203
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Mote 12b Provisions

Inciiskie Riseirie
recognized rescognized Fareign
Balance i the inghe CurTengy Balsnce
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Note 12¢ Development of allowances and provisions for credit losses

LS Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Sage 3
Batance as of 31 Decernber 2002 (287) (133 (47 (107
_Metmovement fom new and detecognied maeseetions® B w3 T
5 A
o e B
=2 A 53
% L —
.- F0 i STH
(18] 2] 0
Teaal ECL allcwancs mawemments with profit of o impact 13 B 7 {15
Mowvessents without profit of loss impaey farite-olf, FX sad atherf® 7 1 {1} 7
Balance & of 31 Decernber 2003 (204 {133 {4} {1200
1 Fempresrns th inciase and dedvst in allosances and pardsions nsaking from faancial insrurents (ndeding qearamiees and faciities) that wer nowly originaied, pchased of renesed and Trem 1he final

derenguicien of lnans o facilites o their materiy date o0 eadies rwumnm1m-m‘m¢-m arsies. ) Aprosents 1he change in allvwances and
s relaied 1o danges in model npus um‘plm.l MACIEInOnic conditinns, changes in the pomin P and LGD and umwinging of the time walar.
+mmwlnhimmw 4 Rnpresets the deovrs in alowanoss and prostsions nsehing from sim-ofs of te ECL alloaanoe
lgtnhgmmghgmmmiluptﬂahﬂmhmﬂhﬂtu*ﬂmiwm“

(F a7 Totsl
Batance as of 31 Decernber 2002 (266)
_Metmosmentbomowwand dewouimdwnactenst 08 @ 3 &

{15) 0]
Teasl ECL allcwance miweinents with profil of I imgac {13) [P
Migwresents withosst profil of loss impact farite-off, FX snd atherf® EE] 13
Balance as of 31 December 2023 (2471 12 34 {181
1 Fempresrns the inciase and dedvst in allosances and pardsions nsaking from fnancial insrurents (ndeding qearamiees and faciities) hat wer nowly originaied, puchased of renesed and Trem 1he final
derenguicien of lnans o facilites o their materiy date o0 eadies rwumnm1m-m‘m¢-m arsies. ) Aprosents 1he change in allvwances and

s relaied 1o danges in model npus ﬂ.l'pll'li.l oonditinns, dhanges in the epos PO and LGD and umwinging of the time walar.
i-mm:lgllldlim.l:w mﬂ'mp % 4 Rnpresets th deosrs h.lbu-:irnmmﬂlg wimrs of e ECL allowsmoe
apire! e s canying anoum when all or pam of 2 nondal s & desned encolkcibie of fughen and noseneTs i sn archange L.

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) 16

556/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 12¢ Development of allowances and provisions for credit losses (continued)
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1 Fempresrns the inciase and dedvst in allosances and pardsions nsaking from fnancial insrurents (ndeding qearamiees and faciities) hat wer nowly originaied, puchased of renesed and Trem 1he final
derenguicien of lnans o facilites o their materiy date o0 eadies :wumnm1m-m‘m¢-m arsies. ) Aprosents 1he change in allvwances and

s relaied 1o danges in model npus ﬂ.l'pll'li.l mhﬁqﬂj PO and LGD and umwinging of the time walar.
i-mm:lgllldlim.l:w mﬂ'mp % 4 Represents te h.lbu-:irnmmﬂlg wimrs of e ECL allowsmoe
apire! e s canying anoum when all or pam of 2 nondal s & desned encolkcibie of fughen and noseneTs i sn archange L.
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Note 12d Balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions subject to ECL

The tables below provide ECL exposure and allowance and provision information about finandal instruments and certain
non-financial instruments that are subject to ECL.

LS .12

Finencial instruments measured & smaontized cost

Tatal
Cash snd balances & ceniral henks 40,440 49440 0 0 [ [ 1]

Tenal an-halance sheet financial st within the soope of ECL INTE 39117 1,289 383 [FEE] (93] {159 (116

Total expasure ECL provisions
Off-balance sheet jwithin the stope of ECL) Toldl  Stagel  StageZ  Siage3d Total  Sage 1  Stape?  Smed
Centingent babllies,gross 3 ame 8 o4 @
Imevuable 1000 18417
Ferard suiting irshaactions [securitiet Enandng ransutionl’ 9500 950
Credit Fnes 9777 8446
Tetsl aiff-balance shest finsncisl instruments and cedit lines within the scope ol ECL 72L& T0.507 160 35)
Tonsl lowances and provisions 239 (13 [ (120
erﬁa:ﬁfd-m:mhn:;hmd:mﬁnhmm jlld.d:.s:liu'nd .g’::m.,i:mmmﬁﬁ“m“

CHF

Finencial instruments measured & smontized cost
Cagh snd balances & cenirel banks

B e e e AL MR B 1 B 1
Muortgage losns 0
Acoued income andpeepaidespenses 0 gss 358 7 W@ 000
Other sdets? T L]
Total on-halance sheet firancial auts within the soope of ECL 70,005 26855 | (18)

e
Off-halance sheet (within the scope of ECL) Sagel  Swmed
Irmewocable

Teasl aiff-bakance shest finsncsl instiuments snd dedit lines within the scope ol ECL 60075

Tl Allrwances and prosions (S A [}
1 T conrying arspunt of financial assets a et the 1ol It ENPORETE BT O 1he 1 EL al ¥ Inclagies of ather e chi froen UBS Gaoep AG
and sebrskdiaries in the UBS Groug and othes assecs wifhin the smze ol ECL. Sefor i Mote 163 do mose imbomation, 3 Indudes fonsans ssaning reverss repuschase agreomens within the scope of ECL
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Note 12d Balance sheat and off-balance sheet positions subject to ECL {continued)

] iz
Carmying asoun’ ECL alkrwances

Finscial instiummenls meatued 5 smofized st Tolsl  Stage i Stagel  Slagel Tkl

(Cash snd halances & central banks CAREM L34 1] ] 0

cehotes o soces boancog ranacions smwi w00 @

Dt from customers oS MGEm 1483 n3 0T

Fuiding providad 1o Sgnilcant regulated subidinies eligibh 5 Vot losé-abioibing

Tensl ar-halance shest firancial st within the soope of ECL

Off-bialarce sheset (within the scope of ECL)
Contingent abiities, gross

k T e
Tenal off-bakance sheet financial instruments and credit lines within the scope ol ECL. 51,180 47,947 3160

Teasl lleramnces snd penisions =
1 T corying areoumt of firandal assots F] i enprriure it of th mspective ECL alk 2 nchsdes ol o s g from UBS Gmep AG
ared sebeidianies in the LB S Group ans othes mmhhmdmﬁrnﬂn1hhmm Jlmmmgnﬂmﬁuﬂwuﬂhdﬂmﬂd!n

CHF EV IR
Carrfing assoun®
Financial instruments. measured & smarined cost Stage i Staged  Slaged

Tensl or-halance shest firancial stats within the soope of ECL 57890 156,146 1,377

Off-balance st (within the scope of ECL) Tolsl  Stagel  Stage?  Staged
18,818 17 8032

Imevocable commiied prolongation of edting hans [ ] ]

Tenal off-bakance shest financial instruments ond cedit ines within the scope ol ECL 47305 #4317 2031 &7

Tetsl allowances and prndsion _ =
1 T conrying arount of financial asses thee 100l Iss ENPORETE BT OF 1he 1 ECL al ¥ Incugies of ather Jes cus From LS Gaoep B
and setekdiaries in the UBS Gioug and othe mmhhmdmﬁrnﬂn1nhmm JlmmmgnﬂmW&uﬂhhmd!n
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Note 12e Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum expasure to credit risk based on the Group's internal credit
rating system and year-end stage cI tion.

Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category

[ niza
Het camying
Nt
Credit- Tetsl grass (meimurn
gl caming Bl epoiiieto
4-5 B8 913 [defauhed)  amount allowances ool figk)
[1] [1] a 0 4944 o 49,449
[ g [ g 49445 ] 45447
(i) [7] [E] 0 56,087 % 56,082
&3 457 (5 ¢ Sa0ET o087
S8 15507 1,091 0 G833 (] 9,381
5286 I5E7 L9 g s83EF 2 85381
0578 S8EM 1607 3B 107,665 {207 7,463
0332 48182 Li3% = 5 IELEIE
- S A . S -
g g & LY L {154y 27
0 0 0 0 29403 [rxi] 29,380
] g I g [l 79380
BB AMs 1.0 13 5116 ] 5116
L ) 0 A8 g A8
e g i B & ) S
[ J & 13 13
7 7] 54 [] 3,000
247 &57 5 7 FE
5 3 L G =
14 6% 8 F] a0
] & g 7 I
H e S 2 e
ITEIE 6947 4811 499 321012
Off-balance sheet positions and credit lines subject to expected credit loss by rating category
L EIRF¥I]
Teaal aff-
balance sheer
Credit-  (madmum
i Epdiiine B
Rationg calegory -1 -3 45 68 013 (delauhief)  crediifsk) ECL provisions
Off-taalance shaset (within the scope of ECL)
Contingent kabiities, aross 17689 905 1W0 1917 A 4 31,360 ]
222 LT M3 a FL2E 2
I . R B R . R
[l d a 4 4 i/
477 1515 5078 ] 13,900 (58
4715 207 4E a 18427 k]
e nme e 4w @y
il d a 7 7 2
B4 15 L} ] 8,50 L}
F] 135 a a 250 o
196 445 1,424 ] a1 P;J‘T
LI % T L
e 3 HE a i wa
1] ] L] ] 1.907 L]
[ [ [ 7 1807 [
787 91l IMs 18 12,484 =}
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Note 12e Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category (continued)

Financial assets to eredit risk by r. [}
CHF niza

1] L]

ECL o i

B8 013 (delulied)  smount  sllowances coedil fisk)
[[] o

g ] g [
=1 1 /] 47,209 4
" i
13,052 e 1]
11057 7] g
049 g

tEra | [
i

ik

RTINS -

B Y | N = - N
of iy stage F a [
Dither sty 17 15

&%
:
ay
&
i
ghnﬁh

Tetal in seope of ECL ssets | ECL amounts By stages 53,544 128,757

Off-balance sheet positions and credit lines subject to expected credit loss by rating category
CHF 1383

Torlad olf-
balance sheet
apsune
Imasumn
SN o
coudil risk) ECL prowisions

26,335
. A
g
16,743
L S
sy
7,996
B
EFE]
Lasr

b

01 3 45 58 13

ﬁ%ﬁ-mﬂw

Contngen 14EES  7EH 1817
of hich stage 7 N S T J—
&
550

Imevocable commilments, oross 460  3gm 1117 5032
L ...~ N - - ]
g
Fij

BT B /A 1> S
[ g [ a
Forveard staring tranasctions (securities Bnanding tranticions] 7627 185 70 114 [1]
of 6T [ 7 [7] &
Credit fines o e 185 3,784 1,198

&

i

o

&

!

o ol e o e ey ey e

B S T .. N
F 4 F FLy
1,605 o L ] 1,605
1605 g [ a LA
Tl oif-balance shest financial instruments and credit lines. B5T 1710 6081 L6TR G494 15 60,975
¥ Refer to Note 9 and Note 19 to the UBS AG consolidated finandal stetements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more
infarmation about ECL in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards

oo mémﬁ mﬁ&ggﬁ@maﬂ]

.
e
=
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Note 12e Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category (continued)

Financial assets to eredit risk by r. [}
LoD 311233

et camying
(maximum
cresdit risk)

EEHGE =S 5.5

Bz . [t
B Iz

o il I
Dither sty

g
8

snige
Total in scope of ECL atsets | ECL dnousts By stages

2

Off-balance sheet positions and credit lines subject to expected credit loss by
LD m EfR o]

j
i

Toial off-
sl ance dhae
gL
(masisum
gL 1o

-1 2-3 -5 58 8-13 credit k) ECL

Rating categery
Off-Balsnce sheet ol ECL

B ———————
ofwhichsage? o0

20,359
N F. -
... SO

9102  zse 1213 356

B TR T A

6,272
N N
L. —

T T B

1810
28N
11,582

so~¥BT-33g E

H L [

GET 5851 1,186

LY .
F ] ]

§
gﬁ'ﬁ h'ﬁ

& e ﬁ;ﬁﬂ AL ﬁgagﬁﬂ ﬂngﬁgﬁl E.;g

Tetsl off-batance shest financial instruments and credit lines 51,180
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Financial assets to eredit risk by r. [}

CHF 31.12.22

£

!

Jdee i

Bfuw |

BRas || o
EB.. . It

EEEE =S

|

;B

Sy e

CCIRCE IR

HE

o it !

]

Dither sty

='-‘.'.'4.'h.4"h

E'—‘.ﬂ:ﬁ":’ﬁ

P
97,918

snige
Total in scope of ECL atsets | ECL dnousts By stages

IE

=
=

Off-balance sheet positions and credit lines subject to expected credit loss by rating category

CHF R i)

Hs

Totdl off-

ECL prowisiong

Rating categery
Off-Balsnce sheet ol ECL

%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ?mmwuwmmmmmmmwmwmm
efwhidhsmge

sje mEBIE] m?a?&m

0,714

=1

Total aff-balance shest financial instruments and cedit lines 587

N EN RN EN L SENEN - PR

ERSE mia
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Note 13 Trading portfolio and other financial instruments measured at fair value

U0 s CHFm
9z naaa EY R Fi] R

o iy precious mesaks and atter plysical commooive

Tetsl sty measured o fair value

T R St T e e R R,
Tetsl labilities. meatued & {air value 108,139 95651 91,019

o il S il v winingg & vkt e et FRoM 2300 633484
1 Ingudes mongy main pape. 1 Comskids of high-quality ouid debr sequithes than ame eligitle for mpuichase wanmdions ar the Swiss National Bask oo otfeer comaal basks. ¥ Rrfer 10 Mot 15 for mose
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Mote 14 Derivative instruments?

31.92.23 LR Py

Desivative
fimangial financial Totsl netional
LS e Bl iabilies vtlueg? et Fabilities vlues?
1,076
12667

19.1 6 1,298 17.4 214 a75

1269 1353 WIS 149.5 153.8 20,538
o iefich Iraching cleeatiess [F7] 15 [ 153

| ofwtick i vabe deviedushy s vobnonodel  pssms 0 MrE w4
oo wlich: cemieanies desigratent At heclpe decounting redninsting a5 ar

o vl i e v pading 2 Wi modk’ a5 a7 a8 as
Neftiong with cash collateral payatles  seceivables 175 g ] 1225
e o T L1 N L SO . - L -
Total sher netting

1889 (1128 [134)

6.9 14.7
ag

. M8 {3

the s beatance: shiset s a6 thei b comtracts and an esdwced from ths tabke. The replacemen values and selared noonal wkees of thes Servarees e

rmnnulh-dup-nspnm zmmduhdnmummmm [l ] o dirivatiess that an chaned Sough sihe & cenmal cosnterny of an echangs.
these g carshi margi waes ot manterial fon any of the pesiods doewand rate agroTans, 4 Motioral amounts relied 1o inest g conTacts
rmmdbrlmll-mndﬁlmmrﬂdhgbumm.l bﬂnuhmulu ehrenid inesest e solaliny and infbrion. & inclacis deikarke
Inam comritments with notional valees of USD Ebn asof 31 Decemizer 2023 {31 Decenizer 2022 USD 5t and negatie meplacemet valees of USD 2hn (31 Decomber 2002: USD 43m]
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Mote 14 Derivative instruments {continued)®

a3 LR P

Futizres [111] O3 ] 111} 558
Oveer-thet-counter {TC) options . . . . . L) e L O - S— -

a1
o 13,563 40.3 a7 12,283

Tenal before neting 106.8
o iy Draclieg clevdeatives e d
| of il fa ol cevived asing avaloaponmodl  WEg

ki ek s 7
Mesiogywith coch collaseral poyobles frecebables {150
Tl stier retting 8.5 1.2 136 16.1

o iy ool ot coaaning CoumispaTies a4 az a8 a8z

B L U O - ... Sy, ———
o iy amber clisnt coumierarties &7 23 &4 124

1MMMHMmhmmmthMMnnmﬁmﬂﬁ The eplacemen valens and selaird rovional wrkses of them cerheariees e
rmmulhrhlpu‘hd:pu-nd. 3 Tonal reional valses incude CHF 1180w (31 Decomber 2022: CHF 1041w} relari mﬁnmwdﬂauﬂimﬂumm
The tair ke of these g cash margin wers not manerial fon any of the pesiods A agresmens. 4 Motiorad amounts relaied 1 inoest e conTacs
m-nnq-:unmmdmmmmﬁnlﬁgbmmmmnw ﬂmmqﬁnﬂlmnvaﬁﬂyﬂm & Inclacios deihacke
Inam comriments with notional valees of 0HF Samas of 31 December 2033 (31 Decembe 2023 CHF 4bn) and negatier replacement values of CHF 17m (31 Deceniber 2032 CHF 40m).
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Note 15a Financial investments by instrument type

LS

. o which: ek 1o maturiy —
o i vl f ale

e s

Todsl firancisl ivesiments 40,874 40,884 43, 43518

o ity sevominier sl Mo revurchane franseciine & accoroiiace wanh ity regelatines A6 755 Eaa FR452 JRON
1 Quaitied InwesTians in which UBS &G holss 10% of the moial bas at ket 10% of 1ocal  Conshits of i debe seouries than fu
mm"ﬂimmm«m_wmfm ol o s s gty e - awdhgishe

123 31222

— 4412 40,434 40,224
o ity sevomitier sl Mo repurchuane iransec i & Accosoiace wanh Sudly regelatines 7 EiIT ENE FET 35047

1 (i parfciparions ane inseaments in which UBS &5 bolds. 10°% or maee of the amal capital or bas ar et 10% of tooal woting righse. & Combsts of bigh-quakity loguid cebe seoariies than ave sligisle fou
puchens taRsamions a1 i Swhs Manional Bark ar ather cemal banks

Note 15b Financial investments by counterparty rating — debt instruments

USDm CHFm
F.12323 EL R i QN ] an

-1 31,502 36,214 26,852 33472

7 Rrter 22 Moie 18 s moee kmaiion.

Mote 16a Other assets

Uskrm CHFm
EYRFwE] 122 3.12.123 mnnn
Diefesral pesition for hedging instnaments __BEM  gnag

Deposts and colmere provided in conmection wih Migarion, gty and sivdermamees) AR BN L)
Fee- snd cosmiviion-relsted recatvable 243 12
Messestoddvdbnetpbes )
I B . B | S |

[22] TiE

o ieich o receviabies dhoe o UBF Group AG and swbsickiies in ohe U85 Groe @ s a7 e

Tetal aiher assets” 9,505 13,516 12431
T Fafar 12 e 0 e 175 m g LS5 AL commolicaned Rrandal saienents i 1he UES AG Anawal Boporl 2003 o6 o WIIMGlo., 3 INGieces cmponens of oiher (mosvabies dat Ban USS Goap &G and

sutsidianios in the UES Group and other aets otaling U0 988m (CHF T72m) as of 31 Decembe 2023 QUSD 939m (CHF 867m & of 31 Decerter 2022, wiiich ae within the soope of sxpecied ondn ks
aomnting. Eafer 10 Koo 134 for mos information.
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MNote 16b Other liabilities

USD CHF 1

ETRFFI] 1222 31233 FRFNT]

L .3
66 56
B2 69

.............. i e e :

i e o e S G A s B BB G T e

Tenal aither lisbilities 1,755 1,582 1,475

1 Encluzies capital i pagables.

Note 17 Pledged assets

The table below provides information about pledged assets, other than assets placed with central banks related to
undrawn credit lines and for payment, dearing and settlement purposes (31 Decernber 2023: USD 3.5bn (CHF 2.9bn),
31 December 2022: USD 5.2bn (CHF 4.8bn)) and those pledged in connection with securities financing transactions (refer
to Note 10 for more information).

nn nnn
Camying amount of Carrying amoust of
LS phedged assets pldiged sisets
N gan 1]
Fropersy® FALT 2,052
Total pledged asssts 10,138 6,785
1Ir|d.uum UAHSTRES, whbit the rpacene valies ane nanaged [Basi TGRS afed padicr and kel thas & 00 ST i briorehiz b
ﬂnmdmhmﬂlﬂq :Tlﬂﬂlq-im:uu e hmnﬂgmhmmmm.hmnuﬂﬂﬂmmmn
ﬂilmhmﬂmlﬁ!'lrlulfilmhm
nn nnn
Camying amount of Carrging amoust of
CHF phedged assets plsdged sisets
e . . M. - .|
Property® 1841 1.897
Total pledged assets 8584 6,271
1 Inchsdes ssoities pledged e the iy values ane managed on 3 poriolio Bask aovoes Cu RGeS and modicr Tyss, and herke thes & oo chea whidonshis bewoen

the spacific collaneral plodged and the sedaied Rabiy. 3 Thess pledged propomies seve as oollaieral foe an eaksting mongage kaan fom USS Switzmland A, he camyiag amourn of waiich wees OHF 2,380m as
of 31 December 2023 [CHF 2450m a5 of 31 Decambar 2022},
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Note 18 Country risk of total assets

The table below provides a breakdown of total non-Swiss assets by credit rating, after netting of assets and liabilities as
recognized on the balance sheet, but before other risk mitigants. The credit ratings reflect the sovereign credit rating of
the country to which the ultimate risk of the underlying asset is related. The ultimate country of risk for unsecured loan
positions is the domicile of the immediate borrower or, in the case of a legal entity, the domicile of the ultimate parent
entity. For collateralized or guaranteed positions, the ultimate country of risk is the domicile of the provider of the
collateral or guarantor or, if applicable, the domidle of the ultimate parent entity of the provider of the collateral or
guarantor. For mortgage loans, the ultimate country of risk is the country where the real estate is located. Similarly, the
ultimate country of risk for property and equipment is the country where the property and equipment are located. Assets
fior which Switzerland is the ultimate country of risk are provided separately at the bottom of the table in order to provide
a recondiliation to total balance sheet assets,
¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 for more information

narE zzz

Clasaification  Intemal UBS raing!  Deseripiion s&p Filch LS
2 e N g
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e SRR BONS. EONE MR
&
7
]

{3 e | 8 R
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P
b
a.a;a -;m = E:* ®
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T - |
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434016
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Tonal sty _ _ 558,527
1 Inoermal ratlags ane mapped 1o i ememnal ratiags (s lne with e able patlisied in the &k nasagenent aad control® sectian of vhe USS AR Ssnual Regon 1023

Elrld=ls
Ezlglaa

s izzz
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£6, 416
T
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265
11D
M
..
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Al loAad Ak it Ak e oAb 76,271
L AwA Aeeh-  Adtek-  BOSTT
Baal to Basd B+ i BBE OB+ to BEE i)
BEE- BEE- 4485
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) O | B
L .- S
[T ]
[ i3
13 CasdtaC CoC-teC ooC-te C 113
] ] M
Subtoal 365,307
Switzertand 104,808
Tetal sty 470,106
1 Inoemmal ratiags ane mapped 10 e ememal rarings in e with e table pablished in the “&kk nasagenent aad contol® section of he USS &G Aenual Repon 1023,
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Mote 19 Structured debt instruments

The table below provides a breakdown of financial liabilities designated at fair value that are considered structured debt
instruments.

UEDm
EIRFRE] EIR ]
Fissad-rate bonds with ructured leatuse 5679 113
Rkt ..'“.:“"“..“... . e m e

G DO

Tenal firancisl liabilities desigrated at kair value 0,858
1 Inclages peedoes memallinbed cobe nsmamenms swed.  § Retor  Kime 23 4o moe |

In addition to Financial fiabilities designated at fair value, certain structured debt instruments were reported within the
balance sheet lines Due to banks, Due fo cusfomers and Bonds issued. These instruments were bifurcated for
measurernent purposes. As of 31 Decernber 2023, the total carrying amount of the host instruments was USD 7,555m
(CHF 6,359m) (31 December 2022: USD 5,379m (CHF 4,972m)) and the total camying amount of the bifurcated
embedded derivatives was positive USD 58m (CHF 49m) (31 December 2022: positive LISD 59m (CHF 54m)).

Note 20 Funding eligible as total loss-absorbing capacity at the UBS AG level

UsD s CHF m
niznA ETRFEA ETRFEL] ETRFFY]

Funding dighle as 1oial loss-ataorbing capadty at the UES AG hewel induded isc
Funing received from UBS Group &G messured &t amertized cost ‘67,282 59,207 56,539 4,720
Funding receisd friom UBS Group AG designated al fai valie T 1.959 2,382 1.E11
e R B T By
Tl funding eligibie 2 sotsl loi-sheorbing capacity a1 the UBS A level! 0,549 64,202 59,381 59,342
1wmmmmgmdmﬂqumﬂhﬂnﬂgﬁﬂlnmﬁhﬂl“hy#nm -uth'lfmlnnling
ﬂmmzumnﬁhﬂummlnms&! & of 31 Decmbsr 2093 (31 Deoemzer 2002 USD S8,373m {0HF 54, Fafer o this “UES &G standalons

lgmurm'mdﬂmhmmmmmmﬂmmw
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Note 21a Share capital

UBS AG shares

The 2023 Annual General Meeting of UBS AG approved a change of the share capital currency from the Swiss franc to
the US dallar, resulting in a slight reduction to the nominal value per share to USD 0.10 {from CHF 0.10 previoushy), with
the amount of the reduction allocated to the Capital contribution reserve. As a consequence of the change in the share
capital currency, the capital contribution reserve was also converted from Swiss francs to US dollars, resulting in an
increase, with the offset recorded in the Other statutory capital resenve. Total equity reported for UBS AG standalone
was not affected by these changes.

As of 31 December 2023, UBS AG's share capital of USD 386m (CHF 386m as of 31 December 2022) consisted of fully
paid-up registered issued shares with a nominal value each of USD .10 (CHF 0.10 as of 31 December 2022), which each
entitle the holder to one vote at the meeting of the shareholders of UBS AG, if entered into the share register as having
the right to vote, as well as a proportionate share of distributed dividends. UBS AG's shares are not subject to any
restrictions or limitations on their transferability.

As of 31 December 2023, shares issued by UBS AG totaled 3,858,408, 466 shares (unchanged from 31 December 2022).
The shares were all dividend bearing and held by UBS Group AG.

Additionally, as of 31 Decernber 2023, 380,000,000 registered shares with a nominal value of USD 0.10 each (CHF 0.10
as of 31 December 2022) were available to be issued out of conditional capital through the voluntary or mandatory
exercise of conversion rights and / or warrants granted in connection with the issuance of bonds or similar financial
instruments on national or international capital markets,

Mon-distributable reserves

Mon-distributable reserves consist of 50% of the share capital of UBS AG, amounting to USD 193m (CHF 190m) as of
31 December 2023 {USD 197m (CHF 193m) as of 31 December 2022).

Note 21b Significant shareholders

The sole direct shareholder of UBS AG is UBS Group AG, which haolds 100% of UBS AG shares. These shares are entitled
to voting rightts. Indirect shareholders of UBS AG induded in the table below are the direct shareholders of UBS Group AG
facting in their cwn name or in their capacity as nominees for other investors or beneficial cwners) that were registered
in the UBS Group AG share register with 3% or more of the share capital of UBS Group AG as of 31 December 2023 or
as of 31 December 2022. The shares and share capital of UBS AG held by indirect shareholders, as shown in the table
bedow, represent their relative holding of UBS Group AG shares. They do not have voting rights in UBS AG.

EIRFRE] A
LS o, eanend mbere dniiaved Share copitsl held  Sheees held (%] Share capital hedd  Shares held (%)
Significant divect sharsholder of LIRS A
UBS Group &G 386 100 143 100
Sgnificant indirect shereholders of UBS AG
DTC [Cade & Cin), Mew York! pi ] 7 18 7
e e
T
1 DTC [Coge B-Cn), Mew York, ~ The Deposiney Trest Company,” is & U5 Scertios chasing oagantzanion
EIRFRE] A
CHF iy, encepd wdeve inclicated’ Share copitsl held  Sheres held (%] Share capital hedd  Shares held (%)
Significant divect sharsholder of LIBS AG
UBS Group &G 380 100 186 100
Sgnificant indirect sherehelders of UBS AG
DTC [Cade & Cio), Mesw Yiork! i1 7 w 7
Horust Nominess Lid., Lendon ' 5 a 17 4
Chase Meminees Ll Lendon ' ) ) EE] 2
1 DTC [Coce Ko, Mew Toik, ~ The Daposiney Trest Compary,” 15 U5 Scertios chasing ogantzanion
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Note 22 Swiss and non-Swiss post-employment benefit plans

a) Assets related to non-Swiks defined benefit plans s = CHF m

nazn Mnarn nILE 11232
et sasets fo non-Siiss defined benefit plas! 344 n 90 298
Total sty for non-Swiss defined benefit plans 344 i = 98

1 A5 of 31 Decenber 233, USD 341 §CHF 2 7m) relmed oo the UE defined beneft pession plan and USD 3m (CKF 2 relned o 1he US cefined besetic pension plan. &5 of 31 Decenba 232, US037Im
[CHF 257m) sebaned m the 1K defined benefi pensian plan and USD I (CHF 1) rebined 50 e U5 defined beaelt porsion plan.

b} Liabilities related to Swiss pension plan and non-Swiss defined benefit plans S0 e CHF m

naxnA NAara NrE a2z
Frovision for Swiis pension plan o i} o 0
Tenel provision for Swiss pension plam and net defined beneft |isbilge: for non-Twizs defined benefit plas 66 2] 55 L]
Banik soocunts at UBS and UBS debi inssruments held by Swiss passion fusd n b 1o 1
Tedsl Rabilities rebsbed 1o Swiss pension phan and nin-Swis defined benel! plans 12 E W 88

1 s of 30 December 2033, S0 37m [CHF 31m) mkned 1o the US plars. and USD 14m (CHF 1 2n) redaied o the UK plan. As of 31 Deoenzer 2032, USD 37m (CHF 38mp ket e US plars and S0 14m
[CHF 13 redaied o ihe UK plan

c) Swwiiss pengion plan
US0 e CHF m
A of or for the year ended
A 3R b ERR i 11222
Pension plan suphss 343 7
e ngmim‘uasmﬂn
(Change in economic benelil | (obligation) recogrized in the incose sialement [1] [i]

Tenal pension expense recognized in the income sasement within Perionnel experdes i 45

1 The persien plan serples is devermined in accordancs with R85 16 and conshrs of he mesenv for th facuation in sset vl The serples did aot reprosest an econemic benefit for LES AG In accortance sith
FER B boch s of 31 Decemizer 20023 and 31 Demmbe 2032

LBS AG has elected to apply FER 16 for its Swiss pension plan and IFRS Accounting Standards (145 19) for its non-Swiss
defined benefit plans. However, remeasurements of the defined benefit abligations for non-Swiss defined benefit plans
are recognized in the income statement rather than directly in equity.

In 2023, an expense of USD 124m (CHF 115m) was recognized in the income statement, driven by expenses of USD 76m
(CHF 68m) related to defined contribution plans and USD 49m (CHF 47m) related to defined benefit plans.

In 2022, a gain of USD 55m (CHF S1m}) was recognized in the income statement, driven by a net gain related to the UK
defined benefit plan that reflected an increase in the applicable discount rate, partly offset by a loss due to a negative
return on plan assets and an increase in the applicable inflation rate. This net gain was partly offset by expenses related
to the Swiss plan and other non-Swiss defined benefit plans.

The Swiss pension plan had no employer contribution reserve as of both 31 December 2023 and 31 Decernber 2022,
¥ Refier to Mote 2 for more informethon
¥ Refer te Mote 26 to the UBS AG consolidated financlal statements in the UBS AG Annual Report 2023 far mare information about
non-Swiss defined benefit plans in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) 32
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Mote 23 Related parties

Transactions with related parties are conducted at internally agreed transfer prices or at arm’s-length terms and neither
involve mare than the nommal risk of collectability nor contain any other unfavorable features for the firm. Loans, fixed
advances and mortgages granted to non-independent members of the governing bodies in the ordinary course of
business are also on substantially the same terms and conditions that are available to other employees, induding interest
rates and collateral. Independent members of the governing bodies are granted loans and mortgages in the ordinary
course of business at general market conditions.

A
LD Aacasnts due from Asourits due 1o
B T .. N L )

_ ofwhilk Gy receie o UBS Grop AG despratedatfosbe M 189
Subsidiaties.

e T
o ity fvncting prewitted fo sipetia el slaiinier sl v taea/ s
abveviing capaity

a

nna IR vl
CHF Amnounts due from Aswoinils dué 1o Amounts dus frem Amounts due Ba
. .. £ A *... JUN—x .

_ ofwhich fondig received fom UBS Growp AG dsgreeedatfarwsbe 2 LI
s - IO« S - . . -
of ifhichy obie Jho £ o ks ) mm _ 41099 _ 24494 .
d'uh:&‘du.h_u!umu ) Fokr ) Lo67 . 2RET 2589
JMM!%MMMM 13450 277 2008 787

i postimbi it b e
M . B

7 Thve qualilied shaveholger o UBS A b S Group A2 ATGRaled eniies of IS5 A5 ase all diect sebsiciarres of UBS GRUp AL, ICking Crod Suisst &G, 1 O E06 ameoants Gat 0./ From ofhes parid paders.

As of 31 December 2023, off-balance sheet positions related to subsidiaries amounted to USD 8.6bn (CHF 7.2bn)
{31 December 2022: UISD 8.0bn (CHF 7.4bn)), of which USD 6.4bn (CHF 5.4bn) was guarantess to third parties
{31 December 2022: USD 6.2bn (CHF 5.7bn)) and USD 0.5bn {CHF 0.4bn) was loan commitments (31 December 2022:
USD 0.5bn (CHF 0.5bn}).

As of 31 December 2023, off-balance sheet positions related to affiliates amounted to USD 1.0bn (CHF 0.8bn)
(31 December 2022: USD 0.0bn (CHF 0.0bn).

Loans to and deposits from members of governing bodies were immaterial for all periods presented.

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) 33

573/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 24 Fiduciary transactions

USDkm CHFm
A naa 3113 R

Foudaydepodls .
o iy lacied it Blvir gty laab
Tetal fideciary transacions

B o 8

zhémgz
"
&

Fiduciary fransactions encompass transactions entered into by UBS AG that result in holding or l:llacing'asset& on behalf
of individuals, trusts, defined benefit plans and other institutions. Unless the recognition criteria the assets are
satisfied, these assets and the related income are exduded from UBS AG's balance sheet and income staternent but are
disdosed in this Mote as off-balance sheet fiduciary transactions. Client deposits that are initially placed as fiduciary
transactions with UBS AG may be recognized on UBS AG's balance sheet in situations in which the deposit is subsequently
placed within UBS AG. In such cases, these deposits are not reported in the table above.

MNote 25a Invested assets and net new money

USD ba CHF bn
B of or for the year ended A ol or for the year ended
A E) W e ER R i i

Discrefionany et B0 53 51 a8
Other invested aziets

434 ans 365 g
Todsl irvesied assets' 454 258 416 432
I}

Mt e maney (1 11 [}
1 Inclges ne doubile coents.

Note 25b Development of invested assets

USDEn CHF bn

A 1 1233 AR
Toud invested assets at the begioning el theyear? 4S80 4@ S0
Met e maney H 1 H (2
Market mawements? ’ T 1) 1 75
Other #ffacts 1) 1 {1k 1
Tenal irwested assets at the end of the year' 434 468 416 412
1 Inclasies n doubile coents. ¢ Incluckes inoerest and diwidend inosime.

¥ Refer to Nate 31 to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements in the UBS AG Annual Repoart 2023 for more information
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of UBS AG

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited UBS AG and subsidiaries internal control over financia reporting as of 31 December 2023, based on
criteriaestablished in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion, UBS AG and subsidiaries (“the Group”)
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2023, based on
the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Group as of 31 December 2023 and 2022, the related consolidated
income statements, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2023, and the related notes and our report dated 27 March 2024
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Group’ s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal
control over financia reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Group in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financia reporting was maintained in
all material respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides areasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
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that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Basel, 27 March 2024
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of UBS AG

Opinion on the Financia Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of UBS AG and subsidiaries (“the Group”) as of 31
December 2023 and 2022, the related consolidated income statements, statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2023, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements, including the information identified as “audited” as described in Note
1 (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financia statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2023 and 2022, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2023, in conformity with the
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the Group’s internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2023, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated 27 March 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

Thesefinancial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s Board of Directors. Our responsibility isto express an
opinion on the Group’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Group in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures
included examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits
also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for
our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements
that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex
judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate
opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
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Valuation of complex or illiquid instruments at fair value

Description of the
Matter

At 31 December 2023, as explained in Notes 1 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group held financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value of USD 358,139 million and USD
328,401 million, respectively, including financial instruments that did not trade in active markets.
These instruments are reported within the following accounts: financial assets and liabilities at fair
value held for trading, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value not held for
trading, debt issued designated at fair value, brokerage payables designated at fair value, and other
financial liabilities designated at fair value. In determining the fair value of these financial
instruments, the Group used valuation techniques, modelling assumptions, and estimates of
unobservable market inputs which required significant management judgment.

Auditing management’ s judgments and assumptions used in the estimation of the fair value of
these instruments was complex due to the highly judgmental nature of valuation techniques, key
modelling assumptions and significant unobservable inputs. Auditing the valuation of complex or
illiquid instruments at fair value included consideration of any incremental risks arising from the
impact of current macroeconomic influences on valuation techniques and inputs, such as
geopolitics and inflation. The valuation techniques that required especially complex judgment
were comprised of discounted cash flow and earnings-based valuation techniques. Highly
judgmental modelling assumptions result from arange of different models or model calibrations
used by market participants. Valuation inputs which were particularly complex and subjective
included those with alimited degree of observability and the associated extrapolation,
interpolation or calibration of curves using limited and proxy data points. Examples of such inputs
included unobservable credit spreads and bond prices, and volatility.

How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the
controls over management’s financial instrument valuation processes, including controls over
market datainputs, model and methodology governance, and valuation adjustments.

We tested the valuation techniques, models and methodol ogies, and the inputs used in those
models, as outlined above, by performing an independent revaluation of certain complex or
illiquid financial assets and liabilities with the support of specialists. We used independent models
and inputs and compared inputs to available market data among other procedures. We aso
independently challenged key judgmentsin relation to a sample of fair value adjustments.

We also assessed management’ s disclosures regarding fair value measurement (within Notes 1 and
20 to the consolidated financial statements).

Legal provisions and contingent liabilities

602/633



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
ooooodn

Description of the
Matter

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters and
contingent liabilities (legal provisions) were USD 1,810 million. As explained in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group operatesin alegal and regulatory environment that is
exposed to significant litigation and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings.
Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcomes may be difficult to predict. These
uncertainties inherently affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with respect to the legal
provisions which have been established.

Auditing management’ s assessment of legal provisions was complex and judgmental due to the
significant subjectivity involved in management’s estimate of the amount and probability that an
outflow of resources will be required for existing legal matters, including inquiries regarding
cross-border wealth management businesses (Note 17b 1). The legal provisions for these matters
are based on management’ s estimation of the amount and likelihood of the occurrence of certain
scenarios.

How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operational effectiveness of
management’ s controls over the legal provision process. Our procedures included testing
management’s review of the accuracy of the inputs to the estimation of the amount and likelihood
of the occurrence of certain scenarios.

Where appropriate, we assessed the methodol ogies on which the provision amounts were based
with the involvement of specialists, recalculated the provisions and tested the underlying
information. We inspected internal and external legal analyses of the matters supporting the
judgmental aspectsimpacted by legal interpretations. We obtained correspondence directly from
external legal counsel to assess the information provided by management and performed inquiries
with external counsel as necessary.

We also assessed management’s disclosure regarding legal provisions (within Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Description of the
Matter

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s deferred tax assets (“DTAS’) were USD 9,244 million (see
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements). DTAs are recognized to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available, against which applicable deductible temporary differences or
the carryforward of unused tax losses within the loss carryforward period can be utilized. Thereis
significant judgment exercised when estimating future taxable income that is not based on the
reversal of taxable temporary differences. Management’s estimate of future taxable profitsis
based on its strategic plan that is sensitive to the assumptions made in estimating future taxable
income.

Auditing management’s assessment of the recognition of the Group’s DTAs was complex dueto
the highly judgmental nature of estimating future taxable profits. Estimating future profitability is
inherently subjective asit is sensitive to future economic, market and other conditions, which are
difficult to predict, such as the impact of geopalitics, inflation, and interest rates. Specificaly,
some of the more subjective key macro-economic assumptions used included gross domestic
product growth rates, equity market performance, and interest rate expectations.
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How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

Expected aredit |osses

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over DTA valuation, which included the assumptions used in devel oping
the strategic plans and estimating future taxable income.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data used for the estimations of future taxable
income. This included recal culating the outputs of models applied to the recognition process for
DTAs.

We involved specialiststo assist in assessing the key economic assumptions embedded in the
strategic plans. We compared key assumptions used to forecast future taxable income to externally
available historical and prospective data and assumptions and assessed the sensitivity of the
outcomes using reasonably possible changes in assumptions.

We also assessed management’s disclosure regarding recognized and unrecognized deferred tax
assets (within Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements).

Description of the
Matter

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s allowances and provisions for expected credit losses (“ECL”)
were USD 1,244 million. As explained in Notes 1, 9 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, ECL is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, fee and lease receivables, financia
guarantees, and loan commitments not measured at fair value. ECL is also recognized on the
undrawn portion of committed unconditionally revocable credit lines, which include the Group’s
credit card limits and master credit facilities. The allowances and provisions for ECL consists of
exposures that are in default which are individually evaluated for impairment (stage 3), aswell as
losses inherent in the loan portfolio that are not specifically identified (stage 1 and stage 2).
Management’'s ECL estimates represent the difference between contractual cash flows and those
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate. The method used to
calculate ECL is based on a combination of the following principal factors: probability of default
(“PD"), loss given default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (“EAD”).

Auditing management’ s estimate of the allowances and provisions for ECL was complex dueto
the highly judgmental nature of forward-looking economic scenarios that form the basis of the
ECL calculation, their probability weightings, related post-model adjustments, and the credit risk
models used to estimate stage 1 and stage 2 ECL. The macroeconomic devel opments during 2023,
including persisting geopolitical tensions and inflation, contributed to further uncertainty and
complexity in estimating ECL. As aresult, the ECL estimation required higher management
judgment, specifically within the following two areas: (i) scenario selection, including assumptions
about the scenario severity, underlying macroeconomic variables, and the number of scenarios
necessary to sufficiently cover the bandwidth of potential outcomes, aswell as related scenario
weights and post-model adjustments; and (ii) credit risk models, since the output from historic data
based models may not be indicative of current or future conditions.

Additionally, auditing the measurement of individual ECL for stage 3 was complex dueto the high
degree of judgment involved in management’s process for estimating ECL based on assumptions.
These assumptions take into account expected future cash flows from collateral and other credit
enhancements or expected payouts from bankruptcy proceedings for unsecured claims and, where
applicable, time to realization of collateral and the seniority of claims.
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How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

Ernst & Young Ltd

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over the ECL estimate, including management’s choice of forward-
looking economic scenarios used to measure ECL and the probability weighting assigned to such
scenarios. We evaluated management’s methodol ogies and governance controls for developing
and monitoring the economic scenarios used and the probability weightings assigned to them, and
related post-model adjustments. Supported by specialists, we assessed the key macroeconomic
variables used in the forward-looking scenarios, such as real gross domestic product growth,
unemployment rate, interest rates and house price indices, and evaluated the modelled correlation
and trand ation of those macroeconomic factors to the ECL estimate. We further assessed the
appropriateness of the post-model adjustments by considering management’s governance process,
assumptions used and sensitivity analysis.

We also obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over credit risk models used in the ECL estimate, including controls over the
completeness and accuracy of model input data, calculation logic, and output data used in the
overall ECL calculation. With the support of specialists, on a sample basis, we performed an
evaluation of management’s models and tested the model outcomes by inspecting model
documentation, reperforming model calculations, and comparing data used as inputs to
management’ s forecast to external sources, among other procedures.

For the measurement of stage 3, we obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over management’s process, including an evaluation of the
assumptions used by management regarding the future cash flows from debtors continuing
operations and/or the liquidation of collateral. Supported by specidistsin certain areas, we
additionally tested collateral valuation, cash flow assumptions and exit strategies by performing
inquiries of management, inspecting underlying documents, such as loan contracts, financial
statements, covenants, budgets and business plans, and by reperforming discounted cash flow
calculations among other procedures, on a sample basis.

We also assessed management’ s disclosures regarding financial assets at amortized cost and other
positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement (within Notes 1, 9 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements).

We have served as the Group's auditor since 1998.

Basdl, Switzerland

27 March 2024
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To the General Meeting of Basel, 27 March 2024

UBS AG, Zurich & Basel

Statutory auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UBS AG and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, and the consolidated income statements,
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended 31 December 2023, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, including the
information identified as “audited” as described in Note 1 (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financia
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2023 in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law, International Standards on Auditing (ISA) and Swiss Standards on
Auditing (SA-CH). Our responsibilities under those provisions and standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law, together with the requirements of the
Swiss audit profession, as well as those of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Valuation of complex or illiquid instruments at fair value

Area of focus

At 31 December 2023, as explained in Notes 1 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group held financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value of USD 358,139 million and USD
328,401 million, respectively, including financial instruments that did not trade in active markets.
These instruments are reported within the following accounts: financial assets and liabilities at fair
vaue held for trading, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value not held for
trading, debt issued designated at fair value, brokerage payables designated at fair value, and other
financial liabilities designated at fair value. In determining the fair value of these financial
instruments, the Group used valuation techniques, modelling assumptions, and estimates of
unobservable market inputs which required significant management judgment.

Auditing management’ s judgments and assumptions used in the estimation of the fair value of
these instruments was complex due to the highly judgmental nature of valuation techniques, key
modelling assumptions and significant unobservable inputs. Auditing the valuation of complex or
illiquid instruments at fair value included consideration of any incremental risks arising from the
impact of current macroeconomic influences on valuation techniques and inputs, such as
geopolitics and inflation. The valuation techniques that required especially complex judgment
were comprised of discounted cash flow and earnings-based valuation techniques. Highly
judgmental modelling assumptions result from arange of different models or model calibrations
used by market participants. Vauation inputs which were particularly complex and subjective
included those with alimited degree of observability and the associated extrapolation,
interpolation or calibration of curves using limited and proxy data points. Examples of such inputs
included unobservable credit spreads and bond prices, and volatility.

Our audit response

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the
controls over management’s financial instrument valuation processes, including controls over
market data inputs, model and methodology governance, and valuation adjustments.

We tested the valuation techniques, models and methodologies, and the inputs used in those
models, as outlined above, by performing an independent revaluation of certain complex or
illiquid financial assets and liabilities with the support of specialists. We used independent models
and inputs and compared inputs to available market data among other procedures. We also
independently challenged key judgments in relation to a sample of fair value adjustments.

We also assessed management’ s disclosures regarding fair value measurement (within Notes 1 and
20 to the consolidated financial statements).

Legal provisions and contingent liabilities
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Area of focus

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters and
contingent liabilities (legal provisions) were USD 1,810 million. As explained in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group operatesin alegal and regulatory environment that is
exposed to significant litigation and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings.
Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcomes may be difficult to predict. These
uncertainties inherently affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with respect to the legal
provisions which have been established.

Auditing management’ s assessment of legal provisions was complex and judgmental due to the
significant subjectivity involved in management’s estimate of the amount and probability that an
outflow of resources will be required for existing legal matters, including inquiries regarding
cross-border wealth management businesses (Note 17b 1). Thelegal provisions for these matters
are based on management’ s estimation of the amount and likelihood of the occurrence of certain
scenarios.

Our audit response

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operational effectiveness of
management’ s controls over the legal provision process. Our procedures included testing
management’ s review of the accuracy of the inputs to the estimation of the amount and likelihood
of the occurrence of certain scenarios.

Where appropriate, we assessed the methodol ogies on which the provision amounts were based
with the involvement of specialists, recalculated the provisions and tested the underlying
information. We inspected internal and external legal analyses of the matters supporting the
judgmental aspectsimpacted by legal interpretations. We obtained correspondence directly from
external legal counsel to assess the information provided by management and performed inquiries
with external counsel as necessary.

We also assessed management’s disclosure regarding legal provisions (within Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Area of focus

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s deferred tax assets (“DTAS’) were USD 9,244 million (see
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements). DTAs are recognized to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available, against which applicable deductible temporary differences or
the carryforward of unused tax losses within the loss carryforward period can be utilized. Thereis
significant judgment exercised when estimating future taxable income that is not based on the
reversal of taxable temporary differences. Management’s estimate of future taxable profitsis
based on its strategic plan that is sensitive to the assumptions made in estimating future taxable
income.

Auditing management’s assessment of the recognition of the Group’s DTAs was complex dueto
the highly judgmental nature of estimating future taxable profits. Estimating future profitability is
inherently subjective asit is sensitive to future economic, market and other conditions, which are
difficult to predict, such as the impact of geopoalitics, inflation, and interest rates. Specificaly,
some of the more subjective key macro-economic assumptions used included gross domestic
product growth rates, equity market performance, and interest rate expectations.
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Our audit response

Expected credit losses

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over DTA valuation, which included the assumptions used in devel oping
the strategic plans and estimating future taxable income.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data used for the estimations of future taxable
income. Thisincluded recal culating the outputs of models applied to the recognition process for
DTAs.

We involved specialiststo assist in ng the key economic assumptions embedded in the
strategic plans. We compared key assumptions used to forecast future taxable income to externally
available historical and prospective data and assumptions and assessed the sensitivity of the
outcomes using reasonably possible changes in assumptions.

We also assessed management’s disclosure regarding recognized and unrecognized deferred tax
assets (within Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements).

Area of focus

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s allowances and provisions for expected credit losses (“ECL")
were USD 1,244 million. As explained in Notes 1, 9 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, ECL isrecognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, fee and lease receivables, financial
guarantees, and loan commitments not measured at fair value. ECL is also recognized on the
undrawn portion of committed unconditionally revocable credit lines, which include the Group’s
credit card limits and master credit facilities. The allowances and provisions for ECL consists of
exposures that are in default which are individually evaluated for impairment (stage 3), aswell as
losses inherent in the loan portfolio that are not specifically identified (stage 1 and stage 2).
Management’s ECL estimates represent the difference between contractual cash flows and those
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate. The method used to calculate
ECL is based on a combination of the following principal factors: probability of default (“PD"),
loss given default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (“EAD”).

Auditing management’s estimate of the allowances and provisions for ECL was complex dueto
the highly judgmental nature of forward-looking economic scenarios that form the basis of the
ECL calculation, their probability weightings, related post-model adjustments, and the credit risk
model s used to estimate stage 1 and stage 2 ECL. The macroeconomic developments during 2023,
including persisting geopolitical tensions and inflation, contributed to further uncertainty and
complexity in estimating ECL. As aresult, the ECL estimation required higher management
judgment, specifically within the following two areas: (i) scenario selection, including assumptions
about the scenario severity, underlying macroeconomic variables, and the number of scenarios
necessary to sufficiently cover the bandwidth of potential outcomes, as well as related scenario
weights and post-model adjustments; and (ii) credit risk models, since the output from historic data
based models may not be indicative of current or future conditions.

Additionally, auditing the measurement of individual ECL for stage 3 was complex due to the high
degree of judgment involved in management’s process for estimating ECL based on assumptions.
These assumptions take into account expected future cash flows from collateral and other credit
enhancements or expected payouts from bankruptcy proceedings for unsecured claims and, where
applicable, timeto realization of collateral and the seniority of claims.
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Our audit response  We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’ s controls over the ECL estimate, including management’s choice of forward-
looking economic scenarios used to measure ECL and the probability weighting assigned to such
scenarios. We evaluated management’s methodol ogies and governance controls for developing
and monitoring the economic scenarios used and the probability weightings assigned to them, and
related post-model adjustments. Supported by specialists, we assessed the key macroeconomic
variables used in the forward-looking scenarios, such as real gross domestic product growth,
unemployment rate, interest rates and house price indices, and evaluated the modelled correlation
and trandation of those macroeconomic factors to the ECL estimate. We further assessed the
appropriateness of the post-model adjustments by considering management’s governance process,
assumptions used and sensitivity analysis.

We also obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over credit risk models used in the ECL estimate, including controls over the
completeness and accuracy of model input data, calculation logic, and output data used in the
overall ECL calculation. With the support of specialists, on a sample basis, we performed an
evaluation of management’s models and tested the model outcomes by inspecting model
documentation, reperforming model calculations, and comparing data used as inputs to
management’ s forecast to external sources, among other procedures.

For the measurement of stage 3, we obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over management’s process, including an evaluation of the
assumptions used by management regarding the future cash flows from debtors continuing
operations and/or the liquidation of collateral. Supported by specialistsin certain areas, we
additionally tested collateral valuation, cash flow assumptions and exit strategies by performing
inquiries of management, inspecting underlying documents, such as loan contracts, financial
statements, covenants, budgets and business plans, and by re-performing discounted cash flow
calculations among other procedures, on a sample basis.

We also assessed management’ s disclosures regarding financial assets at amortized cost and other
positions in scope of expected credit |oss measurement (within Notes 1, 9 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements).

Other information in the annua report

The Board of Directorsis responsible for the other information in the annual report. The other information comprises al
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements of UBS Group AG

and UBS AG, the standalone financial statements of UBS Group AG, the compensation reportl, and our auditor’ s reports
thereon.

Our opinions on the consolidated financial statements of UBS Group AG and UBS AG, the standalone financial statements
of UBS Group AG and the compensation report1 do not cover the other information in the annual report and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information in

the annual report and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
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the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

! Specifically, the following tablesin the compensation report: “ Share ownership/entitlements of GEB members,” "Total

of all vested and unvested shares of GEB members,” "Number of shares of BoD members," and "Total of all blocked and
unblocked shares of BoD Members.”
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Board of Directors responsibilities for the consolidated financia statements

The Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, which give atrue and
fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and the provisions of Swiss law, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statementsthat are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directorsis responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
aternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss
law, ISA and SA-CH will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of userstaken on the basis of these consolidated financia statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financia statementsislocated on
EXPERTsuisse' s website at: https://www.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report. This description forms part of our auditor’'s
report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a para. 1 item 3 CO and PS-CH 890, we confirm that an internal control system exists, which
has been designed for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of

Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Maurice McCormick Robert E. Jacab, Jr.

Licensed audit expert Certified Public Accountant (U.S.)
(Auditor in charge)
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To the General Meeting of Basel, 27 March 2024

UBS AG, Zurich and Basdl,

Report of the statutory auditor

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS AG (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December
2023 and the income statement for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements comply with Swiss law and the Company’s articles of incorporation.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Standards on Auditing (SA-CH). Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “ Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Swisslaw and
the requirements of the Swiss audit profession, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “ Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements”
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the financia statements.

Vauation of investments in subsidiaries and other participations
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Areaof Focus As of 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of UBS AG's investments in subsidiaries and other
participationsis USD 48 hillion. Investments in subsidiaries and other participations are equity
interests that are held to carry on the business of UBS AG or for other strategic purposes. They
include all subsidiaries directly held by UBS AG through which UBS AG conducts its business on
aglobal basis. Theinvestments are measured individually and carried at cost lessimpairment. The
carrying amount istested for impairment annually, with the recoverable amount being determined
using adiscounted dividend model.

Due to the inherent uncertainties in valuing investments in subsidiaries, including forecasting and
management's judgments, and considering the significance of the account we identified this area as
akey audit matter.

Our audit response  Our audit procedures included the review of management's process over the valuation of
investments in subsidiaries and other participations, including the impairment test.

We obtained an understanding and evaluated the relevant controls addressing the identified risks
and tested the design and operating effectiveness of these controls. Our focus was on controls over
thereview of the various valuation models and the estimation of future cashflows, aswell as
governance and oversight over management's valuation process.

We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodology, taking into account the nature of
the investment and the underlying business. With the support of valuation specialists we assessed
the assumptions and methodol ogies used by management, to determine the recoverable amount of
the investment in subsidiaries.

We also assessed the relevant disclosures regarding investments in subsidiaries and other
participations (within note 4 to the financial statements).

Vauation of complex or illiquid instruments at fair value
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Area of Focus

At 31 December 2023, UBS AG held financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value,
including financial instruments that did not trade in active markets. These instruments are reported
within the following accounts: financial assets and liabilities at fair value held for trading,
derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value not held for trading, debt issued
designated at fair value, brokerage payables designated at fair value, and other financial liabilities
designated at fair value. In determining the fair value of these financial instruments, valuation
techniques, modelling assumptions, and estimates of unobservable market inputs which required
significant management judgment, were used.

Auditing management’ s judgments and assumptions used in the estimation of the fair value of
these instruments was complex due to the highly judgmental nature of valuation techniques, key
modelling assumptions and significant unobservable inputs. Auditing the valuation of complex or
illiquid instruments at fair value included consideration of any incremental risks arising from the
impact of current macroeconomic influences on valuation techniques and inputs, such as
geopolitics and inflation. The valuation techniques that required especially complex judgement
were comprised of discounted cash flow and earnings-based valuation techniques. Highly
judgmental modelling assumptions result from arange of different models or model calibrations
used by market participants. Vauation inputs which were particularly complex and subjective
included those with a limited degree of observability and the associated extrapolation,
interpolation or calibration of curves using limited and proxy data points. Examples of such inputs
included unobservable credit spreads and bond prices, and volatility.

Our audit response

Expected credit losses

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the
controls over management’s financial instrument valuation processes, including controls over
market data inputs, model and methodology governance, and valuation adjustments.

We tested the valuation techniques, models and methodologies, and the inputs used in those
models, as outlined above, by performing an independent revaluation of certain complex or
illiquid financial assets and liabilities with the support of specialists. We used independent models
and inputs and compared inputs to available market data among other procedures. We aso
independently challenged key judgmentsin relation to a sample of fair value adjustments.

We also assessed the relevant disclosures regarding fair value measurement disclosure (within
note 14 and 15 to the financial statements).
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Area of Focus

UBS AG appliesin its standalone financial statements the ECL approach whichisused inits
consolidated financial statements under the IFRS Accounting Standards.

ECL isrecognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, fee and lease receivables, financial guarantees, and
loan commitments not measured at fair value. ECL is also recognized on the undrawn portion of
committed unconditionally revocable credit lines, which include the credit card limits and master
credit facilities. The allowances and provisions for ECL consists of exposures that are in default
which are individually evaluated for impairment (stage 3), as well aslosses inherent in the loan
portfolio that are not specifically identified (stage 1 and stage 2). Management’s ECL estimates
represent the difference between contractual cash flows and those expected to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The method used to calculate ECL is based on a combination of the
following principal factors: probability of default (“PD”), loss given default (“LGD”) and
exposure at default (“EAD”).

Auditing management’ s estimate of the allowances and provisions for ECL was complex dueto
the highly judgmental nature of forward-looking economic scenarios that form the basis of the
ECL calculation, their probability weightings, related post-model adjustments, and the credit risk
models used to estimate stage 1 and stage 2 ECL. The macroeconomic devel opments during 2023,
including persisting geopolitical tensions and inflation, contributed to further uncertainty and
complexity in estimating ECL. As aresult, the ECL estimation required higher management
judgement, specifically within the following two areas: (i) scenario selection, including
assumptions about the scenario severity, underlying macroeconomic variables, and the number of
scenarios necessary to sufficiently cover the bandwidth of potential outcomes, as well as related
scenario weights and post-model adjustments; and (i) credit risk models, since the output from
historic data based models may not be indicative of current or future conditions.

Additionally, auditing the measurement of individual ECL for stage 3 was complex dueto the high
degree of judgment involved in management’s process for estimating ECL based on assumptions.
These assumptions take into account expected future cash flows from collateral and other credit
enhancements or expected payouts from bankruptcy proceedings for unsecured claims and, where
applicable, timeto realization of collateral and the seniority of claims.
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Our audit response

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over the ECL estimate, including management’s choice of forward-
looking economic scenarios used to measure ECL and the probability weighting assigned to such
scenarios. We evaluated management’s methodol ogies and governance controls for devel oping
and monitoring the economic scenarios used and the probability weightings assigned to them, and
related post-model adjustments. Supported by specialists, we assessed the key macroeconomic
variables used in the forward-looking scenarios, such as real gross domestic product growth,
unemployment rate, interest rates and house price indices, and evaluated the modelled correlation
and trandation of those macroeconomic factors to the ECL estimate. We further assessed the
appropriateness of the post-model adjustments by considering management’s governance process,
assumptions used and sensitivity analysis.

We aso obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over credit risk models used in the ECL estimate, including controls over the
completeness and accuracy of model input data, calculation logic, and output data used in the
overall ECL calculation. With the support of specialists, on a sample basis, we performed an
evaluation of management’s models and tested the model outcomes by inspecting model
documentation, reperforming model calculations, and comparing data used as inputsto
management’ s forecast to external sources, among other procedures.

For the measurement of stage 3, we obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over management’s process, including an evaluation of the
assumptions used by management regarding the future cash flows from debtors continuing
operations and/or the liquidation of collateral. Supported by speciaistsin certain areas, we
additionally tested collateral valuation, cash flow assumptions and exit strategies by performing
inquiries of management, inspecting underlying documents, such as loan contracts, financial
statements, covenants, budgets and business plans, and by reperforming discounted cash flow
calculations among other procedures, on a sample basis.

We also assessed the relevant disclosures regarding financial assets at amortized cost and other
positions in scope of expected credit |oss measurement (within notes 12ato 12e to the financial
statements).

Legal Provisions & contingent liability

Areaof Focus

UBS AG operatesin alegal and regulatory environment that is exposed to significant litigation
and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings. Such matters are subject to
many uncertainties and the outcomes may be difficult to predict. These uncertainties inherently
affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with respect to the legal provisions which have
been established.

Auditing management’ s assessment of legal provisions was complex and judgmental due to the
significant subjectivity involved in management’s estimate of the amount and probability that an
outflow of resourceswill be required for existing legal matters, including inquiries regarding
cross-border wealth management businesses. The legal provisions for these matters are based on
management’ s estimation of the amount and likelihood of the occurrence of certain scenarios.
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Our auditresponse ~ We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operational effectiveness of
management’s controls over the legal provision process. Our procedures included testing
management’s review of the accuracy of the inputs to the estimation of the amount and likelihood

of the occurrence of certain scenarios.

Where appropriate, we assessed the methodol ogies on which the provision amounts were based
with the involvement of specialists, recalculated the provisions and tested the underlying
information. We inspected internal and external legal analyses of the matters supporting the
judgmental aspects impacted by legal interpretations. We obtained correspondence directly from
external legal counsel to assess the information provided by management and performed inquiries
with external counsel as necessary.

We also assessed the relevant disclosures regarding legal provisions (within note 12b to the
financial statements).

Other information
The Board of Directorsis responsible for the other information in the annual report. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information in the annual report and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
thisregard.

Board of Directors responsibilities for the financia statements

The Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation of the financial statementsin accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework for banks, the provisions of Swisslaw and the Company's articles of incorporation, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors determinesis necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directorsis responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance isa high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and SA-
CH will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on EXPERTSuisse's website

at: https://www.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report. This description forms an integral part of our report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with Art. 728apara. 1 item 3 CO and PS-CH 890, we confirm that an internal control system exists, which
has been designed for the preparation of the financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

Furthermore, we confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and the Company’
sarticles of incorporation We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Maurice McCormick Spiros Kavvadias

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)
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